
 
 
Meeting Date:  December 6, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive public comments regarding the Program Year 2010 Consolidated 
Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development 
Block Grant provided by HUD. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government, through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), sponsors 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons.  
 
Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an 
annual basis. As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile 
and publish a report detailing the use of CDBG funds and associated 
progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER).   
 
The CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community 
development activities as well as the County’s overall housing and 
community development efforts.  This year’s CAPER corresponds to 
activities conducted during the 2010 program year spanning October 1, 
2010 to September 30, 2011. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 2
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

On October 25, 2011, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a 
15-day public comment period spanning from December 1, 2011, through 
December 15, 2011, as well as a public hearing on December 6, 2011.  
Notice of the comment period and public hearing was provided in 
newspapers of general circulation, through postal and electronic mailings, 
on the County’s website, Facebook, Twitter and the seven Travis County 
Community Centers.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends the public hearing to be compliant with HUD regulations 
and Travis County’s Citizen Participation Plan. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Comments may be received in writing beginning December 1, 2011 at 8:00 
a.m. through on December 15, 2011 at 5:00 p.m. The public can access 
the draft document by visiting www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG, by visiting any 
of the seven Travis County Community Centers or by calling 512-854-3460 
to request a copy. The public can submit written comments by mailing them 
to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS, P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 
78767 or emailing them to cdbg@co.travis.tx.us. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
No budget impacts are anticipated by this item.  
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
None. 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG
mailto:cdbg@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County 

 Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) Program 

PY10 CDBG Annual Report 

 Public Hearing 

 

 
 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court  

Presentation by the Health & Human Services and Veteran 
Services (HHS & VS) Department 

December 6, 2011 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



2 

PY10 Accomplishments: Land Acquisition 

 

 

 
• In October 2010 Austin 

Habitat for Humanity closed 

on 27 lots on Gilbert Lane to 

build affordable single-family 

housing for low-income 

families.  

  
• In January 2011 a substantial amendment was approved to provide 

an additional $174,000 in CDBG funding from prior year project 

savings for the acquisition of an additional 4 lots on the Gilbert Lane 

parcel.   

 

• Austin Habitat for Humanity closed on the final four lots in July, 

2011. 

 

• The first house for the project was 90% complete at the end of PY10.       

 

• Of the $1,076,613.70 budgeted, $1,044,505.02 was expended in PY10.   

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



3 

PY10 Accomplishments: Lava Lane 

 

 

 
• Roadway improvements 

are complete for Lava 

Lane, a substandard road 

in Precinct 4. The project 

was substantially 

complete on June 13, 

2011. 

  

• The road has been accepted on to the Travis County 

system. 

 

• The project benefits 1,297 people.  

 

• Of the $475,000 budgeted in PY10, $334,762.79 was 

expended in PY10.   

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



4 

PY10 Accomplishments:  
Social Services Expansion 

 

 

• 175 people benefitted from services, exceeding 

annual project goals. 

 

• Outreach conducted to 29 organizations, to inform 

the community about social work services 

available. 

 

• Four clients received assistance through the Youth 

and Family Assessment Center program.   

 

• Eleven clients were assisted with Best Single 

Source funds. 

 

• Of the $69,295 budgeted in PY10, $65,374.48 was 

expended in PY10.   

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



5 

PY10 Accomplishments:  
Planning and Administration 

 

 

• Staff continue to complete grant 

administration and project development. 

 

• In February 2011, the two vacant CDBG 

Planner positions were filled.   

 

• The PY2011-2013 Consolidated Plan and 

PY2011 Action Plan were completed on time. 

 

• Staff were active in homelessness and 

housing planning efforts. 

 

• Of the $188,454 budgeted in PY10, $159,860.35 

was expended in PY10.   

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



6 

PY10 Other Accomplishments 

 

 

 
• Achieved timeliness compliance in August 

2011.  In September 2011, the ratio was 

1.34. 

 

• In PY10, Travis County renewed its Urban 

County status for 2012-2014. 

  

• The Village of Webberville elected to join 

the Urban County, and a Cooperative 

Agreement was approved by TCCC in July, 

2011.  

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



7 

Pipeline Projects 

Project Budgeted Status 

1.    Homebuyer Assistance  
PY09: $509,945 
PY10: $285,000 

• Program design is complete. 
• A Request-for-Services (RFS) 
process is underway to identify a 
sub-recipient.  

2.    YFAC Flex Fund 

Expansion 
PY09: $32,100 

•The project was delayed due to 
competing priorities in getting other 
projects completed. 

3.    Home Rehabilitation 

 
PY08: $106,136 
PY09: $130,000 

•A Request-for-Services (RFS) 
process will take place in Program 
Year 2011 to identify a sub-recipient.  
•Anticipated to begin in PY2011. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



8 

Summary of PY 2006 – 2010 
Accomplishments 

 
 

 

Lava Lane Apache Shores 

Gilbert Lane Gilbert Lane 

Northridge Acres 

   Completed 12 projects           
       Spent over $3 million       
                                                                                      Benefitted over 3550 people 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



9 

Public Comment Period 

 

 

 

Public Comment Period: 
• Comments are accepted beginning December 1, 2011 

at 8:00 a.m. and ending December 15, 2011 at 5:00 p.m. 
 
To access the draft Annual Report: 
• Visit www.traviscountytx.gov/CDBG 

• Visit any of the seven Travis County Community Centers 
• Or call 512-854-3460 to request a copy 

 
To submit written comments: 
• Mail them to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS,  

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767  
• Email them to cdbg@co.travis.tx.us 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 3
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRe 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: 
Executive, Planning & Budget 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health 
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund 
for payment of $1,045,944.29, for the period of November 18 to November 24,2011. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

See attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Director or Risk Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and concurs 
with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits Contract 
Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $1 ,045,944.29. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

See attached. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

Employee Health Benefit Fund (526) - $1,045,944.29 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Dan Mansour, 854-9499 
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170 
Leroy Nellis, 854-9106 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 4
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Meeting Date: 12/6/2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Cynthia LarJ;l1t~","~gJJ 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Hea y e 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human 
Resources Management Department: 

A. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and 

B. Non-routine request from Juvenile Probation for a variance to Travis 
County Code § 10.03008, Promotion. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Attached are Personnel Amendments for Commissioners Court approval. 

A. Routine Personnel Actions - Pages 2 - 5. 

B. Non-Routine Personnel Action - Pages 6 - 9. 
Juvenile Probation requests approval to record an action as a 
voluntary job change - Travis County Code § 10.03009 in lieu of a 
promotion - Travis County Code § 10.03008 for Slot 154, Juvenile 
Probation Division Director, PG 25 to Slot 630, Attorney IV, PG 26. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Diane Blankenship 
at 854-9170 or Todd L. Osburn at 854-2744. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
NIA 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
NIA 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 5
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: November 29,2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Kimberly Pierce, (512) 854-4764 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Roger Jefferies, County Executive 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Margaret Gomez, Precinct 4 Commissioner 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the approval of 
the Travis County Criminal Justice Community Plan due to the Capital Area Council of 
Governments (CAPCOG) December 2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Texas Administrative Code (TAC) requires that each community submit a 
community plan for criminal justice related activities to their local Council of 
Governments. This is done as a condition to participate in the local Criminal Justice 
Advisory Committee (CJAC) application process for specific state and federal funding 
solicitations. These grant solicitations pass through the Governor's Office, Criminal 
Justice Division. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Criminal Justice Planning Staff recommend that 
the Commissioners Court approve the community plan. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: No fiscal impact. No source of 
funding exists for the Criminal Justice Community Plan. However, the Criminal Justice 
Community Plan must be submitted as mandated by the Texas Administrative Code by 
December 2011, for interested community grantees to apply for state and federal 
criminal justice funding solicitations through the Governor's Criminal Justice Division. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Requires Travis County Commissioners' 
signature prior to submission to the CAPCOG. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryLAker@co.travistx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 6
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

akerc
Cross-Out

akerc
Typewritten Text
December 6,



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



FY 2012 to FY 2015 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY PLAN FOR 
COORDINATION OF CRIMINAL 

JUSTICE AND RELATED 
ACTIVITIES 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



FY 2012 to FY 2015 COMMUNITY PLAN FOR THE COORDINATION OF 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES SUBMISSION FORM  

Submitting County:  Travis County  

Areas Represented:  

Incorporated Communities: Austin and Pflugerville 

Unincorporated Communities: Bee Cave, Briarcliff, Creedmoor, Del Valle, Jonestown, 
Lago Vista, Lakeway, Manor, Mustang Ridge, Rollingwood, San Leanna, Sunset Valley, 
the Hills, West Lake  

School Districts: Austin ISD, Del Valle ISD, Eanes ISD, Lago Vista ISD, Lake Travis ISD, Manor 
ISD, Pflugerville ISD and multiple private and parochial schools 

Dates of Community Planning Meetings: March 17, April 22, and May 28, 2011    

Date Community Plan was presented to Commissioners Court: Presented to Travis County 
Commissioners on Tuesday, November 29, 2011 

Authoring Entity: Travis County  

Signatures of County and Judge and County Commissioners:  

Judge Sam Biscoe ____________________________________________ 

Precinct 1 Ron Davis __________________________________________ 

Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt ______________________________________ 

Precinct 3 Karen Huber ________________________________________ 

Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez _____________________________________ 

Date Received by Capital Area Council of Governments_______________.  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



1 | P a g e  
 

TRAVIS COUNTY FY 2012 COMMUNITY PLAN 
FOR THE COORDINATION OF 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES 
 

 
      INTRODUCTION AND PLAN SUMMARY 
 

 

Travis County is located in Texas and is one of the oldest counties in the state. Established in 
1840, it was named for William Barrett Travis, a hero of the Alamo and the Texas Revolution. 
Carved out of Bastrop County during the years Texas was a Republic (1836-1845), Travis 
County initially encompassed over 40,000 square miles. Bastrop was one of the original counties 
created in 1836 after Texas gained independence from Mexico. Subsequently, Travis County was 
subdivided as well, creating the counties of Brown (1856), Burnett (1852), Callahan (1858), 
Coleman (1858), Comal (1846), Eastland (1858), Gillespie (1848), Hays (1848), Lampasas 
(1856), Runnels (1858) and Taylor (1858). 

Travis County currently comprises 989 square miles on the eastern edge of the Edwards Plateau, 
and is divided by the Balcones Escarpment. It is 150 miles inland from the Gulf of Mexico, 
approximately 100 miles southwest of Waco and approximately 75 miles northeast of San 
Antonio. The county’s five major traffic corridors include Interstate Highway 35, Mopac (Loop 
1), and U.S. Highways 183 and 290, as well as State Highway 71. Travis County is home to the 
City of Austin. Named for Stephen F. Austin, the Father of Texas, Austin is the largest city in the 
county and serves as both the state capital and the county seat. The geographical center of Travis 
County lies two miles northwest of downtown Austin. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



2 | P a g e  
 

The geographic areas covered under the Travis County Community Plan include the incorporated 
communities of Austin and Pflugerville; the unincorporated communities of Bee Cave, Briarcliff, 
Creedmoor, Del Valle, Jonestown, Lago Vista, Lakeway, Manor, Mustang Ridge, Rollingwood, 
San Leana, Sunset Valley, the Hills, and West Lake; and, the Austin, Del Valle, Eanes, Lago 
Vista, Lake Travis, Manor, and Pflugerville Independent School Districts, as well as multiple 
private and parochial schools.  

To gain comprehensive insight into community needs and gaps in service, Travis County 
Criminal Justice Planning established a broad-based Community Plan Steering Committee and 
held four local community forums to elicit information and observations on current trends and 
issues. Community forums represented the following agencies and organizations: 

• Austin, Pflugerville, and Manor Independent School Districts and Pflugerville ISD Police 
Department 

• Austin-Travis County Integral Care 

• American Youthworks 

• Center for Child Protection 

• Campfire USA Balcones Council 

• City of Austin (Police Department and Downtown Criminal Courts) 

• Council on At-Risk Youth  

• GENAustin 

• Girl Scouts of Central Texas 

• SafePlace 

• SAHELI   

• Southwest Key 

• Theatre Action Project 

• Travis County (Community Corrections and Supervision, Constable Precinct 5, Criminal 
Courts Administration, Counseling and Education, District Attorney’s Office, Health and 
Human Services, Juvenile Probation, Sheriff’s Office, Veterans Court and Criminal 
Justice Planning) 

The plan prioritizes needs within four focus areas: law enforcement, prosecution, and courts; 
juvenile justice; victim services; and education. It will assist the Travis County community with 
mobilizing available assets, sustaining successful programs, and achieving each of the plan 
goals. The intent of this plan is to begin accomplishing community goals within a 12 month 
period, which will ultimately enhance the quality of life and improve public safety in Travis 
County.  

In forming this plan, participants identified community problems and resource needs; developed 
realistic goals, strategies, tasks and performance measures; collected relevant supporting data; 
described potential implementation plans; and identified existing efforts and resources. 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



3 | P a g e  
 

 

          
         TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Law Enforcement, Prosecution and Courts     Pages 4 – 16 
The law enforcement, prosecution and courts forum was held on May 28, 
2011. Priority areas selected will enhance initiatives within each; prevent crime 
and empower the community to address crime; promote and support 
innovation in adjudication; promote and support innovation in justice 
information sharing; use advanced technology to prevent and solve crime; 
enhance the ability of local law enforcement prosecution, and the courts to 
county terrorism and domestic emergencies; effectively manage adult and 
juvenile offenders to reduce recidivism and promote successful reentry; and 
work towards ending the cycle of mental illness and substance abuse. 

Victim Services         Pages 16 – 23 
The victim services forum was held on April 22, 2011. Priority areas selected 
will provide effective interventions that address violence, victimization, and 
victim rights, and will work toward ending the cycle of mental illness, 
substance abuse, and crime. 

Juvenile Justice         Pages 23 – 32 
The juvenile justice forum was held on March 17, 2011. Priority areas selected 
will prevent crime and empower the community to address crime; break the 
cycle of mental illness, substance abuse, and crime; prevent and intervene in 
juvenile offending and victimization; and effectively manage and provide for 
juvenile offenders to reduce recidivism and promote successful reentry into the 
community.   

Education          Pages 32 – 40 
The education forum was held on April 22, 2011. Priority areas selected will 
address bullying, school safety, delinquency, truancy, dropout and expulsion.  

Addendum A          Pages 41 – 45 
Plan participants provide a list of existing and/or planned initiatives that fall 
under each priority area as Addendum A. 

Addendum B          Pages 45 – 66 
Plan participants compiled a significant amount of data to support the many 
goals described throughout this document. While portions of key data are 
included within each of the four category sections, the majority may be 
reviewed in the addendum. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



4 | P a g e  
 

          
                     LAW ENFORCEMENT, PROSECUTION AND THE COURTS 

 

 

Problem Statement 
To improve local law enforcement, prosecution, and court services and systems, Travis County is 
in need of personnel and a wide variety of resources to enhance local and regional initiatives that 
prevent crime and empower the community to address crime; to promote and support innovation 
in adjudication; to promote and support innovation in justice information sharing; to use 
advanced technology to prevent and solve crime; to enhance the ability of local law enforcement 
prosecution, and the courts to counter terrorism and domestic emergencies; to effectively manage 
adult and juvenile offenders to reduce recidivism and promote successful reentry; and, to end the 
cycle of mental illness and substance abuse. 

Supporting Data 
The City of Austin Police Department (APD) serves 796,310 persons residing within 261 square 
miles, with an authorized sworn strength of 1,718. Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO) serves 
approximately 175,000 individuals residing within 619 square miles. The 270 deputies of the 
Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO) are the primary law enforcement agency for this 
jurisdiction. Austin is surrounded by smaller jurisdictions that are primarily located in the rural, 
western portions of the county. Several of these cities have small police forces. According to the 
Austin Convention and Visitors Bureau, an estimated 17 million people travel to the 
metropolitan area annually. Austin’s crime rate of 6,231 offenses per 100,000 was 16% higher 
than the average rate of 5,358 for all large U.S. cities. 

APD Uniform Crime Reporting Information – Violent Crime and Property Crime 

Part I Index Crimes 

Offenses Rate per 100,000 

2009 2010 % change 2009 2010 % change 

Murder 22 38 72.7% 2.9 4.8 66.8% 

Rape 265 265 0% 34.5 33.3 -3.4% 

Robbery 1,415 1,231 -13% 184 154.6 -16% 

Aggravated Assault 2,322 2,256 -2.8% 302 283.3 -6.2% 

Total Violent Crime 4,024 3,790 -5.8% 523.3 475.9 -9% 

Burglary 8,753 8,749 0% 1,138.3 1,098.7 -3.5% 

Theft 37,054 34,827 -6% 4,818.7 4,373.5 -9.2% 

Auto Theft 2,219 2,250 1.4% 288.6 282.6 -2.1 

Total Property Crime 48,026 45,826 -4.6% 6,245.5 5,754.8 -7.9% 

Total Index Crime 52,050 49,616 -4.7% 6,769 6,231 -7.9 

Population 768,970 796,310 3.6% 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



5 | P a g e  
 

Information Sharing 
The Austin Regional Intelligence Center (ARIC) is a collaborative effort of criminal justice 
agencies operating within a three-county area of Central Texas. The mission of ARIC is to 
maximize the ability of personnel to detect, prevent, apprehend, and respond to criminal and 
terrorist activity. ARIC is currently comprised of five municipal government agencies, three 
county government agencies, the University of Texas at Austin Police Department, and the 
Austin Independent School District Police Department. The ten founding ARIC partners were 
chosen based on their proximity to the Interstate 35 corridor, an area that recently received a 
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area designation by the Justice Department. A key element of 
their information strategy is the creation of a regional crime database so that patterns of criminal 
activity can be tracked across jurisdictions. 
 

Crime-Specific Information 
In calendar year 2010, there were a total of 2,416 gang-related incidents involving 2,528 
documented gang members. Offenses involving narcotics have consistently accounted for 18-
20% of gang member involved offenses over the last five years, with remaining offenses ranging 
from aggravated robbery, burglary and criminal trespass to theft, family violence and over 75 
emergency protective orders.   

Human trafficking in Central Texas is a critical issue. Texas is a border state and the Western 
District of Texas has the longest common border with Mexico, approximately 660 miles, making 
it likely that victims brought across the US/Mexican border (legally or illegally) will be residing 
for some period of time in Texas. Austin, Texas, is situated on a primary interstate highway 
system, and, as such, is a major trans-shipment point and staging area for controlled substance 
and for smuggled individuals.  Austin is home to the largest university in the country, is known 
for its live music and entertainment scene, and is in close vicinity to a major military base (Ft. 
Hood). The combination of a youthful population and Austin’s urban location make it a 
destination city for human trafficking.  Because Austin is located on the IH-35 corridor, it is an 
ideal place for traffickers who want to frequently and quickly move victims from city to city, as 
in cases of national sex trafficking rings.  This includes both domestic and foreign born victims.  
Since 2007, the Austin Travis County Human Trafficking Task Force has investigated over 80 
cases of potential human trafficking in the Central Texas area involving over 140 victims. 

APD and TCSO Crisis Intervention Teams (CITs) share office space at the Austin State Hospital 
and provide on-scene intervention for individuals with mental health and co-occurring disorders. 
Between 2000 and 2009, calls for service within Austin city limits requiring personnel with 
mental health training increased 51% – from 4,786 to 7,203. Between 2003 and 2008, calls for 
service requiring a knowledgeable TCSO mental health officer response rose 70%, from 1,956 to 
3,323. 

In calendar year 2009, the Austin Police Department documented 12,836 cases of family 
violence, while in calendar year 2007, just over 7,500 cases were documented. Of the cases 
documented by the Austin Travis County Family Violence Protection Team, an inordinate 
number – over 50% – are attributed to Hispanic or Latino females between the ages of 25 and 59. 

Theft of intellectual property is a burgeoning crime in the Austin area as counterfeiting 
technology and techniques become increasingly available to criminal elements. These crimes are 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



6 | P a g e  
 

investigated by the Austin Police Department’s Property Interdiction Unit. Over the past two 
years, the sale of pirated CDs and DVDs has become a persistent problem, particularly at local 
flea market venues. Directed patrols and undercover operations have generated more than a 
dozen cases resulting in seizures in excess of 40,000 pirated CDs or DVDs. 

There is growing anxiety about how to house the large number of ex-offenders being released 
from state and federal prison each year, over 600,000 annually. Many offenders experience 
rejection from families and friends, refusal by private landlords and intensive screening (and 
eviction) from public housing. As a result, the burden of housing ex-offenders increasingly falls 
upon the shoulders of communities, nonprofit organizations, community corrections, law 
enforcement and the courts. Inmates released from Travis County Jail and those discharged from 
the institutional division of TDCJ typically lack necessary skills and/or resources for successful 
reintegration. 

• 5,177 TDCJ Inmates are Travis County residents 
• Total inmates received by TDCJ from Travis County in 2010 – 2,805 
• Total inmates released by TDCJ from Travis County in 2010 – 2,666 

Local issues confronting offenders with alcohol or substance abuse issues include 

• Lack of inpatient and outpatient treatment options and low availability of community-
based treatment  

• Treatment facilities continue to close and those that provide services do not have child 
care options  

• Substance abuse treatment is not offered in the jail 
 

Austin Travis County Integral Care – established in 2007 to increase local access to mental 
health and other treatment services for individuals with mental illness (with or without co-
occurring disorders) – works to maintain open cases for clients if placed in jail for short stays 
(one month or less). State contractual requirements prevent billing for services provided during 
jail stays and require that clients be reassessed after 90 days, risking the possibility that they may 
be placed on a waiting list rather than resuming services. ATCIC currently has a waiting list of 
1,155 individuals who need access to services.   

 

Priority A:  
Travis County needs additional personnel and resources for law enforcement, prosecutors and 
the court to solve violent crime and improve public safety. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide resources and support for violent crime and organized crime investigations 
• To provide resources and support for the effective prosecution and adjudication of violent 

crime and organized crime cases 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



7 | P a g e  
 

• To develop new and sustain current initiatives, programs, and undercover operations that 
combat violent crimes and organized crimes 

• To establish or enhance local repeat offender (top offender) programs 
• To support law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts by improving emergency 

communication services  
• To provide ongoing training for personnel assigned to violent crime and organized crime 

cases 
• To address business and citizen concerns of violent crime and its impact 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), resources 
(equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support violent crime and 
organized crime investigations, including homicide, cold case homicide, child abuse, 
rape, robbery, domestic violence, sex crimes, domestic violence, sex offender 
apprehension and registration, transnational gang and cartel activity, human trafficking, 
narcotics trafficking, and other major crimes 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies and 
partners 

o To maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources 
o To improve the flow of case-related information 
o To share general subject matter information 

• Increase formal and informal contact between local law enforcement jurisdictions, 
city/county government agencies, businesses, non-profit organizations, neighborhood 
associations, civic groups, community leaders and residents 

o To facilitate and promote long-term cooperation 
o To provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education 
o To provide seamless services and prevent overlapping services and programming 

• Repeat offender (top offender) programs should be considered by all local law 
enforcement agencies, prosecutors, and the courts. Repeat offenders are responsible for a 
significant number of violent crimes and these programs are beginning to show positive 
results.  

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percent change in reported violent crime incidents 
• Percent change in reported organized crime incidents 
• The number of 

o violent crime cases resolved  
o repeat offenders 
o active violent crime undercover operations 
o active violent crime initiatives 
o cases processed by the APD Crime Laboratory 
o cases prosecuted  
o cases adjudicated  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



8 | P a g e  
 

o active violent crime task forces and collaborations  
o new sworn personnel hired 
o new non-sworn personnel hired 
o personnel trained 

 
Implementation 
 

• Response to violent crime requires the immediate response of law enforcement and the 
mobilization of multiple government and community-based services. To meet the above 
listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution and the courts will work internally to: 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to support violent crime and organized 
crime investigations 

• Increase information sharing to enhance prosecution efforts, provide more successful 
outcomes for victims, and identify serial offenders and trends  

• Publish online (and regularly update) designated points of contact for local task force and 
collaborative efforts to facilitate information sharing 

• Provide training for personnel (investigative, crime specific, and coalition building) and 
ensure that when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal 
staff to in or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and 
incidentals) are not cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit 
multiple agencies as well as partner non-profits and community members at reduced cost. 
When locally-hosted training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow.  

• Establish or enhance repeat offender (top offender) programs with cooperation from all 
levels of the criminal justice systems. Repeat offenders will be tracked by program, will 
be offered available social services and when reoffending occurs, will be moved to the 
top of court dockets, will not receive deferral options, and will be subject to stronger 
sentencing options.  

• Develop, print (in English and Spanish), and distribute materials that will increase public 
awareness of violent crime and organized crime and ways to prevent it. Use online and 
local media to reach a greater number Travis County residents and business owners. 

 

Priority B: 
Travis County needs additional personnel and resources for law enforcement, prosecutors and 
the court to combat property crime and improve public safety. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide resources and support for property crime investigations 
• To provide resources and support for the effective prosecution and adjudication of 

property crime cases 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



9 | P a g e  
 

• To promote more effective communication between law enforcement, prosecutors, court 
personnel, corrections, and the community 

• To establish or enhance local repeat offender (top offender) programs 
• To provide ongoing training for personnel assigned to property crime cases 
• To improve upon crime prevention efforts and address business and citizen concerns of 

property crime and its impact 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• To secure funding and in-kind donations for personnel and resources to support property 
crime investigations 

• To establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies 
and partners 

o To maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources 
o To improve the flow of case-related information 
o To share non-case specific information 
o To provide continuing education 

• To increase formal and informal contact between local jurisdictions, city/county 
government agencies, businesses, non-profit organizations, neighborhood associations, 
civic groups, community leaders and residents 

• Repeat offender (top offender) programs should be considered by all local law 
enforcement agencies, prosecutors, and the courts. Repeat offenders are responsible for a 
significant number of violent crimes and these programs are beginning to show positive 
results. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percent change in the property crime rate 
• Percent change in successful property crime case resolutions 
• Percent change in victimization 
• The number of  

o repeat offenders 
o active collaborations and task forces 
o citizen surveys 

 increase/decrease in communication and trust between law enforcement, 
corrections, and the community 

 increase/decrease in community pro-activeness in addressing issues and 
concerns 

o community forums and meetings held per year 
 increase/decrease community input regarding crime prevention and local 

agency policies in handling neighborhood-specific crime issues 
 increase/decrease community participation in community policing efforts 

and crime prevention efforts 
 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



10 | P a g e  
 

Implementation 
Property crimes are most often crimes of opportunity; therefore, a strong collaboration between 
law enforcement and the community is required. The delivery of crime prevention services 
initially lies within the law enforcement community (police agencies, prosecution and the 
courts). Law enforcement has well-established crime prevention goals, objectives, and evaluation 
measures, and maintains close working relationships with non-profits, businesses, community 
leaders, and residents. This plan enhances current efforts by focusing on improving public safety 
and the quality of life within Travis County and reducing victimization (emotional, physical, 
psychological, and financial) due to property loss. 
 
To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will work internally 
to 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability). 
• Increase information sharing to enhance prosecution efforts, provide more successful 

outcomes for victims, and identify serial offenders and trends.  
• Initiate a crime prevention planning process which focuses on the identification of 

historical and emerging crime problems and the development of community-wide 
strategies to address them. The planning process needs to be formalized and include 
members of the law enforcement agency, relevant government agencies, and selected 
representatives of the affected community. The crime prevention planning process may 
be initiated on a jurisdiction-wide basis or for a specific neighborhood which has been 
identified to be at risk to crime. 

• Establish or enhance repeat offender (top offender) programs with cooperation from all 
levels of the criminal justice systems. Repeat offenders will be tracked by program, will 
be offered available social services and when reoffending occurs, will be moved to the 
top of court dockets, will not receive deferral options, and will be subject to stronger 
sentencing options.  

• Define a central point of contact within agencies for requests for crime prevention 
services; develop and distribute online and print materials (in English and Spanish) that 
increase public awareness of crime and ways to prevent it.   

• Provide training for personnel (investigative, crime specific, and coalition building) and 
ensure that when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal 
staff to in or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and 
incidentals) are not cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit 
multiple agencies as well as partner non-profits and community members at reduced cost. 
When locally-hosted training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow.  

 
In addition, law enforcement will work closely with community partners to 

• Increase crime prevention activities and utilize evidence-based or best practice models 
(with demonstrated measureable outcomes and sustainability plans) when determining 
which programs should be offered locally. 

• Facilitate citizen participation, buy-in and stewardship to crime prevention, law 
enforcement and corrections programs. 

• Focus on ex-offender reintegration and re-entry, youth engagement/education, safe 
neighborhoods, and/or health and wellness  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



11 | P a g e  
 

• Improve trust and understanding between law enforcement, corrections and the 
community through regular meetings, forum, and online communication/updates 

• Continue the production of Public Service Announcements (PSAs) that are intended to 
raise awareness in the community about ways that citizens can keep from being victims 
of crime, and expand the availability of these PSA’s for use at public meetings 

• Provide safety surveys upon request by property owners 
 

Priority C:  
Travis County needs to resolve data sharing and confidentiality issues between agencies. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To fully explore the integration of business intelligence options, including predictive 
modeling, predictive policing, and data mining 

• To streamline inter-agency communication 
• To enhance officer safety 
• To more effectively and logistically utilize locally available resources 

 
Strategies/Tasks 
Criminal and terrorist activity is transient by nature and necessitates the real-time exchange of 
information between all levels of government. 

• Enhance existing fusion center collaborations to 
o Cost effectively allocate locally available funds and in-kind resources 
o Maximize the use of crime information and regional data 
o Provide continuing education 

• Upgrade current fusion center systems and integrate new software systems to data mine 
and anticipate crime trends 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percent change in rate of all crime types 
• Percent change in turnaround time for requests for information 
• The number of  

o officer involved incidents 
o in-custody incidents 
o active inter-agency collaborations, task forces, standing meetings 
o new partnerships 
o partner agencies that received trained 
o professionals trained 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



12 | P a g e  
 

Implementation 
To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will work internally 
to 

• Reconcile and coordinate existing and planned information sharing initiatives and data 
sources 

• Purchase and integrate new systems and train personnel to use the new technology 
• Foster, develop, and join regional and statewide data sharing initiatives 
• Enhance current and develop new technology architecture/data standards 
• Explore national data sharing options and begin to develop strategies for potential 

national initiatives 
 

Priority D: 
Travis County needs additional resources to address mental health and substance abuse issues 
within the criminal justice system. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide early intervention, treatment, and services for system-involved individuals 
with mental illness and co-occurring disorders 

• To promote early intervention, treatment, and services for system-involved individuals 
with substance abuse issues 

• To provide training and continuing education for criminal justice system personnel in the 
areas of mental illness (and co-occurring disorders) and substance abuse, and to ensure 
that officials are aware of all available local options for system-involved persons 

• To divert from prosecution and use alternatives to jail/prison sentences, when 
appropriate, in cases involving non-violent offenders with mental illness (and co-
occurring disorders) and substance abuse 

• To promote communication, collaboration, and partnerships with respect to offenders 
with mental illness and substance abuse issues 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Three elements which are critical to establishing effective programs and systems are 
missing in many treatment systems across the country: adequate duration of care; 
adequate variety of treatment intensities or "modalities"; and appropriate, science-based 
care strategies. Ensuring that these are addressed would dramatically improve treatment 
outcomes. Travis County will work to provide programs and services to meet specific 
needs of offenders. 

o Provide early assessment and evaluation to ensure that offenders receive the 
appropriate care and the courts have reliable information on which to base 
their decisions.  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



13 | P a g e  
 

o Continuity of care will be essential for offenders re-entering the community 
and will require coordination and cooperation with all vested players (to 
include law enforcement, community corrections, treatment providers, 
community agencies, faith-based and non-profit agencies, municipal and 
county agencies). 

• Promote communication between law enforcement, prosecutors, court personnel, mental 
health and substance abuse providers and other local organizations and individuals. 

o Provide education for professionals, community members, and offenders on 
mental health (and co-occurring disorders), alcohol/substance abuse, and the 
effects of each on the community as a whole. 

o Make client transition from one program to another as seamless as possible. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of 
o arrests for alcohol/drug related crimes 
o offenders sentenced to jail or prison for probation/parole violations 
o evidence-based treatment programs for offenders 

• Percent change in client 
o recidivism* 
o drug/alcohol use 

 including decreased use of substances of abuse, nonuser stability, 
increasing perceived risk, increasing disapproval, increasing age of 
first use; for mental health - decreased mental illness symptomatology 

o law enforcement contact/criminal activity 
o costs related to arrest, prosecution, and incarceration 
o stabilization 

 offender taking medications appropriately, safe detoxification or 
sobering up, plus safe stabilization of substance-induced or substance-
exacerbated psychiatric symptoms or disorders, plus referral to 
continuing interventions for motivational enhancement and/or 
prolonged stabilization of each disorder 

o active treatment for substance abuse 
 incremental small step changes in substance use patterns in order to 

achieve reduction in harm with minimum change. The pattern of use 
that is non-harmful is defined by successive trials in relation to the 
severity of psychiatric disability and symptoms. 

o relapse prevention 
 maintenance of abstinence or non-harmful use patterns through 

appropriate use of recovery supports and specific relapse prevention 
skills 

o confinement in jail/prison 
o social connectedness 
o employment and employee compliance 
o reciprocity (capacity of mentally ill to give back to the community) 
o self-sufficiency 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



14 | P a g e  
 

o number of treatment assets and options 
o access to service systems 

• Percent change in court dockets 
 

*Recidivism is a commonly used yet inadequate quality assurance indicator for either in- or out-
patient substance abuse treatment. Focusing strictly on recidivism without commensurate 
attention on access to care, relapse, and program efficacy can lead to incentives to avoid 
readmission (or even in redefining recidivism) and thereby prevent patients from receiving 
needed treatment and continued funding of programs not meeting community or court-imposed 
needs.  Outcomes must be both measured by process and impact efficacy and effectiveness to be 
valid.   

 
Note: Program participants will explore community survey options to collect data on 
coordination and cooperation among law enforcement, corrections, and treatment agencies, and 
in general, the community’s understanding and perception of treatment issues and efforts in 
Travis County. 
 

Implementation 
Without treatment options in the jail, offenders are often left to decompensate further. Treatment 
is necessary to reduce recidivism and the location of choice is the community where persons 
with mental illness must learn to function. Community treatment avoids the additional stigma 
and penalties towards eligibility for housing, employment, and public benefits that result from a 
criminal record. Jail diversion is the main strategy used to prevent the criminalization of people 
with mental illness. Individuals with mental illness coming into contact with the criminal justice 
system have other options to prevent incarceration and ensure appropriate mental health 
treatment is received. The target population requires a continuum of care provided by a variety of 
service professionals in jail and in the community that is coordinated at both the state and local 
levels: 

• Case management services that include crisis intervention, screening, counseling, 
discharge planning, and community follow-up   

• Pre and post-booking diversion for qualifying mentally ill defendants 
• Transitional case management services  
• Long-term housing support 

Programs and services will be provided by multiple government and non-government agencies 
and may require interagency agreements. During the first quarter of implementation, 
participating agencies will ensure that they reach a consensus on defined goals, appropriately 
delineate responsibilities, and update communication procedures. Locally selected programs and 
services will include cross training and ongoing evaluation, with the following key priorities in 
mind 

• Offenders with co-occurring drug abuse and mental health problems will require an 
integrated treatment approach.  

• Treatment must last long enough to produce stable behavioral change.  
• Drug use during treatment will be monitored carefully. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



15 | P a g e  
 

• Treatment planning for drug abusing offenders who are living in or re-entering the 
community should include strategies to prevent and treat serious, chronic medical 
conditions, such as HIV/AIDS, hepatitis B and C and tuberculosis.  

• Aftercare and relapse prevention programs must be part of the offender’s treatment plan, 
and a balance of rewards and sanctions may be maintained to encourage pro-social 
behavior. 

• During recovery, addicted individuals should be connected with other social services as 
needed (employment, housing, and mental health services). 

 

Priority F: 
Travis County needs to explore means of removing systemic barriers to housing for persons with 
criminal backgrounds. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To offer programs and services for adult male and female offenders transitioning to local 
communities following release from jail/prison 

• To explore and potentially provide alternatives to incarceration for qualified non-violent 
offenders  

• To meet offender supervision and control needs in a community-based assistive or 
therapeutic setting  

• To provide a seamless continuum of programming through connections with human 
service and correctional agencies 

• To provide ongoing education for community supervisions (probation and parole) with 
regard to reentry  

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Conduct comparative analyses of Austin/Travis County with similar cities focusing on 
the perception of Austin as a converging point for the homeless and mental health 
populations: delve into root causes and better define local issues and the community’s 
desired response, including a willingness and ability to support recommended actions  

• Partner with public and private organizations to ease the reentry of ex-offenders.  
Collaboration must exist between law enforcement, community corrections/parole, Texas 
Department of Corrections – Institutional Division, municipalities, counties, local 
nonprofits, faith-based organizations, neighborhood-based organizations, regional 
nonprofits, and national nonprofits. 

• Target special populations for reentry into the community following incarceration. 
Special populations will include young offenders, substance abusers, persons with mental 
health problems, women, sex offenders, and persons with HIV/AIDS. 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



16 | P a g e  
 

Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of homeless persons 
• The number of formerly incarcerated individuals who: 

o locate housing within 30 days of release 
o are stably housed 1 year post release 
o successfully complete community corrections or parole programs 

• Percent change in recidivism 
• Percent change in cases set for court docket 
• The number of  active programs assisting offender reentry  

o Pre-release 
o Post-release 

Implementation 
To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will work internally 
to 

• Educate the community about the issues, needs and concerns of returning prisoners; 
demonstrate that services are available and successful in supporting ex-offenders; and 
demonstrate the benefit of action as well as the result of inaction. 

• Engage the community from the initial stages of programming and provide regular 
updates on the progress, successes, and challenges in an effort to build trust and buy-in 

• Examine and utilize successful, evidence-based practices to provide housing services to 
returning offenders and special population offenders. 

 

       
                     VICTIM SERVICES 
 

 

Problem Statement 
To improve local victim services, Travis County is in need of personnel and a wide variety of 
resources to provide effective interventions that address violence, victimization, and victim 
rights, and to end the cycle of mental illness, substance abuse, and crime. 

Supporting Data 
There is a tremendous need for counseling, support, mental health services and safety/shelter for 
victims and their families in the Travis County community. Local law enforcement data shows 
that in 2010, there were 49,616 crimes committed, including 265 cases of rape and 2,256 cases of 
aggravated assault.  

In 2010, Austin Police Department and Travis County Sheriff’s Office Victim Services Division 
counselors served over 19,000 victims of rape, domestic violence, sexual assault, dating 
violence, stalking, and human trafficking. Investigators, counselors, and local victim advocacy 
groups made approximately 33,700 primary, secondary, and collateral contacts to prove victim 
assistance. There were ten domestic violence-related murders in the Austin area in 2010 – the 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



17 | P a g e  
 

highest number of such homicides in 13 years (1). There were 1,735 confirmed victims of child 
abuse/neglect in Travis County from September of 2009 to August of 2010 (Texas Department of 
Family and Protective Services, 2010 Annual Report and Data Book).  Unfortunately, this data 
only reflects a fraction of those actually victimized by sexual and domestic violence, which are 
among the most under-reported crimes. It is estimated that 25% of physical assaults and 20% of 
rapes of females by intimate partners are reported to law enforcement. (U.S. Department of 
Justice, Bureau of Justice Statistics, “Criminal Victimization,” 2003. Quoted in 
http://www.ncadv.org/files/DomesticViolenceFactSheet(National).pdf) 

The Texas Legislature recently passed a bill, which is now in effect, that enhances the penalties 
for assaulting a family member by strangulation or suffocation. The Travis County District 
Attorney’s Office has one part-time grant funded prosecutor to handle the influx of new cases. 
As this grant ends in 2012, the need for additional assistant district attorneys for family justice 
cases is critical.  

Research indicates that people with disabilities are at risk of experiencing victimization at rates 
higher than people without disabilities. In a sample of people with disabilities who received 
counseling services at SafePlace during 1998-2008, 64% reported multiple perpetrators and 76% 
experienced multiple incidences of sexual abuse or assault at various times in their lives 
(Cameron, L.A., (2008) SafePlace: Austin, TX). 

Travis County is experiencing a high volume of cases in the criminal justice system, where 
victims require mental health services to address either a pre-existing mental condition/illness, or 
the onset of a condition caused by the violent crime. In addition to serving the Travis County 
population, local services are overburdened from treating residents of neighboring counties 
resulting from a dearth of mental health services in those counties.  The wait lists for mental 
health services are often lengthy. At one point in time in 2011, SafePlace’s Counseling Services 
program averaged 120 calls a month requesting services, and 15 people walked-in weekly for 
counseling intakes. In 2010, SafePlace received 12,868 calls on its 24-hour crisis hotline for 
domestic/sexual violence victims and their loved ones. In August 2011, SafePlace received 1,669 
calls – the highest number of calls received in a month by this agency. Due to a lack of adequate 
resources, limited outreach and specialization, many victims are left untreated and are unable to 
participate in the criminal justice process that seeks to obtain justice and protection for them. 

The 2010 Point-in-Time Homeless Count found there were 443 homeless victims of domestic 
violence in Austin/Travis County. SafePlace is the primary service provider for victims of 
domestic and sexual violence in Travis County. The agency provides 105 beds of emergency 
shelter and 48 transitional housing units in incorporated areas of the County.  In 2010, SafePlace 
served 804 adults and their children in their shelter. The agency continues to see high, growing 
waiting lists for its shelter, counseling and other services in 2011. 

Please also see violent crime data from the Law Enforcement, Prosecution, and Courts 
supporting data section above and additional supporting data in Addendum B. 

 
 

                                                 
1 "Estranged husband charged in woman's murder." Grisales, C. Austin American-Statesman, 1/5/2011. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

http://www.ncadv.org/files/DomesticViolenceFactSheet(National).pdf)


18 | P a g e  
 

Priority A:  
Travis County needs to increase local capacity to respond to victims of crime. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide state mandated services to victims 
• To improve staffing levels and organizational capacity to effectively serve the growing 

county population 
• To improve the coordinated community response to victims 
• To improve the response time to victims of crime 
• To offer interpretation/translation services 
• To triage and re-evaluate the types of crimes that require an immediate response and may 

require long-term support 
• To maintain 24-hour crisis hotline services for victims 
• To educate the community on strategies for creating safe and respectful communities 
• To create evidence-based initiatives that foster community involvement (such as 

volunteerism) in supporting victims of crime 
• To provide case management and supportive services for victims of crime 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Offer state mandated services to victims in coordination with a strong community 
response to their specific needs. 

• Identify and secure funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), 
resources (equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support local victim 
services professionals. 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies and 
partners to 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources, 
o Support case management, 
o Improve the flow of case-related information and continuing education, 
o Share general subject matter information, and 
o Most efficiently triage and conduct ongoing evaluation of client cases that require 

multiple services. 
• Increase formal and informal contact between local law enforcement jurisdictions, 

city/county government agencies, businesses, non-profit organizations, neighborhood 
associations, civic groups, community leaders and residents to 

o Facilitate and promote long-term involvement and support local initiatives, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education, 
o Provide seamless services and prevent overlapping services and programming, 
o Secure all necessary translation and interpretation services, and 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



19 | P a g e  
 

o Develop a list of physicians and psychiatrists who will participate in a continuum 
of care and a protocol for providing needed services for victims, especially in 
crisis/emergency scenarios.  

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of  
o new positions created 
o positions continued with grant funding 
o public awareness campaigns, in general 

 and specifically, those that emphasize community accountability for non-
violent and anti-criminal behavior 

o education programs, in general  
 and specifically, those that emphasize community accountability for non-

violent and anti-criminal behavior 
• The number of victims  

o receiving state mandated services 
o receiving government victim services 
o receiving non-government victim services 
o needing interpretation/translation services 
o who utilize 24-hour crisis hotline services for domestic violence, sexual violence, 

and human trafficking 
o who receive medication 
o who receive psychiatric services 
o who receive trauma-informed services 

 
Note: Plan participants are considering a community or victim survey to gauge satisfaction with 
victim services offered locally and to solicit input on how to best involve victims throughout the 
criminal justice process. 

 
Implementation 

• Victims of crime require the immediate response of law enforcement and the 
mobilization of multiple government and community-based services. To meet the above 
listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution and the courts will work internally to 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations  

• Improve information sharing and consider technology options to enhance prosecution 
efforts, provide more successful outcomes for victims, and identify trends  

• Provide case management for all levels of crime 
• Provide culturally-competent and interpretation/translation protocols to reduce the delay 

in response time and outreach 
• Publish online (and regularly update) designated points of contact for local collaborative 

efforts to facilitate information sharing 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



20 | P a g e  
 

• In addition, law enforcement, prosecution, the courts and community partners will work 
closely to 

• Facilitate community involvement (such as volunteerism) to reduce the burden of 
understaffed victim-serving entities. 

o Maintain the provision of 24-hour crisis hotline services for victims of 
domestic/sexual violence and/or trafficking. 

o Develop and implement an outreach initiative on the traumatic impact of domestic 
and sexual violence and proactive prevention messages that focus on creating a 
safe, respectful and non-violent community. 

o Maintain existing programs that provide financial planning, build employment 
skills and provide other economic empowerment services to victims of crime. 

o Educate victims on employment opportunities and assist them in developing work 
skills to build self-sufficiency and encourage independent living. 

o Create a database of service providers willing to participate in strengthening 
needed services for crime victims such as interim hotel shelter, extended 
counseling services, temporary transportation programs, and alternative 
therapeutic services such as peer support groups for non-domestic/sexual violence 
crime victims. 

o Provide training for personnel (crime specific, and coalition building) and ensure 
that when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending 
minimal staff to in or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per 
diem, and incidentals) are not cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the 
ability to benefit multiple agencies as well as partner non-profits and community 
members at reduced cost. When locally-hosted training is not an option, train-the-
trainer sessions should follow.  

 

Priority B:  
Travis County needs specialized mental health services for victims of crime.  
Priority Level: High 

 

Goals 

• To achieve a greater understanding of crime-related psychological trauma to discern the 
difference and continuum of care necessary for (1) acute trauma; (2) chronic trauma; and 
(3) complex trauma vs. mental illness by victim-serving agencies and professionals 

• To develop specialized mental health treatment programs for adult and child victims 
and/or witnesses of crime 

• To provide easily accessible mental health services for underserved victims of crime 
(meeting cultural, disability, and language needs) 

• To increase accessibility to mental health, legal, case management, shelter and other 
services for victims with disabilities 

• To provide immediate and long-term psychological and psychiatric treatment programs 
for crime victims and their families 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



21 | P a g e  
 

• To encourage the legal community, private therapists, and public mental health agencies 
to collaborate when legal issues and mental health issues intersect 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify and secure funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), 
resources (equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support local victim 
services professionals. 

• Form an alliance to enable the legal community, private therapists, public mental health 
agencies and victim service agencies to collaborate when legal issues and mental health 
issues intersect. 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies, 
public mental health agencies, private therapists, the legal community and other plan 
partners to 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources, 
o Provide early assessment and diagnosis for crime-related trauma and mental 

illness to ensure victims receive appropriate, trauma-informed care, 
o Provide tailored programs and services to fit the needs of underserved victims of 

crime that are culturally competent and disability and language accessible, 
o Develop and implement long-term psychological and psychiatric treatment 

programs for crime victims and their families, 
o Develop alternatives to mental health professionals for victims, e.g. peer support 

groups, religious based groups, 
o Improve the flow of case-related information and continuing education, 
o Share general subject matter information, 
o Facilitate and promote long-term involvement and support local initiatives, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education, 
o Provide seamless services and prevent overlapping services and programming, 
o Secure all necessary translation and interpretation services, 
o Develop a list of private mental health professionals who will provide a 

continuum of care for victims and witnesses of crime, including treatment 
programs, and 

o Educate providers in the community about Crime Victim’s Compensation. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of victims who receive 
o Immediate psychiatric care 
o Immediate psychological care 
o Long-term psychiatric care 
o Long-term psychological care 

• The number of underserved victims  
o who seek services from mainstream service providers 
o who seek services from specialized, culturally-competent agencies 

• The number of new collaborations formed between legal and mental health providers 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



22 | P a g e  
 

Implementation 

• Victims of crime require the timely response of criminal justice agencies, public mental 
health agencies, private therapists, the legal community and other plan partners. To meet 
the above listed goals, providers will 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations,  

• Improve information sharing and consider technology options to enhance prosecution 
efforts, provide more successful outcomes for victims, and identify trends,  

• Implement/increase case management and crisis hotline services, to include use of 
trauma-informed approaches necessary to link and/or provide crisis intervention, 
screening, counseling, safety planning and financial assistance services, 

• Define local underserved communities and the barriers to services that they face, and, 
subsequently, develop strategies to provide sensitive and welcoming services, and 

• Provide training associated with crime victim trauma and ensure that when budgeting 
locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal staff to in or out-of-state 
courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and incidentals) are not cost effective. 
Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit multiple agencies as well as partner 
non-profits and community members at reduced cost. When locally-hosted training is not 
an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow. 

 

Priority C: 
Travis County is in need of additional housing options for victims of crime. 

Priority Level: High 

 

Goals 

• To provide affordable, safe, alternative housing options for victims of crime, including 
persons who are homeless and other underserved populations 

• To offer emergency shelter services to individuals leaving domestic violence situations 
• To educate the housing and financial communities and other key stakeholders about the 

need for additional housing options for crime victims 
• To reduce the number of evictions of victims based on their involvement with the 

criminal justice system or their status as a crime victim 
 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify and secure funding to maintain organizational capacity and to sustain existing 
shelter units, particularly for domestic violence victims. 

• Develop a database of rental and housing properties, financial institutions, and other key 
stakeholders that are willing to provide housing options and other needed resources for 
victims and their families, including but not limited to homeless persons and other 
underserved populations. 

• Work with the local real estate community to 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



23 | P a g e  
 

o Provide education on the complexities and realities of criminal victimization for 
rental and housing property personnel who provide assistance to victims and 

o Create safe and affordable transitional and permanent housing options for victims. 
• Partner with legal service providers to secure in-kind assistance for individuals who are 

wrongly evicted on the basis of their status as a victim. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percentage change in evictions due to crime victim status 
• The number of rental and housing property personnel who receive training 
• The number of victims of domestic violence and sexual violence with access to 

emergency shelter services 
 
Implementation 

• Criminal justice agencies, public mental health agencies, private therapists, the legal 
community and other plan partners will 

• Work with the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO, Inc.) and other 
homeless service providers to increase community awareness/education about the 
intersections of crime and homelessness, 

• Create an outreach strategy for housing entities to support the needs of and barriers faced 
by victims who are seeking safe and affordable housing, 

• Educate the housing community and financial institutions on the dynamics of crime 
victims and barriers to financial independence faced by survivors, 

• Act as liaisons to the legal community on in-kind services, to include housing 
discrimination of victims, and 

• Explore options for partnering with local moving companies for free or greatly-
discounted moving services for crime victims. 

 

         
       JUVENILE JUSTICE 

 

 

Problem Statement 
To improve local juvenile justice services and systems, Travis County is in need of personnel 
and a wide variety of resources to prevent crime and empower the community to address juvenile 
crime; break the cycle of mental illness, substance abuse, and crime; prevent and intervene in 
juvenile offending and victimization; and, effectively manage and provide for juvenile offenders 
to reduce recidivism and promote successful reentry into the community.   

 
 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



24 | P a g e  
 

Supporting Data 
The Austin Independent School district reports disciplinary actions were taken in 19,220 cases 
representing 10,710 individual children and youth.  Dispositions by school authorities were for in 
school and out of school suspension and removal to disciplinary alternative education program 
during the 2010-2011 school year. Among this group of AISD students there were documented 
incident reports and disciplinary actions taken for 8,447 cases for aggression, assaultive and 
abusive conduct, 197 cases of weapons possession, 1,873 cases of drug and alcohol abuse and 
645 cases of property offenses. (AISD, PEIMS Student Discipline Aggregate Report with 
Redacted Data, 2011) 

According to the Austin Independent School District reporting system, youth gang membership 
is increasing. In 2010, there were 658 documented juvenile gang members and 137 associate 
gang members attending middle and high schools locally. Updated statistics for 2011 show 
documented youth gang membership at 748 and associate gang membership at 163. The majority 
of documented juvenile gang members are male. Young females are more likely to be associate 
gang members. In 2010, AISD recorded 144 gang-involved criminal incidents on middle school 
campuses. Gang-involved offenses on high school campuses rose at an alarming rate, from 166 
incidents during the 2008-2009 school year to 292 incidents during the 2009-2010 school year. 
Federal funding for an Austin-area regional database will provide a more accurate picture of 
juvenile gang issues over the next few years.  

Research shows that the pervasiveness of co-occurring mental health and substance use disorders 
in youth is very high, with disruptive behavior disorders most common, followed by anxiety and 
mood disorders. These disorders worsen the substance use/abuse and impede their treatment, 
resulting in poorer outcome of the substance use treatment. Research also indicates that the 
reverse is true - substance use disorders worsen adolescent mental health disorders and 
complicate their treatment. (NYS OMH/OASAS Task Force on Co-occurring Disorders 
Subcommittee on Youth and Adolescents Final Report, March 2009). 

Travis County Juvenile Probation Statistics:  

Fiscal 
Year 

No or Unknown 
Diagnosis 

Diagnoses with 
Only One 
Disorder 

Diagnoses with  
Co-occurring 

Disorders Total 
Evaluation

s # % # % # % 

2007 4 0.9% 30 6.8
% 406 92.3

% 440 

2008 105 16.4
% 36 5.6

% 500 78.0
% 641 

2009 90 15.8
% 39 6.8

% 442 77.4
% 571 

2010 100 18.5
% 46 8.5

% 394 73.0
% 540 

  Based on youth who were given Mental Health Assessments by juvenile probation staff 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



25 | P a g e  
 

Priority A:  
Travis County is in need of intervention services for juvenile offenders, gang-involved youth, 
and their families. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide intervention programming for juvenile offenders and gang-involved youth 
• To provide ongoing education for families of juvenile offenders and gang-involved youth 
• To provide court-mandated intervention and education 
• To provide translation and interpretation services 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify and secure funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), 
resources (equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support the 
implementation of established and new evidence-based intervention services for juvenile 
offenders, gang-involved youth, and their families. 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies, 
school districts, public mental health agencies, private therapists, the legal community 
and other plan partners to 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources, 
o Improve the flow of juvenile case-related information, 
o Share general subject matter information, and 
o Alleviate program waiting lists. 

• Increase formal and informal contact between local law enforcement jurisdictions, 
city/county government agencies, businesses, non-profit organizations, neighborhood 
associations, civic groups, community leaders and residents to 

o Enhance current and establish new intervention programming, 
o Facilitate and promote long-term cooperation and involvement, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education/training, 
o Provide seamless services and prevent overlapping services and programming, 

and 
o Provide/solicit for translation and interpretation services. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percent change in  
o juvenile criminal incidents 
o documented juvenile gang activity/involvement 
o youth referrals to the juvenile justice system  
o utilization of child behavior plans 
o attendance rates 
o graduation rates 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



26 | P a g e  
 

• The number of students with reported 
o Arrests 
o Detention admissions 
o Prosecutions 
o Juvenile court adjudications 
o Behavioral incidents 

 Aggressive or abusive action 
 Possession of weapon 
 Property related offenses 
 Drug related offense 

• The number of collaborative meetings per year 
o with notable increase in the use of community and/or school resources 

• The number of training sessions held per year 
• The number of parents with an increase in knowledge of their child’s needs and how they 

can contribute to the child’s progress. 

 
Implementation 
Response to crimes involving juvenile offenders requires the immediate response of law 
enforcement and the mobilization of multiple government and community-based services. Early 
identification and intervention are vital to promoting positive outcomes. Children must have 
access to a comprehensive array of individualized formal and informal services that address their 
physical, emotional, social and educational needs. Families, schools, community justice 
programs and caregivers should be full participants in all aspects of policy development, and the 
planning and delivery of services, which should be integrated with linkages between child and 
family serving agencies and programs. Case coordination should be provided to ensure that 
multiple services are linked and complimentary. They should also address a family's strengths 
and needs, and be reviewed on a regular basis for applicability to the family's current level of 
functioning. The service delivery system should include providers who help enable smooth 
transitions to community and adult services, if necessary. 

To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution and the courts will work internally 
to 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to support local intervention efforts, 

• Increase information sharing to enhance prosecution efforts and provide more successful 
outcomes for juvenile offenders, and  

• Publish online (and regularly update) designated points of contact for local collaborative 
efforts to facilitate information sharing. 

Law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will also work with community partners to 
• Provide training for juvenile justice professionals and school personnel and ensure that 

when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal staff to in 
or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and incidentals) are not 
cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit multiple agencies as 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



27 | P a g e  
 

well as partner non-profits and community members at reduced cost. When locally-
hosted training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow.  

• Provide job training and apprenticeship opportunities to expose youth to legal career 
opportunities.  

• Host regular collaborative meetings at school districts to share information and to discuss 
issues of concern including criminal activity, delinquent behavior, truancy, bullying, 
attendance, school safety, and drop out and expulsion rates. 

• Explore methods of alleviating program wait lists and provide additional wrap-around 
services.  

• Develop a therapeutic family component for children identified by the school district and 
juvenile justice that have high risk behaviors.  

• Develop behavioral monitoring and reinforcement programs that use a psychosocial 
model in which parents and youth learn skills on communication, decision making, child 
development, mental health education and substance abuse. 

• Develop programs with therapists who can address developmental stages with parents 
and youth and assess each child that has limitations. 

 

Priority B:  
Travis County is in need of prevention and early intervention services for low income and at-risk 
youth, including after-school and summer programming. 

Priority Level: High 

 
Goals 

• To provide year-round prevention and early intervention services and programming 
• To provide ongoing education for community members and families of identified youth 
• To provide translation and interpretation services 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify and secure funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), 
resources (equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support the 
implementation of established and new evidence-based prevention and early intervention 
services for identified youth. 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies, 
including school district police departments to 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources, 
o Share general subject matter information, and 
o Alleviate program waiting lists. 

• Increase formal and informal contact between local law enforcement jurisdictions, 
city/county government agencies, businesses, non-profit organizations, neighborhood 
associations, civic groups, community leaders and residents to 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



28 | P a g e  
 

o Enhance current and establish new prevention and early intervention services and 
programming (spring and fall semesters, after school, and over the summer 
vacation), 

o Facilitate and promote long-term cooperation and involvement, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education/training for 

professionals and parents, 
o Provide seamless services and prevent overlapping services and programming, 

and 
o Provide/solicit for translation and interpretation services. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of students with reported 
o Arrests 
o Detention admissions 
o Prosecutions 
o Juvenile court adjudications 
o Behavioral incidents 

 Aggressive or abusive action 
 Possession of weapon 
 Property related offenses 
 Drug related offense 

• The number of youth participating in 
o Prevention related activities 
o Early intervention activities 
o After-school programs 
o Summer programs 

• Percent change in student 
o attendance rates 
o graduation rates 

• The number of collaborative meetings per year 
o with notable increase in the use of community and/or school resources 

• The number of training sessions held per year 
• The number of parents with an increase in knowledge of their child’s needs and how they 

can contribute to the child’s progress 

 
Implementation 
Youth and families need access to a comprehensive array of individualized formal and informal 
services that address their physical, emotional, social and educational needs. Families, schools, 
community programs, and caregivers should be full participants in all aspects of planning and the 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



29 | P a g e  
 

delivery of services. To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution and the courts 
will work internally to 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to support local prevention and early 
intervention needs. 

o When possible, fund current programs in the community that target students in 
the discipline system and utilize evidence based programs that have proven 
outcomes. 

• Publish online (and regularly update) designated points of contact for local collaborative 
efforts to facilitate information sharing. 

 
Law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will also work with community partners to 

• Provide training for government personnel, social service professionals and school 
district personnel, and ensure that when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered 
prior to sending minimal staff to in or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, 
per diem, and incidentals) are not cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability 
to benefit multiple agencies as well as partner non-profits and community members at 
reduced cost. When locally-hosted training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions 
should follow.  

o Training for administrators and/or school principals of middle school and high 
school students should cover delinquency prevention, including youth violence 
prevention and drug abuse prevention along with mental health and trauma 
informed care to better address the schools at-risk population. 

• Host regular collaborative meetings at school districts to share information and to discuss 
issues of concern including criminal activity, delinquent behavior, truancy, bullying, 
attendance, school safety, and drop out and expulsion rates. 

• Enhance current and establish new prevention and early intervention services and 
programming (spring and fall semesters, after school, and over the summer vacation). 

o Develop training for elementary school children and parents to address peer 
relationships, understanding another person’s viewpoint, learning the difference 
between right and wrong actions, and establishing a positive personal identity. 

o Seek out additional community services to provide activities to enhance family 
relationships and promote family leisure time to strengthen the child/family. 

o Explore methods of alleviating program wait lists and provide additional wrap-
around services.  

 

Priority C: 
Travis County is in need of services and programming for youth with mental health/co-occurring 
disorders and substance abuse problems. 

Priority Level: High 
 

Goals 

• To develop fully integrated partnerships with local school districts 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



30 | P a g e  
 

• To provide services and evidence-based programming for youth with mental health/co-
occurring disorders and substance abuse problems  

• To develop comprehensive trauma and mental health training  
• To complete comprehensive assessments for identified youth  
• To develop long-term plans for youth who are aging out of the system 
• To provide innovative, alternative evidence-based therapies with bi-lingual components  
• To provide wrap around services to youth and families to address significant behaviors 

and provide support 
 

Strategies/Tasks 
Early identification of this population via family and school referrals is vital to youth avoiding 
involvement in the juvenile justice system. Juveniles have different physical, psychological, 
social, emotional and developmental needs than adults. Services for youth and families should be 
designed specifically for them and not merely adapted to adult services. 

• Community supports and family interventions are essential in working with juveniles. 
• Children and families should be partners in formulating treatment plans as well as 

services that will impact their lives. 
• A well-functioning system of care is needed for juveniles involved with numerous 

agencies and providers to achieve optimal outcomes. 
• Improved coordination between the various child-serving institutions (juvenile justice 

system, school system, CPS, Mental Health Authority and other youth and social service 
agencies). Developing a way to blend funding of these different agencies to jointly 
address the needs of youth involved with multiple systems would create a more efficient 
and seamless system of care.  

• Enhance county-wide collaboration between service providers and public entities to 
maximize resources, improve quality of services and improve treatment outcomes. 

 
Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of youth with reported substance abuse, mental health or trauma issues 
• The number of youth assessments completed 
• The number of youth who require services 

o Stabilization: safe detoxification or sobering up, plus safe stabilization of 
substance-induced or substance-exacerbated psychiatric symptoms or disorders, 
plus referral to continuing interventions for motivational enhancement and/or 
prolonged stabilization of each disorder 

o Active treatment for substance abuse: incremental small step changes in substance 
use patterns in order to achieve reduction in harm with minimum change. The 
pattern of use that is non-harmful is defined by successive trials in relation to the 
severity of psychiatric disability and symptoms 

o Relapse prevention: maintenance of abstinence or non-harmful use patterns 
through appropriate use of recovery supports and specific relapse prevention skills 

o Substance Abuse and Use: abstinence from drug/alcohol use, including decreased 
use of substances of abuse, nonuser stability,  increasing perceived risk, 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



31 | P a g e  
 

increasing age of first use; for mental health - decreased mental illness 
symptomatology 

o Social connectedness 
o Employment/Education  

• Percent change in reported youth 
o Reciprocity: increased capacity of the youth to give back to the community 
o Self-sufficiency 
o Developmentally appropriate assets 
o Support for family and sibling recovery 
o Ease of access to service system with multiple entry points 

• The number of youth who complete job/vocational training 
o The number of businesses who hire youth reported to have completed 

job/vocational training 
• The number of families that successfully complete training 

 
Implementation 
Early identification and intervention are vital to promoting positive outcomes for youth with 
mental health (and co-occurring) disorders and with substance abuse issues. These children need 
immediate access to a comprehensive array of individualized formal and informal services that 
address their physical, emotional, social and educational needs. Families, schools, community 
justice programs and caregivers should be full participants in all aspects of policy development, 
and the planning and delivery of services, which should be integrated with linkages between 
child and family serving agencies and programs. Case coordination should be provided to ensure 
that multiple services are linked and complimentary. They should also address a family's 
strengths and needs, and be reviewed on a regular basis for applicability to the family's current 
level of functioning. The service delivery system should include providers who help enable 
smooth transitions to community and adult services, if necessary. To meet the above listed goals, 
law enforcement, prosecution and the courts will work internally to 

• Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to support local services and 
programming and 

• Publish online (and regularly update) designated points of contact for local collaborative 
efforts to facilitate information sharing. 

Law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will work with public mental health agencies, 
private therapists, the legal community and other plan partners to 

• Provide services and programming for youth with mental health/co-occurring disorders 
and substance abuse problems prior (to involvement in the juvenile justice system when 
possible). 

o Create alternative vocational and educational learning modalities to better fit 
each child’s need. Ensure that comprehensive assessments are completed and 
shared with the agencies working with the children 

o Provide bilingual innovative and alternative therapies that are evidence-based 
and address significant issues in the family. 

o Provide wrap-around services to youth and families that will address significant 
behaviors and provide support to the parent. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



32 | P a g e  
 

o Priority components for local treatment programs include 
 Focus on the person’s natural environment, shifting away from rigidly-

delivered clinically-based care, 
 Focus on building a strong relationship and motivating clients to attend 

treatment, 
 Create a treatment plan that centers on client-generated goals, 
 Emphasize on applying empirically supported treatments, focused on 

interventions specific to the client’s diagnostic presentation.  A broad 
perspective in which life habits are modified, rather than limited focus on 
substance abuse alone., 

 Utilize culturally and developmentally sensitive content, 
 Focus on client strengths, with an emphasis on impulse control, 

communication, problem solving, and regulation of affect, 
 Focus on change that is sustainable over the long term, 
 Understand and utilize relapse prevention strategies, 
 Foster peer group influences, and  
 Increase availability of appropriate comprehensive special education 

services for youth with multiple disabilities, such as behavioral and 
emotional disturbance, as well as learning disabilities. 

o Develop long-term vocational, educational and job training after-care plans for 
youth who are aging out of the system. 

o Enhance existing and foster new relationships with businesses and institutions 
that would support training efforts and provide employment for youth that are 
aging out or are significantly behind in school. 

• Establish a specialized re-entry strategy with wrap-around services, hands on vocational 
skills training, on-site job/career coaching and supports determined by individual needs. 

• Identify speakers who can present on Trauma Informed Care and provide long-term 
strategies for teachers, staff and counselors. Work collaboratively to develop 
comprehensive trauma and mental health training for teachers and school staff, agencies 
who work with juveniles and other community agencies that work with families. 

• Provide training for government personnel, social service professionals and school 
district personnel, and ensure that when budgeting locally-hosted training is considered 
prior to sending minimal staff to in or out-of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, 
per diem, and incidentals) are not cost effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability 
to benefit multiple agencies as well as partner non-profits and community members at 
reduced cost. When locally-hosted training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions 
should follow.  

o Training for administrators and/or school principals of middle school and high 
school students should cover delinquency prevention, including youth violence 
prevention and drug abuse prevention along with mental health and trauma 
informed care to better address the schools at-risk population. 

• Host regular collaborative meetings at school districts to share information and to discuss 
issues of concern including criminal activity, delinquent behavior, truancy, bullying, 
attendance, school safety, and drop out and expulsion rates. 

• Research local early warning systems for juvenile justice collaboration. 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



33 | P a g e  
 

 
 
         EDUCATION 

 

 

To improve local education services and systems, Travis County is in need of personnel and a 
wide variety of resources to address bullying, school safety, delinquency, truancy, and dropout 
and expulsion rates.  

 
Supporting Data 
According to Austin Independent School District and Texas Education Agency data, the local 
graduation rate is steadily declining (from 80.7% in 2005 to 74.3% in 2008). The Austin 
Independent School district reports disciplinary actions were taken 19,220 cases representing 
10,710 individual children and youth.  Dispositions by school authorities were for in school and 
out of school suspension and removal to disciplinary alternative education program during the 
2010-2011 school year. Among this group of AISD students there were documented incident 
reports and disciplinary actions taken for 8,447 cases for aggression, assaultive and abusive 
conduct, 197 cases of weapons possession, 1,873 cases of drug and alcohol abuse and 645 cases 
of property offenses (AISD, PEIMS Student Discipline Aggregate Report with Redacted Data, 
2011). 

According to the Austin Independent School District reporting system, youth gang membership 
is increasing. In 2010, there were 658 documented juvenile gang members and 137 associate 
gang members attending middle and high schools locally. Updated statistics for 2011 show 
documented youth gang membership at 748 and associate gang membership at 163. The majority 
of documented juvenile gang members are male. Young females are more likely to be associate 
gang members. In 2010, AISD recorded 144 gang-involved criminal incidents on middle school 
campuses. Gang-involved offenses on high school campuses rose at an alarming rate, from 166 
incidents during the 2008-2009 school year to 292 incidents during the 2009-2010 school year. 
Federal funding for an Austin-area regional database will provide a more accurate picture of 
juvenile gang issues over the next few years.  

Research shows that the pervasiveness of co-occurring mental health and substance use disorders 
in youth is very high, with disruptive behavior disorders most common, followed by anxiety and 
mood disorders. These disorders worsen the substance use/abuse and impede their treatment, 
resulting in poorer outcome of the substance use treatment. Research also indicates that the 
reverse is true; substance use disorders worsen adolescent mental health disorders and 
complicate their treatment. (NYS OMH/OASAS Task Force on Co-occurring Disorders 
Subcommittee on Youth and Adolescents Final Report, March 2009) 

 

 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



34 | P a g e  
 

Priority A: 
Travis County is in need of resources and services to ensure school safety. 

Priority Level: High 

 

Goals 

• To improve the safety of students, faculty and staff 
• To improve public safety 
• To foster a local academic climate that promotes learning  
 

Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), resources 
(equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to improve the safety of students, 
faculty and staff at local schools 

• Establish new or enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies and 
school personnel to 

o Participate in a local initiative called Connecting the Dots to address chronic 
absenteeism, truancy, and dropout in the Austin area, 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources, 
o Improve the flow of relevant crime information, and 
o Ensure public safety on school campuses, in the areas surrounding schools, and in 

student neighborhoods. 
• Increase formal and informal contact between criminal and juvenile justice agencies, 

school personnel, parents, students groups, public mental health agencies, private 
therapists, and the community to 

o Facilitate and promote long-term cooperation and continuing education/training, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing, and 
o Create an academic climate that promotes learning.  

 

Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of violent offenses committed on or around school campuses 
• The number of non-violent offenses committed on or around school campuses 
• The number of individuals who receive training 
• The number of active collaborations and work groups 

 

Implementation 
Criminal activity that endangers student and public safety on and around school campuses 
requires the immediate response of law enforcement and the mobilization of multiple 
government and community-based services. To meet the above-listed goals, criminal and 
juvenile justice personnel will work with schools to 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



35 | P a g e  
 

• Increase organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to meet the needs of each campus. 

• Improve information sharing to provide successful outcomes for victims by scheduling 
regular public meetings and providing online updates. 

• Foster a school climate that promotes learning by reducing discipline problems and 
addressing students’ social and emotional development. 

• Provide training for personnel (public safety and coalition building) and ensure that when 
budgeting locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal staff to in or out-
of-state courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and incidentals) are not cost 
effective. Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit multiple agencies as well as 
partner non-profits and community members at reduced cost. When locally-hosted 
training is not an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow.  

 

Priority B: 
Travis County is in need of resources and services to assist students with mental illness (and co-
occurring disorders) and/or substance abuse problems. 

Priority Level: High 

 

Goals 

• To improve the access to mental health services for adolescents, youth, and their families 
• To provide behavioral training and consultation 
• To provide evidence-based treatment and programming (systems) 
• To combine education and mental health treatment in the natural environment of the 

child's or adolescent's school and community 
• To prepare students for post graduate life and independent living 
• To provide aftercare and follow-up services 
• To provide training on early identification, assessment, and referral 
• To develop a database of stakeholders 

 
Strategies/Tasks 
Schools are a natural place to provide mental health services. Virtually every community has a 
school and most children spend at least six hours a day there. Schools offer an ideal context for 
prevention, intervention, positive development, and regular communication between school and 
families. Parents and children are also familiar with the environment and staff. The needs of 
students with mental health (and co-occurring) disorders and substanstance abuse issues will be 
met by providing comprehensive evidence-based prevention, early intervention, intervention and 
support services, and aftercare/follow up. There is a need to implement local programs using 
evidence-based models to deliver services, including 

• School-supported mental health models - social workers, guidance counselors, and school 
psychologists are employed directly by the school system, providing assessment and 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



36 | P a g e  
 

treatment services on-site. In many cases, school nurses may serve as a major portal of 
entry for students with mental health concerns.  

• Community connections models - a mental health agency or individual delivers direct 
services in the school part-time or full-time under contract.  Mental health professionals 
are available within the school or are invited into after-school programs.  There is a 
formal linkage to an off-site mental health professional and/or to a managed care 
organization.  

• Comprehensive, integrated model - a comprehensive and integrated mental health 
program addresses prevention strategies, school environment, screening, referral, special 
education, and family and community issues and delivers direct mental health services. 
Schools work with outside agencies to provide comprehensive and integrated health and 
mental health services within the school environment. 

 

Substance abuse programs will be school-based, off-site or a hybrid where an off-site agency or 
program may conduct parts of their program both on-campus and off-campus.  An advantage to 
programs offering a school-based component is that it provides a forum to work with students 
within the school system where they can be most effectively reached and not face the stigma of 
requiring “professional” help. 

 

Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• The number of students identified as having behavioral needs 
• The number of students reached through early identification 
• The number of students receiving services for  

o mental health (and co-occurring) disorders 
o substance abuse 

• Percent change in identified behavior 
• Percent change in on-campus criminal incidents 
• Percent change in academic measure 
• Percent change in costs incurred by school districts (reduction in violence, disruptions) 
• Percent change in costs incurred by law enforcement and community corrections 

(reduction in call-outs and referrals) 
• The number of students and family members with improved access to mental health 

services 

 

Implementation 
Mental health is directly related to a child’s learning and development as it encompasses or 
intersects with interpersonal relationships, social-emotional skills, behavior, learning, academic 
motivation, mental illness, crisis prevention and response, school safety and substance abuse. 
Each issue affects the success and well-being of the individual student as well as school climate 
and outcomes for all students. To meet the above listed goals, criminal and juvenile justice 
personnel will work with schools to 

• Improve access to mental health services for adolescents, youths, and their families. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



37 | P a g e  
 

• Provide behavioral training and consultation to enable teachers and counselors to 
recognize mental health problems and help them accommodate students with challenging 
behavior. 

• Encourage early identification, which can lead to marrying students with specific needs 
to programs addressing those needs, ultimately assisting the student to meet the goal of 
graduation. 

• Better prepare students for life after secondary school, assisting in developing the 
following skills in students 

o Education (current) 
o Post-secondary preparation (college, technical school) or adult learning (GED) 
o Vocation preparation 
o Independent living preparation 

When selecting local services, treatment, and programming, priority components will include 
• Programs that enhance protective factors and reverse or reduce risk factors which include 

resistance-skills training to teach students about social influences to engage in substance 
use and specific skills for effectively resisting these pressures, 

• Treatments available in individual and group settings, with both on-school and off school 
(referral) components, 

• Programs tailored to address risks specific to population or audience characteristics, such 
as age, gender, and ethnicity, in order to improve program effectiveness, 

• Family-based prevention and treatment programs to provide and enhance drug and 
alcohol abuse education as well as enhance family bonding and relationships, 

• In-service training, 
• Communication networks for all stakeholders, 
• Aftercare and follow-up services, and 
• Emphasis on early identification, assessment, evaluation and intervention.  

Other factors include 
• School mental health services must be integrated with community services on a 

continuum of care. Not all services, clinical psychiatric care, for example, can or should 
be provided in schools. School-employed professionals must coordinate with community 
service providers to ensure that children receive needed support through a seamless and 
timely process. 

• Students and their families must be placed at the center of service decisions  
• Culturally competent services must be available.  
• There must be a focus on promoting school attendance and academic success.  
• Services and supports must be validated by research and evidence-based practices. 
• Partnerships must be fully integrated, with the mental health provider included as part of 

the school team. 
• Cognitive individual and group interventions must be established to modify adolescents’ 

depressive and destructive thinking styles. 
• Familial participation/inclusion must be implemented. 

 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



38 | P a g e  
 

Programs specific to substance abuse will include one or more of the following components. 
• Prevention Services that address such topics as drug use/abuse, assertiveness techniques, 

self-esteem, evaluating and dealing with feelings, anger control, 
positive alternatives to drug use, relaxation exercises and values clarification. 

• Intervention/Treatment Services consisting of individual and group counseling. 
• Family Therapy - assisting families in working through substance abuse problems in a 

supportive and productive manner. 
• Parent education and support groups to discuss various drug-related and parenting issues 
• Staff in-service training program addresses topics such as current street drugs and their 

effects, children of addiction, treatment issues, AIDS, and dual diagnosis 
issues, as needed. 

 

Priority C: 
Travis County is in need of resources and services to address bullying, delinquency, truancy, and 
drop out and expulsion rates. 

Priority Level: High 

 

Goals 

• To improve academic achievement 
• To provide counseling and appropriate social services for students identified as victims of 

bullying 
• To provide services and programming for youth identified as having delinquent 

behaviors, truant, and at risk for dropping out, aging out, and/or expulsion 

 
Strategies/Tasks 

• Identify and secure funding for personnel (including overtime and temporary staff), 
resources (equipment, supplies and contractual), and training to support academic 
achievement and the implementation of evidence-based services and programming for 
identified youth. 

• Establish new and enhance existing collaborations between criminal justice agencies and 
school district personnel to 

o Maximize all locally available funds and in-kind resources and 
o Alleviate program waiting lists. 

• Increase formal and informal contact between local law enforcement jurisdictions, 
city/county government agencies, school districts, businesses, non-profit organizations, 
neighborhood associations, civic groups, community leaders, residents to 

o Improve academic achievement, including the need to meet the requirements of 
the No Child Left Behind Act, 

o Provide services and programming to address bullying, 
o Facilitate and promote long-term cooperation and involvement, 
o Provide platforms for information sharing and continuing education/training for 

professionals and parents, 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



39 | P a g e  
 

o Build a united approach with all involved adults to help the child or adolescent 
reach social, emotional and behavioral goals, and 

o Provide/solicit for translation and interpretation services. 
• Increase early identification of students at risk for aging out. 
• Share diploma options/ criteria with students and their parents/guardians. 
• Create Individualized Academic Plan 

o Plan course schedule for available years 
o Build in additional resources, credit recovery 

• Share plan with students, staff, and parents/guardians. 
• Monitor and re-visit, if necessary.  
• Provide bridge from high school to community college to pursue educational alternatives 

– GED.   
• Include Staff Development for High School, GED and ESL teachers, counselors, and 

other stakeholders.  

 

Annual Output and Outcome Measures 

• Percent change in academic achievement 
• The number of youth identified as victims of bullying 
• The number of youth victims who receive counseling services 
• The number of youth identified as needing services or program involvement to address 

negative behaviors 
o General delinquency 
o Truancy 
o Attendance problems  
o Drop out / expulsion / aging out 

 
Implementation 
To meet the above listed goals, law enforcement, prosecution and the courts will work internally 
to Build organizational capacity (staffing, governance, and financial stability) and secure 
alternate sources of funding and in-kind donations to support academic achievement and the 
implementation of evidence-based services and programming for identified youth. 
 
Law enforcement, prosecution, and the courts will work with school district, family and 
community partners to 

• Provide training for professionals and school personnel and ensure that when budgeting 
locally-hosted training is considered prior to sending minimal staff to in or out-of-state 
courses. Travel expenses (travel, hotel, per diem, and incidentals) are not cost effective. 
Locally-hosted trainings have the ability to benefit multiple agencies as well as partner 
non-profits and community members at reduced cost. When locally-hosted training is not 
an option, train-the-trainer sessions should follow.  

• Host regular collaborative meetings at school districts to share information and to discuss 
issues of concern including criminal activity, delinquent behavior, truancy, bullying, 
attendance, school safety, and drop out and expulsion rates. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



40 | P a g e  
 

• Services and programming considered a priority will include 
o Students and families at the center of service decisions, 
o Services that are culturally competent,  
o Promotion of school attendance and academic success, and  
o Evidence-based practices. 

Far too many students in Travis County will not have obtained high school graduation 
requirements by the time they turn 21, or will have “aged out” of school before graduating.  
Without appropriate academic advisement and preparation, these students may find themselves 
lost and/or misinformed regarding their educational alternatives when they leave school. There is 
a need to create targeted intervention plans and programs for students that 

• Identify students at risk for aging out  
• Meet students at their skill level by  

o Recognizing the reality of the situation (not graduating) 
o Assisting the student move positively towards graduation or GED by 

implementing needs-based assistance  programs  
• Include an individual student plan (2 year, 3 year) that 

o Consists of mentoring, tutoring assistance, social work services, life skills 
programs, 

o Encourages students to make the best use of their time through purposeful 
selection of courses (take academic courses which will assist in their GED 
attainment and/or will be of benefit to their desired goal (ESL, English, Math, 
Social Studies, Science), and 

o Creates and utilizes credit recovery options (summer school, evening / twilight 
school, etc.). 

• Develop a series of program offering “transition services” - a coordinated set of activities 
for a student who will “age out”, designed with outcome-oriented processes which will 
promote movement from school to post-school activities, including postsecondary 
education, vocational training, employment, independent living, and community 
participation.  

• Training for all shareholders to include identification and assessment; services, planning, 
and coordination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



41 | P a g e  
 

 
                     ADDENDUM A 
 

 

Existing and Planned Activities for the Law Enforcement, Prosecution, and Courts Section 
The City of Austin has a wide range of services, programs, collaborative efforts, and community 
partnerships that address identified priority areas. The majority of City services are described on 
the city’s website: www.austintexas.gov. For information regarding specific APD programming, 
please contact the APD Research & Planning Division at (512) 974-5033. 

The City of Austin adopted a Permanent Supportive Housing Strategy in September 2010, 
committed to the construction and operation of 350 permanent supportive housing units over the 
next four years. Included in the target population are households that met the HUD definition but 
have been in an institution for over 90 days, including jail, prison, substance abuse facility, 
mental health treatment facility hospital or other similar facility. Information can be found at 
http://www.ci.austin.tx.ushousing/downloads/csh_final_austin_psh_strategy_092810.pdf 
Travis County also offers a wide range of programs and services, described on their website 
www.co.travis.tx.us.  Travis County specialty courts that address target populations include  

• Travis County Drug Court (started in FY2007),  
• Travis County Adult Probation DWI Court (started in FY2008), 
• Travis County Mental Health Dockets in both misdemeanor and felony courts (started in 

FY2008), 
• Travis County Mental Health Public Defenders Office (started in 2007), and  
• Travis County Veterans Court (started in FY2010).  

 
In October 2011, Travis County received notice of award for the Justice Reinvestment Initiative 
(JRI) grant through the Bureau of Justice Assistance. Travis County Criminal Justice Planning 
submitted an application to become a JRI Phase II site and receive technical assistance and grant 
funding. This application requested seed money to pay for support services for one year for up to 
50 chronically homeless, mentally ill, frequent users of the jail targeted for permanent supportive 
housing in Travis County. Travis County and community stakeholders will be working with the 
Center for Effective Public Policy to develop and implement the JRI Phase II strategy.      

 

Existing and Planned Activities for the Victim Section 

• Three Travis County agencies, LifeWorks (as the lead agency), SafePlace and 
Communities In Schools – Central Texas have partnered to provide increased access to 
psychiatric care for youth and their families. The Shared Psychiatric Services project is 
designed to remove barriers to engage families in psychiatric services. It provides short-
term (up to five months) services, including sessions with a psychiatrist, medication and 
linkages to health care benefits and providers that clients can utilize long-term. 

• There is collaboration between the Seton Topfer Community Clinic and LifeWorks, 
which provides counseling services for crime victims. Crime victims seen at the clinic for 
medical services are directly referred to LifeWorks counseling staff located in the same 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

http://www.austintexas.gov/
http://www.ci.austin.tx.ushousing/downloads/csh_final_austin_psh_strategy_092810.pdf
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/


42 | P a g e  
 

building. There is a common waiting area, which helps to facilitate these transitions. 
Victims can be seen for mental health problems the same day as their medical 
appointment.  

• The Center for Child Protection provides forensic interviews for child abuse victims, 
which also qualifies them and protective family members to receive numerous other 
services as needed, such as case management, therapy, psychiatric services and help 
navigating the criminal justice system. 

• The Counseling Services program at SafePlace provides free therapeutic counseling 
services specifically designed and designated for adult and youth domestic and sexual 
violence victims. Services provided include: individual, group, phone and family 
counseling; play therapy; talk therapy; parental education; trauma symptom management; 
assessment and referral for psychiatric services; safety planning; and crisis intervention. 
In addition to the support groups offered at SafePlace, groups are also provided at entities 
such as Austin Recovery (for trauma survivors with chemical dependency issues) and the 
Travis County Correctional Complex (for incarcerated survivors of domestic/sexual 
violence). 

• The Christi Center helps victims of crime who have lost loved ones by providing referrals 
and connection with other organizations, helping them understand the criminal justice 
system and process, providing support throughout the process, court accompaniment and 
crime victim’s rights training. 

• Austin Child Guidance Center treats children up to the age of 17 for a variety of mental 
health issues, including trauma, violence and family issues.  Services are customized to 
the needs of the family. Some of the services provided are individual, family and group 
therapy, psychological assessments and psychiatric services. 

• Austin/Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC), the main provider in Travis County of 
mental health services, provides community-based behavioral health and developmental 
disabilities services. Clients include victims and witnesses of crimes such as sexual, 
physical and emotional abuse, and family violence. Individuals receiving services at 
ATCIC are often in dire need of care and have a single or combined diagnosis of 
developmental disabilities, persistent mental illnesses, and chemical dependency. ATCIC 
programs include  

o The Outpatient Therapy Program, which provides professional therapy to children 
at the earliest age possible in order to break the cycle of abusive family dynamics 
and provide support for children and families who have experienced trauma. 

o Psychiatric Emergency Services (PES) is a walk-in psychiatric emergency service 
clinic that is open 24/7 and staffed by licensed clinicians, psychiatrists, nurses, 
and qualified mental health professionals. PES provides psychiatric assessment, 
crisis intervention, linkage with resources, and physician services to 
children/youth and adults experiencing psychiatric distress. PES staff works 
closely with other ATCIC programs, local emergency rooms, and the Crisis 
Intervention Teams (CIT) of the Austin Police Department and Travis County 
Sheriff’s Department. 

o Austin State Hospital (ASH) provides psychiatric care with three main services – 
Adult Psychiatric Services, Specialty Adult Services, and Child and Adolescent 
Psychiatric Services. Clinical specialties provide assessment, evaluation, and 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



43 | P a g e  
 

treatment, including psychiatry, nursing, social work, psychology, 
education/rehabilitation services, nutrition, and spiritual care. 

• Seton Shoal Creek Hospital’s Adult Mental Health Inpatient Program provides 
diagnostic and treatment services for individuals who are in acute crisis due to mental 
illness, emotional distress, or destructive behavior patterns, or for those experiencing 
problems coping with daily life. The program is designed to stabilize patients who 
require a more controlled environment for healing and growth, and facilitates a return to 
daily routines.  

• The Austin Police Department (APD) and Travis County Sheriff’s Department (TCSO) 
Victims Services units both provide services to individuals affected by crime and crisis 
circumstances. They work to reduce the impact of trauma and enhance the ability of 
individuals to rebuild their lives. Individuals receive services including assistance with 
their constitutional and/or statutory rights, establishing and/or maintaining personal 
safety, assistance with Crime Victim’s Compensation applications, referrals to agencies, 
educational and emotional support throughout the criminal justice process, and ensuring 
continuity of services between agencies. Both agencies also have a Community or 
Crisis Response Team that provides therapeutic response to the needs of the community 
after a critical incident or a crime that involves multiple victims or survivors. 

• SafePlace is the primary non-profit service provider in Austin/Travis County that 
provides emergency shelter, 24-hour crisis hotline, transitional housing and other 
supportive services specifically designed and designated for youth and adult victims of 
domestic/sexual violence. The agency provided direct and prevention services to more 
than 40,000 people in 2010.   

• LifeWorks provides an emergency shelter for youth victims of crime ages 10-17, for up 
to 30 days. 

• Transition for youth to longer-term shelter is provided through LifeWorks’ Transitional 
Living and Supportive Housing programs. 

• Austin Academy provides services and referrals to victims of crime including child 
care, housing and emergency financial needs. They also provide job readiness training, 
computer literacy and career development specialist services for crime victims. 

• Through a partnership with Goodwill Industries of Central Texas, a full-time 
Employment Placement Specialist provides job readiness, placement and retention 
services for clients of SafePlace’s transitional housing program. Goodwill recently 
received funding that will enable it to expand these services to other SafePlace clients.  

• Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO, Inc.) and other homeless service 
providers work to increase community awareness/education about the intersections of 
crime and homelessness. 

• There are several hotlines for victims providing counseling, legal and/or referral services, 
including SafePlace’s 24-hour crisis hotline for domestic/sexual violence victims (note 
that this hotline also provides services to victims of trafficking). 

• Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid (TRLA) has a Legal Empowerment for Survivors of Abuse 
(LESA) program. It offers access to the protections of the civil legal system for low-
income victims of domestic violence and sexual assault who reside in Travis County and 
the 67 other counties served by TRLA. They also partner with SafePlace to provide legal 
services to victims arriving at SafePlace’s shelter. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



44 | P a g e  
 

• For victims of property crimes by juveniles, there is a victim/offender mediation 
program, The Pot of Gold, operated by Travis County Juvenile Probation. It is based on 
the Balanced and Restorative Justice Model, which addresses the issues of the victim, 
offender and the community. The juvenile offender performs community service 
restitution and is compensated at $5 an hour. The money earned (up to $250) goes toward 
paying the victim. 

Existing and Planned Activities for the Juvenile Justice Section 
The Austin Police Department/Austin Independent School District Police Department Joint 
Juvenile Gang Intervention Unit implements a significant number of prevention, early 
intervention, and intervention programs within the school district. Anti-gang strategies and 
programs include case management services, apprenticeships for gang-involved adjudicated 
youth, Gang Resistance Education and Training (for youth and families), and a wide range of 
social services aimed at reducing juvenile crime, improving school campus and public safety, 
and increasing opportunities for success for youth at high risk for entering the criminal justice 
system. Additional information on these programs is included on the City of Austin website at 
www.austintexas.gov.  

Travis County Juvenile Probation Department’s residential program has collaborated with 
several community agencies to increase opportunities for youth to learn skills that can improve 
their socio-economic status and provide them with options utilizing their natural aptitudes.  

• Skillpoint Alliance Gateway Programs developed a vocational skill training program that 
combines current curriculums offered on ACC campuses and a school credit recovery 
program.  

• GED Program with local ACC campuses – preparatory services for youth aged 16 years 
and older. 

• Jog Readiness Workshops – provides students with vocational planning; 21st Century 
Skills and Workplace readiness that creates a portfolio with documents for employment, 
resume writing, and experiences in the world of work. 

• Food Handler Certification – training for workers who serve food in restaurants. 
• Photography – teaches youth how to use digital cameras and how to view the world’s 

simplest elements. 
• Austin Classical Guitar Association - provides musical education, instruction and 

performance opportunities. 
• Mobile Film School – host filmmaking workshops 
• Save Our Youth – writing workshops for students who like to write stories. 
• Theater Action Project – Develops social support, interpersonal communication and self 

efficacy skills. 
• Youth Empowerment Seminars – brings Motivational Speakers to the community to visit 

youth at schools. 
• Art of Living Foundation – Learning to live and develop a students highest potential for 

themselves. 
• Rhythm and Poetry – students learn practical skills in how to make good decisions while 

learning to play music. 
• Youth Resilience Workshop – Helps students identify their strengths and how to make 

better decisions for their future.  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

http://www.austintexas.gov/


45 | P a g e  
 

 

Existing and Planned Activities for the Education Section 
The Austin Independent School District offers programming to address each of the priority areas. 
Please visit the AISD website for additional information: www.austinisd.org.  

 

 
                     ADDENDUM B 
 

 

 
Additional Supporting Data for the Law Enforcement, Prosecution, and Courts Section 
Individuals with mental illnesses become involved in the criminal justice system due to the fact 
that they are disproportionately likely to come into contact with law enforcement officers. 
Individuals with mental illnesses often behave publicly in ways that are symptomatic of an 
untreated mental illness or substance use disorder (for example, public disturbance, public 
intoxication, or other “nuisance” offenses).  Individuals with mental illnesses are at an increased 
risk of developing a substance use disorder over the course of their lifetimes (Regier et al., 
Comorbidity of mental disorders with alcohol and other drug abuse, 1990; Narrow et al., Revised 
prevalence estimates of mental disorders in the United States, 2002) and arrests for drug offenses 
have skyrocketed since the early 1980’s. Finally, nearly a third of people who experience 
homelessness have serious mental illnesses, and their homelessness makes them highly visible to 
law enforcement officers. (New Freedom Commission on Mental Health, Subcommittee on 
Housing and Homelessness, 2004) 

• A national study from 2002 through 2004 estimated that 56% of state prisoners, 45% of 
federal prisoners, and 64% of jail inmates suffer from a mental illness (James & Glaze. 
(2006). Mental Health Problems of Prison and Jail Inmates. US Department of Justice’s 
Bureau of Justice Statistics Special Report) 

• Of these individuals incarcerated with mental illness, 70% are serving time for nonviolent 
offenses (People with Serious Mental Illnesses in the Criminal Justice System. (2002). 
Fact Sheets for Advocates. Bazelon Center for Mental Health Law) 

• A 2004 national study showed that only 1 in 3 state prisoners, 1 in 4 federal prisoners, 
and 1 in 6 jail inmates who had a mental health problem had received treatment since 
admission (James & Glaze. (2006). Mental Health Problems of Prison and Jail Inmates. 
US Department of Justice’s Bureau of Justice Statistics Special Report) 

Due in a large part to legislative policy shifts and budget cuts, our jails and prisons and the 
juvenile justice system have become the primary mental health care facilities in the United States 
today. This is a function these facilities are neither designed nor equipped to handle. “There are 
three times as many mentally ill individuals are in U.S. prisons than are in U.S. mental wards.” 
(“Prisons No Place for the Mentally Ill,” San Diego Union-Tribune, Feb. 13, 2004) 

According to data presented in “Improving Outcomes for People with Mental Illnesses Under 
Community Corrections Supervision: A Guide to research-Informed Policy and Practice (Seth 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

http://www.austinisd.org/


46 | P a g e  
 

Jacob Prins and Laura Draper, Council of State Governments Justice Center, 2009), the 
following is shown to be issues facing community corrections and law enforcement in the United 
States 

• People with mental illnesses (most having co-occurring substance use disorders and face 
significant clinical, legal, and socioeconomic challenges) are overrepresented among 
probation and parole populations.   

• These individuals are twice as likely as people without mental illnesses to have their 
community supervision or parole revoked. 

• The best predictors of probation or parole revocation for people with mental illnesses are 
similar to predictors of revocation for people without mental illnesses (for example, 
criminal history, substance use, problematic circumstances at home), but people with 
mental illnesses have more of these risk factors. In addition, people with mental illnesses 
face unique risk factors related to their clinical conditions (for example, some may have 
functional impairments). 

• Traditional community corrections agencies have limited resources to effectively respond 
to people with mental illnesses as a result of large caseload size and the time-consuming 
needs of this population. Certain traditional officer strategies, such as threats of 
incarceration and other negative pressures to enforce compliance, may be related to 
higher rates of probation and parole revocation for this population. 

Two thirds of prisoners nationwide with a mental illness were off treatment at the time of their 
arrest, according to a new study by Harvard researchers that suggests under-treatment of mental 
illness contributes to crime and incarceration (American Journal of Public Health, January, 
2009).  The study went on to say that only one in three were taking medications for their illness 
at the time of their arrest. That number jumped to nearly two-thirds during incarceration. It 
should also be noted that in a 1999 Bureau of Justice Statistics (BJS) report, researchers found 
that an estimated 16% of people under probation supervision were “mentally ill” based on self-
report from a national survey and an estimated 16% of jail inmates reported either a “mental 
condition” or an overnight stay in a mental hospital during their lifetime. It should also be noted 
that 

• In 2006, BJS reported that 64% of jail inmates had a recent mental health problem. 
• Prevalence estimates of serious mental illnesses in jails range from 7% to 16%, or rates 

four times higher for men and eight times higher for women than rates found in the 
general population (Mentally Ill Offender Treatment and Crime Reduction Act Fact 
Sheet). 

• The Justice Center, in partnership with Policy Research Associates, conducted a five-site 
study, with initial funding from the National Institute of Justice, to develop a screening 
instrument for mental illness and with additional support from the National Institute of 
Corrections to generate the study findings. Key findings include 

o Fourteen percent of men and 31% of women entering the jails studied were found 
to have serious mental illnesses. These rates are three to six times higher than 
those found in the general population. 

o The gender difference is particularly important given the rising number of women 
in U.S. jails. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



47 | P a g e  
 

o If applied to the 13 million jail admissions reported in 2007, the findings suggest 
that more than 2 million bookings of a person with a serious mental illness may 
occur annually. 

o This study represents the most reliable estimates in the last 20 years of the rates of 
serious mental illnesses among adults entering jails. 

• Victims with multiple or very complex issues (serious mental illness, substance abuse) 
during the 2011 Homeless Count in January 2,357 people were identified as homeless. Of 
those 21% were identified with severe mental illness, and 33% were identified with 
chronic substance abuse issues.  

• Lengthy waiting lists exist for non-residential services (case management).  
• Least amount of resources is made available to specialty courts serving mentally ill.  
• Clients in specialty courts have multiple and serious needs. 

o 62.8% of defendants on the Mental Health Docket are identified with co-
occurring disorders (and this number is likely lower than reality due to reporting 
challenges). 

o 25.2 % of the active drug court participants are also diagnosed with mental health 
issues.  

o In a recent study of the Downtown Austin Community Court, 245 offenders were 
identified as “frequent offenders” with 25 plus cases during the life of the court. 
Of those, 77% screened have been identified with serious mental illness.  

o Clients receiving court-appointed attorneys reflect the following: 10% of the total 
court appointments are for indigent mental health cases in Travis County 
misdemeanor courts and 16% in the felony courts.  

• Veterans with PTSD turn to alcohol and drugs when services for PTSD are not available.  
o Clients are reluctant to seek help (veterans)  
o Clients have lack of knowledge about available services (veterans)  

• Lack of mental health services for drug court clients. 
• Lack of in and outpatient treatment options locally.  
• TDCJ –TCOOMMI no longer provides mental health planning services for persons 

leaving the State Jail (effective 2009).  
 

In a study published in 2003, researchers interviewed 627 adults under probation supervision in 
Illinois, and using diagnostic criteria for substance use and dependence disorders from the 
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders-III-R, found that 55% of individuals with 
one or more current “psychiatric disorders” were dependent on one or more substances, 
compared with 37% of people without any “psychiatric disorders. (Lurigio et al., Standardized 
assessment of substance-related, other psychiatric, and comorbid disorders among probationers, 
2003) 

There is growing anxiety about how to house the large number of ex-offenders being released 
from state and federal prison each year, over 600,000 annually. Many offenders experience 
rejection from families and friends, refusal by private landlords and intensive screening (and 
eviction) from public housing. As a result, the burden of housing ex-offenders increasingly falls 
upon the shoulders of communities, nonprofit organizations, community corrections, law 
enforcement and the courts. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



48 | P a g e  
 

• The number of people released from prison has increased 350% over the last 20 years. 
(James P. Lynch and William J. Sabol, Prisoner Reentry in Perspective, Washington, 
DC: The Urban Institute, September 2001) 

• During the same time period, the number of people who are homeless has swelled 
dramatically, to the current level of up to 850,000 people on any given day. (Martha R. 
Burt et al., Homelessness: Programs and the People They Serve: Findings From the 
National Survey of Homeless Assistance Providers and Clients, U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (Washington, DC: 1999), cited in Stephen Métraux and 
Dennis P. Culhane, “Homeless Shelter Use and Reincarceration Following Prison 
Release: Assessing the Risk,” Criminology & Public Policy 3, no. 2 (2004): 201–222) 

• Most released individuals return to major metropolitan areas in Texas, as well as across 
the country, often to a few neighborhoods within central cities. 

Inmates released from Travis County Jail and those discharged from the institutional division of 
TDCJ typically lack necessary skills and/or resources for successful reintegration. Training, 
specialized programs, staff, and equipment are necessary to supplement Travis County‘s existing 
resources to address the growing recidivism rate. A reentry program specific to individuals 
released into Travis County should assist with the following needs: Personal records (Social 
Security cards, birth certificates, driver license, credit reports, and citizenship records), GED 
certification, employment, housing, medical, social development, community responsibility, and 
counseling programs (anger management, drug and alcohol education, mental health 
assessments, substance abuse disorders). 

• TDCJ total prisoners incarcerated (TDCJ website, data dated 8/31/2010) – 154,795 
o Male - 142,770, Female – 12,025 
o African American – 56,058, White – 48,026, Hispanic – 49,936, Other – 775 
o Average age - 37.4 
o Average IQ – 90.58 
o Average educational achievement – 8.05 
o Violent offense – 79,251, Drug offense – 27,602, Property Crime – 25,671 
o TDCJ Inmates claiming Travis County residence – 5,177 
o Total inmates received by TDCJ from Travis County in 2010 – 2,805 
o Total inmates released by TDCJ from Travis County in 2010 – 2,666 

• TDCJ 2010 releases – 71,063 
• TDCJ 2010 Placed on parole supervision from prison – 32,721 

o Difficult for persons with a criminal history to get free market housing due to 
restriction for lease qualification  

o Lack of housing options and resources (funding) is a barrier for specialty courts 
reducing their ability to divert mentally ill offenders from jail or criminal justice 
outcomes 

o Need for housing that will serve persons with severe persistent mental illness that 
includes on-site services 

o Homelessness frequent user as  a driver of the jail population from the Urban 
Institute study in 2009 

o Need for permanent supportive housing to serve frequent users of the jail (From 
the CSH TX Reentry initiative findings) 

o Sex offender housing in particular extremely difficult issue  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



49 | P a g e  
 

o Housing authority restrictions  
o Lack of affordable housing to begin within our community 

There are numerous barriers to offenders finding housing upon release from jail/prison. Reported 
barriers include 

• Many private landlords do not rent to ex-offenders, 
• The nature of the offense (either sex offense or possession/sale offense) can be a barrier, 
• Substance abuse issues, to include recidivism, will limit ability to sustain housing, 
• Mental health issues can impair housing retention, 
• Transportation is not available in many parts of the county, and 
• The stigma of being an ex-offender keeps many from housing. 

 

Women face unique barriers in securing safe and affordable housing when they return home 
from prison or jails (Austin, Bloom, and Donahue 1992; Dodge and Pogrebin 2001; Mumola 
2000; Ritchie 2000). Women may have special service needs and often must find a home not 
only for themselves, but also for their children. 

A Bureau of Justice Statistics study found that incarcerated women are in worse economic 
circumstances than either incarcerated men or other economically disadvantaged women. The 
study showed that few women are employed in the month before arrest; few have high school 
diplomas; most women in state prisons report a drug or alcohol addiction; and one in five were 
homeless during the year prior to their arrest. (Mumola, C. (2000). Incarcerated Parents and 
their Children. Washington, DC: U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Statistics) 

The 2009 Annual Report of the Office of Substance Abuse Treatment Services (OSATS), 
formerly the Division of Addiction and Recovery Services, stated 

• The return to custody rate after one year for offenders completing both in-prison and 
community-based treatment in FY 2005-06 was 21.9%, compared to 39.9% for all 
offenders.  

• The return to custody rate after two years for offenders completing both in-prison and 
community-based treatment in FY 2005-06 was 35.3%, compared to 54.2% for all 
offenders. 

• For male offenders, the return-to-custody rate after one year for those who completed 
both in-prison and community-based substance abuse treatment in FY 2005-06 was 
25.4%, compared to 41.2% of all male offenders.  

• The return-to-prison rate after two years for male offenders who completed both in-prison 
and community-based substance abuse treatment in FY 2005-06 was 40.4%, compared to 
55.6% of all male offenders. 

• After one year, only 8.8% of female offenders who completed both in-prison and 
community-based substance abuse treatment in FY 2005-06 were returned to custody, 
compared to 30.1% of all female offenders.  

• The return-to-prison rate after two years for female offenders who completed both in-
prison and community-based substance abuse treatment in FY 2005-06 was 16.5%, 
compared to 43.7% of all female offenders. 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



50 | P a g e  
 

A study conducted by the State of Delaware produced the following data on treatment and 
recidivism 

 

In a Florida Department of Corrections study (Analysis of the Impact of Inmate Programs 
upon Recidivism, January 2001, Michael W. Moore, Secretary), the following was found  

• Inmates who complete substance abuse programs are 6.2% less likely to recidivate than 
those who do not complete a program. 

• Inmates with precursor offenses (those which indicate a history of criminal behavior 
related to substance abuse/dependence) who complete a substance abuse program are 
13.2% less likely to recidivate than those with precursor offenses who do not complete 
a substance abuse program.  

• Substance abuse impacts are found even among offender groups that normally have 
higher recidivism. 

 

National studies have shown that estimates of lifetime drug users among the nation's incarcerated 
population range from 80 to 87% (Lisa Riechers, Criminal Justice Policy Council, “An Overview 
of Drug Treatment Programs in Prison”, Austin, Texas, February 1991, p. 1).  Drug-related 
crimes have led to Texas becoming one of the most dangerous states in which to live. In fact, 
Fort Worth, Dallas, San Antonio, Austin, Houston, and El Paso are among the 14 most crime-
ridden cities in the United States (Senator Ted Lyon, Representative Jim Parker, et.al., “Texas 
Task Force on State and Local Drug Control”, Austin, Texas, January 1991, p. 14). During the 
last decade, the number of inmates in the nation's prisons has doubled. Over 80% of the inmates 
were recidivists and about 75% previously used drugs (Wexler, "Drug Treatment in the Criminal 
Justice System, " p. 6). 

Treatment works to reduce crime, drug abuse, and recidivism. Sustained reductions in recidivism 
can be achieved up to six years after treatment. With appropriate drug abuse treatment more than 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



51 | P a g e  
 

75% of offenders with chronic substance abuse histories can reenter the community and lead 
socially acceptable life styles (Wexler, "Drug Treatment in the Criminal Justice System, " p. 1).  
The Treatment Outcome Prospective Study (TOPS), a longitudinal study of 10,000 individuals 
admitted to drug treatment in ten cities across the country, was published in 1989. TOPS findings 
showed that the costs of drug treatment (outpatient and residential) are substantially recovered 
during the time a client is in treatment. The TOPS study concludes that every $1 invested in 
residential treatment for TOPS subjects saved an additional $2.10 in reduced law enforcement, 
incarceration and social welfare costs within the first year after treatment. (Hubbard RL, Rachal 
JV, Craddock SG, Cavanaugh ER., Treatment Outcome Prospective Study (TOPS): client 
characteristics and behaviors before, during, and after treatment, NIDA Res Monogram, 
1984;51:42-68) 

The need for information sharing between government agencies continues to be a high priority in 
post-9/11 society in the United States. Historically information sharing between law enforcement 
agencies has occurred in a very limited manner: ordinarily, only by person to person or case by 
case basis. In our current age of high mobility and increasing availability of technology, 
criminals are able to take advantage of the fact that limited information sharing between law 
enforcement jurisdictions reduces the likelihood of getting caught. 

The area of community corrections, information between corrections agencies, treatment 
providers and social service agencies has suffered that same lack of trust and coordination.  
Agencies working with offenders have come to realize that treatment effectiveness is enhanced 
when all players are on the same page, in other words, their efforts are coordinated towards a 
common goal rather than working independently of one another - in unity there is strength. 

Success in managing threat, risk, need and treatment improves as we move from a “need to 
know” mentality to a “responsibility to provide” mentality. 
Working collaboratively with all stakeholders in the planning and implementation of systemic 
change in community corrections can result in a more coherent continuum of care; one that uses 
evidence-based principles to reduce recidivism. By collaborating with each other, governmental 
agencies and community-based providers can jointly provide a comprehensive and integrated 
array of services that could not be provided by a single agency. 

 
Additional Supporting Data for the Victims Section 
In FY 2010, the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services’ (DFPS) Adult Protective 
Service program validated 56,053 in-home cases of abuse, neglect or exploitation against adults 
with disabilities or older adults in Texas. This information can be found at  
http://www.dfps.state.tx.us/About/Data_Books_and_Annual_Reports/default.asp 

Studies show that domestic/sexual violence in adulthood and childhood has long-term harmful 
effects on the mental health of victims, even after they escape the abuse. Abused women 
experience 50% -70% more health problems as compared to non-abused women. Among the 
conditions experienced by abuse victims are depression, anxiety disorders and post-traumatic 
stress disorder. (Intimate Partner Violence and Physical Health consequences. Campbell, et.al. 
Internal Medicine, 2002:162:1157-1163.) Research indicates that counseling is beneficial for 
domestic and sexual violence victims. (Westbury, E. & Tutty, L.M. (1999) The efficacy of group 
treatment for survivors of childhood abuse. Child Abuse and Neglect, 23, 1, 31-44.) Research 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



52 | P a g e  
 

indicates that therapeutic interventions help children recover from trauma and avoid 
victimization and/or perpetration of violence. Professional therapy to children at the earliest age 
possible facilitates improvement in healthy family functioning and breaks the cycle of abusive 
family dynamics. (ATCICF Child and Family Services.) 
Victims of domestic and sexual violence require a specialized form of mental health and support 
services because these victims often present symptoms of mental illness, but in fact may be acute 
trauma. These victims are often discounted and their experiences minimized because of their 
inability to function in a system that requires optimal awareness and critical thinking skills while 
they are in crisis. When the effects of abuse are not addressed, harmful consequences can include 
but are not limited to continued mental health issues, future victimization and/or perpetration of 
violence. (Schechter, S. “Expanding Solutions for Domestic Violence and Poverty: What 
Battered Women with Abused Children need from Their Advocates. December, 2000”.)  
National research shows the link between domestic/sexual violence and homelessness. Studies 
indicate that 92% of homeless women have experienced severe physical or sexual abuse, 60% of 
homeless women and children have been abused by age 12, and 63% have been victims of 
intimate partner violence as adults (2). 

Domestic violence is a leading cause of homelessness for women and children in the United 
States. Many victims leave their homes to escape violence and do not have the resources to 
support housing or other basic needs alone. Others are evicted from housing due to their 
batterer’s disruptive and often criminal behavior, or have substandard credit and rental histories 
due to tactics of financial abuse by the batterers.  Victims are often also barred from housing due 
to the risk their abusers pose. (The National Network to End Domestic Violence, Housing 
Project).   
In 2005, 50% of U.S. cities surveyed reported that domestic violence is a primary cause of 
homelessness. (United States Conference of Mayors, (Hunger and Homelessness Survey 64 
December 2005) Victim services units of law enforcement reports there is a continuous lack of 
safe shelter space for victims. There is a particular need for more alternative housing options for 
male and sexually assaulted victims. SafePlace provides shelter services to female and male 
victims of domestic and sexual violence. 

Crisis response time is key for victims of a violent crime to have their immediate emotional, 
medical and safety needs met, and interrupt the cycle of violence. Crisis response and short-term 
services help to stabilize a victim and provide critical support. When victimized children and 
their protective caregivers receive the support they need, the entire community benefits from the 
increased health and well-being of its members. (Center for Child Protection TCCVF 2012 
Application.) If victims of domestic violence have children with their abuser, it is highly likely 
that there will be future contact between them. In order to prevent future violence it is essential 

                                                 

2 Browne, A. & Bassuk, S., “Intimate Violence in the Lives of Homeless and Poor Housed 
Women: Prevalence and Patterns in an Ethnically Diverse Sample,” American Journal of 
Orthopsychiatry, 67(2) 261-278, April 1997; Browne, A., “Responding to the Needs of Low 
Income and Homeless Women Who are Survivors of Family Violence,” Journal of the 
American Medical Association, 53(2), 57-64. Spring 1998. 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



53 | P a g e  
 

that the contact include supervised visitation of children, drug and alcohol treatment, battering 
intervention programs and counseling. (Texas RioGrande Legal Aid, TCCVF 2012 Application.) 
For victims of non-violent, property crimes, short-term services provide an outlet for addressing 
the crime committed. They also provide an opportunity to define the harm done to them, which 
greatly increases their chances for recovery from the trauma of the crime. (Travis County 
Juvenile Probation Department TCCVF 2012 Application.) 

 

Additional Supporting Data for the Juvenile Justice Section 
There are increasing numbers of juveniles with mental health and substance abuse problems 
entering the justice system. These mental health problems and substance abuse issues often play 
an active role in the initial delinquent behavior and, if left untreated, increase the risk of 
recidivism.  This growing group of juveniles with involvement in the justice system and mental 
health problems are a specialized population with different contributing factors to justice system 
involvement when compared to youth without mental health issues. Because of this, traditional 
justice system interventions are often less effective in reducing recidivism. This group often 
requires more specialized mental health services. The stress of incarceration and moving through 
the legal system is likely to exacerbate their psychiatric symptoms. Once these juveniles enter 
the institutional stage of the justice system, they have a constitutional right to treatment, placing 
a significant obligation on the justice system. 

State Statistics  

• Texas ranks 49th in the nation in per client spending on services for mental health care, 
spending only $38.46 per client. This is 44% of the national average. (Mental Health 
Association in Texas, 2005) 

• Texas ranks 34th in overall child well-being. (2010 KIDS COUNT Data Book)  
• Texas has the highest rate of children without health insurance in the nation (21%), and 

the rate is even higher for older children and teens (23%) (2010 KIDS COUNT Data 
Book)  

• 41% of felony offender youth committed to TYC in 2006 were identified to have mental 
health needs; 42% of misdemeanor offenders committed to TYC in 2006 were identified 
to have mental health needs. (Texas Juvenile Probation: Today and Tomorrow. TJPC July 
2008) 

• Juvenile arrests for violent offenses increased 9%, from 21,100 in 2000 to 22,921 in 2007  
• Drug arrests increased 12%, from 8,996 in 2000 to 10,087 in 2007  
• Violent offenses, as a proportion of total offenses increased between 2000 and 2007. In 

2000, violent offenses accounted for 15% of total juvenile arrests compared to 17% in 
2007.  

• Drug offenses as a proportion of total offenses also increased accounting for 6% of total 
arrests in 2000 compared to 7% in 2007.  

• The percentage of mental illness increases as juveniles penetrate the system, resulting in 
over 50% of youth committed to TYC having a diagnosable mental illness. 

• Seventeen percent of juveniles referred and/or supervised by a juvenile probation 
department in 2005 received a service from child protective services in that same year. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



54 | P a g e  
 

• Seven percent of juveniles referred and/or supervised in 2005 received a state funded 
behavioral health service in that same year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
*

(
A Report by the Texas Juvenile Probation Commission and Juvenile Justice Practitioners, July 2008) 

 
 
A state of Texas report entitled Profile of Youth Offenders in Texas – Texas Youth Commission 
(FY2008) indicated that of youthful offenders in TYC were 36% more likely to be chemically 
dependent;  32% had serious mental issues; and 10% had family members with mental 
impairments.  

 

National Statistics  

• According to the Northwestern Juvenile Project, the most methodologically sound study 
of its kind, 60.9% of males and 70% of females detained in a juvenile detention facility 
met criteria for at least one psychiatric disorder (with Conduct Disorder excluded). 
Comorbidity (either the presence of one or more diagnosis/disorders/diseases in addition 
to a primary disease or disorder, or the effect of such additional disorders or diseases) 
was extremely common, with 45.9% of males and 56.5% of females meeting criteria for 
two or more psychiatric disorders, (Teplin, et al., 2006). 

• Over one in five children has a diagnosable mental health disorder, with some major 
mental illnesses having an onset as early as 7-11 years of age. (New Freedom 
Commission on Mental Health (2003). Achieving the Promise: Transforming Mental 
Health Care in America: Final report. DHHS Publication No. SMA-03-3832) 

• Almost 21% of U.S. children ages 9 to 17 had a diagnosable mental or addictive disorder 
associated with at least minimum impairment. (Ibid.) 

• Mental health disorders can be found disproportionately in children/adolescents involved 
with child welfare or the juvenile justice system. Putnam reports that “approximately 
30% - 40% of the children in out-of-home care have a serious emotional disorder and as 
many as 75% - 80% of the population in out-of-home care need mental health services.” 
(Skowyra, K & Cocozza, J. (2006). Blueprint for change: A comprehensive model for the 
identification and treatment of youth with mental health needs in contact with the 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



55 | P a g e  
 

juvenile justice system. Delmanr, NY: The National Center for Mental Health and 
Juvenile Justice (NCMHJJ) and Policy Research Associates, Inc.) 

• Access to the appropriate mental health care is a significant issue. Most of the children 
and youth with mental health disorders (75-80%) do not receive services. Whether 
insured or not, over 75% of children who could benefit are considered to have unmet 
mental health needs (Kataoka, S., Zhang, L, & Wells, K. (2002). Unmet need for mental 
health care among U.S. children: Variation by ethnicity and insurance status. American 
Journal of Psychiatry, 159:1548-1555). 

• Almost 90% of those with a lifetime co-occurring disorder had at least one mental 
disorder prior to the onset of a substance abuse disorder (Kessler, R., Beglund, P., 
Demler, O., Jin, R., & Walters, E. (2005). Lifetime prevalence and the age-of-onset 
distribution of DSM-IV disorders in the National Comorbidity Survey Replication. 
Archives of General Psychiatry, 62, 593-602) 

• Generally, the mental disorder occurred in early adolescence (median age 11), followed 
by the substance abuse disorder 5 to 10 years later (median age 21). (Ibid.) 

• The time between the onset of a mental disorder and a subsequent substance abuse 
disorder represents an important “window of opportunity” in which a co-occurring 
disorder may be prevented (Ibid.) 

 

Early identification of this population via family and school referrals is essential to avoid 
involvement in the juvenile justice system. Youth who are involved with the juvenile justice 
system have substantially higher rates of mental health disorders than children in the general 
population, and they may have rates of disorder comparable to those among youth being treated 
in the mental health system. The prevalence of mental disorders among youth in the general 
population is estimated to be about 22%; the prevalence rate for youth in the juvenile justice 
system is as high as 60% (Otto, R., Greenstein, J., Johnson, M., & Friedman, R. (1992), 
Prevalence of mental disorders among youth in the juvenile justice system. In J. Cocozza (Ed.), 
Responding to the mental health needs of youth in the juvenile justice system. The National 
Coalition for the Mentally Ill in the Criminal Justice System: Seattle, WA. (pp. 7-48)). 

Adolescents with emotional and behavioral problems are nearly four times more likely to be 
dependent on alcohol or illicit substances than are other adolescents, and the severity of a youth's 
problems increases the likelihood of drug use and dependence. Among adolescents with co-
occurring disorders, conduct disorder and depression are the two most frequently reported 
disorders that co-occur with substance abuse. (U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. (1999). The Relationship Between 
Mental Health and Substance Abuse Among Adolescent, Office of Applied Studies) 

According to the Northwestern Juvenile Project, the most methodologically sound study of its 
kind, 60.9% of males and 70% of females detained in a juvenile detention facility met criteria for 
at least one psychiatric disorder (with Conduct Disorder excluded). Comorbidity (either the 
presence of one or more diagnosis/disorders/diseases in addition to a primary disease or disorder, 
or the effect of such additional disorders or diseases) was extremely common, with 45.9% of 
males and 56.5% of females meeting criteria for two or more psychiatric disorders. (Teplin, et 
al., 2006) 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



56 | P a g e  
 

Research has shown that long-term incarceration is not effective and causes more trauma to 
youth. The need for comprehensive assessments for mental health, substance abuse, cognitive 
deficits, trauma history and other identifying risks is imperative to address the underlying issues 
of juveniles and meet the needs of the child and family by providing quality evidenced based 
services. Ongoing communication is important to address the specific needs of bilingual youth 
and families through therapeutic bilingual services for mental health/substance abuse. In 
addition, kids aging out of the system and those youth who have failed to meet their educational 
goals need more comprehensive vocational training to prepare them for a successful future 
without criminal involvement. The “zero tolerance” policies have created an environment in 
which youth with mental health and trauma issues are impeded by their inability to succeed in 
meeting the schools expectations and often are referred to juvenile probation for behavior 
problems. Repeated suspensions and expulsions predict poor academic outcomes and a greater 
chance of the child not graduating, repeating a grade or dropping out of school. Fostering the 
creation of “protective factors” would help the family to increase parental resiliency, increase 
their social connections and increase the parent’s knowledge of parenting and child development.   

During the last decade we have experienced an average of 18,000 school age children and youth 
being arrested each year in Austin and Travis County. During calendar 2010, DPS reports a total 
of 20,400 school age youth being taken into custody by city and county law enforcement 
(Council on At-Risk Youth, Arrests for School Age Youth for Index and Non-Index Crimes in 
Travis County-2001-2010, 2011). Most importantly, the 20,400 arrests for school age youth 
represented 30% of all arrests for Travis County for 2010. It should be noted that the definition 
of “school age” youth includes individuals older than 17 years old, the maximum age to be 
considered a juvenile for crime purposes in Texas.    

The majority of all society’s public offenders exhibit their aggressive, abusive and anti-social 
behaviors long before their first arrest and involvement with juvenile and/or criminal justice 
authorities.  These characteristics and behaviors become readily evident in public school in the 
elementary, middle school and high school years.   

Involvement in the criminal justice system is described as a continuum that leads from school 
based youthful misbehavior to involvement in the juvenile justice system and ultimately the adult 
penal system. (Deborah Lightsey, Texas Appleseed, Texas School-to-Prison Pipeline: Dropout to 
Incarceration, 2007) A recent study by Council of State Governments found in a 6-year review of 
school disciplinary and juvenile justice data for nearly 1,000,000 students, that involvement in 
the school disciplinary system was a very strong predictor for involvement in the juvenile justice 
system. (Council of State Governments, Breaking Schools’ Rules, 2011.) Another study of 
predictive variables for future law violations found that a single school disciplinary referral 
emerged as the single strongest predictor.  “The greater the number of school disciplinary 
incidents, the higher the probability of subsequent referral.”  (Dottie Carmichael, Texas A&M 
University, Public Policy Research Institute, Study of Minority Over-Representation in the Texas 
Juvenile Justice System, 2006) Additional research shows that early school behavioral actions by 
are strong predictors for later criminal justice involvement. Criminologists James Allen Fox and 
Delbert Elliot stated in a 2003 report on bully prevention that “60% of middle school youth who 
are bullies can be expected to have at least one criminal court adjudication by age 24; 40% of 
that same group can be expected to have three criminal court convictions by age 24”. Clearly, 
Students who are aggressive, abusive and intimidating toward others in the school hallways and 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



57 | P a g e  
 

playgrounds will have future involvement with juvenile and criminal justice.  (James Allen Fox 
and Delbert Elliot, Fight Crime: Invest in Kids, Bully prevention is Crime Prevention, 2003)  

 

In the absence of a well-established delinquency prevention and intervention infrastructure, the 
Travis County juvenile justice system has become the fall back referral agency for delinquent 
and criminal activity. We know that it is essential to begin funding prevention and intervention 
as juvenile and criminal justice system recidivism rates are high.  Recent research conducted by 
the John Jay College of Criminal Justice and funded by the Annie Casey Foundation finds that 
“involvement with the juvenile system was the single greatest predictor of criminality”(Jeffery 
Butts, John J. College of Criminal Justice, In Juvenile Justice Care, Boys Get Worse, 2010.) The 
majority of children and youth who are involved in the school disciplinary system can be better 
served at that location by community service agencies well in advance of criminal involvement 
and referral to juvenile and criminal justice. However, funding is needed to underwrite costs for 
evidence based delinquency prevention, youth violence prevention and drug abuse prevention 
programs.   

Failing to invest in children and youth triggers substantial economic, social and political costs 
resulting from negative outcomes including school dropout, poor labor market entry, risky sexual 
behaviors, substance abuse and crime and violence. (United Nations, Social.un.org/Youth 
Year/docs., 2011) Early Intervention is critical to children and youth’s behaviors escalating 
beyond the parent’s control and the public school disciplinary system’s control and subsequently 
ends up with the police being notified and the youth is taken to the Juvenile Justice agency. The 
Texas A&M Public Policy Research Institute recommends that “resources should be invested in 
prevention or early intervention programs to reduce involvement of minorities in school 
delinquency, enhance academic performance, support economically disadvantaged families, and 
develop effective interventions for juveniles with emotional or learning disabilities”. (Dottie 
Carmichael, Texas A&M University, Public Policy Research Institute, Study of Minority Over-
Representation in the Texas Juvenile Justice System, 2006)  United Nations International Year 
for Youth notes that preventable risky behaviors induce losses to society that reaches into the 
billions of dollars annually.   

The school environment and particularly the school disciplinary system can have considerable 
impact on early intervention with funding support and with utilization of evidence based 
violence prevention and drug abuse prevention programs.  The Austin ISD and others in Travis 
County are receptive to support. The Connecting the Dots Workshop sponsored by AISD and 
attended by numerous private service providers, juvenile justice representatives and AISD 
personnel resulted in the Alternative Education/Placement Group recommending delinquency 
prevention report with recommendations for 1) youth violence prevention and intervention 
services, 2) drug abuse prevention and intervention services, and 3) mental health prevention and 
treatment services. (Alternative Education/Placement Group, AISD Connecting the Dots 
Workshop, Sept. 2011) There are several community-based and school-sanctioned programs that 
are helpful, but public support for these programs is limited.  Public funding should include 
policy that gives highest priority to school disciplinary youth along with requirements for 
utilization of evidence based prevention and intervention programs.     

Numerous “evidence based” programs are enumerated by the Office of Juvenile Justice and 
Delinquency Prevention, the Center for Study and Prevention of Violence and the Center for 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



58 | P a g e  
 

Substance Abuse Programs of the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration.  At least 
one of these evidence based programs, the Aggression Replacement Training Program has been 
evaluated by independent researchers showing that students completing the program have lower 
aggression incident reports, lower school disciplinary actions and higher school attendance rates. 
(Forrest Novy and Laura McFarland, The Council on At-Risk Youth’s Aggression Replacement 
Training Program: Principles, Practices and Outcomes 2009-2010 School Year, 2011) 

There is need to build an infrastructure for effectively preventing delinquent offenses.  The 
prevention infrastructure should include involvement in a local prevention board with 
participation by the City of Austin, Travis County, Austin ISD school board and Austin/Travis 
County Health Department.  Attention is needed to provide more funding to underwrite costs for 
expansion of evidence based prevention and intervention programs at each of our middle and 
high school campuses.  

 

Local Data   

• Analysis of school age (10-20) youth arrest rates for the last decade show an average of 
18,000 arrests annually, with 20,400 arrests occurring during 2010. (Council on At-Risk 
Youth, Arrests for School Age Youth for Index and Non-Index Crimes in Travis County-
2001-2010, 2011) 

• Disciplinary actions were taken 19,220 cases representing 10,710 individual children and 
youth with dispositions in school, out of school and removal to disciplinary alternative 
education program during the 2010-2011 school year in the   Austin Independent School 
District. (AISD, PEIMS Student Discipline Aggregate Report with Redacted Data, 2011) 

• An AISD evaluation demonstrates that one evidence-based violence prevention program 
Responding in Peaceful and Positive Ways shows promise as an effective strategy for 
reducing student aggressive behavior. (AISD ACCESS Initiative 2009-2010 Summary: 
Conflict Resolution and Violence Prevention at Garcia Middle School, 2010)  

• Delinquency prevention and youth violence prevention should be extended to more 
students; Drug education and character education should be extended through classroom 
health education classes as considerable numbers of disciplinary students have drug 
involvement.  (Alternative Education/Placement Group, AISD Connecting the Dots 
Workshop, Sept. 2011) 

• The evidence based Aggression Replacement Training Program used by Council on At-
Risk Youth demonstrates that students completing the program show statistically 
significant decreases in overall numbers of disciplinary reports, overall numbers of 
serious abusive, aggressive and assaultive disciplinary reports, overall numbers of 
disciplinary actions by school authorities along with improvements in school attendance 
rates.  (Forrest Novy and Laura McFarland, The Council on At-Risk Youth’s Aggression 
Replacement Training Program: Principles, Practices and Outcomes 2009-2010 School 
Year, 2011) 

State Data 

• Analysis of school age (10-20) youth arrest rates for the last decade in Texas show an 
average of 343,000 arrests annually, with 340,454 arrests occurring during 2008. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



59 | P a g e  
 

(Council on At-Risk Youth, Arrests for School Age Youth for Index and Non-Index 
Crimes From 1999 through 2008 in the State of Texas, 2009)  

• A continuum exists leading from school based youthful misbehavior to involvement in 
the juvenile justice system and ultimately the adult penal system. (Deborah Lightsey, 
Texas Appleseed, Texas School-to-Prison Pipeline: Dropout to Incarceration, 2007)   

• A study of nearly 1 million students for six years from 7th through 12th grade found that 
“nearly half of those students who were disciplined 11 or more times were in contact with 
the juvenile justice system. In contrast, 2% of the students who had no school disciplinary 
actions were in contact with the juvenile justice system.” (Justice Center of the Council 
of State Governments, Breaking Schools’ Rules, 2011)   

• Contact with the justice system predominantly occurs because youth have a discipline 
history at school, are male, are not excelling academically, are economically 
disadvantaged, or have an emotional or learning disability. (TA&M University Public 
Policy Research Institute, The Study of Minority Over-Representation in the Texas 
Juvenile Justice System, 2006) 

 
National Data 

• More than one in seven of the students in the school disciplinary system can be expected 
to be in the juvenile justice system the next school year. (Council of State Governments 
and Public Policy Research Institute. Breaking Schools Rules’, July 2011) 

• Sixty percent of middle school youth who are bullies can be expected to have at least one 
criminal court adjudication by age 24; 40% of that same group can be expected to have 
three criminal court convictions by age 24”. (James Allen Fox and Delbert Elliot, Fight 
Crime: Invest in Kids, Bully prevention is Crime Prevention, 2003).  

• Failing to invest in children and youth triggers substantial economic, social and political 
costs resulting from negative outcomes including school dropout, poor labor market 
entry, risky sexual behaviors, substance abuse and crime and violence. Losses are figured 
into the billions each year. (United Nations, Social. Year of Youth, 2011) 

• Juvenile justice systems are more likely to exacerbate delinquency than cure it, especially 
when young people are incarcerated or placed into group treatment programs-the more 
deeply involved a boy got with the juvenile justice system, the more likely he was to get 
arrested as an adult. (Jeffery Butts, John J. College of Criminal Justice, In Juvenile 
Justice Care, Boys Get Worse, 2010.) 

 

Additional Supporting Data for the Education Section 
School-based mental health services are provided by a myriad of professionals to include 
counselors, psychologists, social workers, marriage, therapists and psychiatrists. Their services 
include prevention-focused activities to create a safe, healthy school environment; selective 
interventions with individual students or groups whose circumstances place them at higher risk 
for emotional or behavioral health problems; and diagnosis and treatment of individual students 
with specific health (medical/mental) needs.  

Research has shown that school mental health programs greatly improve educational outcomes 
by decreasing absences, decreasing discipline referrals, and improving test scores. Citing this 
evidence, the President’s New Freedom Commission on Mental Health 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



60 | P a g e  
 

(http://govinfo.library.unt.edu/mentalhealthcommission/reports/reports.htm)  recommends that 
schools work collaboratively with families and mental health providers to develop, evaluate, and 
disseminate effective approaches for providing mental health services and supports to children 
and youth in schools along a critical continuum of care in America (Hogan MF, et al. (2003). 
New Freedom Commission on Mental Health Achieving the Promise: Transforming Mental 
Health Care). 

National Data 

• One-quarter to one-third of young children are perceived as not being ready to succeed in 
school, with many affected by social and emotional issues (U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services. Mental Health: A Report of the Surgeon General, 1999) 

• Nationally, over 20%t of youth experience a diagnosable mental health problem (Ibid.) 
• One in five children has a diagnosable mental disorder (New Freedom Commission on 

Mental Health. (2003). Achieving the promise: Transforming mental health care in 
America. Final report (DHHS Pub. No. SMA-03-3832). Rockville, MD: U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration) 

o One in 10 youth has serious mental health problems that are severe enough to 
impair how they function at home, school, or in the community. (Ibid.) 

o The onset of major mental illness may occur as early as 7 to 11 years old (Kessler, 
R. C.; Beglund, P.; Demler, O.; Jin, R.; & Walters, E. E. (2005). Lifetime 
prevalence and the age-of-onset distributions of DSM-IV disorders in the National 
Comorbidity Survey Replication. Archives of General Psychiatry, 62(6), pp. 593-
602) 

• Twenty-one percent of low-income children and youth ages 6-17 have mental health 
problems have mental problems. (Howell, E. (2004). Access to children’s mental health 
services under Medicaid and SCHIP. Washington, D.C.: Urban Institute.) 

• In 2000, there were 70.4 million children 17 or under in the US (26 percent of the 
population). Sixty-four percent were White, non-Hispanic; 16% Hispanic; 15% African-
American; 4% Asian-Pacific; and 1% American Indian/Alaskan Native. (US DHHS. 
Federal Interagency Forum on Child and Family Statistics. America’s Children: Key 
National Indicators of Well- Being, 2001; www.childstats.gov/ac2001) 

• Of the population ages 9-17, an estimated 21% experienced the signs and symptoms of a 
DSM-IV disorder during the course of a year, 11% experienced significant impairment, 
and 5% experienced extreme functional impairment. (US DHHS. Mental Health: A 
Report of the Surgeon General, Executive Summary. Rockville, MD: U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration, Center for Mental Health Services, NIH, NIMH, 1999) 

• Seventy-five to 80% of children and youth in need of mental health services do not 
receive them. (Kataoka, S.; Zhang, L.; & Wells, K. (2002). Unmet need for mental health 
care among U.S. children: Variation by ethnicity and insurance status. American Journal 
of Psychiatry, 159(9), pp. 1548-1555).  This reinforces the finds of RAND Health 
Research Highlights: Mental Health Care for Youth, 2001. 

• Use of psychotropic medication for children and youth has increased sharply with more 
than $1 billion spent in 1998 for these medications. Stimulants and antidepressants 
account for about two thirds of the bill. (Ibid.) 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



61 | P a g e  
 

• Nearly 60 percent of the 2.2 million adolescents who reported a major depressive episode 
in the past year did not receive treatment. (Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services. 
“Depression Among Adolescents.” The HSDUH Report. Accessed from 
http://oas.samhsa.gov/2k5/youthDepression/youthDepression.htm May 29, 2005) 

• Untreated mental illness can result in a lack of vocational success, substance abuse, 
violence and even suicide. (The National Institute for Healthcare Management Research 
and Education Foundation. “Children’s Mental Health: An Overview and Key 
Considerations for Health System Stakeholders.” NIHCM Foundation Issue Paper, 
February 2005) 

• The dropout rate for students with severe emotional and behavioral problems is nearly 
two times higher than it is for other students, (Lehr, C.A.; Johnson, D.R., et. al. “Essential 
Tools: Increasing Rates of School Completion: Moving From Policy and Research to 
Practice.” Institute on Community Integration, National Center on Secondary Education. 
2004) 

• Without proper identification and preparation, students may 
o Age out and leave school without knowing how to seek and obtain educational 

alternatives such as the GED or EDP, 
o Become frustrated at their situation and drop out of school before aging out, and  
o Lack critical knowledge, motivation, and skills needed to be productive members 

of society.  

 
National Statistics 
 

• In October 2008, approximately 3.0 million 16- through 24-year-olds were not enrolled in 
high school and had not earned a high school diploma or alternative credential. These 
status dropouts accounted for 8% of the 38 million non-institutionalized, civilian 16- 
through 24-year-olds living in the United States. (Chris Chapman, Jennifer Laird, 
Angeline KewalRamani, “Trends in High School Dropout and Completion Rates in the 
United States: 1972–2008: Compendium Report, December 2010; U.S. Department of 
Education; 2010) 

• Males ages 16–24 had higher status dropout rates than females in 2008 (8.5% vs. 7.5%) 
(Ibid.) 

• In 2008, the Northeast had the lowest status dropout rates (5.6%) and the South and the 
West had the highest (8.8% and 9.1%, respectively) (Ibid.) 

• In 2008, some 35.9% of 16- through 24-year-olds lived in the South, while 39.6% of all 
status dropouts lived there (Ibid.) 

• Daily marijuana use increased among 8th, 10th, and 12th graders from 2009 to 2010. 
Among 12th graders ,it was at its highest point since the early 1980s at 6.1%, 

• Most measures of marijuana use increased among 8th graders between 2009 and 2010 
(past year, past month, and daily), paralleling softening attitudes for the last 2 years about 
the risk of using marijuana. 

• In 2010, 21.4% of high school seniors used marijuana in the past 30 days, while 19.2%t 
smoked cigarettes. 

• Marijuana use is now ahead of cigarette smoking on some measures. 
• Among 12th graders, past year nonmedical use of Vicodin decreased from 9.7% to 8%. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



62 | P a g e  
 

• The use of OxyContin remains unchanged across the three grades and has increased in 
10th graders over the past 5 years.  

• Nonmedical use of Adderall and over-the-counter cough and cold medicines among 12th 
graders remains high at 6.5% and 6.6%, respectively. 

• From 2009 to 2010, lifetime use of ecstasy among 8th graders increased from 2.2% to 
3.3%, past year use from 1.3% to 2.4%, and current use 0.6% to 1.1%. 

• In 2009, an estimated 30.2 million people (12%) aged 12 or older reported driving under 
the influence of alcohol at least once in the past year. 

• The Drug Abuse Warning Network (DAWN) estimates that of the 2.1 million drug abuse 
visits (Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Center for 
Behavioral Health Statistics and Quality (formerly the Office of Applied Studies). The 
DAWN Report: Highlights of the 2009 Drug Abuse Warning Network (DAWN) 
Findings on Drug-Related Emergency Department Visits. Rockville, MD, December 28, 
2010. Available at: http://www.oas.samhsa.gov/2k10/DAWN034/EDHighlights.htm) 

o 27.1% involved nonmedical use of pharmaceuticals (i.e., prescription or OTC 
medications, dietary supplements) (Ibid.), 

o 21.2% involved illicit drugs (Ibid.), 
o 14.3% involved alcohol, in combination with other drugs (Ibid.), and  
o For patients aged 20 or younger, ED visits resulting from nonmedical use of 

pharmaceuticals increased 45.4% between 2004 and 2009 (116,644 and 169,589 
visits, respectively). Among patients aged 21 or older, there was an increase of 
111%. (Ibid.) 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



63 | P a g e  
 

Key findings from the Travis County 2011-13 Consolidated Plan, written by the Travis County 
Health and Human Services, indicate that Travis County has experienced rapid population 
growth since 1990. Between 1990 and 2010, the Travis County net population growth was 78%. 
In addition, this plan demonstrates that 

• Eighty-three percent of the County’s population lives in incorporated towns, or cities. An 
estimated 178,895 people, or 17% of the County population, live in unincorporated areas 
of the county.  

• The population of Travis County, as a whole, is projected to increase over the next thirty 
years.  

• The majority of Travis County residents identify as non-Hispanic White. An increasing 
share of the population identifies as Hispanic.  

• The most commonly spoken languages in Travis County are English and Spanish.  
• More than half of Travis County’s population is composed of working age individuals 

ages 18 to 64.  
• The top five industries are responsible for employing most of Travis County’s residents: 

1. Retail Trade; 2. Educational Services; 3. Professional, Scientific and Technical 
Services; 4. Health Care and Social Assistance and 5. Construction. 

• The median household income in Travis County has consistently exceeded that of the 
U.S. and Texas. However, the reported median income in Travis County has fallen by 
nearly 4% from the 2008 income level.    

• Approximately, fifteen percent of Travis County residents, or 144,055 people are living 
in poverty.  Hispanic/Latino and Black/African American children under five years of 
age have some of the highest poverty rates in Travis County, at 37% and 44% 
respectively. 

 

       Poverty statistics (2009 Statistics from the U.S. Census Bureau website) 

Subject Total 
Below 
poverty 
level 

Percent 
below 
poverty 
level 

Population for whom poverty 
status is determined 949,167 144,055 15.2% 

AGE 

Under 18 years 228,499 47,159 20.6% 

Related children under 18 years 227,546 46,503 20.4% 

18 to 64 years 658,764 91,684 13.9% 

65 years and over 61,904 5,212 8.4% 

  

SEX 

Male 489,987 67,512 13.8% 

Female 459,180 76,543 16.7% 

  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



64 | P a g e  
 

Subject Total 
Below 
poverty 
level 

Percent 
below 
poverty 
level 

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN 

One race 928,925 141,631 15.2% 

White 640,107 77,191 12.1% 

Black or African American 78,946 18,330 23.2% 

American Indian and Alaska 
Native 3,936 995 25.3% 

Asian 49,599 6,889 13.9% 

Native Hawaiian and Other 
Pacific Islander 845 28 3.3% 

Some other race 155,492 38,198 24.6% 

Two or more races 20,242 2,424 12.0% 

  

Hispanic or Latino origin 
(of any race) 309,090 71,880 23.3% 

White alone, not Hispanic 
or Latino 495,722 45,736 9.2% 

 

Employment statistics (2009 Statistics from the U.S. Census Bureau website) 

Subject Total In labor 
force Employed Unemployment 

Rate 

Population 16 years and over 757,653 73.5% 69.0% 6.0% 

AGE 

16 to 19 years 48,283 39.0% 31.1% 20.1% 

20 to 24 years 76,659 74.4% 67.5% 9.1% 

25 to 44 years 366,009 85.8% 81.1% 5.3% 

45 to 54 years 123,110 82.7% 78.6% 4.9% 

55 to 64 years 78,041 67.7% 65.0% 3.8% 

65 to 74 years 35,521 28.9% 27.3% 5.6% 

75 years and over 30,030 6.1% 5.9% 3.1% 

  

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN 

One race 744,874 73.4% 69.0% 5.9% 

White 527,828 73.2% 69.4% 5.0% 

Black or African American 61,650 70.9% 62.3% 11.7% 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



65 | P a g e  
 

Subject Total In labor 
force Employed Unemployment 

Rate 

American Indian and Alaska 
Native 3,197 71.0% 67.0% 5.6% 

Asian 41,036 67.9% 64.1% 5.5% 

Native Hawaiian and Other 
Pacific Islander 702 75.1% 68.2% 0.0% 

Some other race 110,461 78.4% 72.6% 7.3% 

Two or more races 12,779 75.5% 68.2% 9.5% 

  

Hispanic or Latino origin 
(of any race) 219,467 75.9% 70.5% 7.0% 

White alone, not Hispanic 
or Latino 424,179 73.1% 69.6% 4.6% 

  

Population 20 to 64 years 643,819 81.7% 77.0% 5.5% 

SEX 

Male 337,987 88.8% 84.1% 5.0% 

Female 305,832 73.8% 69.3% 6.1% 

With own children under 6 
years 56,363 60.9% 54.5% 10.5% 

 

EDUCATION STATISTICS AND DEMOGRAPHICS 
 

  Education statistics (2009 Statistics from the U.S. Census Bureau website) 
Subject Total Male Female 

Population 18 to 24 years 102,795 53,575 49,220 

Less than high school graduate 17.2% 20.7% 13.4% 

High school graduate (includes 
equivalency) 24.6% 26.5% 22.4% 

Some college or associate's degree 45.4% 43.3% 47.7% 

Bachelor's degree or higher 12.8% 9.4% 16.4% 

  

Population 25 years and over 632,711 325,942 306,769 

Less than 9th grade 7.5% 8.3% 6.7% 

9th to 12th grade, no diploma 6.7% 7.1% 6.3% 

High school graduate (includes 17.7% 17.3% 18.2% 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



66 | P a g e  
 

Subject Total Male Female 

equivalency) 

Some college, no degree 19.3% 18.4% 20.4% 

Associate's degree 5.6% 5.6% 5.6% 

Bachelor's degree 27.7% 27.2% 28.1% 

Graduate or professional degree 15.4% 16.1% 14.7% 

  

Percent high school graduate or 
higher 85.7% 84.6% 87.0% 

Percent bachelor's degree or 
higher 43.1% 43.3% 42.8% 

  

Population 25 to 34 years 218,162 116,625 101,537 

High school graduate or higher 85.4% 83.0% 88.2% 

Bachelor's degree or higher 43.7% 40.1% 47.8% 

  

Population 35 to 44 years 147,847 79,393 68,454 

High school graduate or higher 86.3% 85.0% 87.7% 

Bachelor's degree or higher 45.7% 45.1% 46.4% 

  

Population 45 to 64 years 201,151 101,816 99,335 

High school graduate or higher 88.0% 87.2% 88.9% 

Bachelor's degree or higher 43.9% 45.6% 42.1% 

  

Population 65 years and over 65,551 28,108 37,443 

High school graduate or higher 78.6% 80.8% 77.0% 

Bachelor's degree or higher 32.9% 43.5% 24.9% 

(2009 Statistics from the U.S. Census Bureau website) 

 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



,\'1 OF 1'li ::.M Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

l!: OF't 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Pete Baldwin, 974-0472 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Danny Hobby, Emergency 
Services 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and Take Appropriate Action on 
Approving the Office of Emergency Management's (OEM) Assistant 
Emergency Management Coordinator position serve as the Donation 
Coordinator during times of disaster. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
OEM is a recipient of the Emergency Management Performance Grant 
(EMPG) administered by the State of Texas. To meet EMPG 
requirements, OEM must maintain the Emergency Operations Plan 
and all 22 functional Annexes for Travis County. Annex T, Donations 
Management, is one of the required Annexes to keep updated, and as 
part of this Annex, it requires that a Donations Coordinator be 
identified by letter and signed by the Travis County Judge. OEM has 
selected the Assistant Emergency Management Coordinator's 
position to serve in this capacity when disaster situations warrant the 
need. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Department of Emergency Services recommends approval of the 
Assistant Emergency Management Coordinator's position to serve as 
the Donation Coordinator during times of disaster. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
This will allow OEM the opportunity to have closer ties and better 
coordination in donation management operations with the Volunteer 
Organizations Active in Disaster (VOAD's) and other Non-Profit 
Agencies throughout Travis County during times of Disaster. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
There are no fiscal impacts to Travis County. 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Pete Baldwin, 974-0472 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 7
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
DONATIONS COORDINATOR 

 
 LETTER OF APPOINTMENT 

 
 

 
 
Effective this date, I have appointed the Assistant Emergency Management Coordinator 
as the Donations Coordinator (DC) for Travis County.  The above-designated individual 
will assist in the coordination of the donations management program for Travis County. 
 
The DC will provide guidance and direction to the functions of Travis County’s donations 
management program which are activated during and after a major emergency or 
disaster and fall under the jurisdiction of Travis County. 
 
The DC will additionally work closely and collaborate with all recognized voluntary 
agencies in Travis County that will be helping victims during and after a disaster. 
 
This appointment will remain in force until terminated by either party. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                   
Samuel T. Biscoe                                                                                            Date 
Travis County Judge         
  

 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

DOC ID: 5435 Page 1

Meeting Date: 12/6/2011, 9:00 AM, Voting Session
Prepared By: George Monnat, Purchasing, 854-9778
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent
Sponsors: Judge Biscoe

AGENDA LANGUAGE:
A. APPROVE ORDER EXEMPTING THE 
PURCHASE OF BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM FROM 
COMPUTROLS, INC. FROM THE COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT 
PROCESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 262.024 (a) (2) OF THE COUNTY 
PURCHASING ACT.    B. APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF A BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM FROM 
COMPUTROLS, INC AND AUTHORIZE COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 
TO SIGN.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
NOT APPLICABLE

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
Purchasing Bonnie Floyd Completed 11/23/2011 9:01 AM
Purchasing Cyd Grimes Completed 11/30/2011 4:19 PM
Purchasing Admin Support Group Pending
Commissioners Court Cheryl Aker Pending

Item 8
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



December 6, 2011

TO: Commissioners Court
Travis County, Texas

ACQUISITION OF A BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM FOR SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE

I certify that the building automation system from the manufacturer and installer/servicer
(Computrols) for the Sheriff’s Office is necessary to preserve or protect the public health 
or safety of the residents of the county, purchase pursuant to V.T.C.A. Local Government 
Code 262.024(a)(2).

This statement is submitted pursuant to V.T.C.A. Local Government Code 262.024 and is 
to be entered into the Commissioners Court minutes.

CYD GRIMES, C.P.M.
COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

APPROVED   (   )                        DISAPPROVED  (   )

BY COMMISSIONERS COURT ON:  __________________________
  (DATE)

 ____________________________________
 (COUNTY JUDGE)

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: 12/6/2011
Prepared By/Phone Number: George Monnat, 854-9778
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  

A. APPROVE ORDER EXEMPTING THE PURCHASE OF 
BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM FROM COMPUTROLS, INC.
FROM THE COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCESS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 262.024 (a) (2) OF THE COUNTY 
PURCHASING ACT.  

B. APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM FROM COMPUTROLS, INC
AND AUTHORIZE COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT TO SIGN.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.

The Travis County Sheriff’s Office has requested this exemption for the 
purpose of standardizing on the Computrols Building Automation 
System product in the Travis County Correctional Complex and to 
further utilize this system by purchasing and installing it in Building 130 
of the Complex.  The Computrols product (consisting of both hardware 
and software items) is presently being utilized in seven buildings within 
the Complex, having been purchased in conjunction with earlier 
construction and build-outs, such as with the new Building 12. This 
system provides for a prompt notification of critical equipment status 
prior to being out of compliance with Jail Standards.  Computrols, Inc.  
likewise is the provider of software maintenance and support.

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount: $126,858.46
Contract Type: Purchase Order
Contract Period: N/A

Ø Special Contract Considerations:  

 Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified.
 Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified.
 Comments:  

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 535834 and 522045
 Funding Account(s): 521-3735-804-8102; 001-3735-583-5002
 Comments:

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



ORDER EXEMPTING
PURCHASE OF BUILDING AUTOMATION SYSTEM

FROM REQUIREMENTS OF THE COUNTY PURCHASING ACT

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas has received 
justification from the Travis County Sheriff’s Office in accordance with TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE, 262.024 (a) (2), and

WHEREAS, the Travis County Sheriff’s Office has need of additional Building 
Automation Control Capability in Building 130 at the Travis County Correctional Complex, 
and

WHERAS, the Travis County Sheriff’s Office currently has the Computrols Building 
Automation System installed and operating in seven buildings within the Complex, and

WHERAS, the County desires to utilize the Computrols system as its standard, and

WHEREAS, the County desires to purchase the building automated system from the 
original producer of the system, Computrols, Inc., and

WHEREAS, the purchase of the building automation system Computrols is necessary to 
maintaining Jail Standards and to preserving or protecting the public health or safety of the 
residents of the county,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas hereby orders 
that the purchase of an Building Automation System for Travis County from Computrols, 
Inc. is exempted from the requirements of County Purchasing Act section 262.023 pursuant 
to TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE ANN., section 262.024 (a) (2), as these items 
are needed to preserve or protect the public health or safety of the residents of the county.

Signed and entered this____day of__________, 2011.

____________________________________
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge

Travis County, Texas

______________________ ________________________
Ron Davis Sarah Eckhart
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Commissioner, Precinct 2

_____________________ ________________________
Karen Huber Margaret Gomez
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Commissioner, Precinct 4.

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date:  December 6, 2011
Prepared By/Phone Number: Loren Breland, 854-4854  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for guardrail and 
bridgerail installation, removal and replacement, IFB No. B120020LD, 
to the low bidder, H and H Fence.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.

This contract provides guardrail and bridgerail installation, removal and 
replacement for TNR.

On October 24, 2010 IFB #B120020LD was issued to 28 vendors.  Two 
bids were received on November 14, 2011.  TNR has reviewed the bids 
and recommends award to the lowest bidder, H and H Fence.

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $112,674.75 has 
been spent against this requirement.

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount:  Estimated quantity, as needed basis.
Contract Type:  Term
Contract Period:  December 21, 2011 – December 20, 2012

Ø Solicitation-Related Information:

Solicitations Sent:  28 Responses Received:  2
HUB Information: % HUB Subcontractor:

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 9
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Ø Special Contract Considerations:  

 Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified.
 Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified.
 Comments:  

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 
 Funding Account(s):  099-4941-621-5010
 Comments:  Estimated quantity, department enters requisitions on 

an as needed basis.

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



SUBJECT: Contract Award
Guardrail and Bridgerail Installation — Solicitation B12002OLD

TNR recommends that the above referenced solicitation be awarded to the overall low bidder, H&H Fence
Co.

The commodity/sub-commodity code for this contract is 988/073. The budget line item number is 099-494 1-
621-5010.

If you need additional information, please contact Christina Jensen at 854-7670.

c7CJ:SMM:cj
91’ Contract File

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE

.4.—

f2

411 West 13th Street
Executive Office Building, 1 1th Floor
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512) 854-4697

November 17, 2011

MEMORANDUM

TO:

FROM:

Cycl, Grimes,ou’ Purchasing Agent
7 “ /.‘Th i / 1)

L ‘Jfl7__

Steven M. Manil1.a’Cdünty Executive

Li .:z

-,-o -L’

—

‘- .1
,

GO

C)1J3
( r-

_i c_,

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid 8120020-LD

Bid Tabulation Packet
for

Solicitation B120020-LD

GUARDRAIL AND BRIDGERAIL INSTALLATION,
REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

Travis County

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p. 1

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid B120020-LD

Bid #B120020-LD - GUARDRAIL AND BRIDGERAIL INSTALLATION,
REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

Creation Date Oct 5, 2011

Start Date Oct 24, 2011 9:13:42 AM CDT

End Date Nov 14, 2011 2:00:00 PM CST

Awarded Date Not Yet Awarded

Supplier Unit Price
H&I-l Fence Co. lFirst Offer - $20.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B120020-LD--01-01 1 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE, TIMBER POSTS, EAST OF IH-35, NEW

1ST Contractino. Inc. First Offer- $24.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit I Total Price I Attch. Docs
1500/ linear foot $31,470.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

1500/linearfooti $36,000.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD—01-02 2 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE, TIM BER POSTS, WEST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price
HH Fence Co IFirst Offer - $20.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
TST Contract-inn. Inc. First Offer - $29.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. I Docs
2000 / linear foot I $41,960.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

2000 / linear foot I $58,000.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

3 - CURVED METAL BEAM GUARD FEI
Supplier Unit Price

—

— I,

H&N Fence Co. First Offer - $32.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

sI Cnntractinn Inc IFirstOffer- $38.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B120020-LD--01-04 4 - CURVED METAL BEAM GUARD FE
Supplier Unit Price

H&H Fence Co. First Offer- $34.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI Inc. First Offer -

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qtv/Unit Total Prce I Attch. I Docs
———

15/linear foot $480.00 I V
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:
15/linear foot $570.00 V

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

MCE, TIMBER POSTS, WEST OF IH-35, NEW
Qtv/Unit Total PricejAttch. Docs— —

15 I linear foot $510.00 V
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

15/linearfoot I $645.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Supplier I- Unit Price
H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $23.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI ( nf.-,Hr. Inc. IFirst Offer - $40.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B120020-LD--01-06 6 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE, METAL POSTS, WEST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $26.98 15 / linear foot $404.70 V
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:

B120020-LD--01-03 ICE, TIMBER POSTS, EAST OF IH-35, NEW

B120020-LD--01-05 5 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE, MEl AL POSTS, EAST OF IH-35, NEW
Qty/Unit

50 / linear foot

Total Price I Attch. I Docs

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

$1,199.00

50/linearfoot I

V

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

$2,000.00 V

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p.2

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid B120020-LD

lAgency Notes: Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--01-07 7 - CURVED METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE, METAL POSTS, EAST OF IH-35, NEW -

Supplier Unit Price
H&H Fence Co. First Offer- $35.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
tST Contractina. Inc. First Offer - $48.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price 1 Attch. Docs
15/ linear foot $539.70 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

15/linear foot $720.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD—01-08 8 - CURVED METAL BEAM GUARD FE

B120020-LD--01-09 9 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE TRANSITION, EAST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price

—

—

H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $650.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI Cnnfrrtinn Tar IFirst Offer - $2,000.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B120020-LD--01-10 10 - METAL BEAM GUARD FENCE TRAN
Supplier Unit Price

H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $790.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI Contracting. Inc. IFirst Offer - $2,300.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Oty/ Un it Total Price Attch. Docs
———

5 / each $3,250.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5 / each $10,000.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

ITION, WEST OF IH-35, NEW

Otv/Unit Total Price I Attch. Docs
——. I I

5 / each $3,950.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5/each I $11,500.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Supplier Unit Price
I-IR,H Fence Cn First Offer- $37.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
TçT Cantrartirin Tnr FirstOffer- $48.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

ICE, METAL POSTS, WEST OF IH’-35, NEW

Qty/Un it Total Price I Attch. Docs
15 / linear foot I $569.70 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

15 / linear foot I $720.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--01-11 11 - TERMINAL ANCHOR SECTION. TIMBER POSTS, EAST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price

ISI f’” Inc. First Offer - $450.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
H&l-1 Fence Co. First Offer - $748.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/ Un it Total Price Attch.j Docs
10/each $4,500.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10 / each I $7,480.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--01-12 12 - TERMINAL ANCHOR SECTION, TIMBER POSTS, WEST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unlt Total Price Attch. Docs

ISI Contracting. Inc. JjFirst Offer - $450.00 10 / each $4,500.00 j y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $748.00 10/ each I $7,480.00 I Y

ISI Contracting. Inc. First Offer - $45.00 15 / linear foot $675.00 I y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: —____________ Supplier Notes:

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PMCST BidSync, LLC p. 3

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid B120020-LD

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-13 13- SINGLE GUARDRAIL TERMINAL, TYPE I, EAST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier

—______

Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
ISI Contracting, Inc. First Offer - $1,900.00 10 / each $19,000.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
H&H Fence Co. 1 First Offer - $1,948.00 10 / each $19,480.00 I Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-14 14 - SINGLE GUARDRAIL TERMINAL, TYPE I, WEST OF IH-35, NEW
Supplier Unit Price
HR1H Fnrc Co lFirst Offer - $1,948.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
TST (nrit-rrtinci. mr. First Offer - $2,100.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/ Un it Total Price I Attch.I Docs
10 / each $19,480.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10 / each $21,000.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-15

Qty/Unit Total Price I Attch. I Docs

— —

50/linearfoot I $3,750.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

50 I linear foot I $4,000.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

15 - TRAFFIC RAIL TYPE T1O1, NEW

Supplier Unit Price
HH Fenr Cci First Offer- $75.00

Product Code:
Agency Notes:
mct Cnntrrtinci Tnr FirstOffer- $80.00

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

J

I

B120020-LD--O1.-16 16 - LOW-FILL CULVERT POST OR TRAFFIC RAIL POST, NEW

Supplier Unit Price
mcm Cnntr,rhnci Inc I First Offer- $150.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
F-Rd-1 Fnr Cci I First Offer - $249.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price I Attch. Docs

— —

2 / each $300.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

2 / each $498.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-17 17 - CORING OF CONCRETE

Suuplier Unit Price
.

. I,

H&H Fence Co. I FirstOffer- $100.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI (nnfrr+inn Inc. IFirst Offer - $1,500.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Otv/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
———

10 I each $1.000.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Surnlier Notes:

10? each $15,000.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Surnlier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-18 18 - REMOVING RAIL ELEMENTS

Supplier

ISI Cn ,‘,4n,, Inc.
Unit Price

I FirstOffer- $2.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
H&H Fence Co. I IFIrst Offer - $11.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price

150/linearfoot I $300.00

Attch. I Docs

Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

150/linearfoot I $1,797.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p.4

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid B120020-LD

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B 12002O-LD--O1-21 21A -REMOVING TERMINAL ANCHOR SECTIONS
-

coajng]0ff
QtvIunit Total Price Attch. Ds
8/each $800.00 Y

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Supplier NotesAgency No
i72,480ZLI

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
[Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Supplier Unit Price 1 Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. i Docs
tStContractiflQ Inc. rst Offer - $7.00 150 / linear foot $1,050.00 V
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:

Supplier NotesAgency Not

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Supplier Unit Price Qty/U
Inc. First Offer $7.00

Supplier Product Code:
Agency No
HienceCOEZ1frt01E9

Supplier Notes:
150 / linear foot I $1,647.00 I

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

TRAFFIC RAIL (TiOl) ELEMENT, MATERIALS ONLY01 24

Supplier Product Code:Product Co
Agency Notes Supplier Not

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

RAIL (TiOl) ELEMENT,B120020

p. 5

PriceAch.DOCS

B120020- POSTS (CONCRETE)

u o e
s120.OOL:i I

FirstOffer- $12.00 10/each

d d

H&H Fence

Product Code: Supplier Pro
Supplier Notes:

.

Agency No

10/each $15000
Supplier Product Code
SupplierNoteS

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync LLC

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid 8120020-LD

H&H Fence Co. IiFirstoffer- $15.00 150/linearfoot $2,250.00 I I

B120020-LD--O1-26 24A - INSTALL TIMBER POSTS, EAS

Supplier Unit Price
TT Contrartinci. Inc. First Offer - $22.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
HRiH Fnc Cci. First Offer- $23.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

OF IH-35, MATERIALS ONLY

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10/ each $239.80 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Qty/Unit

10/each
Total Price Attch. I Docs

$220.00 I Y

B120020-LD--O1-27 24B - INSTALL TIMBER POSTS, EAS1

Supplier Unit Price
icr Contraction inc First Offer- $12.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
I-l-I F,nrp Co

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

First Offer- $20.00

OF IH-35, LABOR ONLY --

Otv/Unit
10 / each

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Total Price Attch. Docs
$120.00 I Y

10 / each $200.00] I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1.-28 25A - INSTALL TIMBER POSTS, WES

Supplier Unit Price
—

— I

ISI Cnnf-rarHnri Inc. IFirst Offer - $22.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

H&H Fence Co. IFirst Offer - $23.98
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

r OF IH-35. MATERIALS ONLY

Otv/Unit Total Price j Attch. Docs———

10 / each $220.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10/each I $239.80 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-29 258 - INSTALL TIMBER POSTS, WES r OF IH-35, LABOR ONLY
Supplier Unit Price

ISI C nFr,-+ir.o Inc. I First Offer - $15.00

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

H&N Fence Co. FirstOffer- $20.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
10 / each $150.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10 / each $200.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1.-30 26A - INSTALL LOW-FILL CULVERT POST OR TRAFFIC RAIL POST, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

ISI Contracting, Inc. First Offer - $100.00 2 / each $200.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
H&H Fence Co. llFirst Offer - $120.00 2 / each $240.00 T I “
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-33. 26B - INSTALL LOW-FILL CULVERT POST OR TRAFFIC RAIL POST, LABOR ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

ISI Contracting. Inc. First Offer - $50.00 2 / each $100.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
ISI Inc. First Offer - $18.00 150 / linear foot $2,700.00 I I
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

V

V

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p.6

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid 6120020-LD

H&H Fence Co. FirstOffer- $120.00 2/each $240.00 j

B120020-LD--O1-32 27A - INSTALL TRANSITION RAIL, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price

ISI Contractina. Inc. First Offer- $65.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
H&H Fence Co. First Offer- $75.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs
5 / linear foot $325.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5/linearfoot I $375.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-33 27B - INSTALL TRANSITION RAIL, I ABOR ONLY
Supplier Unit Price

I-IRM Fence Cn I IFirst Offer - $40.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
T Contrctinn Tnr I First Offer - $48.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

— —

5 / linear foot $200.00 I Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5/linearfoot I $240.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Unit Price

First Offer - $100.00

Unit Price

FirstOffer- $50.00

First Offer - $110.00

Qty/Unit Total Price I Attch. Docs
—

5 / each $375.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5 / each $500.00 I- Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

FR, LABOR ONLY

Otv/Unit Total Price I Attch. Docs
——. I

5 / each $250.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

5 / each I $550.00] Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-36 29A - INSTALL TIMBER SPACER BLOCK, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

151 Contracting, Inc First Offer - $10.00 25 / each $250.00 y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
H&H Fence Co I First Offer - $11.98 25 / each $299.50 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: -

B120020-LD--O1-37 29B - INSTALL TIMBER SPACER BLOCK, LABOR ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

ISI Contracting. Inc. First Offer - $7.00 25 / each $175.00 V
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $10.00 25 / each $250.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Supplier

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

ISI Contracting, Inc. I First Offer - $75.00

B120020-LD--O1-34 28A - INSTALL TERMINAL CONNECTOR, MATERIALS ONLY

H&H Fence Co.

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Supplier

B120020-LD—O1-35 28B - INSTALL TERMINAL CONNECTC

ISI 1’”” Inc.

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

—.-.——

H&H Fence Co.

Product Code:
Agency Notes:

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p.7

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid 8120020-LD

B120020-LD—O1-38 30A - INSTALL STEEL SPACER BLOCK, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

H&H Fence Co. FirstOffer- $15.00 10/each $150.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
ISI Contracting. Inc. First Offer - $25.00 10 / each $250.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-39 30B - INSTALL STEEL SPACER BLOCK, LABOR ONLY
Supplier Unit Price
II (-.-‘+“ Inc. I First Offer - $7.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
H&H Fnr Co. First Offer - $10.00

Qtyf Unit Total Price Attch. I Docs
10 / each $70.00 Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

10/each $100.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-40 31A - REPAIR SINGLE GUARDRAIL TERMINAL, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price

TST Cnntrrtino. Inc. First Offer - $1,100.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
HRH Fence Co First Offer - $1,598.00 5 / each

Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. I Docs

— —

5 / each $5,500.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

$7,990.00 Y
..

Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Supplier Unit Price
1-IRd-I Fenr Co I First Offer - $500.00
Product Code:
gencv Notes:
IçT Contrrtinn Inc I First Offer - $750.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-42 32A - REPAIR ENERGY ABSORPTION SYSTEMS CRASH CUSHIONS, MATERIALS ONLY
Supplier Unit Price Qty/Unit Total Price Attch. Docs

H&H Fence Co. First Offer - 20.00% 1 / each 20.00% Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
ISI Contracting, Inc. First Offer - 15.00% 1 / each 15.00%J Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Supplier Unit Price
H&H Fence Co. First Offer - $21.00
Product Code:
Agency Notes:
ISI C’” Inc. First Offer - $250.00
Product Code:

I Agency Notes:

B1.20020-LD—O1-41 31B - REPAIR SINGLE GUARDRAIL TERMINAL, LABOR ONLY

Qtv/Unit
5 I each

Total Price I———

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Attch.

$2,500.00 I

5 / each

Docs

Y

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

$3,750.00 Y

B120020-LD--O1-43 32B - REPAIR ENERGY ABSORPTION SYSTEMS CRASH CUSHIONS, LABOR ONLY

Qty/Unit

10 / hour
Total Price

Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

Attch. I
$210.00

Docs

Y

10 / hour $2,500.00 Y
Supplier Product Code:
Supplier Notes:

B120020-LD--O1-44 21B - REMOVE SINGLE GUARDRAIL TERMINAL

I I I I I I

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p.8

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Bid B120020-LD

Supplier Totals

H&H Fence Co. $174,126.20 (44/44 items)
Bid Contact Randy Hamilton Address P0 Box 92802

rhamilton2@austin.rr.com Austin, TX 78709
Ph 512-280-0705

Qualifications SB

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

ISI Contracting. Inc. $222,285.00 (44/44 items)
Bid Contact Mark Browne Address 71.1. Rankin rd

mbrowne©infrastructure-inc.com Houston, TX 77073
Ph 281-233-8030

Qualifications CISV HUB TX

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes;

**

Supplier

H&H Fence Co.

Unit Price Qty/Unit

j First Offer - $300.00 2/ each $600.00 I I Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
ISI Contractino. Inc. First Offer - $500.00 2 / each $1,000.00 Y
Product Code: Supplier Product Code:
Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

Total Price I Attch. Docs

Nov 14, 2011 2:11:09 PM CST BidSync, LLC p. 9

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



GM2 00113
Fiscal Year 2012

Account number
Fund
Department
Division .

Activity basic
Sub activity
Element .

Object

TRAVIS COUNTY
Account Balance Inquiry

99—4941—621.50—10
• . : 099 ROAD & BRIDGE FUND

49 TNR (TRANS & NATRL RESRC)
• . : 41 ROAD & BRIDGE MAINTENANCE
• • : 62 INFRA-ENV SCVS (TRNS&RDS)
• . : 1 TNR (TRANS & NATRL RESRC)
• • : 50 REPR & MTNC-SERVCS PURCHD
• . : 10 REPAIRS - ROADS

11/21/11
10: 39: 51

Original budget
Revised budget
Actual expenditures - current
Actual expenditures - ytd
Unposted expenditures . .

Encumbered amount . .

Unposted encumbrances
Pre-encumbrance amount
Total expenditures & encumbrances:
Unencumbered balance

66, 938
69,487 10/01/2011

.00
9,335.00—

.00
45,175.00

.00

.00
35,840.00
33,647.00

F8Misc inquiry
Fl2Cancel

F5=Encumbrances
F1O=Detail trans

F7=Project data
FllAcct activity list

51. 6%
48.4

F24More keys

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date:  December 6, 2011
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Loren Breland, 854-4854
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve assignment of contract no. 11C00180LD, 
Police Motorcycles, from Beaudry Motors to Big Sky BMW Kawasaki, Inc.

Ø Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes.

Contract no. 11C00180LD was awarded to Beaudry Motors on June 21, 
2011 for 3 police motorcycles for TCSO.  Beaudry Motors is the outfitter 
of the police motorcycles and is contracted with Big Sky BMW Kawasaki 
as the Kawasaki dealer of the motorcycles.  For warranty purposes 
Kawasaki requires the Kawasaki dealer to be named on the purchase 
order. 

This modification to contract no. 11C00180LD will transfer all rights, title 
and interest in contract no. 11C00180LD from Beaudry Motors to Big 
Sky BMW Kawasaki, Inc.

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement.

Ø Contract-Related Information:

Award Amount:  $67,196.13
Contract Type:  One time purchase
Contract Period:  June 21, 2011 – December 21, 2011

Ø Contract Modification Information:

Modification Amount:  N/A
Modification Type:  Assignment  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 10
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week's meeting.

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/854-4205
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language:  Approve Partial Assignment of Contract from 
Unisys Corporation to Burroughs Payment Systems, Inc. for Check 
and Cash Automation Equipment and Related Maintenance of the Tax 
Office Quantum Payment Processing System.

Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes.

In 2008 the Tax Office purchased a new Quantum Series 21300 payment 
processing system from Unisys Corporation.  Travis County has been advised 
that Unisys sold all cash handling products to Burroughs Payment Systems and 
that effective December 7, 2011 Unisys will discontinue to support the 
maintenance of said equipment.  As a result, a partial assignment of contract has
been drafted for Burroughs Payment Systems, Inc. based on the original terms 
and conditions of the Unisys contract.  The annual amount of the Burroughs
contract will be $11,552.40.   

Ø Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $11,847.72 has been 
spent against this requirement.

Ø Contract Modification Information:

Modification Amount: For Burroughs $11,552.30 annually 
Modification Type:   Partial Assignment from Unisys to Burroughs 
Modification Period: Beginning December 8, 2011

Ø Funding Information:
 Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.: 546765
 Funding Account(s): 001-1230-523-5002
 Comments:

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Item 11
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By: Greg Chico, Right-of-Way Manager Phone #: 854-4659 ~ . , 
Division Director/Manager: Steve Manilla, P.E., County Executive J .".'b~~l 

~. ~ .~ ~\ 
Department Head: Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR -?'~" (p: 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the potential sale 
of a 0.092 acre (3,990 square feet) easement area to the Pflugerville Community 
Development Corporation (PCDC), requested and needed for construction of a 
wastewater line to serve property adjacent to the County's Northeast Metropolitan 
Park. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
Please see attachment. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
TNR recommends that any action taken by Travis County officials incorporate 
information received by the County from general public community input, and as 
discussed during the public hearing on this matter to be held in-tl'le-CGmmissioners 
Courtroom on Tuesday, December 6,2011. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Please see attachment. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
$10,000 in proceeds to be paid to Travis County, if easement is sold; no other fiscal 
impact. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
A: copy of Agenda Item backup from November 1, 2011 Commissioners Court 
B: copies of three (3) printed advertisement announcing the Public Hearing -- as 
required by Chapter 26 of the Texas Parks and Wildlife Code -- run in the Austin 
American-Statesman on Sunday, November 13, 2011; Sunday, November 20, 2011; 
and, Sunday, November 27, 2011. 
C: excerpt of minutes from November 1, 2011, wherein the Commissioners Court 
set a Public Hearing for December 6, 2011 to receive community I public input on 
the proposed easement sale. 

Item 12
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: 12/6/11 
Prepared By/Phone Number: (Jim Pautsch Phone #: 854-7689 
Division Director/Manager: Ann owlin ~ 

Department Head: Ste en . Ma la, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 

I 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security 
Agreement with Highland Homes, Austin for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe 
Lane IliA Lot 14 Block K,in Precinct One. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The form of the Cash Security Agreement is from the Standards for Construction of 
Streets and Drainage in Subdivisions that were in place before August 28, 1997. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Highland Homes, Ltd., proposed to use this Cash Security Agreement, as follows: 
Phase "lA, Lot 14, Block K, $780.00, Permit #11-1968, to post sidewalk fiscal where 
the sidewalks have not been completed in this subdivision. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
There are no budgetary and/or fiscal impacts as this is fiscal posted for a 
development. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Cash Security Agreement, Map of lot. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Engineering Svcs Div TNR 854-7561 

~ Dir 

Stacey Scheffel 00 On-Site Sewage Fac TNR 854-7565 
Program Mgr 

Item 13
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: 12/6/11
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:
 
Division Director/M er:
 

Department Head: Steven M. anil a, .., County Executive-TNR
 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Sam Biscoe
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on recommendations
 
to appoint 4 voting members and 4 alternates, to the Technical Advisory Committee
 
of the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization.
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:
 
The CAMPO Technical Advisory Committee serves as an advisory committee for the
 
completion of all transportation studies, plans, development and programming
 
recommendations, required under state or federal laws pertaining to all surface
 
modes of transportation and transportation support facilities. The TAC also serves as
 
a forum and working group in the 5-County region (Williamson, Hays, Caldwell,
 
Bastrop and Travis counties), for regional project coordinaton across jurisdictional
 
boundaries. At the September 12 CAMPO Tranportation Policy Board meeting, the
 
Board approved the Technical Advisory Committee's "Option A" for revised
 
composition of the TAC, to be included in the TAC bylaws, and at the November 14,
 
2011, CAMPO TPB meeting, the Board approved the revised TAC bylaws. The
 
CAMPO TAC previously was 22 voting members, and now is, 32 voting members.
 
Travis County representation on the TAC previously was 1 voting member and 1
 
alternate, and is now, 4 voting members and 4 alternates. The TAC bylaws require
 
that appointed members must be comprised of employed staff, of the member
 
agency or local jurisdiction, that has expertise in the following: transportation
 
planning, implementation of transportation projects, or related fields with
 
responsibility to that governmental unit or agency for some aspect of planning,
 
development or improvement of the transportation system. TAC voting members and
 
their alternates are appointed by their jurisdictions.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
TNR recommends approval of the proposed list of TAC voting members and their
 
alternates (Attachment A).
 

Item 14
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
 
The change to 1 TAC voting member for every Transportation Policy Board member,
 
addresses issues associated with a potential "walking quorum," and also allows the
 
TAC members to more accurately represent individual TPB members, as well as
 
representing a wider range of expertise on the TAC. The approved bylaws add TAC
 
voting members to cities with populations over 7,000, that previously had no vote on
 
the TAC. Those cities include Bastrop, Buda, Elgin, Hutto, Lakeway, and Lockhart.
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
 
Although staff time will be diverted once a month, there is no fiscal impact.
 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS:
 
Attachment A--Proposed List of TAC members and Alternates
 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manaqer TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Carol Joseph Assistant Director TNR 854-9418 
Randy Nicholson Planning & GIS Mgr. TNR 854-4603 
Anna Bowlin Development Services TNR 854-7561 

cc:
 
Teresa Calkins Development Services TNR 854-7569 
David Greear Traffic Safety Div. Mgr. TNR 854-7650 
Charlie Watts Senior Planner TNR 854-7654 
Melissa Zone Senior Planner TNR 854-9435 

0101 - Administrative - 0505 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Attachment A
 

Proposed List of TAC Members and Alternates
 

Regular members 

Steve Manilla, P.E. 
Randy Nicholson, AICP 
Charlie Watts, AICP 
Anna Bowlin, AICP 

Alternates 

Public Works Dir. (TBD) 
Melissa Zone, AICP 
David Greear, P.E. 
Teresa Calkins, P.E. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By: Michael Hettenhausen Phone #: 854-7563 
Division Director/~er: nna

f 
B wlin, Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head: Steve . am , .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the Revised Plat 
of Lots 38A and 40A, Block D of the Revised Plat of Lots 38 and 40 Block D 
Belvedere Phase One (Revised Plat - Two Lots - 2.538 acres - Carlton Ridge Cove) 
in Precinct Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The property owners of lots 38A and 40A wish to revise the existing plat by moving 
the common lot line to create a larger lot for Lot 38A and a smaller lot for Lot 40A, 
both platted from Carlton Ridge Cove. There are no new public or private streets 
proposed with this revised plat. Parkland dedication or fees in lieu of dedication are 
not required with this revised plat. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
As this plat application meets all Travis County standards, Transportation and 
Natural Resources staff recommends approval of the revised plat. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Per Texas Local Government Code Section 232.011, this revised plat will not require 
notice to property owners within Belvedere Phase One or a public hearing. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Precinct map 
Location map 
Existing final plat 
Proposed final plat 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager 1 TNR 
Steve Manilla County Executive 1 TNR 

1854-4239 
1854-9429 

1 

1 

Item 15
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-41 07 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services'and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Request to Post Notice of Public 
Hearing to Receive Comments Regarding Proposed Amendments to 
Chapter 57 (Travis County Smoking Policy) of the Travis County Code. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Travis County Commissioners Court adopted the current Smoking Policy 
on October 21, 1986, to be effective January 1, 1987. In November of 
2010, the Court approved the Interlocal with the City of Austin to receive 
funding through a grant from the Center for Disease Control to improve the 
health of government employees and the general public through cessation 
of the use of tobacco products. Even before implementation of the grant, 
the Travis County Wellness Clinic has provided tobacco cessation 
counseling and treatment and has, since, undergone a public information 
campaign to educate staff and the public about the hazardous nature of 
using tobacco products. The grant also suggests that the grantees 
consider the implementation of Tobacco Free Workplace pOlicies. Posting 
a public hearing to receive comments will enable the Court to consider 
feedback from all segments of the County workforce and open the forum 
for feedback from Travis County residents as well, prior to making 
decisions on any proposed policy changes. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of the request to post notice and the 
scheduling of a public hearing to receive comment from staff and the public 
regarding any proposed changes to the Chapter 57 of the Travis County 
Code (Travis County Smoking Policy). 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 17
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 18
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 19
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Item 20
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request
 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sydnia Crosbie/ 854-9383
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sydnia Crosbie, Parking
 
Committee Chair
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Sam Biscoe, County Judge
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE:
 
Receive Court direction on employee feedback methods regarding
 
zoned parking and the revised parking policy.
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
 
On August 30, 2011, the Commissioners Court adopted the recommended 
parking policy revisions for 90 days as presented by the Parking Committee 
with discussed changes. Previously on April 12, 2011, the Court also voted 
to maintain 700 Lavaca as a zoned facility. On November 1st, that was 
extended 60 days to allow the committee to bring back the issue of zoned 
parking with an update on the revised parking policy. 

The Court has requested employee feedback on both the parking policy 
and zoned parking. The Parking Committee seeks direction on the Court's 
preference for how and when that information is collected. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Parking Committee seeks direction on what methods the Court prefers 
for employee feedback and when that feedback would be received. The 
committee has met with individual stakeholder groups and has additional 
meetings scheduled in early December. Surveys are scheduled for those 
currently parking in 700 Lavaca and specific stakeholder groups affected by 
the policy revisions such as the Civil Courts, Criminal Courts and Sheriff's 
Office. A general employee parking survey was conducted in September 
2010. A follow up survey for all employees is not planned at this time. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County JUdge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 21
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



In addition to the feedback noted above, the committee recommends 
holding an employee hearing that would allow employees to speak directly 
to the Court on both the parking policy and zoned parking in general. The 
Parking Committee would then take that feedback and revise its 
recommendation as necessary before returning to Court for a full report. 

As directed by the Court, the Committee will report on zoned versus 
assigned parking and request renewed adoption of a revised parking policy 
in early January. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
N/A 

Parking Committee Members: 
April Bacon, Auditor's Office 
Daniel Bradford, County Attorney 
Rachel G. Castro, District Clerk 
D'Andra Cedillo, Pretrial Services 
Sydnia Crosbie, TNR 
Jessica Ghazal, District Attorney 
Dana Hess, HRMD 
Etta Jarmon, Domestic Relations 
Alice Leslie, Purchasing 
Gillian Porter, County Clerk 
Steven Town, TCSO 
Dina White, District Attorney 
Danikae Doetsch, District Clerk (alternate) 
Viktoria Hagedorn, Auditor's Office (alternate) 
Tenley Aldredge, County Attorney (advisory) 
Adele Noel, TNR, Air Quality (advisory) 
Roger Harner, Facilities, acting Parking Administrator (advisory) 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: 12/06/2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Meg Seville, 4-9804 lL~ 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sheriff Greg Hamilton, 4-9788 ~ pt. 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on Sheriff's Office request for 
additional training funds. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached memo 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office. CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 23
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, November 29, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON TRAVIS COUNTY 
APPOINTMENTS TO THE CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
Backup materials follow.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  Backup materials follow.   
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  Backup materials follow.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Backup materials follow.   
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
Steven Manilla 
County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources 
Phone: 854-4929 
Email: Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 24
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us


AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Carol Joseph 
Assistant Director, Transportation and Natural Resources 
854-9418 
Carol.Joseph@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Director 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone: 854-9106 
Email: Leroy.Nellis@co.travis.tx.us 
 
Charlie Watts 
Senior Planner, Transportation and Natural Resources 
854-9383 
Email:  Charlie.Watts@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Patricia Estrada 
Purchasing Support Specialist III, Purchasing Office 
854-9915 
Patricia.Estrada@co.travis.tx.us  
 
    
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Carol.Joseph@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Leroy.Nellis@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Charlie.Watts@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Patricia.Estrada@co.travis.tx.us


 
1 

MEMO 
 

 For Your 
Information 

 Action 
Required 

  
 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 FROM: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, IGR 

 DATE: Wednesday, November 30, 2011  

 RE: CTRMA Board of Directors appointments 

 
Summary and IGR Recommendation 
 
The terms of two Travis County appointees to the Central Texas Regional 
Mobility Authority Board of Directors expire February 1, 2012 – Henry 
Gilmore and Charles Heimsath. Mr. Gilmore has indicated his desire to 
cycle off the CTRMA board at the end of his term. Mr. Heimsath has 
indicated his desire to be reappointed to the board.    
 
IGR recommends that the Court: 
• acknowledge Henry Gilmore’s decision to step down and express its 

appreciation for his efforts; 
• reappoint Charles Heimsath to the CTRMA board for a term from 

February 2, 2012 to February 1, 2014; and 
• approve a process to call for applications and select a new member for 

the CTRMA board for a term from February 2, 2012 to February 1, 2014  
 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
The Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority was created in 2002 as a 
joint effort between Travis and Williamson counties to expand mobility 
options in the region. The CTRMA is governed by a seven-member board, 
with three appointees each from Travis and Williamson counties and a 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
2 

chair appointed by the governor.  The other Travis County appointee is 
Nikelle Meade, whose term will expire in February, 2013.   
 
Qualifications – and Disqualifications – of a Board Member 
A member of the Board must be a resident of the county from whence they 
are appointed.  
 
A member of the Board may not be:  
1. An elected official; or 
2. An employee of a city or county located wholly or partly within the 

boundaries of CTRMA.   
 
Moreover, a person is not eligible to serve on the Board if the person or the 
person’s spouse:  
1. is employed by or participates in the management of a business entity 

or other organization, other than a political subdivision, that is 
regulated by or receives money from TxDOT or the Authority; 

2. owns or controls, directly or indirectly, more than a 10 percent interest 
in a business entity or other organization that is regulated by or 
receives money from TxDOT or the Authority, other than compensation 
for acquisition of turnpike right-of-way; 

3. uses or receives a substantial amount of tangible goods, services, or 
money from TxDOT or the Authority, other than compensation or 
reimbursement authorized by law for Board membership, attendance, 
or expenses, or for compensation for acquisition of turnpike right-of-
way;  

4. is an officer, employee, or paid consultant of a Texas trade association 
in the field of road construction, maintenance, or operation; or 

5. is required to register as a lobbyist under Chapter 305, Government 
Code, because of the person's activities for compensation on behalf of a 
profession related to the operation of TxDOT or the Authority.  

 
Applicants are required to sign a notarized affidavit attesting they meet 
these criteria.   

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
3 

 
Appointment Process 
Attachment A is a proposed outline and timetable for making the 
appointment.   It broadly tracks the process adopted by the Court in 
previous appointments, including the CTRMA, CentralHealth, and the 
CapMetro Board of Trustees.   
 
Dissemination of Call for Applications 
Attachment B proposes how to disseminate information about the call for 
applications.    
 
Application Packet 
Attachment C is a proposed application packet, including: 
• the call for applications  
• a list of desired qualifications and skills 
• an application form 
• an affidavit to be completed 
 
These documents were developed with reference to the application form 
and process used for other appointments, including the CTRMA, 
CentralHealth, and the CapMetro Board of Trustees.   
 
 
Attachments 
1. Letter from Henry Gilmore re CTRMA board membership, November 

30, 2011.  
2. Letter from Charles Heimsath re CTRMA board membership, 

November 30, 2011. 
3. Outline of proposed process and timetable for CTRMA appointment(s). 

(“Attachment A”) 
4. Outline of proposed process and language for dissemination of the call 

for applications. (“Attachment B”) 
5. Proposed Application Packet for CTRMA appointment(s). (“Attachment 

C”) 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



ATTACHMENT A 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT 
Proposed Process and Timetable 

 
December 6 Commissioners Court adopts selection process for 

CapMetro Board of Directors appointment and 
announces call for applications 

 
2012 

January 13 Deadline for submission of applications 
 
January 16 - Commissioners Court members reviews all applications,  
January 23 down list of candidates to interview 
 
January 24 Commissioners Court selects short list of candidates to be 

interviewed by the Court  
 
January 26 Commissioners Court work session interviews with 

finalists 
• 40-minute interviews with each candidate 
• Prepared list of questions to be asked of each 

candidate 
• Open, but untelevised, session 

  
January 31 Commissioners Court selects Travis County appointee to 

CapMetro Board of Directors  
 
February 1 Terms of two CTRMA appointees from Travis County 

expire 
 
February 2 Term of the new Travis County appointees begins 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



ATTACHMENT B 
 
Once the Commissioners Court approves the process, the call for 
applications to the CTRMA will be disseminated in at least the following 
ways: 

1. Legal notices will be posted in at least one newspaper of general 
circulation in Travis County for two consecutive weeks.  

2. Information about the appointment will be put on the County 
website, along with a link to the application packet in PDF format.  

3. The County will issue a media release with information about the 
position and seek earned media coverage of the impending vacancy 
and the Court’s effort to fill it.   

   
 
Here is proposed language for the legal notice:   
 

Travis County is seeking applications from qualified individuals to 
serve on the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional 
Mobility Authority, a partnership between Travis and Williamson 
Counties.  One appointment to the Board becomes available on 
February 2, 2012.   
 
The Commissioners Court is looking for individuals who will 
represent the interests of the County as a whole.  These individuals 
must supply exceptional vision, business and administrative skills, and 
a history of community involvement.  They will have to work with all 
jurisdictions within the two counties, reflecting local sensitivities and 
ideals in their decision-making process.   
 
For further information, or to obtain an electronic copy of the 
application packet, please call Max Jones at (512) 854-4774 or email 
IGR@co.travis.tx.us.  

 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:IGR@co.travis.tx.us


ATTACHMENT C 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY  
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
 

Appointment to the 
 

CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 
MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
 

Proposed Applications Documents 
Wednesday, November 30, 2011 

For Court Consideration and Action on 
Tuesday, December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 
 
 
 
 
 
December 7, 2011 
 
 
TO:  Potential Applicants 
 
FROM:  Travis County Commissioners Court 
 
SUBJECT: CTRMA Application Process, Timeline and Application 
 
Attached is the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority Application 
Packet.  Included in the packet are: 

1. a summary of the qualifications the County is seeking in its 
appointees; 

2. an application form; and 
3. an affidavit that must be completed and signed before a Notary Public.   

 
The deadline for receipt of completed applications is  

4:00 p.m. on Friday, January 13, 2012. 
 
Applications may be submitted to:  

   Travis County Commissioners Court 
Attn: Intergovernmental Relations Office 
314 West 11th Street, Suite 535 
Austin, Texas  78701 

 
Applications may also be submitted electronically in PDF format to: 

IGR@co.travis.tx.us 
  
 
Electronic copies of this packet can be requested by calling Max Jones at 
(512) 854-4774 or emailing Max.Jones@co.travis.tx.us.  Paper copies of the 
application packet can be picked up at the IGR Office address noted above.   
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.

mailto:IGR@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Max.Jones@co.travis.tx.us


Call for Applications to the 
Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors  

Representing Travis County  
 
 
Travis County is seeking applications from qualified individuals to serve on the 
Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority, a partnership 
between Travis and Williamson Counties.  Two appointments to the Board become 
available on February 2, 2012.  Candidates must be residents of Travis County and 
not subject to a real or potential conflict of interest if they serve.   
 
The Commissioners Court is looking for individuals who will represent the 
interests of the County as a whole.  These individuals must supply exceptional 
vision, business and administrative skills, and a history of community involvement.  
They will have to work with all jurisdictions within the two counties, reflecting 
local sensitivities and ideals in their decision-making process. 
 
Candidates must instantly command the confidence of not only the public but also 
the business, professional, and government communities.  They must be able to 
generate a business plan that secures the confidence of the New York bond market.  
Therefore, they must possess outstanding business judgment and unquestioned 
integrity. 
 
SKILL SET DESIRED: 
 
Preference will be given to a candidate with a career history demonstrating skills 
and experience in more than one of the following: 
 
 Outstanding business achievement.  Candidates with a successful 

entrepreneurial or investment background are particularly attractive. 
 
 Community involvement in multiple leadership roles 

 
 Experience with transportation issues or enterprises 

 
 Tenure in public service, particularly at the policy level 

 
 History of participation in local, state and federal governmental processes 

 
 Knowledge of finance 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



CTRMA Appointment Application_113011 1 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
 

(Applications must be submitted in this format.  Please do not retype or reformat.) 
 
Name:        
Spouse’s Name:        
 
Home Telephone # 
      

Work Telephone # 
      

Fax # 
      

Email Address 
      

Cellular # (Optional) 
      

Present Job title & job description: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Profession:        
 
Home Address  
(STREET/P.O. BOX, CITY, STATE, ZIP)                  
      
 
 
 
 
 
County:        

Employer and Employer’s Address 
      

 
 
EDUCATION/TRAINING: 
 
 
High School or equivalent (G.E.D.)        
 
Undergraduate School:        
 

Year Graduated:       

 
Graduate School:        
 

 
Year Graduated:       
 

Licenses/Certifications:       
 

Year Obtained:       

 
Exhibit B 

 
 

 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



CTRMA Appointment Application_113011 2 

 
Name:        
 
 
EMPLOYMENT AND CAREER HISTORY( include business, administrative, & finance experience): 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CURRENT PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC SERVICE (include participation in local, state, federal governmental processes): 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CIVIC PARTICIPATION: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



CTRMA Appointment Application_113011 3 

 
 
Name:        
 
 
COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP ROLES: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC INFRASTRUTURE DEVELOPMENT EXPERIENCE AND/OR KNOWLEDGE: 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BUSINESS ACHIEVEMENT (specifically entrepreneurial and investment): 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE:  PLEASE ATTACH A RESUME. 
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



CTRMA Appointment Application_113011 4 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
 
 

Name:        
 
Date of Birth 
      

Driver’s License # or DPS I.D. # 
      

Are you a U.S. Citizen   Yes      No 

Ethnicity: (Optional)  White  African-American  Hispanic  Asian Other:       
 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF APPLICANT 
 
 

  I hereby certify that the foregoing and any attached statements are true, 
accurate and complete.  I agree that any misstatement, misrepresentation, or omission 
of a fact may result in my disqualification for appointment.  I assign and hereby give 
Travis County full authority to conduct background investigations pertinent to this 
application.   

 
 
 
 
  
 Printed Name 
 
 

 

 Applicant’s Signature 
  
  
 Date 

 
 

 
  
  

 
 
 

Return to: 
Travis County Commissioners Court 

Attention:  Intergovernmental Relations Office 
314 W. 11th Street, Suite 535 

Austin, Texas  78701 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

59254-1   163.1480 

 AFFIDAVIT 
 
 CTRMA BOARD MEMBER ELIGIBILITY  
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 
 
 On this day, ____________________, appeared before me, the undersigned notary 
public, and after I administered an oath, upon his/her oath, said: 
 
 
 "My name is ____________________. I am capable of making this affidavit.  The facts 
stated in this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are true and correct. I am making 
this affidavit to establish that I meet all statutory and regulatory eligibility requirements for 
appointment to the Board of Directors of the Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority (RMA). 
Accordingly, I hereby affirm that all of the following statements are true: 
 
 1. I reside in Travis County, the geographic area encompassed by the RMA, as required by 

Transportation Code §361.003(b) and 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.26(h)(1). 
   
 2. I do not own an interest in real property that has been or will be acquired for an RMA 

project, as required by 43 Texas Administrative Code §§26.16(h)(2)) and 26.33(b)(3). 
    
 3. I am not an elected official, as required by 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.16(h)(4). 
    
 4. I am not an employee of the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), as required 

by 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.26(h)(5). 
    
 5. I am not an officer, employee, or paid consultant, nor is my spouse an officer, manager, or 

paid consultant, of a Texas trade association involved in the field or road construction or 
maintenance, public transportation or aviation, as required by  43 Texas Administrative 
Code §26.33(b)(2). 

    
 6. I am not employed or engaged in a business or professional activity that might reasonably 

require or induce me to disclose confidential information acquired by reason of my 
position as an RMA director, as required by 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.33(a)(2). 

  
 7. I am not employed nor do I receive compensation that could reasonably be expected to 

impair my independence of judgment in the performance of my official duties as an RMA 
director, as required by 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.33(a)(3). 

  

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



 

59254-1   163.1480 

 8. I have no personal investments that could reasonably be expected to create a substantial 
conflict between my private interests and the interests of the RMA, as required by 43 
Texas Administrative Code §26.33(a)(4). 

  
 9. I have no personal interest in agreements that are or will be executed by the RMA, as 

required by 43 Texas Administrative Code §26.33(a)(6). 
 
 10. Neither I nor my spouse: 
  
 a. work for or participate in the management of an organization (other than a political 

subdivision) that is regulated by or receives funds from TxDOT, as required by 43 
Texas Administrative Code §26.33(b)(1)(A); 

    
 b. directly or indirectly own or control more than 10% of the stock of a company that is 

regulated by or receives funds from TxDOT, as required by 43 Texas Administrative 
Code §26.33(b)(1)(B); 

    
 c. use or receive a substantial amount of tangible goods from TxDOT, as required by 43 

Texas Administrative Code §26.33(b)(1)(C); or 
    
 d. are required to register as a lobbyist because of our activities for compensation on 

behalf of a profession related to the operation of TxDOT, as required by 43 Texas 
Administrative Code §26.33(b)(1)(D). 

 
 
 
        ________________________ 
       Name: 
 
SWORN TO and SUBSCRIBED before me by ____________________ on __________, 201__. 
 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       Notary Public in and for 
       the State of Texas 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, Judge's Office, x49557 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the appointment of Adam King to 
fill the unexpired term of Shirene Garcia to the Sustainable Food Policy 
Board, effective immediately through February 28, 2013. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

Judge Biscoe has 2 appointees to the Sustainable Food Policy Board per 
Commissioners Court voting session January 27, 2009. 
Our current appointee Shirene Garcia of Urban Roots regrettably must step 
down. Adam King applied for appointment in the spring of 2011 and 
continues to be eager to serve on the board. Resume is attached. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Recommend approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
n/a 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
nfa 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 25
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request
 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 
Prepared By: Michael Hettenhausen hone #: 854-7563 fJ 
Division Director/Mana er: A Il8 B lin, Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head: Steve ani a, .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, January 10, 
2012 to receive comments regarding plat for recording: Raceway Single Family 
Subdivision Section Two Final Plat (A Small Lot Subdivision) (Resubdivision of Lots 
16, 17, 24, and 25 Northridge Acres Number Two Subdivision - 69 Lots - Travesia 
Way - City of Austin ETJ) in Precinct Two. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:
 
This resubdivision final plat consists of 69 single family lots on 10.576 acres. The
 
proposed plat's boundaries are located within the previously-platted Northridge
 
Acres Number Two subdivision, and the applicant proposes to resubdivide lots 16,
 
17, 24, and 25 of the Northridge Acres Number Two subdivision into the Raceway
 
Single Family Subdivision Section Two Final Plat. There are 2,229 linear feet of
 
public streets proposed with this final plat. Parkland fees in lieu of dedication have
 
been paid to the City of Austin in the amount of $28,082.54. Fiscal surety in the
 
amount of $239,189.00 has been posted with the City of Austin. Water and
 
wastewater service to be provided by the City of Austin.
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
 
As this resubdivision final plat meets all Travis County standards and is scheduled
 
for approval at the City of Austin Zoning and Platting Commission meeting on
 
December 6, 2011, Single Office staff recommends approval of the motion.
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
 
Notification
 
Notification of this resubdivision final plat's hearing at the City of Austin's Zoning and
 
Platting Commission (ZAP) as well as Commissioners Court was mailed to all
 
current owners of property and all registered neighborhood associations within 500
 
feet of the proposed subdivision. These addresses were obtained from the Travis
 
Central Appraisal District current tax rolls. Single Office records show that all
 
property owners that are required to be notified under Title 30 were notified. The
 
Single Office has registered no interested parties for this application.
 

Item C3
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



As part of the requirements for a plat resubdivision, a notice of public hearing sign 
will be placed on the subject property to announce the date, time, and location of the 
public hearing. Should staff receive any inquiries from adjacent property owners as a 
result of the mailout or sign placement, an addendum to this back up memorandum 
will be provided to the Court prior to the public hearing. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Precinct map 
Location map 
Existing final plat 
Proposed final plat 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc. 

t==~==---'-------~----~------I-t-
SM:AB:mh
 
1101 - Development Services 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Legend 

-- ·State Maintained 

-- Park Road 

Incorporated 

-- Travis County Maintained 

--_.- Not Maintained 

-- Private 

Rejedion 01Dedication 

Undedicated, Private 

-RaiJroad 

Wstar Body 

Precinct 1 

Precjnct 2 

Precinct 3 

City Jurisdiction 

• Park 

Source(s): City of Austin Roads _ COA 2011, 
Unincorporated Roads - Travis County 
812011, Toll Road - various sources, 
Creeks- NHD 2005, Parks· Tralfis County 

" 
\~" " ~ 

," " ,,4

~{2011, Commissioner Precmcts - Travlfi County 
Voter Registrar 2002, 31 

j! 

·.f;'("I.'.!!!.lr.!!fI ~~I 

f----=If&. 

t~ WfIlllUl_or 
i~~~=~ 

."""'~J 
,,-i\ 

Map DiscialmerTne data is provided "as is" o 1 Map Prepared by: Travis County, 
with no warranties of any kind. Dept. of Transportation & Natural

I I I Resources. Date: 8f9f2011Travis County Roadways, Map A Miles 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



WILLIAMSON 
COUNTY 

RACEWAY CROSSING SECTION 2 

VICINITY MAP
 

JC oJ a I EI & CAR TE R. ..
 
•••••••••·PLA••••• ·.UIVl . 

T.......n/"'~~~Ifo.F.,J'

1101__•__ ....... 1_787.. (512).....'"
 

SCALE: ,. - 2000' 
DATE: 6/14/2011
JOB NO=-:---=--:~~~---A59B-003 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



;.; 
"'~'-I

..-
-

II, I 

'1I
.. 

I 
.~ I

...... 

IIIIlII'III 

l;jIl -,

•0 "• -

J 
.
-

-
-
"
:
<
;
~
.
;
L

 
~

~
~

 
d

' -
c 

d 
c

c• 
0 

~. 
.. ;;

.. "• 
;.. 

..
"I ..

oW 
.. 

) 
t 

.. 
.,

.. 
,

o 
-e

c 
: 

0.. .. .. 
0 

!
s 

·oo'
,,; 

r' 
". 

.;. 
c. 

,,; 

0: . 

" 
-

~
.
"

 
.. .. 

!
• 

(\/ 
.. 

w
',' 

.. 1M•
.. 

~':.:
..

0 
..
 

Z
.
~
.

 
.. oo 

.
\-

c
"
 

..,'" 
..

s 
!::

CO ~: 
c..

c::x: 
W
~
~
:

 
Q:~I.ItI'lIlI 

C
..... " .. 

.." 
0:»1'1:-:1 

~
Q

... 
.. 

If
0 

.. 
~ 

" 
« U

Ill)
.

.... : 0 

_
c
 .. 

>
 

.. 
,:i-_'::::.~~·: ~," 

-e
\S"" 

W
:
~
.

 

" C0 .; 
=

 
! 

0 
..... 

.. 
c 

I ~ 

i I I 

. 
I 

., <
; 

.'·:~i'L
O

!!'! 
.
r
 • 

.. 
"}.',,, 

~ 
... 0 

1M
~~~.

 
0 

iii
V

) 
L

:
r
"
'
~

 
til

....... 
.J

 

... 
-

-,
C

 
N

i 
0:

0
~
~
.
~

 ~ 
..

C
 

:Il 
.. .. 

I
!! 

! 
0

0 
:

~
 

z 
.; 

j I 
.; 

oj 
c

c 
oj 

0
! 

... 
t,

0 
~

.. 
~ 

c0 ..
oj 

~
 

I~ 
~: 

.
..
 

... 


;l"u,:G
 

-
~IP'"A.

 
_IIII"I'WJ 'fT

H
f_

co 
-

C
L

. 
.yf{~,~ ~

'
-
7
"

 -r'-t 

•
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(Jl<oPOSG 0 PL/; T
 

RACEWAY SINGLE FAMILY SUBDMSION SECTION TWO 
LEGEND (A SMALL LOT SUBDMSION) 

TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS 
1/2· IRCN ROO FrJUND 
(f/NLESS NOTED) 

... P-K NAN. FrJl/ND IN FENCE»osr 
<0;- .I'..p

o '1r~~~~ ~ o CONCIiETF~ENr SET 
( ) R£IXWD"'FORMA T10N
 

•••••• SIOEWALJ( 100' o' 100' 200'
 / 
ill	 +<1f>~-1?a<0". 

" 
,l&i 

LOT TABLE 
DESCRIPTION ACREAGE 

SINGLEFAWILYLOTS 7.744 ACRES 
TRAVESIA WAY 1.201 ACRES 

MEADOW LANE O.13J ACRE 

KEHlER CROSSING 0.47J ACRE 
McALOON WAY a.1e8 ACRE 
OOV£R FERRYCROSSING 0.167 ACRE 
TOTAL RIGHT-OF-WAY 2.832 ACRES 

TOTAL AREA 10.576 ACRES 

TOTAL NO. OF LOTS 50	 

,flo."".".ib.LOT 15 1 <!'
NORTHRIOGEACRES NO.2

STREET NAMES R.O.W. 'MOTH CENIERUNE LENGil-I f,BIr. 14, Pg. 84 
TRA'vt:SlA WAY 50 FT. 830 n. ... ~ 
Ir!4EADOW LANE so FT. 143 n. <0;-.9 
KENTER CROSSINC 50 FT. 40J F'T. iM	 /
tr.4cALOON WAY 5i115 rr,56 FT. "~',
DOVER FERRY CROSSING 56 rr. 158 n. ~+nr 
lOTA!. 2,22V n. 

" 4-' (+$~d'.J'.;:o~).?
 
<, ~.:~~)
 

TABLE ~~~-'>.	 ~~. 

RADIUS CHORD LENGTH DISTANCECUR'" "b<.'~z.~""',,~~ 
15 DO'01 ~.12· ~ 

(SUO)C2 208.00' 50.12' ~~OJ 222.00' M.31' HUll' 
C4 78.00' 62.35' 44.28'
 
CS
 5.00' 7.07' 43.27' 
ce 4.47'~i.OO' 56.00'
 
C7
 ~.OO· 99.02' CRVf RACEWAY HOl.DINGS, LP.43.27' 
ea 500' 4.4i 43.6'" (REllA/NOD? CT 29.UJ AC - T1i'ACT J)
 
CO
 Doc. No. 20071279O.J5.00' 7.08' 58.00' 

5.00'Cl0 7.0e' 43.60'
 
011
 5.00' 7.06' LOT /8 -+: 

'-191'12LOT 26	 £l_8!l8.a25.00'Cl. 7.OS'
 
C15
 25.00' :3a.30' NORTHRIOGE" ACRES NO. 
C15 222.00' 109.02' BIe. 14. Pp. 84 

222.00' 25.32'017 
278.00'Cl. 136.53'
 

ClO
 278.00' 46.16'
 
C20
 278.00' 29.23'
 
C21
 500' 7.07'
 
C22
 so.oo' 22.44'
 
C2J
 50.00' 34.29' , It

50.00' 34.29'
 
025
 
C2' 

50.00' 34. "~ f{;'
025 50.00' 40.50'
 
027
 1.7S'50.00' / \~"./~

/ 
<, 

BEARING BASIS NOTE: 

HORIZONTAL DAlUW BASED ON THE TEXAS STATE PLANE 
COORDINATE SYSTEW, NAO 83. TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE. COORDINATES 
AND DISTANCES StI0-' ARE SURFACE VALUES. COYBINED SCAlE 
F'ACTOR IS 1.0001116388. 

LOT 23 
T1?ANQl./IL LANE (!#' fl.Q,I«) 

+ElEN01MARK NOlES: 

TEItI " - lEWPORARY BENQUIARk f'DR 11ilS SUR~ IS A COTTON GIN SPINDLE SET .. lOP BAa< l:F CURB j-T-l 1---- ) NORTfIR/DGE ACR£S NO 2
 
AT EAST BfD r:E UEIXAH LOCATm AL.ONG 'THE CENTER l:F GRAND AVENUE: PNltJ(W14Y NEAR 'THE saJ1'HWIIEST
 BK I~. PC B~ 
CClRM~ l:F, RACEWAY SINGLE F'AWLY SUBDIVISION SECnC»l ONE (A SMAll. LOT SUBOIaC»l), AS RECORDED IN 
DOC. NO. 201100068. RA~WA Y SJNCLE FAMILY SU80lVlSJON SECTION ONE r
 
(ELEYAnON-875.9&) (NAW sa DATU") (A SMALL LOT SU80IVlSJON) f'......
 

Doc. No. 20t1{}()()66 I ~
 
TEItI12 - TDlPOAARY BENa-tIilARl( F'CR 11ft SUR~ IS A COITON (IN SPINDLE SET IN ASPHALT+/- 1419'
 
SOUTHEAST r:E THE SHARED REARPR<PERTY CORNER l:F LOTS8 I: 7. BL.OCK [ AND +/- 15$ SOUTHEAST
 
r:E 'THE SHARED REAR PRCFERTY CORNER l:F LOTS 5 I: e, BI..OQ( E.
 
(D..EVAlJON-aea.~2) (HAW as DATUM)
 

SHEET 1 OF 2 

FLE:	 J:\Pro./K1aWIN5\OO3\SUrw,\Drawing A..\f1nal Plat - Sec 2.dWll 
J:\Pro;.etll"",e\OOJ\Surw,\Point flJa\~IN5-Anoi Pial Sec. 2.cn:l 

SURIIE'roR'	 ENGINE£R: .q NO: lWill8-OO3-OD/!IOO I tINlI 8'1': usc 
~1E: ... ae, 2011 IQGICEllBY: .D

J ... JON E S & CAR T E R.llo. SCALf: 1"-100'	 m.sm 0dIlbIr 25, 2011terra	 • .L ENGINEERS·PlANNERS·SURVEYORSLAND SURVEYING f ••" Boord of Pruf......lll En;h __ ROlllltb'atlonHa. F-439 RACEWAY SINGLE FAMILY ~Irma 1701 OIR£CTORS BL'oO, STE. 400 
"USTlH, TtXAS 7B744 SUBDIVISION SECTION TWO 

1701 ...... ~ .... «Ill ~ T_,..,... s'I/Da-U7. F_ SII/ua-1aS	 (:112) 441-9493 (PhatlI) 
(:112) 4+5-2284 (Fax) (A SMALL LOT SUBDMSION) 

CURVE 
ARC LENGTH 

59..50' 
50.2-4' 
84.82' 
6 .48' 
7.85' 
4.64' 

171.10' 
4.64' 
7.84' 
7.S; 
7.84' 

C12 208.00' 81.42' 8O.go' 
C1J 208.00' 51.18' 31.16' 

7.S7' 
39.19' 
110.'" 
25..33' 
137.94' 
46.2" 
29.24' 
7.M' 

22.63' 
35.00' 
35.00' 
35.00' 
41.89' 
1.7S' 

COA CASE NO.: CBJ-2010-0036.2A 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



STATE Cf'" lEXAS )(	 RACEWAY SINGLE FAMILY SUBDMSION SECTION TWO 
KNOW ALL MEN BY lHESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY r:E 'TRAVIS )( 

That, Pulte Hcmee of T8ll08, LP., 0 Texas limited portnenhlp. acting herein by and through Pulte 
Nevada I LLC, 0 Delaware Umlted Uobllilty company. tte General Partner. by Brent Boker, Vice 
President of Land. o,*ner of 10.576 acres of land out of the Geon;Jlll W. Spear Survey No. 100, 
Travis County, Texas, all coowyed to It by special warranty deed recorded In Document No. 
2011 of the Officlol PUblic Records of Trovls County, 'rexce. don hereby subdivide sold 
10.576 ceres, being 0 portion of Lots HI, 17, 24 and 25, Northridge Acres No.2. CI subdIvision 08 

recorded In Book 14, Page 84 of the Plot Records of Trovl8 County, Texas, together with a portion 
of Meadow Lane 01 vcccted by order vocatlng 0 public rood. 09 recorded In \lotume 3175. Page 284 
of the DlHld Records of Travis County, Texal. laid 10.576 acres hovlng been approved for 
resubdlvllion purauant to Section 212.014 of the Texas Lacol Go'l8mment Cods, does hereby 
resubdlvlde laid 10.576 acres of land In ecceeeence with the plot shown hereon, to be known as 
RACEWAY SINGlE fAMILY SUBDI\1S1ON SECTION TWO (A SWALL LOT SUBDIVISION), and does hereby 
dedloots to the public the use of the streets and eceements ehown herece subject to any 
eceemente, covenants or restrictione heretofore granted and not released. 

WllNESS Ir.tY HAND, this the __ day of _ 20__ A.D. 

Pulte Home. of Texas, LP., a 'rexee limited portnerahlp 
1501 Sun City BI'Id. 
Gear08town, TX 78633 

... , ........"".... w..... President of Land
 
Putte NeYOda I. LLC, a Delaware limited 1I0bDrty company
 
its General Portner
 

STATE CE TEXAS )( 
COONTY OF TRAVIS )( 

~~~~~ ~e;,,~~ou~e~~n::r8:th~~:'~a~~81:a~:;~~1I{0~~:a~:?sg-:0:;:;n:;:9"'n::.;:tN:::m:::.::n',.-=o=nd~n. 
acknowledged to me that he executed the some for the purpose and consideration therein
 
expresl!lllld and In the copoclty therein stated,
 

Notary Public. Stote of Tnoe
 

PrInt Notory's Nome
 
Ir.ty Commission Expires: _
 

I, Jonathon 0, Nobles, am authorized under the lows of the State of Texas to practice the
 
profsssion of 8Urv8y1ng, and hereby certrfy that this plot complies with TItre 30 of the Auetln CIty
 
Code as amended. Is trus and correct to the best of my abRlty. and woe prspored from on actual
 
survey of the property mode under my supervision on the ground.
 

(A SMALL LOT SUBDMSION) 
TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS 

In approving this plot, the Commi ••ionerw Court of Travis County, Te:llos. assumes no obligation 
to build the streets, reeds, ond other public thoroughfares shown on this plot or ony bridges or 
cul'l8rta in connection thsrewith. The building of all etreete, roods, end othar public thoroughfares 
shown on thie plot, ond all bridges and culwrts neceeaory to be constructsd or ploc8d in 8uch 
etreete, roads, or other publ'c thoroughfares or in connection therewith, Ie the responsibility of 
the owner and/or developer of tne tract of land coY'tlred by thlt! plot In accordance wIth plans 
and specIfications prsscrlbed by ths Commlsslonenl Court of Tro'o'ls County. Texas. 

The awner(s) of the 8ubdlv18lon eholl construct the subdlvlelon's etreet and drainage 
lmpn::l\lsmente (the -improvements) to County Standards In order for the County to accept the 
public Impro'l8ments for maintenance or to relecee Fiscal Security posted to eeeure private 
lmprO'l8ments. To secure this obligation. the owner(s) must post fiscal security wIth the county 
in the amount of the estimated cost of the imprQ"oA!lments. The cenerfs)' obligotion to construct 
the Improvements to County Standards and to post the Fiscal Security to secure such 
ccnetructicn is a continuing obligation binding on the owners and their succonDrS ond ossigns 
until the public improvements have been accepted for molntenonce by the county, or the private 
impro'l8ments hove been constructed and are performing to County stendcrde. 

The authorization of thle plot by the Commissionenll Court for filing or tne subsequent 
eccepteece for maintenance by Travis County. 'rexce, of roods and streets in the subdivision 
does not obligote the County to install etreet nome signs or erect troffic control signs, such all 
spesd limit, atop signs. and yield 8igns, which is considered to be port of the Developer'SI 
construction. 

STATE OF TEXAS )( 
COUNT"r' OF TRAVIS )( 

I. Dana DeBeouvalr, Oerk of the County Court of Travis County. Texce, do hsraby certIfy that on 

W~VIS Count:Ote~~'I possed on order authorizing t~~~orA'~~o~~e0~~~1~~~~:~~~~t e~rd 
order was duly entersd In the mInutes of sold Court. 

WITNESS "'Y HAND AND SEAL OF CEFiCE CE THE COUNTY COURT of sold County, the doy
of	 20 A.D. 

Dono DeBeouYOlr. County Clerk. Trovle County, Tsxos 

Deputy 

STATE OF TEXAS )( 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS )( 

NOTES (ccnt.). 

7. Endolled storm sewer plpee will be located In drolnoge eceemente a minimum of 15 feet wide. 
Easemente for open channels sholl be a minimum of 25 fset wide. 

8. ErOSion/Sedimentation controls are required for all construction on ecch lot pursuont to Lond 
De'l8lopment Code. and the Environmental Crlterio Manual. It eholl be the responslbll1ty of the lot 
owner /builder to Install and maintain temporary erosIon controls (snt fence). re"'8getotlon and tree 
protection for 011 disturbed crece durIng the period of construction until disturbed crece are 
adequately stoblllzsd ogolnst sroslon pursuant to the City of Austin Land uevercpment Code. 

9. All dIsturbed areas within each phose of this project sholl be revegetoted ond all permanent 
eroeion/lledlmentotron controls completed prior to the ieeccnce of occupancy permits for that 
phose. Temporary E/S controls .noll be odjJsted as needed prior to this release to enl!lUre that 
lubsequent phose disturbed areall are adequately caWll'"ed. Additionally. any areo within the limits 
of construction of the projBct which is not adequatety re'l8getated sholl be brought into compliance 
prior to the release of the final phose. 

10. The ownel'lds'l8loper of this eubdivlslon/lot Is responsible for providing the IUbdllo'ision 
infrastructure, Including wotsr ond wastewater Impro ....mente. offslte moln e:lltenslons. ond s}l'tem 
upgrades. 

11. Wotsr and wastewater service sholl be provided by the Cit)' of Austin. No lot in thie subdilo'illion 
sholl be occupied until the bulldlng Is connected to the City of "u8tln's weter and wastewater 
ejetems. 

12. The wotsr and wastewater utility s}l'tem serving this subdlvtslon muet be In accordonce wIth the 
cIt)' design criteria and standards. The woter ond wostewot.. utility plan must be rsvlewed and 
appro'l8d by the Austin water utility. The water ond wostewoter utility construction must be 
Inspscted by the city. 

13. Electric service will be prOVided by Oncor Elsctric Dell'l8ry. Telephone servics wnl be provided by 
AT&T. 

14. this subdivision wPi be designed In accordance with 30-2-232 of ths Land Development Code. 

15. All comer lots sholl be Q minimum 4,500 squore feet. 

16. The own.. of this 8ubdlvlsion. and his or her eucceaecra and onl9ne.. ossumes responsibility for 
plans for construction of subdllo'islon Impro'l8mente which comply with appllcable codes and 
requirements of the City of Austin. The owner underetcnde ond acknoWl8dges thot plot vccctlcn or 
replotting may be required. at the owner'l eore expense, If pIons to construct thle subdlvlelon do 
not campI)' with such codes and requlraments. 

17. No constructIon or plocement of etructuree Including buildlnge. shede, pools. landscaping or 
gardens Is allowed wIthin a crltlcol environmental feature buffer zone per the City of Au.tln'lI Land 
De'l8lopment Code. 

18. Iilalntenance of the water quollty controle required abo'18 eholl be according to City of Austin 
ltandards. 

~~~N"'---
Registered f.r0rr.IOnal Land Sur'l8yor No. 5777
 
Dote II fi ~oll
, 
'IERRA FlRWA LAND SURIIE'11NG
 
1701 Directors Blvd., Suite 400
 
Austrn. Texas 787-44
 

FLOOD PLAIN NOTE: 

No portron of thl. tract lSI within the deSllgnated fiood hazard are<l as shown on ths Fedsral 
Em..gency Ir.tonagement Agency (FEIr.tA) Flood Insuronce Rote Ir.tops (F1RIil) f48453C026OH. Trovls 
County. Te:llas, doted September 26. 2008, Community #4a1026. 

I, Gemeong N. Perry, om authorized under the lows of the State of T8xae to practlc8 the profession 
of engineering, and hereby certify that this plot Is feasible from on englnuring stondpolnt and 
~~:,:~:;'_ TItlo 3D of tho Au.tln Cit, Codo 0. omondod ond tNO ond corroct to tn. bo.' of'.
~J1.~J /	 - . _

8On9ti.P'1 
R"l'.'....'t,P'0f...'ono' En9lno-:::d 99300 N.1'tlII\'
 
Dote 11- - 2..O1l .~ .
 

JONES • CARlER, INC. - :../.1. 
1701 DIrectors BI'Id., Suite 400 .~
 
AUllltin. Tl!l:llOS 78744
 8 

this subdM.lon Is withIn the 2-mlla erlraterrltorlal )Jrlsdlctlon of ths City of AustIn, Tna., as of 
thl. the __ doy of 20__ A.D. 

~~c;~~tNJ:tyA~rfuR~~I~ {,.~~.R~~~~. bfe~~:. D~r:c\~~ Planning dC;yd o~svelopment Review 
________ 20__ 

Greg Guernsey, Director 
P10rmlng and Dsvelopment Review Deportment 

ACCEPTED AND AUTHORIZED FOR RECORD by the Zoning and Plot'tlng Commission of ths City of 
Austin, Toos. thle the __ day of 20__ A.D. 

Cholrpenlon	 Secretary 

I. Dono DeBeauvalr. Clerk of Travis County, Texos do hereby c8rt\1y that ths forsgolng Instrument 19. Water quality controls are reqUired tor all de'l8lopment With Impervtoue cover in excIIS of 20X
 
of Writing and Its Certlficot8 of Authentlcotlon was flied for rscord mmy office on the__ 01 the Net SIte Area of each lot pursuant to Land De'l8lopmsnt Code.
 
day of 2010, A.D.• at o'clOCk ----'-I., ond duly recordsd on
 
tno __ day of 20__ A.D., ot -O'clock ----'-I., In 20. Travis County Oevelopment Permit Is required prior to eits de'l8lopment.
 
the Official Public Records of sold Count)' and State in Document
No	 _ 21. No objects. Including but not limIted to. bulldinge. fencse or londscaping ehan be allowed in CI 

drainage eOSlement llI:llcept as appro'l8d by Trovlll County (and other approprlote jJrllldlctlon!l). 
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE CE lHE COUNTY CLERK of sold County the __ do,
of 20__ A.D. 22. this subdlvtslon wn! utilize oHelte storm water conveyance, detention, ond woter quality controls. 

The offslte Sltorm sewsr line Is withIn a drainage eosement recorded In Document No. 2010151047 
Dono De8ll1auYOlr. County Clerk, Travis County. Te:llos and water quality pond III within a dralnoge easement recorded by separate Instrument Oocument 

No. 2010151048 of the Official Public Records of Trovls County, Te:llas. and will be conlltructed with 
the subdIvision Infrostructurs. 

Deputy	 23. By approWlg this plot, the CIty of Austin aseumes no obligation to construct ony Infralltructure 
In connection with thIs subdlvtslon. Any subdIvision Infrastructure required for the de'l8lopment of 
lots in thl8 BUbdvision Is the rnponsibility of the deYeioper and/or ownel1il of the lots being 
occupied. Fo"ure to conetruct any required infrastructure to City standards may be jJ8t couse for 

NOTES:	 th8 City to den)' applications for certain de'l810pment permits including buDding p8rmlts, site plan
 
opproYOls, ond/or certlficotes of occupancy.
 

1. This subdivision Is located within ths GllIetand CreeK Watershed classified 011 suburbon. 
24. A tsn foot (10') Public Utnity Easement (PUE) Is h..eby dedlcoted odjacent to 011 right-of-way.

2. In a suburban waterehsd. woter quality controls are required for new development In 
accordance with	 the envlronmental c:rIterla manual of the City of Auetln Lond Development Code. 25. Public sideWalkS, built to CIty of Austin stondords. are required along the following streete ond
 

os shown by a dotted lins on the face of the plot: TRAVESIA WAY. t.lE"pOW LANE, KENTER
 
3. AU strlHlts. dralnoge and sidewalks sholl be constructsd and Installed to Travis County CROSSING, IilcALOON WAY ond DOVER FERRY CROSSING. These sldewalkl .nell be In place prior to
 
standards, water ond wastewater lines and erosion controls sholl be constructed ond Instolled to ths lot being occupied. Failure to construct the required sldewalke may relult In the withholdIng of
 
City of Austin standards. Certifloatea of Occupancy. building permits. or utility connsctlon, by the gO'l8rnlng body or utility 

company.
4. Prior to construction on lots In thl8 subdivision, draInage pions will be submitted to the City 
of Austin and Travis County for rsview. Rainfall runoff sholl be held to the amount existing at 26. No eonltructlon on Raceway Single Family SubdIvision SectIon Two sholl commence until the 
unde'l8loped status by pondlng or other approved method. wotsr quality Infrastructure psr Raceway Single Fomny Subdivision Section Ons (CB-2010-0D36.1B) 

has besn constructed and accepted.
5. All drainage eossments on private propsrty sholl be maintained by the property owner or 
anlgns. 27. It Is declared that all of the property of the subdivisIon sholl be hetd, sold and con'l8yed 

subject to the following restrlctlone, covenante and conditions contaIned in tha deed restrictions on 
6. Property owner ond/or his/her osslgns sholl provide for occess to drolnage easements as mo)' file In Document No. 2010188090 of the Official Public Records of TraYle County, Texos.
 
be nscessory ond sholl not prohibit occess by Trovill County or other govemmentol outhorlties for
 
inspection or molntenanc8 of sold eosemenl
 SHEET 2 OF 2 

Fl£:	 J:\Projeet:lW9B\OO3\SurY'l)'\Orowlnv r~••\Fi/'101 P\at - Sec 2.dwg 
J:\Proj.a.W9B\OO3\Su.....ey\Point Files\0A598-Finol Plot Sec. 2.crd 

SURVEYOR:	 ENGINEER: 

~ 26, 2011 .oNCI£CKEl)IJt:om;-
JOB NO: 0A5i8-ooJ-OO/500 llRAWNlJt: ~ 

J r-" JON E S & CAR T E R.I oc. o::.Il[, 1-·100' III 18, 2011 terra	 Lo ENGINEERS·PLANNERS.sURVEYORS ""'''' LAND SURVEYING Te.o. aOOlrd Qf Prof_lonol En'ollne«ll RlI'olh'lrotion No. r -439 RACEWAY SINGLE FAMILY prma 1701 DIRECTORS BL~. S1r.. 400 
AusnN, TEXAS 78744 SUBDMSION SECTION TWO 

1701 e.-tvn ."'-rd. Slo/tII400 ~. r.... 11744 '12/121-1373 r.. 'l2/oWS-22a (512) 441-9493 (Phone) 
(512) 445-2286 (rax) (A SMAIL LOT SUBDMSION) 

COA CASE NO.: CBJ-2010-0036.2A 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request
 

Meeting Date: December 6, 2011
 
Prepared By: Thomas W. Weber Phone #: 854-4629
 

Division Director/Man.. a.ge...r: Jon Ar\White, Director, Natural Resources &
 
Environmental QUalit~sion. ~
 

Department Head: Ste~l, .E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, February 7, 
2012 to receive comments regarding the adoption of proposed changes to the Travis 
County Code to update and strengthen water quality protection requirements, 
including the repeal of Chapter 108, the repeal of various provisions in Chapter 82, 
the revision of certain provisions in Chapters 82 and 64, the addition of new 
Subchapters H - K to Chapter 82, and the addition of new Chapter 104. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
In the recent past, the Travis County Commissioners' Court adopted rules and 
policies for the protection of the County's significant and unique water resources. 
These include requirements for the management of floodplains, the siting of solid 
waste facilities, the set-aside of lands for natural resource protection, the adoption of 
a joint development code with the City of Austin, and the setting of "interim" water 
quality requirements for areas outside of municipal Extra Territorial Jurisdictions 
(ETJs). Although this is substantial progress, gaps remain in County requirements 
both geographically and in terms of comprehensiveness. These regulatory gaps 
should be filled. Furthermore, federal and state requirements mandate that the 
County update its water quality protection requirements so that they are consistent 
with recent changes. 

Elimination and abatement of polluted storm water runoff from private and public 
development construction sites has emerged as a regulatory priority across the 
country and Texas. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) adopted rules 
effective February 1, 2010 and current proposals by the TCEQ set new standards 
and expectations on all operators of a municipal separate storm sewer system 
(MS4). Travis County is a designated small MS4 due to its extensive urbanization 
and has entered the fifth and final year of implementing a required Storm Water 
Management Plan (SWMP). Travis County's MS4 permit and its SWMP establish 
August 12, 2012 as the latest date on which to adopt final rules to set the minimum 
standards and practices acceptable under the federal/state framework. 

Item C4
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



The County's MS4 permit sets out a broad mandate requiring the County to 
implement rules that: 
• cover our entire jurisdiction; 
• control construction sites disturbing more than one acre of land; 
• ensure developments adequately manage runoff after being built; 
• eliminate pollutant discharges into our storm sewers from industrial and 
commercial enterprises; 
• reduce pollutants in runoff from road construction; and 
• set out enforcement policies that will deter and correct violations. 
For all these reasons, these proposed rules are comprehensive and time sensitive. 

The components of the proposed rules include: 

A. The addition of new Subchapters H - K into existing Chapter 82:
 
Subchapters H and I specify the requirements under which a plat application, a
 
Basic Development Permit application, or a BMP Maintenance Permit application
 
would be considered, to ensure an approval meets the water quality protection
 
standards. Subchapter J would apply to permitted construction site owners and
 
operators, to ensure Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWP3s) are carried
 
out as designed. Subchapter K would apply water quality protection standards to
 
County or private roadway and right of way construction projects. Exhibit 1 includes
 
the text of the proposed new Subchapters H - K.
 

B. The addition of new Chapter 104 into the Travis County Code:
 
This chapter would specify requirements and prohibitions applicable to any person
 
who discharges pollutants into the County MS4. The chapter describes allowable de
 
minimus pollutant discharges. It also codifies and clarifies the existing enforcement
 
policy TNR utilizes to address violation of water quality protection requirements.
 
Exhibit 2 includes the text of the proposed new Chapter 104.
 

C. The repeal of Chapter 108 and the repeal of various provisions of Chapter 82:
 
Under the proposed rules, all of Chapter 108 (Tree Preservation Rules) would be
 
repealed. The essential provisions are incorporated into the new Subchapter K. In
 
Chapter 82, the following would be repealed: Sections 82.204(c)(25)(B), 82.209,
 
82.211, and 82.302(g). Each of these repealed provisions would be re-numbered as
 
a new section that is either kept substantially the same or modified and updated.
 
Exhibit 3 is a table that lists and describes each provision proposed for repeal and
 
the new section that will replace it, including information on whether the existing
 
provision is being modified.
 

D. The amendment of various provisions of Chapter 82 and Chapter 64:
 
1. Some definitions that pertain to water quality protection requirements 

would be modified or added, 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



2. Cross references would be added to pertinent standards in Subchapters 
H - K that apply to development proposals, 

3. Development standards pertaining to water quality protection would be 
added, 

4. Various provisions would be "c1eaned up" for greater clarity, 
5. A new Section 82.302(g) would update the County design standards for 

driveway approaches to R.O.W., and 
6. Amendments to 82.401 would revise and expand construction fiscal 

security requirements to ensure construction site stabilization. 
Exhibit 4 is a "leqislative" version showing all proposed insertions and deletions 
comprising these amendments. Exhibit 5 shows four new construction drawing 
details proposed for driveway approaches. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
TNR recommends the setting of a public hearing at Commissioners' Court on 
February 7,2012, to provide the public an opportunity to provide comment on the 
proposed rules. TNR took extensive steps to encourage and invite public comment 
on this rule making. Today's proposal resulted from significant changes to the rules, 
based upon internal and external comments received. On March 15, 2011, the 
Commissioners' Court approved a public participation process to vet the first draft 
proposal. This included creation of a website and a unique web address for receipt 
of comments. Due to the sheer volume of proposed changes, the rules were 
released in three parts in the timeframe of March through May and a schedule for 
submittal of comments was set. In response to queries, staff extended the timeframe 
for responding to the draft rules to accommodate stakeholders. 

With each of the three releases, an e-mail was sent to a wide spectrum of local 
interested parties representing municipal and State agencies, advocacy groups for 
environmental protection, land developers, planners, engineering groups, mining 
interests, and trade organizations. The e-mail group contained approximately 110 
stakeholders. TNR received numerous responses and recommended changes to the 
rules. TNR staff had several meetings with individual parties that facilitated the 
resolution of particular issues of concern. 

In advance of today's proposal to the Commissioners' Court, TNR staff provided an 
e-mail to the same group of stakeholders to invite written comment on this proposal. 
If particular parties are interested, staff also stands ready to meet and discuss this 
proposal and any concerns with it over the next several weeks leading up to the 
January 10th public hearing. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Collectively, the proposed rules would result in greater protection and maintenance 
of water quality in Travis County rivers, streams, and lakes. These proposals would 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



also expand consistency between jurisdictions in a manner that should make 
development design and approval processes more efficient and cost-effective. 

The proposed rules would apply to all of Travis County, including all municipal ETJs, 
except for subdivision development proposals in the City of Austin ETJ, since water 
quality requirements are already in effect there under Title 30 of the Joint 
City/County Code. This represents an expansion of the scope of County 
environmental quality requirements, since the 2005 "interim" rule does not apply in 
any ETJ, and the 2010 Lake Travis rules only apply within that lake's watershed. 

In developing the proposed rules, TNR has reviewed rules of other jurisdictions, 
particularly the City of Austin (COA) and LCRA, and we have sought to harmonize 
requirements so that consistency is expanded to greater areas of Travis County. 
Significant examples include the proposed adoption of the following: 

• Adopting the use of technical guidance manuals already prepared by LCRA for 
western watersheds and COA for eastern watersheds. 
• Establishing the same water quality volume requirements as LCRA for western 
watersheds and the same as COA for eastern watersheds and and a western 
watershed in the COA ETJ. 
• Implementing requirements for storm water personnel qualifications that are 
derived from COA (with an 18 mo. phase-in period). 
• Adopting, in the western watersheds, critical environmental feature and 
waterway setbacks that are equivalent to existing LCRA requirements. 
• Adopting requirements for submittal of an environmental assessment that were 
derived from COA requirements. 
• Adopting fiscal security requirements for construction site stabilization that 
were derived from the LCRA Highland Lakes Watershed Ordinance (HLWO) 
requirements. 
• Adopting a list of 23 "allowable non-storm water" discharges that are consistent 
with the TCEQ Storm Water General Permit and that take into consideration COA 
allowable discharges. 

The proposed rules include requirements for water quality protection that are more 
protective than what the County currently has in place. We believe these more 
protective requirements requirements are justified based on TNR staff regulatory 
experience and professional judgment, local topographic challenges, the sensitivity 
of local aquatic ecosystems, the TCEQ's construction general permit, TCEQ's 
proposed MS4 general permit, new EPA requirements set forth in Title 40, Part 450 
of the Code of Federal Regulations, and the EPA-approved Total Maximum Daily 
Load applicable to the Gilleland Creek watershed. These more rigorous 
requirements include: 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



• Additional environmental requirements to that must be included when fair 
notice of a master development plan is provided. 
• A system for TNR issuance of Best Management Practice (BMP) Maintenance 
Permits that was derived from requirements of Harris County and LCRA, annual 
renewals, an annual fee, and an alternative method for a permittee to educate 
workers and residents on pollution prevention in lieu of paying an annual fee. 
• Technical standards for control of storm water from construction activities 
based upon existing technical guidelines developed in Central Texas (LCRA, COA, 
Edwards Aquifer rules); standards are more rigorous and provide greater 
environmental protection for more difficult site conditions and larger areas of land 
disturbance. 
• New requirements for the control of mining and quarrying, with an emphasis on 
site stabilization, post-mining reclamation, and fiscal security. This section is derived 
from local LCRA and COA requirements and review of rules established in Missouri 
and Wisconsin. 
• Cut and fill requirements that include additional engineering design safeguards 
and standards relating to fill disposal and the quality of fill material. 
• Setbacks from waterways in eastern watersheds that would provide greater 
protection of headwater streams draining 64 acres or more (existing rules are for 320 
acres or greater). 
• Subdivision plat notes that prohibit certain activities in setback areas near 
waterways and critical environmental features. 
• Storm water construction site inspection requirements derived from TCEQ 
general permit requirements and a requirement that certain inspection reports be 
submitted to TNR program staff. 
• Submittal format and construction plan sheet requirements for storm water 
management details that are on par with existing Chapter 82 standards for roads 
and drainage ways. 
• Requirements for erosion and sediment control and post-construction water 
quality ponds that would apply to County roadway projects, private roadway and 
drainage easement projects, and construction of utilities. 
• A requirement that as-built drawings be submitted at final inspection of a 
subdivision or site to facilitate County geo-referencing of structures for our MS4 map. 
• Sustainable roadway standards that are alternatives to current practices (road 
designs without curbs, use of native/drought resistant seed mixes, and use of Low 
Impact Development techniques) 
• A clear standard for unaccepted roadway responsibility. 
• A requirement that requires notice of any spill of hazardous materials if the spill 
could affect a water supply or a county road. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Processes and enforcement of the proposed rules will likely challenge existing staff 
resources in the long-term. The current downturn in development activity greatly 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



reduces short-term impacts on staff resources. Simultaneous with this rule making, 
TNR is increasing its efficiency by establishing data systems to manage processing 
of development requests. The proposed new Section 82.918 would authorize fees 
payable annually and when re-inspection of a water quality control structure is 
necessary. A fee schedule will be proposed for Court consideration at the time this 
rule is adopted. Depending upon the schedule approved, the fees may cover 
additional staffing necessary to administer and enforce the new BMP Maintenance 
Permit program. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit 1 - Proposed new Subchapters H - K, Chapter 82 
Exhibit 2 - Proposed new Chapter 104 
Exhibit 3 - Table showing disposition of repealed Code provisions 
Exhibit 4 - "Legislative" version with proposed insertions and deletions to Chapter 82 
and Chapter 64 
Exhibit 5 - Construction drawing details proposed for driveway approaches 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manaqer TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 
Jon White Division Director TNR 854-7212 
Julie Joe Attorney County Attorney 854-4835 

cc.
 
Thomas Weber Environmental 

Program Manager 
TNR 854-4629 

Dave Fowler Environmental Project 
Manager 

TNR 854-7590 

Anna Bowlin Development Services 
Division Director 

TNR 854-7561 

Teresa Calkins Development Services 
Senior Engineer 

TNR 854-7569 

0801 - NREQ

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Title VII. Improvements -- Subtitle A. Roads 

Chapter 82. Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in Subdivisior 

Subchapter H. Water Quality Protection - General. 
82.910. Purpose.
 
82.911. Authority
 
82.912. Geographic Scope.
 
82.913. Applicability.
 
82.914. Environmental Review.
 
82.915. Pre-development Planning.
 
82.916. Other Environmental Authorizations Required.
 
82.917. BMP Maintenance Permit.
 
82.918. Fees.
 
82.919. Outreach in lieu of Fees.
 
82.920. Fiscal Security.
 
82.921. Variances.
 

Subchapter I. Submittal Requirements and Water Quality Protection Standards. 
82.930. Applicability.
 
82.931. Minimum Requirements for Environmental Review.
 
82.932. Standards and Requirements for Technical Adequacy.
 
82.933. Technical Criteria.
 
82.934. General Storm Water Management Requirements for Construction Activities.
 
82.935. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.
 
82.936. Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices.
 
82.937. Other Controls and Pollution Prevention Measures for Construction Activities.
 
82.938. Erosion and Sediment Control Maintenance Requirements for Construction Activities.
 
82.939. Preliminary Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan.
 
82.940. Effluent Quality. [Reserved]
 
82.941. Setbacks from Critical Environmental Features and Waterways.
 
82.942. Environmental Assessment.
 
82.943. Cut and Fill.
 
82.944. Permanent Water Quality Control.
 
82.945. Requirements for Quarries and Mines.
 
82.946. Subdivision Plat Notes.
 

Subchapter J. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Inspections. 
82.950. Pre-Construction Conference Required.
 
82.951. Owner and Primary Operator SWP3 Inspections.
 
82.952. Submittal of SWP3 Operator Inspection Reports.
 
82.953. Submittal of Engineer's Concurrence Letter.
 

Subchapter K. Roadways and Rights of Way. 
82.970.	 Erosion and Sedimentation Control for Roadways and Drainage
 

Easements.
 

Page 1 of 67 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



82.971. Sustainable Roadways. 
82.972. Native Vegetation. 
82.973. Tree Preservation. 
82.974. Responsibility for Unaccepted Roadways. 

Page 2 of 67
 
Proposal - December 6,2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



SUbchapter H. Water Quality Protection - General 

82.910. Purpose. The purpose of subchapters H - K is to provide the regulated community and 
the public a consolidated set of water quality requirements that apply to applications for Travis 
County development permits, preliminary plans, plats, and construction plans. This chapter 
includes requirements for the environmental review of applications. These subchapters include 
the substantive, minimum environmental technical standards and quldelines that can be 
approved during the application process. The scope of these subchapters includes requirements 
that will control, reduce, and eliminate the discharge of pollutants into the Travis County storm 
sewer system and water in the State through the proper management of storm water and 
drainage while achieving optimal management of floodplains to prevent loss of property and 
human life. 

82.911. Authority 

(a) Subchapters H - K are adopted under the authority granted to a County by Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 232, to adopt rules governing plats and subdivisions of land within 
the unincorporated area of the county to promote the health, safety, morals, or general welfare 
of the county and the safe, orderly, and healthful development of the unincorporated area of the 
county. 

(b) Subchapters H - K are adopted under the authority granted to this County by Texas Local 
Government Code, Chapter 573, to take any necessary or proper action to comply with the 
requirements of the storm water permitting program under the national pollutant discharge 
elimination system (Section 402, Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. Section 1342)). 
The storm water permitting program requires Travis County to develop and implement controls 
that will reduce or eliminate pollutant discharges in Texas waterways, for the protection of 
human health and the maintenance and protection of environmental quality. 

(c) Subchapters H - K are adopted under the authority granted to a County by Texas Water 
Code, Chapter 16, to take all necessary and reasonable actions to comply with the requirements 
and criteria of the National Flood Insurance Program, to promote public health, safety, and 
general welfare. 

82.912. Geographic Scope. Subchapters H - K apply to all unincorporated areas within Travis 
County, including areas within the ETJ of any municipality, except that requirements are not 
applicable to a subdivision development within the ETJ of any municipality that has an executed 
agreement with Travis County that provides for a single office review and where a joint 
city/county code of subdivision regulations exists pursuant to Section 242.001 (d)(4) of the Texas 
Local Government Code. Requirements of other jurisdictions may be applied to a development 
beyond those specified in this chapter or in the Travis County Code. An applicant is responsible 
for determining the requirements of any other applicable federal, state, or local jurisdiction. 

Page 30f67
 
Proposal- December 6,2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



82.913. Applicability. 

(a)	 Subchapters H - K apply to the processing of new applications for a preliminary plan, 
final plat, subdivision construction plan, residential development, single lot 
development, commercial development, or any development that requires a basic 
development permit. 

(b)	 Subchapters H - K apply to the processing of applications to amend or propose 
revisions of an approved preliminary plan, final plat, subdivision construction plan, 
residential development, single lot development, commercial development, or any 
development that requires a basic development permit. 

(c)	 Subchapters H - K apply to the construction, operation, and maintenance of
 
roadways, including rights-of-ways.
 

82.914. Environmental Review. 

(a) One complete copy of any application shall be provided when an application is submitted, 
in addition to any number of copies required by Chapter 64 of the Travis County Code for a 
basic development permit application, and in addition to any number of copies required by 
Section 82.201(b) of this chapter. 

(b) Development within the Lake Travis Watershed is subject to the provisions of the 
Highland Lakes Watershed Ordinance promulgated by the Lower Colorado River Authority and 
the Travis County Code. A person who seeks to engage in development in the Lake Travis 
Watershed must: 

(1) Submit any development application, including revisions to an application and 
required supporting information, to the Lower Colorado River Authority at the same time 
as it is provided to the County Executive; and 

(2) If additional information is required to be provided to the County Executive as a 
part of the review process for a development application, submitted the same additional 
information at the same time to the Lower Colorado River Authority. 

82.915. Pre-development Planning. Before submitting an application for a development 
permit for a Subdivision Development greater than 20 acres in area or a Commercial 
Development greater than three acres in area, an applicant shall arrange a pre
development/concept plan meeting. The meeting will focus on the proposed land plan, slopes, 
buffers, critical environmental features, and water quality management practices for construction 
activities and post-construction storm water management, and may include a site investigation. 

82.916. Other Environmental Authorizations Required. The County Executive provides a 
checklist to assist applicants in determining some of the more typical requirements. 

Page 4 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(a)	 Each applicant seeking a development permit shall submit documentation that 
demonstrates that the proposed development complies with the following statutes, 
rules, and regulations: 

(1) the LCRA Highland Lakes Watershed Ordinance, if the application includes 
development in the Lake Travis watershed; 

(2) the TCEQ Edwards Aquifer requirements at 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 
213, if the application includes development that overlies the Edwards Aquifer 
Recharge Zone or Edwards Aquifer Contributing Zone; 

(3) Section 10 of the federal Endangered Species Act; 

(4) Section 10 of the federal Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 404 of the federal 
Clean Water Act; 

(5) the requirements of a municipality within an extra-territorial jurisdiction; 

(6) The TCEQ industrial or municipal solid waste management requirements under 
Chapter 361, Health and Safety Code; 

(7) Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES) requirements under 
Section 402 of the federal Clean Water Act, Section 26.027, Water Code, or 
Section 26.040, Water Code, including a TCEQ permit for waste discharge into or 
adjacent to water in the state, a Notice of Intent (NOI) along with a Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) discharge of storm water from a construction or 
industrial activity; and 

(8) The TCEQ Dam Safety requirements at 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 
299, if the application includes a proposal to construct a dam to impound water in 
the State. 

(b)	 If any of the statutes, rules, or regulations listed in Subsection (a) do not apply to the 
proposed development, an applicant must submit: 

(1) documentation of that fact from the respective entity with enforcement authority 
over the statute, rule, or regulation, or, 

(2) if documentation of that fact from the respective entity with enforcement authority 
over the statute, rule, or regulation is unavailable, bona fide documentation of that 
fact from a qualified professional along with supporting information. 

(c)	 A copy of the SWP3 identified in paragraph (a)(7) of this section is not required with 
an application for a preliminary plan or final plat. It shall be submitted for review prior 
to approving a subdivision or non-residential site development construction plan. 

Page 5 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



82.917. BMP Maintenance Permit. 

(a)	 Unless the County Executive has waived the requirement for a BMP Maintenance 
Permit pursuant to subsection (i) of this section, an owner, or to the owner's legally
authorized assignee, must upon completion of the infrastructure for each structural, 
permanent water quality control required for the authorized development, obtain a 
BMP Maintenance Permit from the County Executive. 

(b)	 If a subsequent owner, maintenance association, or property owner's association does 
not accept the assignment of ownership of the permanent water quality control, the 
owner who developed the site shall remain subject to the terms of the BMP 
Maintenance Permit until an assignment occurs or until the subsequent owner, 
maintenance association, or property owner's association accepts responsibility for 
compliance with a BMP Maintenance Permit. 

(c)	 Along with the engineer's concurrence letter required pursuant to Section 82.953, the 
owner, or to the owner's legally-authorized assignee shall submit a BMP Maintenance 
Permit application that includes a maintenance plan, the information necessary to 
verify that each water quality control is in proper operating condition. An applicant for a 
BMP Maintenance Permit must remit the required, nonrefundable fee pursuant to 
Section 82.918. 

(d)	 The holder of the BMP Maintenance Permit must maintain the water quality control in 
proper operating condition in accordance with the approved Permit maintenance plan 
and the applicable technical criteria cited in Section 82.933. 

(e)	 Whenever the Inspector determines there are inadequacies requiring corrective 
action, the permit holder must perform the necessary maintenance actions 
enumerated by the Inspector to bring the water quality control into proper operating 
condition. 

(f)	 Not later than 30 days after a change in ownership or operation of a water quality 
control, the new owner or operator must submit an application for a new BMP 
Maintenance Permit. When issued, the responsibility for the water quality control 
transfers from the previous permit holder to the new permit holder. 

(g)	 A BMP Maintenance Permit will be issued for a term not to exceed one year. The 
owner or operator of record has the continuing obligation to apply for renewal of the 
BMP Maintenance Permit at least 30 days prior to the permit term's expiration. It is the 
obligation of the owner or operator to specify in the renewal application whenever any 
necessary changes in maintenance or operation of the water quality control occur. 

(h)	 Pre-existing Water Quality Control. The owner or operator of a water quality control 
authorized or completed prior to [insert effective date of this rule] and after August 12, 
2007, shall submit an application for a BMP Maintenance Permit no later than 

Page 6 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



February 28, 2013. If received by February 28, 2013, the initial application fee will be 
waived. 

(i)	 The County Executive may waive the requirement for a BMP Maintenance Permit in 
instances when: 

(1) a jurisdiction overlaps with the jurisdiction of Travis County and requires a 
similar permit or authorization from the owner or operator, including an 
authorization under 30 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 213 (Edwards Aquifer) 
orthe HLWO; 

(2) a municipality, including a district, maintains the permanent water quality 
control; or 

(3)	 the permanent water quality control is within the City of Austin ETJ. 

82.918. Fees. 

(a) Except as provided by subsection (c), a BMP Maintenance Permit fee is required along 
with each permit application, including for the initial or renewal application. The fee amount for 
each application type that shall be remitted is established by the Commissioners Court. 

(b) A re-inspection fee is required from the permit holder after on-site inspection of the water 
quality control whenever it is determined the water quality control has not been maintained in 
substantial compliance with the maintenance plan provided pursuant to 82.917(c), or when the 
water quality control is inoperable. The re-inspection fee amount is established by the 
Commissioners Court. The re-inspection fee shall be remitted within 30 days of notice of the 
inspection result. Failure to pay a re-inspection fee within the required timeframe or to complete 
the necessary corrective actions may result in enforcement remedies allowable by law. 

(c) A BMP Maintenance Permit renewal fee will be waived when a complete renewal 
application is submitted along with the required documentation of employee and public outreach 
as described in Section 82.919. 

82.919. Outreach in lieu of Fee. 

(a) A person who has been issued a BMP Maintenance Permit pursuant to Section 82.917 of 
this chapter is encouraged to publish and disseminate information to inform and educate the 
general public on day-to-day practices that will prevent the deterioration of water quality from 
sources that drain, or have the potential to drain, to the storm sewer system. 

(b) The format of the outreach may be a brochure, newsletter, attachment or hyperlink in an 
e-mail, or similar method, so long as it is received by each residential owner within a subdivision 
and, in the case of a commercial development, by all owners, tenants, and employees of the 
establishments therein. 

Page 7 of67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(c) In a residential subdivision, the information provided should focus on activities and 
practices of residential households that may cause water pollution if done improperly, such as 
motor vehicle maintenance, use of lawn and garden chemicals, trash and waste management, 
painting, and home repair. The information should give advice on proper methods that will 
prevent runoff of pollutants and the proper disposal methods that prevent pollution. 

(d) In a commercial development, the information should focus on activities specific to the 
establishments that are being operated in the development. 

(e) In both residential subdivisions and commercial developments, the outreach materials 
should describe the maintenance and operation responsibilities of the permit holder, the 
drainage relationship of individual households or establishments to the permanent water quality 
control structure, and the responsibility of all to minimize adverse impacts on storm water that is 
discharged from the control structure. 

(f) A renewal fee for a BMP Maintenance Permit will be waived each year that complete 
documentation of employee or residential outreach is submitted along with a renewal 
application. 

(g) Documentation must include: 

(1) A copy of the outreach material disseminated, consistent with the guidelines of this 
section; 

(2) A signed statement from the permit holder certifying the date(s) within the prior 
twelve month period (permit term) when the materials were disseminated; 

(3) A listing of the persons and business owners, as applicable, who were provided 
the information and the method by which each received it; 

(4) For a commercial development, documentation of materials being provided to each 
business owner or business manager will be adequate, so long as multiple copies are 
provided, so that the business owner can provide one copy to each employee. 

(h) After review and if determined not to be adequate, the permit applicant shall either 
provide the required fee within 14 days to complete the renewal application, or will be provided 
30 days to remedy the deficiency through additional outreach. 

82.920. Fiscal Security. Approval of a permit application for a commercial site and for a 
subdivision development is contingent upon the execution of fiscal security in accordance with 
the requirements of section 82.401 of the Code. 

82.921. Variance. 

(a) Any applicant for a permit or plat may apply for a variance from the requirements of this 
chapter. A variance may be sought only on the basis that the imposition of the requirements of 

Page 8 of67
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



this chapter for the issuance of a permit to the applicant constitutes an exceptional hardship. Any 
variance from this chapter's requirements that would also require a variance from the 
requirements of Chapter 64 of the Code must be considered as separate decisions, even if at 
the same time, and in addition to the requirements of this section. 

(b) An applicant may file a request for variance at any time. However, no variance may be 
granted after an applicant has complied with the provisions of this chapter. An applicant shall file 
the application with a written request, must include all information necessary to allow the 
Commissioners Court to make the findings specified in subsection (c) of this section, and shall 
additionally include: 

(1)	 The particular requirement from which a variance is sought; 

(2)	 The nature of the hardship presented by the imposition of the requirement; 

(3)	 The proposed alternative method or procedure to be utilized in lieu of the 
required method, practice or procedure that is proposed; 

(4)	 A justification that describes how the alternative method or procedure will 
provide at least an equivalent level of environmental protection; 

(5)	 The estimated cost in dollars of complying with the requirement; 

(6)	 The estimated cost in dollars of construction by the proposed alternative 
method or procedure; 

(7)	 The size, in acres, of the land area or the number of lots affected by the 
proposed alternative method or procedure; 

(c) The Commissioners Court may grant a variance from a requirement of this 
chapter after determining that: 

(1)	 the requirement will deprive the applicant of a privilege or the safety of 
property given to owners of other similarly situated property with 
approximately contemporaneous development; 

(2)	 the variance: 

(A)	 is not based on a condition caused by the method chosen by the 
applicant to develop the property, unless the development method 
provides greater overall environmental protection than is achievable 
without the variance; 

(8)	 is the minimum change necessary to avoid the deprivation of a 
privilege given to other property owners, to allow a reasonable, 

Page 9 of67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



economic use of the entire property, and to allow a reasonable use 
of the entire property; and 

(C)	 does not create a significant probability of harmful environmental 
consequences; and 

(3)	 development with the variance will result in environmental protection that 
is at least equal to the environmental protection achievable without the 
variance. 

(d) Mere economic or financial hardship alone does not constitute an exceptional 
hardship that justifies the granting of a variance. 

Page 10 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Subchapter I. Submittal Requirements and Water Quality Protection Standards. 

82.930. Applicability. The standards and requirements of this subchapter apply to the 
following development application proposals: 

(a) An application for development that proposes 10,000 square feet or greater of impervious 
cover or where one acre or more of land would be disturbed; 

(b) An application for development that would disturb less than one acre or more of land but 
is a part of a common plan of development where the overall development would disturb one 
acre or more of land; 

(c) An application for subdivision development that proposes 10,000 square feet or greater of 
impervious cover or where one acre or more of land would be disturbed; 

(d) Other development applications, including for utility placement, right of way construction, 
single lot or parcel construction, a driveway, or an OSSF, that propose less than 10,000 square 
feet of impervious cover or where less than one acre of land would be disturbed must comply 
with Section 82.934(a) and (b)(3) - (4), as a minimum, including following technical guidelines 
for ESC provided by Travis County; and 

(e) An amendment or revision of an approved commercial development, subdivision 
development, or a single lot that includes substantive changes or any application for 
development that is not defined as redevelopment. 

82.931. Submittal Requirements for Environmental Review. In addition to any other 
requirement of the Code, an application must include the information specified in this section. 

(a) For a preliminary plan or a commercial site development plan, the application must 
include: 

(1)	 Except for small construction projects, an environmental assessment as 
specified in Section 82.942 including a survey of critical environmental features, 
waterways, and proposed setbacks that comply with applicable standards; 

(2)	 For a preliminary subdivision plan of ten acres or greater or a commercial site 
development plan of three acres or greater, a storm water management plan 
consisting of: 

i.	 Permanent water quality controls and a summary that describes how the 
proposed permanent water quality controls comply with applicable water 
quality standards and are compatible with drainage plan standards; and 

ii.	 A preliminary SWP3, in accordance with Section 82.939 , that includes a 
summary describing how the storm water controls will comply with 
applicable SWP3 standards for the proposed construction; 

Page 11 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(3)	 Standard subdivision plat notes for a long form final plat that conform to Section 
82.946; and 

(4)	 For a commercial site development plan proposing a mine or quarry, an 
application must include the information specified in paragraphs (1) and (2) and 
the information required by Section 82.945(c)(4). 

(b) For a short form final plat, an application must include the information specified in 
subsection (a), except that the storm water management plan need only be a general description 
of the future improvements planned for the site, if no construction improvements are included in 
the proposal. 

(c)	 For a long form final plat, the plat must show: 

(1)	 Subdivision boundaries, configuration, and extent and lot and easement 
locations and sizes, all of which must comply with all applicable standards, 
including all applicable standards regarding critical environmental features; 

(2)	 The location of all critical environmental features and waterways with required 
buffers and easements in accordance with Section 82.941 of this subchapter; 

(3)	 The location of any required permanent water quality controls, consistency with 
the drainage plan, and compatibility of the plat with proposed SWP3 controls for 
construction; and 

(4)	 Standard plat notes required for the applicable site features and design as 
required by Section 82.946. 

(d)	 For a subdivision or commercial site development construction plan: 

(1)	 The application must include general construction notes that reference the 
SWP3 and storm water management controls for the project in accordance with 
Section 82.935(g)(1) and (2) and Section 82.946; 

(2)	 Except for small construction projects, the application must include SWP3 
description information in standard format plan sheets or pages in accordance 
with Section 82.935(a) - (f) and (h) and Section 82.946; 

(3)	 Except for small construction projects, the application must include SWP3 ESC 
site plan and detail sheets, in accordance with Section 82.935(g)(3), including 
other BMPs as appropriate, and Section 82.946; 

(4)	 Except for small construction projects, the application must include permanent 
BMP Plan Sheet(s) showing the design and details of permanent water quality 
controls compatible with drainage plan standards, in accordance with Section 
82.935(g)(4) and Section 82.946; 

Page 12 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(5)	 Except for small construction projects, the application must include fiscal surety 
documentation for erosion and sediment controls in accordance with Section 
82.401 of the Code; and 

(6)	 For a commercial site development that will use an OSSF, the application must 
include documentation by the applicant that the OSSF construction area will be 
included in the erosion and sediment controls and SWP3 coverage for the site 
development project. 

(e)	 Residential construction submittal. 

(1)	 For residential construction on one lot or land parcel with one or more acres of 
land disturbance: 

(A) An applicant must submit a SWP3 Summary prepared in a format 
approved by the County Executive that includes: 

i.	 The name, signature, and contact information of the primary 
operator, the owner, and their authorized representatives; 

ii.	 the location, address, and legal description of each parcel or lot 
where construction disturbance will occur; 

iii. the location where the SWP3 will be kept for inspection; 

iv. contact information and qualifications of the person(s) who prepared 
the SWP3 and who will perform the SWP3 inspections; 

v.	 the estimated start and end dates of the construction activities; and 

vi. if the applicant is proposing to share coverage using an existing 
SWP3, the SWP3 Summary must include a statement of eligibility for 
such coverage from the primary operator and documentation that the 
authorized representative of the existinq SWP3 accepts this 
arrangement. 

(B) A copy of the SWP3, or an approval of the SWP3, is not required to be 
submitted if the SWP3 Summary is provided in accordance with 
Subparagraph (A), except that for the following projects the SWP3 must 
be submitted for approval: 

i.	 a project that includes critical site improvements as that term is 
defined in Section 82.936(c)(1); 

Page 13 of67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



II.	 a project proposing a yard, hiking trail, or a recharge basin in a 
critical environmental feature setback listed in Section 82.941(e); 

iii.	 a project along Lake Travis or the Colorado River downstream from 
Lady Bird Lake to provide necessary access and appurtenances to a 
boat dock, pier, wharf, or marina, if the project complies with Section 
82.941 U)(2) and is approved by the County Executive; and 

iv.	 a low impact park development if it complies with Section 82.941U)(3) 
and is approved by the County Executive. 

(C)An applicant must submit a Construction Site Notice (CSN), if construction 
is to commence within 30 days of permit approval; 

(D)An applicant must provide a copy of the Notice of Intent (NOI) to the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality if the land disturbance will 
be five acres or greater and if construction will commence within 30 days 
of permit approval; and 

(E) The County Executive may waive the requirement for a copy of a CSN 
and NOI at submittal if the County Executive finds that adequate SWP3 
Summary information is provided. 

(2)	 For residential construction on one lot or land parcel with less than one acre of 
land disturbance, an applicant must submit a County form that specifies that the 
applicant will implement the proper use of ESC and BMPs to minimize water 
quality impacts associated with the land disturbance and include with the form a 
plan for addressing project attributes identified in Section 82.931(e)(1)(B) with 
appropriate ESC measures. 

(3)	 For residential construction on one or multiple lots located in a common plan of 
development, an applicant must submit the information specified in Section 
82.931 (e)(1)(A) - (B), except that if less than one (1) acre of land will be 
disturbed and there is a single owner or operator, the applicant may request an 
exemption from the requirements of Section 82.931(e)(1)(A) if the applicant 
provides adequate documentation of exemption status and the information 
specified in Section 82.931(e)(2) . 

(4)	 For single lot residential construction of any size within the HLWO area or at 
any location proposing to add 10,000 square feet or greater of impervious cover 
within the HLWO area, an applicant shall provide the applicable ESC plan or 
SWP3 submittal specified in Section 82.931(e)(1)-(3), plus a proposal for any 
additional permanent BMPs that are necessary to meet the requirements of 
Section 82.933(c). 

Page 14 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(f)	 Utility or Construction in Right-of-Way Permit: 

(1)	 For a project with less than one acre of land disturbance or a project scope 
defined as a small construction project, the applicant shall specify use of 
standard ESC plan BMPs and standard construction details to be used in the 
construction process, in conformance with Section 82.934(a) and (b)(3) - (4) 
and Sections 82.970 - 82.974. 

(2)	 For a project with one or more acres of land disturbance, the applicant shall 
submit information equivalent to that provided with a site development 
construction plan (pursuant to Subsection (d) of this section), along with a tree 
assessment, in compliance with Section 82.973. 

(g)	 Driveway Approach Permit: 

(1)	 For a Rural Design Driveway, an applicant must submit documentation 
specifying use of approved standard details. 

(2)	 For a Curb and Gutter Driveway, an applicant must submit documentation 
specifying use of approved standard details. 

(3)	 For a Site Development or Commercial Driveway, an applicant must submit the 
application materials as part of the subdivision or site development construction 
plan. 

82.932. Standards and Requirements for Technical Adequacy. Sections 82.933 - 82.946 
and Sections 82.970 - 82.974 describe the standards and requirements that apply to 
applications under environmental review pursuant to the Code. 

82.933. Technical Criteria. 

(a) In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the following technical criteria 
manuals apply, except that any changes to the manuals subsequent to the effective date of this 
subsection shall not take effect until approved by the Commissioners Court: 

(1) Technical criteria for best management practices and water quality controls in 
eastern watersheds and in the ETJ of the City of Austin are those contained in the City of 
Austin Environmental Criteria Manual (effective [insert date of rule adoption]). Alternate 
technical criteria and standard details may be required, on a case-by-case basis, in 
consideration of site-specific conditions. 

(2) Technical criteria for best management practices and water quality controls in 
western watersheds, except within the ETJ of the City of Austin, are those in the LCRA 
HLWO Water Quality Management Technical Manual (effective July 1,2007), provided 
that to the extent of any conflict, in watersheds contributing to the Edwards Aquifer the 
owner may use any equivalent or more stringent technical criteria in TCEQ's Complying 

Page 15 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



with the Edwards Aquifer Rules: Technical Guidance and Best Management Practices 
(RG-348). 

(b)	 The County may require alternate technical criteria and standard details may be 
required, on a case-by-case basis, in consideration of site-specific conditions. 

(c) The County may approve alternate technical criteria proposed by an applicant if it finds 
that the applicant has presented data that demonstrates that the alternative technical criteria are 
justified by the site constraints and other similar factors and provide equivalent water quality 
protection to the criteria described in Subsections (a) and (b). 

82.934. General Storm Water Management Requirements for Construction Activities. 

(a) Temporary and permanent best management practices shall be employed to prevent 
polluted storm water runoff from all construction and development activities from entering water 
in the State during the construction process until final site stabilization is complete. 

(b)	 Responsibilities of an Owner and Operator. 

(1) An owner and a primary operator of a property where construction activity occurs are 
each responsible for implementing approved site plans, construction plans, and 
specifications, maintaining day-to-day operational control of construction activities, 
developing and implementing SWP3s, if required, and implementing BMPs in accordance 
with this section. 

(2) An SWP3 must be developed and implemented in accordance with this section for: 

(A) Any construction activity or common plan of development for which a Travis 
County development permit is required and that disturbs one or more acres of land; 

(B) An individual lot in a common plan of development that disturbs less than 
one acre of land; and 

(C)any commercial development project that disturbs less than one acre of land. 

(3) In those instances where there is less than one acre of land disturbance and neither the 
owner nor primary operator is required to develop and implement an SWP3, the owner 
and the primary operator must still implement BMPs appropriate to the scope of the 
construction activities in compliance with this section. 

(4) If sediment escapes a project site, the owner or operator must remove any accumulations 
that adversely affect off-site property and water in the State. Accumulations must be 
removed at a frequency that eliminates or minimizes to the maximum extent practicable 
any adverse impacts, and the removal must be accomplished prior to the next rain event 
whenever feasible. If the owner or operator does not own or operate the off-site 
conveyance, the work must be accomplished by working with the owner or operator of the 

Page 16 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



property to remove the sediment. The removal and remediation work for any off-site 
sediment impacts proposed by the owner or operator of the construction site must be 
approved by the off-site property owner and the County Executive, prior to such work 
being done. The proposal must demonstrate that no further adverse environmental 
impacts will result from the remediation work. 

(5) The primary operator and secondary operator of a property where construction activity 
occurs are responsible for complying with the conditions outlined in Part III, Section B of 
TPDES General Permit TXR150000 issued by the TCEQ on February 15, 2008, and 
these conditions as described in a subsequent renewal or amended permit. 

(c) .... Qualificationsfor SWP3 Design and Inspection. For any project being constructed after 
[18 ntOJ'lth$ ffomeffective datE;!] that requires a Travis County development permit and an SWP3, 
the SWP3 must be designed, certified, inspected, and approved only by individuals with the 
proper qualifications and certifications, as described below: 

(1) Only a Texas-registered professional engineer or a Certified Professional in Erosion 
and Sediment Control ("CPESC") may design and approve an SWP3. 

(2) For projects required by this chapter to prepare a SWP3 and to have an engineer 
certification of the construction plans, only a Texas-registered professional engineer may 
seal any engineering calculations that may be required for the SWP3. 

(3) Only a CPESC, a Certified Erosion, Sediment, and Storm Water Inspector 
("CESSWI"), and a Certified Inspector of Erosion and Sediment Control ("CIESC") may 
perform SWP3 inspections and sign SWP3 Inspection Reports required by Section 
82.951. 

(4) An individual who can demonstrate to the County that the individual has 
experience or certification equivalent to that of a CPESC, CESSWI, or CIESC may 
perform the SWP3 inspection and sign each SWP3 Inspection Report required by Section 
82.951 for a residential project meeting the scope of Section 82.931(e)(1)(A) i. - v. or 
residential lots in a common plan of development of three acres or less, when the lots are 
not constructed concurrently. 

(d) Each owner and primary operator must comply with all applicable requirements for Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWP3s) and Best Management Practices (BMPs) for 
construction activities, as described in Sections 82.935 - 82.940 and Sections 82.970 - 82.974. 

82.935. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. 

(a) The contents of the SWP3 that must be submitted to the County Executive for approval 
as part of an application for a development permit must be equivalent to or provide greater 
environmental protections than the contents required by TPDES General Permit TXR 150000 
issued by the TCEQ on February 15, 2008 (and any subsequent renewal or amended permit 
issued by TCEQ) . The contents of the SWP3 must also meet all additional technical standards 

Page 17 of 67
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



specified in Sections 82.936 - 82.940, Sections 82.970 - 82.974, and shall be prepared in the 
format(s) specified in this section. The SWP3 contents shall be placed within a standard . 
construction plan sheet format or other standard format(s) developed and made available by the 
County. Until the County SWP3 format is made available, the County will accept the TCEQ and . 
City of Austin ECM SWP3 formats if they include the additional technical standards specified in 
this section and Sections 82.936 - 82.940. The SWP3 shall include the contents specified in this 
section. 

(b) Site and Project Description. Each SWP3 must include the following general site and 
project description information: 

(1) A description of the nature of the construction activity and a summary of the 
primary and secondary construction project types and operations planned, including the 
major construction improvement site features planned; 

(2) A summary list or table of potential pollutants, including sediment from runoff, 
sediment from non-storm water discharges, solid wastes from miscellaneous construction 
activities, petroleum hydrocarbons from vehicle and equipment maintenance and asphalt 
operations, and pollutants from miscellaneous industrial and construction materials, their 
sources, and proposed controls,. For each pollutant and source, the summary or table 
must specify the section or location in the SWP3 where the controls for the pollutant are 
listed and described 

(3) A description of the intended schedule or sequence of construction activities that 
will disturb soil for major portions of the site, including the construction sequencing 
information required in Section 82.301(c)(2)(C) and the following additional information: 

(A) Each construction project and each discrete major phase of a multi-phase 
construction project or common plan of development shall have a detailed 
sequence of construction and BMP implementation listed in the SWP3; 

(B) The detailed sequence of construction and BMP implementation for each 
project or discrete major project phase shall list major construction operations and 
site improvements summarized in paragraph (1) of this subsection and the 
implementation, phasing, and scheduling of all the SWP3 ESC and BMPs required 
for these operations and improvement features. These include all the erosion 
source controls, sediment controls, temporary and permanent stabilization 
controls, and other controls and pollution prevention measures in the approved 
plans; and 

(C) The total months estimated from the start of construction to the completion 
and final stabilization shall be included for the project, including each discrete 
major phase, if applicable. 

(4) The total number of acres of the entire property and the total number of acres 
within the entire property where construction activities will occur, including off-site material 

Page 18 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



storage areas and stockpiles of fill, spoil, and borrow areas that are authorized under the 
same TCEQ NOI or CSN and Travis County development permit; 

(5) The approximate, estimated cubic yards of excess fill material (soil, subsoil, rock) 
that will be generated by the project cut and fill operations that will require permanent off
site disposal, if any. 

(6) A description of existing and post-construction site conditions, including: 

(A) The existing soil types at the site, including soil information describing the 
principal, most extensive soil types in the areas to be disturbed, using reference 
information from The Soil Survey of Travis County, Texas, by the U.S. Dept of 
Agriculture; 

(8) A short, summary description of existing site conditions, including any 
existing land development features and the approximate percentage of existing 
grass cover and tree canopy; and 

(C) For a SWP3 prepared for a subdivision or commercial site development 
required to provide a drainage plan, a summary of slope gradients present, 
including the approximate percentage of the total site acreage proposed to be 
disturbed from paragraph (4) that is a zero to five percent grade, a five to ten 
percent grade, and a greater than ten percent grade. As an alternative, composite 
slope gradients for the individual drainage areas in the site drainage plan may be 
added on the ESC sheet drainage areas maps required by Subsection (g)(3)(G). 

(7) Any existing critical environmental feature and water in the State to which runoff or 
a pollutant discharge would be conveyed, either on or adjacent to the construction site; 

(8) The name, and segment number, if applicable, of receiving waters at or near the 
site covered by the SWP3 that may receive discharges from disturbed areas of the 
project, including the USGS stream type: ephemeral, intermittent, or perennial. If any 
receiving water is on the TeEQ List of Impaired Waters (relating to the CWA section 
303(d», indicate this and the pollutant parameter(s) and designated or presumed use that 
does not meet the water quality standard; 

(9) The location, description, and authorization number or identifier of any support 
activity authorized under the owner or primary operator NOI or CSN for this project or 
Travis County development permit, including an asphalt or concrete batching operation, 
temporary or permanent fill or staging area, and other activities providing support to this 
construction site that is authorized under the TCEQ general permit; and 

(10) Information on whether the SWP3 and construction plans are in compliance with 
other applicable approved state and local regulations and permitting requirements in 
addition to the requirements of the County Executive under the Travis County Code, 
including those authorizations identified in Section 82.916(a). 

Page 19 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(c) ESC and BMPs Description. Each SWP3 must include a summary that: 

(1) describes all of the ESC and BMPs selected for the project that meet all applicable 
standards in Sections 82.933 and 82.936; 

(2) includes each erosion source control, sediment control, and permanent erosion 
and soil stabilization control for the project; 

(3) lists the individual controls selected and specifies where in the construction plan 
sheet(s) the details, specifications, schedule of implementation, site plans, and other 
relevant information for the controls are located; 

(4) includes calculations for sediment basins; and 

(5) if requested by the County, calculations for sediment controls other than sediment 
basins. 

(d) Each SWP3 must include a summary that: 

(1) describes any permanent storm water control or BMP required by this subchapter 
that will be installed to control pollutants in a storm water discharge that may occur after 
construction has terminated; and 

(2) lists each individual control selected and specifies where in the construction plan 
sheet(s) the details, specifications, schedule of implementation, site plans, drainage 
plans, and any other relevant information for the controls are located. 

(e) Each SWP3 must include a summary that: 

(1) includes a description of any controls and pollution prevention measures selected 
for the project that meet all applicable requirements in Section 82.937; 

(2) addresses: 

(A) each non-storm water discharge control; 

(B) solid waste and hazardous substance management; 

(C) staging and stockpile area management; 

(D) fill and spoils management and disposal; 

(E) materials inventory and management; 

(F) spill prevention and control; and 

Page 20 of 67 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(G) construction support activity control. 

(3) includes th~~ ~:.:. .. '::rd reouirernents and the custom controls selected for the 
proJe,....~; ano 

(4) specifies where in the construction plan sheet(s) any additional details, 
specifications, schedule of implementation, and site plans are located. 

(f) Maintenance and Inspection Description. Each SWP3 must include a summary that 
describes how the maintenance, training, and inspection requirements for the SWP3 meeting the 
applicable requirements of this chapter. The summary shall include at least the following: 

(1) The general SWP3 implementation and maintenance responsibilities of each 
responsible primary and secondary operator, including the name and contact information 
of the responsible part(ies) for the primary operator(s); 

(2) The name, qualifications, and contact information of the qualified individual who 
has been designated by the owner to conduct SWP3 inspections; 

(3) The schedule for SWP3 monitoring inspections and reports; 

(4) The maintenance and inspection procedures for SWP3 inspection milestones, 
including: pre-construction, site monitoring, post-rainfall, SWP3 revisions, permanent 
drainage and water quality system inspections, complaint response, non-compliance, final 
inspection and final stabilization; and 

(5) When the name and contact information for the primary operator with day-to-day 
operational control of the construction site and the qualified SWP3 inspector are not 
available at the time of permit application review, it shall be provided at or before the pre
construction conference required under Section 82.950, and included in the SWP3 Site 
Notebook. 

(6) The applicable training requirements for the site personnel who are responsible for 
implementing the various requirements of the SWP3 during construction, including each 
person to be trained on their roles and responsibilities, the type and content of the training 
to be received by each person, and the training schedule and records for each person. 

(g) ESC and BMP Site Plan Construction Sheets. Construction plan sheets shall show each 
site plan, specifications, plan details, and implementation requirements for the ESC and other 
BMPs selected for the project and be included as part of the SWP3. The construction sheets 
shall be consistent with Section 82.301(c), relating to Engineer's Construction Plan 
Requirements, and shall also include the following additional items in order to meet all SWP3 
requirements: 

Page 21 of 67
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1) Cover Sheet, including a site location map that meets the TCEQ General Permit 
requirements; 

(2) General Notes Sheet: 

(A) Travis County General Construction Notes for subdivision and site 
deveiopmem construction, and special notes when necessary, shall be consistent 
with the SWP3 and include standard notes and references to SWP3 plan sheets, 
implementation, and inspection requirements as specified. 

(B) The sequence of construction and BMP implementation shall meet all the 
requirements listed in paragraph (b)(3) of this section. The sequence of 
construction may be located in the general notes sheet and referenced in the 
SWP3 sheets, or vice versa, but it must be identical. 

(3) ESC and BMPs Sheets. In addition to items listed in Section 82.301(c)(3), the 
following items shall be included in ESC BMP Sheets in order to meet all applicable 
requirements of Sections 82.933,82.936 - 82.940, and Sections 82.970 - 82.974: 

(A) A Limits of Construction (LOC) line, clearly showing the areas where soil 
disturbance will occur; 

(B) Existing and proposed slope contours before and after major grading and 
permanent site construction improvements; 

(C) The name and location of each surface water either at, or adjacent to the 
site that receives storm water discharges from the disturbed areas of the site; 

(0) Each structural erosion source control proposed and the location, a 
description of the site phasing and implementation schedule, and relevant plan 
notes and plan details, including drainage diversion and dissipation details. Non
structural erosion source controls applicable to the ESC and BMP sheets shall be 
included in plan notes, descriptions, and details. 

(E) Each sediment control proposed and the location, a description of the site 
phasing and implementation schedule, and relevant plan notes and plan details, 
including each sediment pond with design information, sediment trap, perimeter 
controls, and interior control; 

(F) Each permanent erosion and soil stabilization control proposed and the 
location, a description of the site phasing and implementation schedule, and 
relevant plan notes and plan details, including: temporary stabilization measures, 
permanent vegetative stabilization measures, and permanent structural erosion 
control measures; 

Page 22 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(G) Drainage area boundaries, the acreage of each drainage area, and flow 
arrows from the project's proposed drainage plan must be included on the site plan 
maps for structural erosion source controls, temporary sediment controls, and 
permanent erosion and soil stabilization controls; 

(H) Each permanent water quality control, other permanent BMPs, areas of 
waterway or critical environmental feature setbacks, and permanent site 
improvement proposed for the project; 

(I) Other controls and pollution prevention measures proposed for which a 
location on the site plan is necessary and a description of the implementation 
schedule, plan notes, and plan details as applicable, including each stabilized 
construction entrance, concrete wash out area, vehicle maintenance and washing 
area, fuel tankage; dewatering controls for any pond, stream crossings, 
excavations, and other non-storm water controls. 

(J) Depiction of each construction support activity and associated controls on
site or directly adjacent to the site, including each staging and stockpile area, haul 
road, temporary storage and permanent disposal area for fill and spoil, and asphalt 
or concrete batching. 

(K) Each storm water outfall (existing and planned) and other points, where 
discharges associated with the construction activities site will occur; and 

(L) A complete legend for each symbol used on the plan sheet for the various 
controls and BMPs, and standard and special specification details and plan notes. 

(4) Drainage Layout, Plan and Profile, Detention Water Quality Control Structure, and 
Construction Detail Sheets. Plan sheets showing drainage layout, plan and profile, 
detention and water quality pond, and construction detail shall include additional technical 
standards, setback boundaries, notes, and details necessary for constructing all 
applicable permanent erosion controls, permanent storm water management and water 
quality BMPs required by this subchapter. Design details must incorporate the technical 
criteria requirements referenced in Section 82.933 when applicable. 

(h) SWP3 Site Notebook. 

(1) The SWP3 Site Notebook shall be maintained and updated by the owner or 
operator during the construction of a development project. The SWP3 Site Notebook shall 
be maintained on-site with a copy of the approved construction plans and County 
development permit, which together constitute the comprehensive SWP3 for the project. 

(2) Required SWP3 contents listed in this section will be specified in a SWP3 format 
made available by the County in accordance with subsection (a) of this section. This 
format will also indicate which required SWP3 contents may be provided before the start 

Page 23 of67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



of construction in the SWP3 Site Notebook instead of within the construction plan sheets 
approved with the development permit. 

(3) The SWP3 Site Notebook must include either an original or a copy of at least the 
following: 

(A) the TCEQ General Permit, each TCEQ notice, signed SWP3 inspection 
reports, inspection and revision logs, and all adjustments, modifications, and 
official plan revisions to the approved SWP3 and ESC construction plan sheets 
and BMPs that occur after the start of construction. 

(B) Day-to-day operator and secondary operator information; qualified inspector 
information; owner and operator SWP3 certifications or delegation letters, if 
executed; operator site personnel qualifications and training records, if required. 

(C) Any additions or modifications to the SWP3's Other Controls and Pollution 
Prevention Measures, including: non-storm water discharge controls, site 
materials inventories and records, spill prevention and control procedures, and 
related records. 

(i) For each SWP3, including any revision or change prepared by an owner or operator, a 
copy shall be submitted to the County in either paper, portable document format (pdf), or other 
approved electronic format. The SWP3 shall be provided in the format and with contents that 
conform with requirements of this section, prior to final approval of the applicable Travis County 
development permit or subdivision construction plan. 

U) Revision of the SWP3. 

(1) An implementation schedule for revisions must be described in the SWP3 in 
accordance with this section and all revisions and adjustments must be documented by 
the operator's qualified SWP3 inspector in the SWP3 Site Notebook. 

(2) The owner or operator must revise or update the SWP3 whenever one or more of 
the following circumstances occur: 

(A) A change in design, construction, operation, or maintenance that has a 
significant effect on the discharge of pollutants and that has not been previously 
addressed in the SWP3; 

(B) A change in site conditions based on updated plans and specifications, 
amendment of an approved development permit, a new operator, a new area of 
responsibility for an operator, or a change in a BMP; 

(C) A result from an investigation or inspection by the operator, as required by 
Section 82.951 that indicates the SWP3 is proving ineffective in eliminating or 
significantly minimizing pollutants in discharges; or 

Page 24 of 67 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(D) A result from an investigation or inspection by an Inspector that indicates 
the SWP3 is proving ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing pollutants 
in discharges. 

(3) Revisions to the SWP3 must be completed within seven calendar days following 
an inspection or within a shorter timeframe as specified by the Inspector. 

(4) Revisions and adjustments to the SWP3 may be approved in the field by the 
Inspector during construction. 

(5) SWP3 revisions which require formal County plan review and approval include 
those which require additional engineering calculations or engineered design changes, 
although the County Executive reserves the right to require formal plan revisions on 
construction plan changes or SWP3 changes, based upon site-specific characteristics, 
ESC and BMP performance issues, or similar factors. 

82.936. Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices. 

(a) General. Temporary and permanent ESC and BMPs implemented in an SWP3 must 
include both structural runoff controls and non-structural management practices, and must 
comply with the design standards described in this section. All control measures must be 
properly selected, installed, and maintained according to the manufacturer or designer 
specifications and the approved Travis County development permit, plans, and SWP3. The 
SWP3 and construction plans must identify the locations, specifications, and timing or sequence 
for BMP implementation within the schedule of the construction activities. 

(b) Design Storm Standards for the SWP3. ESC and BMPs must be developed and 
implemented in the SWP3 to prevent and minimize off-site discharge of sediment and other 
pollutants. The design must ensure retention of sediment and other potential pollutants 
associated with the construction activity on-site, in accordance with the required design storm 
standard, to the maximum extent practicable. 

(1) A sediment basin must provide sufficient storage to contain a calculated volume of 
runoff from a 2-year, 24-hour storm until final stabilization of the site. 

(2) Flows from stabilized areas and on-site or off-site undisturbed areas are not 
required to be included in the basin calculations if the flows are diverted around the 
disturbed areas of the site and the sediment basin. 

(3) Design of ESC and BMPs must be consistent with the approved technical criteria 
established for the site location as set forth in Section 82.933. 

(c) Site Specific Criteria for ESC Plan Design. The site specific factors identified in 
paragraphs (1) - (5), where applicable, must be given primary consideration and priority in 
selecting the types and amounts of the three primary categories of ESC listed in subsection (d) 

Page 25 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



of this section and applicable BMPs from section 82.937 of this subchapter and Section 82.970 
of this chapter for each construction site: 

(1) Special Definitions. In this Chapter: 

(A) "Critical Site Characteristics" means the primary site-specific topographic 
factors that must be evaluated and considered in the design of an ESC plan and 
must be addressed with suitable measures and BMPs; these factors include the 
total area disturbed in combination with the slope steepness, the slope lengths, the 
soil erosiveness, the run-on drainage, the total drainage area size, and the 
proximity to water in the State. 

(B) "Critical Site Improvements" means specific improvements on a construction 
site that are prone to greater erosion and sediment discharge and therefore require 
greater amounts and types of ESC for sediment control and final stabilization in the 
ESC plan design; these include: construction site features in areas with increased 
levels of critical site characteristics, cut slopes and fill embankment slopes 
exceeding ten percent (10%) grade, side slopes of permanent storm water ponds, 
designed drainage channels, drainage swales and concentrated flows, bridges and 
culverts and their approaches, storm water outfalls, and areas with seed and 
topsoil installed undergoing re-vegetation with grades greater than five percent 
(5%). 

(2) Critical Site Characteristics. ESC plan design measures must address and 
correspond to critical site characteristics of a disturbed soil area. The ESC plan design 
must minimize the potential adverse off-site discharge impacts to the maximum extent 
practicable, and at the very least, must address the priority areas described in 
subparagraphs (A) - (C) of this paragraph. 

(A) For all disturbed soil areas, as the level and combination of the critical site 
characteristic factors increase, erosion and off-site sediment discharge potential 
also increases, requiring increased amounts and types of ESC in the ESC plan 
design. 

(B) Disturbed soil areas with slopes greater than five percent, and disturbed 
channels with slopes two percent or greater require increased amounts and types 
of ESC than comparable areas of lesser slope. ESC amounts necessary for these 
areas must further increase as drainage area, slope length, and slope steepness 
increase. 

(C) Stream crossings to water in the State (including intermittent or perennial 
surface water, or a groundwater recharge conduit) and disturbed areas and outfalls 
located within 150 feet of water in the State or a critical environmental feature, are 
areas where increased amo..unts and types of erosion and sediment controls will be 
necessary in the ESC plan design. 

Page 26 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(3) Construction Project Type. The type of project being co.Lrructed must guide the 
applicant in the selection of the ESC a"'~ S111ir' controls that are the most effective for the 
characterist.cs 01 1I1<:; ~Ile and typical industry practices common to each primary type of 
conctruction project type. Primary construction project types include: site construction 
including buildings and parking areas, residential homes, construction support areas, 
construction maintenance activities, and linear construction, including streets, drainage, 
and underground utilities. 

(4) Construction Features and Critical Site Improvements. Construction features that 
must be considered in the ESC plan design include: all disturbed areas, fill 
embankments, cut slopes, temporary and permanent stream crossings, roadways, 
underground utilities, residential lots, bridges, culverts, storm sewer systems, channels, 
inlets, basins, outfalls; temporary entrances, roads, and stockpiles. All criticaksite 
improvements must be addressed as required in the ESC Plan design. 

(5) Construction Duration, Phasing, and Sequence. The length of time from start of 
construction to final stabilization, the construction site phasing, and the construction 
sequence for each phase must be considered for each construction project. Projects 
extending over longer periods of time will typically require increased site phasing and 
construction sequence considerations in the ESC plan design, especially larger and more 
complex construction projects, and projects with increased levels of critical site 
characteristics and critical site improvements. 

(d) Primary ESC Categories and Functions. Each SWP3 ESC plan must include the three 
primary types of ESC. Erosion Source Controls, Sediment Controls, and Permanent Erosion/Soil 
Stabilization Controls. All ESC plans shall be designed to include a combination of all three 
primary types of ESC in order to control storm water volume and velocity within the construction 
site, minimize the discharge of sediment and other pollutants, and effectively perform the 
following functions. 

(1) Erosion Source Controls. Each SWP3 ESC plan must include structural and non-
structural erosion source controls in order to minimize the amount of soil particles that can 
potentially become mobilized by erosion during construction activities. The erosion source 
controls listed in (A)-(E) must be included in the ESC Plan, where feasible, and 
implemented to the maximum extent practicable to reduce erosion and increase the 
effectiveness of the sediment controls and permanent erosion/soil stabilization controls in 
the ESC Plan: 

(A) Minimize Soil Disturbance and Compaction. Soil disturbance shall be 
minimized in areas with critical site characteristics. Required setbacks for 
protection of all streams, floodplains, and critical environmental features shall 
remain undisturbed. Within a developed or disturbed area of the site, existing 
vegetation and desirable environmental features should be preserved where 
feasible. Disturbance of steeper and longer slopes should be minimized. Soil 
compaction should be minimized and surface roughening or texturing should be 
undertaken in disturbed soil areas where appropriate. 

Page 27 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(B) Phase Soil Disturbance and Stabilization. The total amount of disturbed soil 
exposed at one time shall be limited through phasing of major portions of the 
construction project, to the maximum extent practicable. Temporary protection or 
permanent stabilization of disturbed soil areas must be accomplished as required 
by paragraph (3) of this subsection, and as specified in the detailed construction 
sequence for each project or project phase. 

(C) Managing Staging Areas, Site Grading, and Fill Material. The staging and 
stockpile area management requirements listed in Section 82.937(b)(3) must be 
used to minimize discharges from such areas during the construction process. The 
fill and spoils management and disposal requirements listed in Section 
82.937(b)(4) must be used to effectively manage the soil material excavated, 
transported, and placed on or off the construction site to minimize it as a source of 
sedimentation. During the site grading process, the operator shall implement 
placement of temporary soil grades, sumps, and berms that will act to inhibit runoff 
and promote infiltration on site to the maximum extent practicable, in addition to 
required structural controls. 

(D) Drainage Diversion. Run-on drainage to disturbed soil areas shall be 
diverted around disturbed areas, whenever feasible through temporary or 
permanent structural diversions, or through the use of other BMPs, including 
construction of all or parts of the permanent drainage conveyance systems and 
structures designed for the site as early as possible in the sequence of 
construction. 

(E) Drainage Dissipation. Storm water discharges, including both peak flow 
rates and total storm water volume, shall be controlled to dissipate drainage flow, 
minimize erosion within the site and at drainage outlets, and to minimize 
downstream channel and stream bank erosion. Velocity dissipation devices are to 
be used as site interior controls and must slow velocities, spread out flows, and 
promote sedimentation. Velocity dissipation devices at drainage discharge 
locations and along the length of any outfall channel must provide a non-erosive 
flow velocity from the structure to a water course. Velocity dissipation devices must 
prevent degradation of natural physical and biological characteristics and 
functions. 

(2) Sediment Controls. Structural sediment controls must be designed to protect all 
disturbed soil areas from discharging sediment off of the construction site. Sediment 
control structures must capture and temporarily detain the required storm water runoff 
volume and must effectively retain sediment from the range of soil particle sizes expected 
to be present at the construction site, to the maximum extent practicable. In addition, 
sediment controls must meet the following standards: 

(A) Drainage volume calculations for sediment controls shall be prepared in 
accordance with the guidelines in the Austin Drainage Criteria Manual. 

Page 28 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(B) Sediment control structures are to be redundant and placed at perimeter 
and interior locations within the construction site to maximize sediment trapping 
areas and temporary runoff capture volume to maximize sedimentation and 
address all applicable site factors and priorities described in subsection (c) of this 
section. 

(C) Each structural sediment control shall be designed and placed so that runoff 
flows, including flows exceeding the design storm, will discharge or overtop the 
structure in a controlled manner at planned outlet points. without breaching of the 
sediment control structure, without causing uncontrolled discharge. and without 
causing flooding of adjacent property. Longer lengths of structural sediment 
controls will typically require perpendicular dissipation structures, especially when 
such controls cannot be placed along the contour. Low points in the sediment 
control structure which develop into runoff outlet points must be further redesigned 
or reinforced as necessary before the next runoff event to prevent breaching and 
uncontrolled discharges. Where feasible within the limits of construction, storm 
water should be directed to vegetated areas to increase sediment removal and 
maximize infiltration. 

(0) Primary Types of Structural Sediment Controls. The primary types of 
Structural Sediment Controls include: 

(i) Sediment basin. Unless a sediment basin is not feasible due 
to the factors listed in Sub-clause a., a sediment basin is required for 
disturbed drainage areas of five or more acres in order to minimize 
sediment discharges. If a site design includes a permanent water quality 
control pond, the pond must be used as a temporary sediment basin during 
construction, unless it is not feasible due to the factors listed in Sub-clause 
a. 

a. Feasibility. Factors in determining whether a sediment basin 
is necessary or appropriate include critical site characteristics, as well 
as the available area, public safety, precipitation patterns, site 
geometry, site location, site vegetation, infiltration capacity, 
geotechnical factors, depth to groundwater, and other similar 
considerations. If a sediment basin is not feasible, the applicant shall 
document the reason and utilize equivalent control measures, which 
may include a series of smaller sediment basins or traps, increased 
perimeter and interior sediment controls, and other ESC BMPs. 

b. A sediment basin and outlet shall be designed to maximize 
sedimentation, including sedimentation of the finest sediment 
particles to the maximum extent practicable and shall have a 
reinforced spillway for overflow discharges. Sediment must be 
removed from the sediment basin no later than the time that design 

Page 29 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



volume has been reduced by greater than ten percent. Basin de
watering must comply with section 82.937(b)(1)(c). 

c. Disposal of sediment removed from a basin may require 
special handling, in accordance with TCEQ requirements, when 
coagulants, flocculants, or other treatment chemicals are used. 

d. Sequence. A temporary sediment basin or permanent water 
quality control pond serving initially as a construction sediment basin, 
must be installed first during the sequence of construction. 

(ii) Sediment traps. A sediment trap is a small sediment basin or 
impoundment area located at strategic areas on the construction site where 
the runoff volume can safely be temporarily detained to increase capture 
volume, to maximize sedimentation effects, and to retard runoff velocity. 

(iii) Perimeter Sediment Controls. Silt fencing or equivalent 
sediment controls are required for all down slope boundaries of the 
disturbed construction site area where runoff can discharge off-site. 

(iv) Interior Sediment Controls. Structural sediment controls of 
various types shall be placed at locations within the construction site interior 
to address critical site characteristics, construction project type, construction 
site features and critical site improvements, and construction length, 
phasing, and sequence. 

(v) Temporary sediment control structures must be maintained in 
accordance with the plans and specifications throughout the construction 
process and removed along with accumulated sediment when final site 
stabilization is completed for the entire site or the site phase. 

(3) Permanent Erosion and Soil Stabilization Controls. Each permanent structural and 
vegetative erosion control design plan must prevent long term erosion of site 
improvements, reduce runoff velocities; and achieve full, permanent vegetation coverage 
and final site stabilization, including prioritizing the stabilization of critical site 
improvements. When phasing and implementing site stabilization in the SWP3, the 
operator must adopt the following priorities and meet the following standards and 
minimum schedule of initiation and completion: 

(A) The operator must give first priority for stabilization to portions of the 
construction site that have critical site improvements. These critical site 
improvements will typically require greater amounts of permanent erosion control 
measures to achieve effective final stabilization, such as mulch, soil blankets, or 
riprap, as appropriate. If feasible, the operator must implement stabilization of 
other portions of the construction site early in the sequence of construction and 

Page 30 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



initiate and complete re-vegetation of the remainder of the construction site as 
soon as practicable before submittal of the engineer's concurrence letter. 

(8) Topsoil meeting the applicable technical criteria in Section 82.933 and the 
approved plans shall be placed as required prior to permanent seeding and 
mulching activities for re-vegetation. Existing native site topsoil shall be stockpiled 
and reused for this purpose whenever it is feasible. 

(C) Seed, mulch, soil retention blanket, fertilizer, irrigation for vegetation 
establishment, and other measures used for re-vegetation of disturbed areas shall 
meet the applicable technical criteria in Section 82.933 and shall be specified in 
the approved plans. The primary operator must follow irrigation schedules and 
methods that will result in successful and rapid germination and growth of the 
seeded or planted vegetation, and take advantage of optimum seasonal, time-of
day, and temperature conditions. 

(D) Stabilization of disturbed areas must, at a minimum, be initiated by the 
primary operator immediately whenever an applicable milestone in the approved 
sequence of construction has been reached, or whenever any clearing, grading, 
excavating, or other earth disturbing activities have permanently ceased on any 
portion of the site, or temporarily ceased on any portion of the site and will not 
resume for a period exceeding 14 calendar days. The primary operator may not 
delay final stabilization of completed site sections or critical site improvements 
solely for the purpose of mobilizing re-vegetation operations for the entire site at a 
later date. 

(E) The primary operator must take advantage of optimum seasonal planting 
dates, times-of-day, and temperatures to the greatest extent practicable to 
complete permanent re-vegetation of required site areas in a timely manner. The 
primary operator shall plan for early spring as the first priority planting date for 
required permanent vegetation, to the maximum extent practicable, unless 
otherwise specified in the approved plans . 

(F) When the irrigation water supply and irrigation schedule are restricted as a 
result of drought conditions, vegetative stabilization measures must be initiated by 
the primary operator as soon as practicable but no later than the 14th day after 
construction activity has temporarily or permanently ceased in portions of the site. 

(G) Successful stabilization initiated for a portion of the site identified in either 
the approved sequence of construction or by the actual cessation of earth 
disturbing activities described in subparagraph (D) of this paragraph must be 
completed by the primary operator within the following time periods from the 
required date of initiation, as identified during construction by the Inspector or the 
qualified SWP3 inspector and documented in the SWP3 Inspection Report: 

Page 31 of 67
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(i) Initial Stabilization Activities. Non-vegetative stabilization controls and 
initial vegetative seeding activities in the identified portion of the site must 
be substantially completed within seven days of the required date of 
initiation. 

(ii) Temporary stabilization must be substantially completed either in 
accordance with the approved sequence of construction, if applicable; within 
seven days after the date of initiation for non-vegetative controls, such as 
mulch; or within 60 days after the date of initiation for temporary vegetation 
growth from seeding. 

(iii) Permanent final stabilization must be substantially completed either 
in accordance with the approved sequence of construction, if applicable; 
within ten days after the date of initiation for sodding; or within 120 days 
after the date of initiation for permanent seeding. 

(iv) Extensions to the completion time periods listed in clauses (i) - (iii) 
will only be considered for approval if the operator can demonstrate that 
they are justified by the applicable technical criteria of Section 82.933 or by 
truly exceptional circumstances, including: time delays to reach optimal 
warm or cool season planting dates, exceptional characteristics of an 
individual site, extended periods of exceptionally severe heat or cold, official 
declaration of a water restriction of the primary irrigation water supply, or 
use of approved alternative vegetation or seed mixes. A request for a time 
extension must include interim stabilization or protection measures that will 
adequately prevent discharges during the extension period, including 
additional measures necessary for critical site improvements. 

(H) The operator must achieve final stabilization of the entire site in accordance 
with the approved plans, specifications, and applicable technical criteria, including 
the required vegetation cover percentage, prior to submittal of the engineer's 
concurrence letter required by Section 82.953 and termination of the SWP3 permit 
coverage, unless the project meets the criteria described in paragraph (4) of this 
subsection for a developer's contract. Temporary stabilization measures may not 
be substituted for required final stabilization measures. The County may consider 
alternate final stabilization measures for future building pad areas of two percent 
grade or less if equivalent stabilization is achieved. Fiscal security for erosion 
control shall be refunded only upon completion of final stabilization, including 
removal of all temporary sediment controls and accumulated sediments. 

(4) Developer's Contract. 

(A) A separate, written agreement to ensure final stabilization known as a 
developer's contract may be executed between the County Executive and an 
owner if maintenance responsibility for constructed facilities is accepted for County 
maintenance, if the County approves an owner's or temporary use or occupancy of 

Page 32 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6,2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



a project, facility, building, or commercial septic system before the required re
vegetation coverage is complete. 

(B) A developer's contract, unless extended in writing by the County Executive, 
is effective for up to 120 days after the date it is executed by the County Executive 
and the owner, and must be secured by fiscal surety that the County will use for 
final site stabilization if the owner fails to achieve final stabilization within the 
contract period. 

(C) To be considered for a developer's contract, an owner must have: 

(i) followed the approved plan for phasing and sequence of construction; 

(ii) followed the approved plan for temporary and permanent stabilization; 

(iii) substantially completed all permanent water quality controls and other 
inspection punch list items; 

(iv) initiated permanent re-vegetation in all required areas; and 

(v) submitted the engineer's concurrence letter required by Section 82.953. 

82.937. Other Controls and Pollution Prevention Measures for Construction Activities. 

(a) In addition to ESC and BMPs for construction activities, an owner must design, install, 
implement, and maintain other controls and pollution prevention measures in accordance with 
this section. These controls and measures must eliminate and effectively minimize the off-site 
transport of pollutants from the construction site by means other than direct storm water runoff. 
An owner must address activities that can cause contamination on-site and increase the 
potential for subsequent pollutant discharge from runoff with other controls and pollution 
prevention measures. 

(b) Other controls and pollution prevention measures include: 

(1) Non-Storm Water Discharge Controls. Non-storm water discharge controls must 
be described in the SWP3 and be consistent with the following standards: 

(A) Vehicle Tracking. Controls and measures must minimize the off-site vehicle 
tracking of sediments and the clean up of any public roads or off-site areas 
adversely affected. 

(B) Dust Control. Controls and measures must minimize the generation and 
migration of dust. 

(C) De-Watering. Controls and measures for de-watering must minimize the 
offsite transport of suspended sediments and other pollutants if it is necessary to 

Page 33 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



pump or channel standing water from the site, including from sediment ponds. 
When discharging from a basin or impoundment, an outlet structure that withdraws 
water from the surface must be used whenever possible. A discharge from 
dewatering activities, including a discharge from dewatering of a trench or 
excavation, is prohibited unless effective sedimentation, collection and disposal, or 
a similarly effective treatment occurs prior to discharge. 

(0) Work in Surface Waters. Controls and measures for working in or directly 
adjacent to a waterway must prevent and minimize discharges into such water, 
including the location of a temporary or permanent stream crossing. 

(E) Concrete Wash-out. Controls for wastewater discharges from concrete 
washout and water well drilling operations must contain wash outs on land 
surfaces without discharge to water in the State. Concrete wash out without 
appropriate pollution prevention measures is prohibited. 

(F) Wash Water. Controls must completely prevent the discharge of 
wastewater from washout and c1eanout of stucco, paint, form release oils, curing 
compounds and other construction materials. Pollution prevention measures must 
include collection, storage, and off-site disposal of these wastes in accordance with 
all TCEQ requirements. 

(G) Vehicle Washing. Controls for vehicle washing must minimize the discharge 
of pollutants from equipment and vehicle washing, wheel wash water, and other 
wash waters. Wash waters must be treated in a sediment basin or alternative 
control that provides equivalent or better treatment prior to discharge; discharges 
of soaps or solvents used in vehicle and equipment washing are prohibited. 

(H) Any additional, anticipated non-storm water discharges must be listed in the 
SWP3 with specified ESC and BMP measures. All non-storm water discharges are 
subject to the requirements of Chapter 104 of the Code and TCEQ discharge 
requirements. 

(2) Solid Waste and Hazardous Substance Management. A description must be 
provided in the SWP3 of construction solid waste and hazardous substances expected to 
be generated or stored on-site. Controls and measures must be implemented to eliminate 
and prevent pollutant discharges from solid waste and hazardous substance handling, 
including recycling and disposal as appropriate. In preparing the SWP3, an applicant shall 
consider how to eliminate and prevent pollutant discharges from materials such as the 
following: trash, litter, construction or demolition debris, residual or surplus construction 
materials of all types, surplus containers of chemical or hazardous substances, soil 
contaminated from an oil or hazardous substance spill, cut or uprooted vegetation such 
as trees and brush, and waste from sanitary facilities provided for personnel. 

(3) Staging and Stockpile Area Management. Staging areas include all areas 
necessary for equipment, materials, fill storage and stockpiles, temporary offices, vehicle 

Page 34 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



parking, vehicle maintenance, and the associated haul roads for these areas and the 
construction site. Controls and measures for these areas shall include: 

(A) Restricting the size of these areas to the minimum necessary for the 
operator to perform the typical industry practices necessary and appropriate to the 
primary construction project type, in accordance with approved construction plans 
and as revised and approved during construction by the Inspector; 

(B) Locating the area(s) within the approved limits of construction and not within 
setback areas for waterways and critical environmental features, floodplains, tree 
drip lines, areas with pass-through drainage, and steep slopes; and 

(C) Using structural controls such as run-on drainage diversion and sediment 
controls and appropriate non-structural BMPs. 

(4) Fill Management and Disposal. In addition to the cut and fill requirements of 
Section 82.943, designated areas for excavated soil fill and spoils material from the 
construction site (topsoil, subsoil, rock) shall be planned, designed, and described in the 
SWP3. The owner must use a reasoned estimate of the quantity of net cut and fill balance 
to determine how much and how many areas to reserve on site for temporary storage and 
permanent disposal and to plan for any necessary off-site fill disposal or the importing of 
any necessary fill material required for the site. Excavated fill material must be handled 
using the following minimum controls and practices: 

(A) Temporary Stockpiling. Fill material temporarily stockpiled in place as 
excavation occurs shall be located in areas protected by sediment controls and 
shall use erosion source controls whenever feasible, such as fill placement using 
existing topography and excavated features to minimize erosion and runoff 
potential. Applicable temporary stabilization requirements described in Section 
82.936(d)(3) must be implemented for temporary stockpiles. 

(B) Removal and Disposal. Fill material must be removed from the point of 
excavation to the designated temporary storage or permanent disposal area 
described in the approved plans and SWP3 as soon as feasible after excavation 
occurs. 

(C) Permanent Fill Disposal. Fill material shall be permanently disposed of as 
described in the approved plans and SWP3 and must comply with Section 
82.943(d), which, among other things, prohibits solid waste from being mixed or 
buried with fill material. No person may engage in off-site disposal of fill material in 
Travis County unless the person has received a Travis County development permit 
that specifically authorizes the off-site disposal. Before engaging in off-site disposal 
of fill material, a person may have to obtain other applicable development or 
regulatory permits, an additional SWP3 or, revisions to an existing SWP3. 

Page 35 of 67
 
Proposal - December 6,2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(5) Materials Inventory and Management. Measures are required to be developed and 
implemented to minimize the exposure of the following materials to precipitation and 
storm water runoff: building materials, building products, construction waste, landscape 
materials, fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides, detergents, petroleum products, automotive 
fluids, sanitary waste, and other construction and industrial materials present on the site. 

(A) Each material and hazardous substance that will be on the site during the 
construction activities, from the start of construction to the final stabilization and 
final inspection release, must be listed and described along with the management 
practices to be followed for each. These material management practices shall 
include: limiting inventory to the minimum necessary, storage in a secure site 
location with compatible materials, storage in original containers, proper disposal 
of surplus materials and containers, inspection monitoring, and training of 
personnel handling the materials 

(B) A description of storage, management, and maintenance practices is 
required for each petroleum product at a construction site, including: on-site fuel, 
oil, other motor vehicle fluids, and asphalt. Discharges of fuels, oils, and other 
pollutants used in vehicle and equipment operation and maintenance are 
prohibited 

(6) Spill Prevention and Control. The SWP3 shall include a description of spill 
prevention measures, and spill response, clean-up, and reporting procedures to prevent 
and minimize the discharge of pollutants, to the maximum extent practicable, from spills 
and leaks of oil and hazardous substances on the site. The plan must follow all TCEQ 
and local regulations. Spill response procedures must include training, product and safety 
information, and be adjusted as necessary for improvement and to prevent particular 
types of spills from reoccurring. Spill clean-up materials must be used, spills must be 
cleaned up, and waste residue must be properly disposed of. Reporting must occur 
whenever a spill threshold quantity is exceeded. 

(7) A description of potential pollutant sources from areas on the project site, other 
than construction areas, is required in the SWP3. These other sources include 
construction support and maintenance areas and activities dedicated to construction site 
operations, including dedicated asphalt and concrete batch operations. A description of 
controls and measures that will be implemented for these activities shall detail how 
pollutant discharges will be prevented and eliminated. 

82.938. Erosion and Sediment Control Maintenance Requirements for Construction 
Activities. 

(a) All ESC, BMP, and protective measures identified in the approved plans and SWP3 must 
be maintained by the primary operator in effective operating condition. If, through inspections or 
other means, the owner, primary operator, or Inspector determines that a BMP is not operating 
effectively, then the owner or primary operator shall perform maintenance as necessary to make 
the storm water controls effective. 

Page 36 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(b) The owner or primary operator shall carry out the inspection requirements of Section 
82.951 to ensure the ESC and BMPs are implemented and maintained in compliance with the 
approved plans and SWP3 throughout construction. 

(c) The owner or operator must promptly take any corrective action specified in the 
Inspector's findings to ensure proper maintenance of ESC and BMPs. Items requiring corrective 
action must be corrected by the owner and operator within timeframes specified by the 
Inspector. If corrective actions are not performed as required, the County Executive will consider 
use of further measures, including a stop work order and progressive enforcement. 

(d) Necessary corrective actions must be accomplished within seven days or as specified in 
the inspection report prepared by the Inspector. When consecutive runoff events occur within 24 
to 48 hours, corrective actions must be accomplished prior to the next rain event, to the 
maximum extent practicable. If maintenance prior to the next anticipated storm event is 
impracticable, the reason shall be documented in the Operator SWP3 inspection report and 
maintenance must be scheduled and accomplished as soon as practicable. ESC that have been 
intentionally disabled, run-over, removed, or otherwise rendered ineffective must be replaced or 
corrected immediately upon discovery. 

(e) Whenever it is discovered that a control or BMP has been used incorrectly, is performing 
inadequately, or is damaged, then the owner or primary operator must immediately replace or 
modify the control or BMP. Revisions to SWP3 controls and BMPs must be coordinated with the 
Inspector and performed in accordance with Section 82.935. 

82.939. Preliminary Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. The storm water management 
plan required pursuant to Section 82.931(a)(2)(ii) for a preliminary plan or commercial site 
development plan shall include a SWP3 summary describing the proposed construction phase of 
the project. The summary must be consist with the ESC and BMP technical standards described 
in Sections 82.936 - 82.938, 82.940, and 82.970. The SWP3 summary shall describe the 
following items, with a plan view map where applicable: 

(1) The design storm standard required by Section 82.936(b). 

(2) The ESC and BMPs to be used to address site specific considerations including 
critical site characteristics; construction project type; the construction site features and 
critical site improvements; and the construction length, phasing, and sequence, as 
required in Section 82.936(c). 

(3) The ESC measures and BMPs to be used in the ESC plan to meet the 
requirements for erosion source control, sediment control, and permanent erosion and 
soil stabilization control for the construction activities, as required in section 82.936(d) and 
applicable standards required in Sections 82.940 and 82.970. 

(4) The other controls and pollution prevention measures as required in Section 
82.937, to be used to limit the off-site transport of pollutants that have the potential to 

Page 37 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



discharge by means other than direct storm water runoff, and activities that can cause on
site contamination and increase the potential for pollutant discharge from runoff. 

(5) The actions to be taken during construction to ensure full SWP3 implementation 
and address water quality concerns as they occur, including: self-monitoring, inspection, 
inspection reports, BMP maintenance, evaluation of BMP effectiveness, SWP3 revisions 
and updates, recordkeeping, and other applicable items as specified in Subchapter J. 

(6) A plan view map of the proposed site improvements with the location and 
description of applicable proposed measures, including drainage area boundaries, 
acreage, flow paths, and outfalls. 

82.940. Effluent Quality. [Reserved] 

82.941. Setbacks from Critical Environmental Features and Waterways. 

(a) Drainage patterns for a development must be designed to protect all critical 
environmental features and waterways from the effects of runoff from developed areas, and to 
maintain the catchment areas of recharge features in a natural state. Controls shall be sufficient 
to avoid the effects of erosion, sedimentation, arid high rate of flow. 

(b) Setbacks for critical environmental features and waterways shall be included within 
protective, platted easements and shall not be within areas disturbed by construction activities. 

(c) The following minimum setbacks are established around each critical environmental 
feature: 

(1)	 For a cave, sinkhole, spring, and wetland, the minimum width of the setback is 
150 feet from the edge of the critical environmental feature. 

(2)	 For a point recharge feature, the required setback coincides with the 
topographically defined contributing surface drainage area to the feature, 
except that the width of the setback from the edge of the critical environmental 
feature must not be less than 150 feet and the setback need not extend greater 
than 300 feet, depending on the boundaries of the surface drainage area. 

(3)	 For a bluff or canyon rimrock feature, the minimum setback must be 50 feet. 

(d) Except as provided in subsection (e) below, within a critical environmental feature 
setback: 

(1)	 the natural vegetation cover must be retained to the maximum extent practicable; 

(2)	 construction and related activities are prohibited; and 

(3)	 wastewater disposal or irrigation is prohibited. 

Page 38 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(e) Subsection (d) does not apply to a yard, hiking trail, or a recharge basin designed to 
discharge to a point recharge feature without polluting ground water if the yard, hiking trail, or 
recharge basin is located 8 t ' __._L :" (""of from the edge of the critical environmental feature. 

~~	 7~ Ie setback from a bluff or rimrock shall not apply adjacc.:: +~ tt,e Pedernales River if: 

(1)	 all lots fronting the Pedernales River have a minimum frontage ot 200 feet and 
a minimum size of one acre and best management practices are employed to 
achieve a level of water quality and environmental protection equivalent to the 
50 foot setback; or 

(2)	 the County Executive grants an exception allowing a setback of no less than 25 
feet based on a demonstration that a level of water quality and environmental 
protection equivalent to the 50 foot setback will be achieved through 
enhancement of natural vegetative cover within the setback, low impact site 
design, or other best management practices. 

(g) Waterway Setbacks in an Eastern Watershed. The following setbacks apply in an 
eastern watershed, except as specified in subsection 0): 

(1)	 Waterways are classified as follows: 

(A)	 A minor waterway has a drainage area of at least 64 acres and not 
more than 320 acres; 

(B)	 an intermediate waterway has a drainage area of more that 320 acres 
and not more than 640 acres; 

(C)	 a major waterway has a drainage area of more than 640 acres 

(2)	 A protected zone is established along each classified waterway as a waterway 
setback. A setback for a waterway shall be included within protective, platted 
easements. 

(A)	 For a minor waterway, the boundary of the setback is located 100 feet 
from the centerline of the waterway. 

(B)	 For an intermediate waterway, the boundary of the setback is located 
200 feet from the centerline of the waterway. 

(C)	 For a major waterway except for the Colorado River downstream from 
Lady Bird Lake, the boundary of the setback is located 300 feet from 
the centerline of the waterway. 

Page 39 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(D)	 For the Colorado River downstream from Lady Bird Lake, setbacks of 
300 feet are established along and parallel to the shorelines of each 
bank of the river, beginning at the ordinary high water mark, as defined 
by Title 33, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 328.3. The setbacks 
also include the inl-, ...rI~tp~ :Ai eas that constitute the Colorado River. 

(h) Waterway Sptl--';:'GKS In a Western Watershed. The following setbacks apply in a western 
......tQr~h&'~, GA"ept as specified in subsection (j): 

(1)	 Except as described in paragraph (2), a waterway setback shall comply with 
either option 1 or option 2, as described in subparagraphs (A) and (B). 

(A)	 Option 1: Distance-Based Setback. 

(i)	 Creeks or swales draining 40 or fewer acres but more than five 
acres, excluding roadside swales, shall have a minimum setback 
width of 25 feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

(ii)	 Creeks or swales draining 128 or fewer acres but more than 40 acres 
shall have a minimum setback width of 75 feet from the centerline of 
the creek or swale. 

(iii)	 Creeks draining 320 acres or fewer acres but more than 128 acres 
shall have a minimum setback width of 100 feet from the centerline of 
the creek or swale. 

(iv)	 Creeks draining 640 or fewer acres but more than 320 acres shall 
have a minimum setback width of 200 feet from the centerline of the 
creek or swale. 

(v)	 Creeks draining more than 640 acres shall have a minimum setback 
width of 300 feet from the centerline of the creek or swale. 

(B)	 Option 2: Floodplain-based Setback. 

(i)	 For creeks or rivers draining 40 square miles or less but more than 
five acres, excluding roadside swales, the setback shall extend a 
minimum of 25 feet from the 1OO-year floodplain boundary paralleling 
each side of the creek or swale. The 1OO-year floodplain shall be 
based on the fully developed conditions using the LCRA Technical 
Manual standards. 

(ii)	 For creeks or rivers draining more than 40 square miles, the setback 
shall be considered equal to the 100-year floodplain as designated by 
Federal Emergency Management Agency or by an engineered 

Page 40 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



floodplain study approved by LCRA, using the LCRA Technical 
Manual standards. 

(2)	 The shoreline boundary of the waterway setback for Lake Travis coincides with 
the 681.0 foot mean sea level contour line. The width of the setback, measured 
horizontally inland, is 100 feet, or, for a detached single-family residential use, 
75 feet. 

(i) Limitation of Activity in Waterway Setbacks. The following requirements apply to 
waterway setbacks established in subsections (g) - (h) of this section: 

(1)	 Setbacks shall remain free of construction, development, and other alterations 
except for approved utility and roadway crossings. 

(2)	 Wastewater collection lines and lift stations are prohibited from running along 
the setback zone parallel or sub-parallel to the waterway. A wastewater 
collection line may cross the setback zone in a perpendicular or similar 
orientation, when necessary for optimal system function. The depth of a 
wastewater line crossing shall be calculated using the City of Austin Erosion 
Hazard Zone determination methodology. 

(3)	 No golf courses, on-site wastewater systems or wastewater irrigation shall be 
located in a waterway setback. 

(4)	 Before reaching a setback area, drainage patterns from a development shall be 
designed to prevent erosion, maintain infiltration and recharge of local seeps 
and springs, attenuate the harm of contaminants collected and transported by 
storm water, and dispersed into a sheet flow pattern. When possible, the 
natural drainage features and patterns should be maintained. 

(5)	 No part of a residential lot with a lot size of 5,750 square feet or less may be 
located within a waterway setback. 

(j) Exceptions to the Waterway Setbacks. A request for an exception to a waterway setback 
must be included as a part of the application submittal required by Section 82.931. Exceptions 
that may be approved include: 

(1)	 Limited utility and roadway crossing may be approved by the County Executive. 
The number of crossings through a setback zone shall be minimized according to 
the guidance located in the LCRA Technical Manual or City of Austin 
Environmental Criteria Manual, as applicable to the watershed. 

(2)	 The County Executive may approve necessary access and appurtenances to a 
boat dock, pier, wharf, or marina, along the Colorado River downstream from Lady 
Bird Lake and along Lake Travis, except along the Lake Travis shoreline in the 
setback of a swale, creek, or river. The access and appurtenances must follow a 

Page 41 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



route through the setback area and a design that minimizes short-term and long
term erosion and runoff impacts, minimizes the clearing of vegetation, and 
minimizes additional impervious cover. 

(3)	 The County Executive may approve a low impact park development that is limited 
to trails, picnic facilities, open space not used as a parking lot, and similar 
construction that does not significantly alter the existing vegetation, drainage 
patterns, or increase erosion. A low impact park development cannot include a 
stable or corral for animals. 

(4)	 Drainage retention basins and floodplain alterations are permitted in a waterway 
setback if they comply with the requirements of Chapter 64 of the Code. 

(5)	 In an eastern watershed: 

(A)	 A reduction of the setback width, up to a minimum of 50 feet from a minor 
waterway, may be permitted so long as the overall surface area of the setback 
is the same or greater than the surface area that would be provided without this 
exception. 

(8)	 Innovative water quality controls, as specified in Section 1.6.7 of the City of 
Austin Environmental Criteria Manual, may be placed within the outermost one
half of the setback of an eastern waterway. 

(k) An application for development is also subject to the requirements of Chapter 64 of the 
Code. 

82.942. Environmental Assessment. 

(a) An applicant shall submit an environmental assessment for any proposed development that 
is: 

(1)	 a residential or non-residential subdivision development of ten acres or greater; 

(2)	 a commercial development of three acres or greater; 

(3)	 not a small construction project, but: 

(A) includes land within the existing FEMA 1DO-year flood plain; or 

(8) the development includes land with a gradient of more than 15%. 

(b) An environmental assessment provided by an applicant must: 

(1) identify critical environmental features and propose protection measures for the 
features; 

Page 42 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(2)	 identify any habitat of a federally-listed endangered species or Texas-threatened 
species within the area to be developed as well as within 500 feet outside the 
property line; 

(3)	 provide an environmental justification for spoil disposal locations and roadway 
alignments; 

(4)	 propose methods to achieve overland flow and justify enclosed storm sewers; 

(5)	 include a hydrogeologic report that: 

(A)	 describes the topography, soils, and geology of the site; 

(B)	 identifies springs and significant point recharge features on the site; 

(C)	 demonstrates that proposed drainage patterns will protect the quality 
and quantity of recharge at significant point recharge features; and 

(D)	 includes a water well survey of the site and properties adjacent to the 
site for a radius of 150 feet, inclusive of recorded water wells and a 
field survey of the area. 

(6)	 include a vegetation report describing existing site vegetation, the site's dominant 
plant communities (such as grassland, riparian, woodland, palustrian, or savanna), 
a list of the scientific and common names of the dominant species of identified 
communities, demonstrating that the proposed development preserves to the 
maximum extent practicable the significant trees and vegetation on the site and 
provides maximum erosion control and overland flow benefits from the vegetation; 
and 

(7)	 include a wastewater report that provides an environmental justification for any 
sewer line proposed to be located in a waterway setback described in Section 
82.941, and describes construction techniques and standards for wastewater lines. 

(c) If an applicant is required to prepare a tree assessment pursuant to Section 82.973, the 
applicant shall submit it as a part of the environmental assessment required by this section. 

82.943. Cut and Fill. 

(a) Land Balancing. Except as provided by subsection (b) of this section, a proposal for cut and 
fill land balancing must meet the following requirements: 

(1)	 All cut and fill land balancing is limited to a maximum of eight vertical feet. This 
includes eight vertical feet maximum of excavated cut, eight vertical feet maximum 
placement of fill, or an eight vertical feet maximum combination of cut and fill. 

Page 43 of 67 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(2)	 Applicable fill containment, temporary controls, and permanent stabilization 
standards specified in Sections 82.936, 82.937, and 82.970 must be followed. 

(3)	 A retaining wall shall not exceed one foot above the material being retained. 

(4)	 A retaining wall over five feet in height shall be detailed in construction plans or 
plans sealed by a Texas registered professional engineer and submitted with the 
application for the site development permit. For residential construction, it is the 
responsibility of the owner to ensure a retaining wall over five feet in height is 
engineered, constructed, and permanently stabilized according to these standards, 
if plans for the retaining wall are not required to be submitted to the County for 
approval prior to issuance of the development permit. 

(5)	 Cut or fill may not be located on a slope with a gradient of more than 15 percent. 

(6)	 Cut and fill may not be located within 100 feet of a waterway classified in Section 
82.941. 

(7)	 Any cut or fill proposal must be designed so that it complies with the requirement in 
Chapter 64 of the Code that flood plain storage must not be reduced. 

(8)	 Design plans and specifications for the fill areas shall be prepared by a Texas
registered professional engineer if the proposal exceeds 10,000 square feet in 
surface area and there is a change in grade that is four feet or greater. 

(b) There are no limitations to the maximum height of cut or fill for the construction of permanent 
water quality controls, storm water detention ponds, streets, a building or parking structure's 
footprint, or driveways. Applicable fill containment, temporary controls, and permanent 
stabilization standards contained in Sections 82.936,82.937, and 82.970 must be followed. 
Additional TCEQ requirements for the construction of a dam may apply. 

(c) Fill Disposal. 

(1)	 No fill or excess fill from a construction site may be placed on any lot or land parcel 
unless the placement of the fill is authorized in an approved subdivision 
construction plan or development permit. 

(2)	 This subsection does not apply to the placement of fill or topsoil less than twelve 
inches deep as part of an existing residential home landscaping activity that does 
not: 

(A)	 Alter existing on-site or off-site drainage or the FEMA 1OO-year floodplain; or 

(B) Encroach upon or affect rights-of-way, easements, other platted setbacks, 
waterways, or adjoining properties. 

Page 44 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(3)	 Temporary placement of fill shall be removed prior to acceptance of streets and 
drainage in a subdivision and in accordance with the approved construction plan, 
SWP3, and development permit. 

(4)	 Before removing fill from a permitted construction site, the owner or operator shall 
notify the Inspector of the destination of the fill. 

(5)	 A development permit that proposes temporary storage of fill material as the 
primary construction activity, and that is not associated with a separately permitted 
primary construction project underway with a coordinated projected completion 
date for both permits, expires twelve months after the date of issuance. A 
development permit for permanent fill disposal as the primary construction activity 
expires on the sooner date of either completion of the planned fill, or after 12 
months of inactivity based upon documentation showing the dates of receipt of fill 
material. The County Executive has discretion as to whether to grant an applicant's 
request for renewal or extension of such permits for temporary or permanent fill 
storage, in consideration of the compliance history of the site with the development 
permit and the requirements of this section. 

(6)	 Applicable fill containment, temporary controls, and permanent stabilization 
standards specified in Sections 82.936, 82.937, and 82.970 must be followed for 
all fill disposal activities. 

(d) Quality of Fill material. Only uncontaminated earthen material or inert construction rubble 
may be used as fill. Protruding metal must be removed from concrete or rubble. The use of 
garbage, new asphalt, non-weathered asphalt, or soils containing non-weathered asphalt 
residue, or any material other than industrial solid waste that is Class 3 waste is strictly 
prohibited. All fill material must be inert and essentially insoluble. The applicant may be required 
to submit chemical analyses from a NELAC-certified laboratory to verify the fill material is inert, if 
the fill material has an odor, texture or appearance indicating that it is not inert and essentially 
insoluble. 

82.944. Permanent Water Quality Control. 

(a) Each development that is subject to the requirements of this subchapter must provide 
permanent water quality control for storm water in accordance with the standards applicable to 
its watershed location. Each application for a preliminary plan must include a storm water 
management plan that demonstrates permanent water quality structural and non-structural 
BMPs which will comply with this section and shows their locations and dimensions. The storm 
water management plan may be included as part of a drainage plan under Section 82.207. 

(b) This subsection applies to development that is located in a western watershed and outside 
the ETJ of the City of Austin: 

Page 45 of 67 
Proposal- December 6. 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1)	 Water Quality Volume. Each development project shall provide water quality 
volume in accordance with the approved BMPs found in the LCRA Technical 
Manual. The minimum required water quality volume is based on the one-year, 
three-hour storm runoff volume as defined in the LCRA Technical Manual. In 
addition, development projects can use low impact development methodologies as 
identified in the LCRA Technical Manual to reduce or avoid storm water storage 
volume. 

(2)	 In the Lake Travis watershed, the owner of a project for which a Travis County 
development permit is required must also obtain a LCRA BMP Maintenance Permit 
in accordance with Section 4, Subchapter A, Paragraph (d) of the LCRA HLWO 
effective March 1, 2007. 

(3)	 Alternate Standards. A subdivision development project that meets the criteria in 
(A) and a commercial development project subject to this section that meets the 
criteria in (B) need not comply with paragraphs (1) - (2), except as specified in 
paragraph (4). 

(A)	 Subdivision Development. 

(i)	 The gross impervious cover is 15 percent or less and the cluster 
development sections have 20 percent or less gross impervious 
cover, as defined in the LCRA Technical Manual. 

(ii)	 A street and drainage network is designed to include the use of open
roadway sections, ribbon curb, maintenance of sheet flow, and 
employs the applicable permanent erosion control and stabilization 
standards specified in Sections 82.936, 82.937, and 82.970. 

(iii)	 Impervious cover credit by use of porous pavement, rainwater 
harvesting, native landscaping and other methods will be considered 
during the application review to gain compliance as defined in the 
LCRA Technical Manual. 

(B)	 Commercial Development. 

(i)	 Projects less than three acres in area that use vegetated filter strips 
and flow spreading methodologies as identified in the LCRA 
Technical Manual. 

(ii)	 Impervious cover credit by use of porous pavement, rainwater 
harvesting, native landscaping and other methods will be considered 
during the application review to gain compliance as defined in the 
LCRA Technical Manual. 

Page 46 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(4) The County Executive may require that the water quality volume specified in 
paragraph (1) of this subsection be provided for a portion or portions of a development 
utilizing the alternate standards of paragraph (3), in consideration of a proposal that would 
create localized points of erosion or pollutant discharges sources, including lot sizes in 
the subdivision, location and proximity of impervious cover sections of the development to 
the 691 foot mean sea level contour line, extent to which the development site is able to 
preserve or achieve sheet flow and sustain effective permanent site stabilization and 
vegetative cover, and the intensity of slopes to be developed at a site. 

(c) This subsection applies to development that is located in an eastern watershed or within the 
ETJ of the City of Austin: 

(1)	 A water quality control must be designed in accordance with the City of Austin 
Environmental Criteria Manual. 

(A) The control must provide at least the treatment level of a sedimentation I 
filtration system described in the City of Austin Environmental Criteria Manual. 

(8) An impervious liner is required in an area where there is surface runoff to 
groundwater conductivity. If a liner is required and controls are located in 
series, liners are not required for the second or later in the series following 
sedimentation, extended detention, or sedimentation I filtration. 

(2)	 A water quality control must capture, isolate, and treat the water draining to the 
control from the contributing area. A water quality control must be placed when 
10,000 square feet or greater of impervious cover is proposed. The required 
capture volume is: 

(A)	 the first one-half inch of runoff; and 

(8)	 for each ten percent increase in impervious cover over 20 percent of 
gross site area, an additional 0.1 inch of runoff. 

(3)	 The location of a water quality control: 

(A)	 must avoid recharge features to the greatest extent possible; and 

(8)	 must be shown on the slope map, preliminary plan, site plan, 
subdivision construction plan, or development permit application, as 
applicable. 

(d) Operation and Maintenance. In both an eastern and a western watershed, the owner or 
operator shall be responsible for maintaining and shall maintain all permanent water quality 
controls in a proper manner and consistent with County and other applicable standards, 
including the 8MP Maintenance Permit requirements of Section 82.917. 

Page 47 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



82.945. Requirements for Quarries and Mines. 

(a) This section applies to proposals to develop land for the purpose of mining or quarrying. 
This section addresses best management practices for the control of pollutants discharged in 
storm water as a result of mining or quarrying activities. The following activities are exempt from 
the requirements of this section, but such activities must comply with all other applicable 
requirements of this Chapter and Chapter 64 of the Code: 

(1) Excavations or grading solely for domestic or farm use when carried out at a 
residence or farm; 

(2) Excavations or grading conducted for the construction, re-construction, 
maintenance, or repair of a roadway, railroad, airport facility, or other transportation 
facility where the excavation or grading is entirely within the property boundaries or 
easement of the facility; 

(3)	 Excavations for building construction purposes conducted on a building site; and 

(4) Quarry or mine sites where less than one acre of total affected acreage occurs 
over the life of the quarry or mine. 

(b) An applicant must schedule a pre-proposal concept plan meeting with the County 
regarding any quarry or mine proposal that will disturb five or more acres of land surface. The 
meeting must focus on potential disturbed areas, slopes, buffers, water diversions, and 
water quality management practices, and may include a site investigation. If the proposal is 
within the geographic boundary of a groundwater conservation district, the applicant should notify 
the district of the plan prior to initiating a quarry or mining facility. 

(c) Water Quality Management. A permit application shall address each of the following 
requirements and standards of this subsection. 

(1)	 For a project area not discharging to a pit: 

(A)	 For the protection of water quality, mine and quarry projects subject to these 
performance standards shall provide water quality volume in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 82.944. 

(B)	 The water quality volume requirements of Section 82.944 apply to parking lots, 
drives, buildings, and other development similar to typical land development 
projects. In addition, mine and quarry projects can use low impact development 
methodologies as identified in the LCRA Technical Manual to reduce or avoid 
storm water storage volume requirements. A plan shall be prepared that 
describes the proposed operational and maintenance needs for the water 
quality control facilities. 

Page 48 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(C)	 For areas of exposed material stockpiles and non-stabilized active areas not 
draining to the pit, the quarry or mine project shall provide water quality volume 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 82.944. 

(2)	 For a project area discharging to the pit: 

(A)	 An applicant for a quarry or mine development permit must demonstrate 
that each pit intended to be used as a permanent BMP is of sufficient size to 
contain the runoff volume of the1a-year, 24-hour storm without discharge 
during such a rain event. 

(B)	 The runoff volume is derived from contributing drainage area to the 
excavation. 

(C)	 An applicant shall use drainage diversions or other BMPs as necessary to 
prevent sediment from discharging into karst features. 

(D)	 Recharge features with a surface opening greater than 0.25 square feet in 
area that are located on the floor of a quarry or mine must be sealed or 
protected in order to prevent sediment from infiltrating with storm water 
runoff. 

(3) Other Local, State, and Federal Regulations. An applicant must comply with 
Section 82.916 relating to other environmental authorizations required for the quarry or 
mine. In addition, the applicant must provide copies of, or access to all applicable plans, 
reports, and approvals from other regulatory agencies, for the following: 

(A)	 A Spill Prevention Control. Containment, and Countermeasures Plan 
required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 

(B)	 A Hazard Communications Plan as required by the Mine Safety and Health 
Administration (MSHA); 

(C)	 A Marl, Sand, and Gravel Mining Permit required by the Texas Parks and 
Wildlife Department for mining in public water of the State, if applicable; and 

(D)	 Documentation of compliance with groundwater conservation district 
requirements, if applicable. 

(4) On a case-by-case and limited basis, the County Executive may waive the 
requirement for an applicant to submit one or more components of the following 
supplemental information. The determination will depend upon the significance of the 
site conditions, planned quarry or mine activities, size of the quarry or mine, and depth of 
excavation. Submittals that are waived will be determined in the pre-quarry/mine 
planning meeting specified in subsection (b) The determination will be based upon 
professional standards for the appropriate submittals and the project's potential impacts 

Page 49 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



on water quality. Unless waived by the County Executive, an applicant must submit the 
following: 

(A)	 A hydrologic report prepared by a Texas-licensed professional engineer 
defining impoundments, streams, floodplains, and proposed drainage 
diversions including water quality BMPs within the proposed mine or 
quarry property boundaries. 

(B)	 A hydrogeologic report prepared by a Texas-licensed professional 
geoscientist containing the aquifer identification, aquifer characteristics, 
DRASTIC classification, recharge zones, any karst features and depth to 
water on the site, well inventory, springs within one mile of the proposed mine 
or quarry property boundary, and identification of measures to protect 
groundwater recharge. The applicant must demonstrate compliance with 
setbacks from recharge features and public water supply wells in 
accordance with the TCEQ source water protection program and, if 
applicable, groundwater conservation district requirements. 

(C)	 A surface water monitoring plan to supplement the TCEQ Industrial 
Multi-Sector General Storm Water Permit requirements. The owner or 
operator can use the TCEQ Multi Sector General Storm Water Permit as 
the plan, but shall monitor four events per year and provide data in the 
annual report. Parameters tested in the monitoring plan must include but 
are not limited to total suspended solids, pH, oil and grease, and total 
organic carbon. 

(D)	 A groundwater monitoring plan in accordance with paragraph (7) requiring 
monitoring wells for water levels and water quality determinations including 
background and down-gradient conditions. 

(5) Erosion and sedimentation shall be controlled by the owner and operator 
throughout the quarry and mine process and during closure and reclamation in 
accordance with Sections 82.934 - 82.940 and 82.970 - 82.974. Additional controls 
shall include best management practices that address operations related to potential 
storm water pollutants, such as vehicle washing, vehicle wash-out, particle washing, dust 
control, batch plant operation and building operations. 

(6) The requirements for setbacks from critical environmental features and waterways 
specified in Section 82.941 apply to a mine or quarry proposal. An applicant who must 
obtain a Sand, Gravel, Shell, and Marl permit from the Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Department or authorization from the US Army Corps of Engineers may be eligible for a 
variance from the setback requirements in Section 82.941. 

(7) Groundwater Monitoring. Depending on site conditions, proposed activity, 
hydrogeologic report, and the potential interrelationship of groundwater to surface 
water quality, the required monitoring of water wells for water levels and water quality 

Page 50 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



determination must include characterization of background and down-gradient 
conditions. As part of its application for a development permit, an applicant must 
propose a groundwater sampling plan that is based on professional practices regulated 
by the Texas Board of Professional Geoscientists or the Texas Board of Professional 
Engineers and that has parameters that include static water level, and levels of pH, nitrate
nitrogen, total suspended solids, volatile organic carbon, total organic carbon, and total 
dissolved solids. If a groundwater conservation district has jurisdiction, the sampling 
plan shall be designed to comply with the groundwater conservation district's 
guidelines 

(8)	 Design Criteria. 

(A)	 Excavation limits. All excavations may operate at a vertical slope but it is 
recommended that during excavation activities, side slopes not exceed a 2
horizontal to 1-vertical unit ratio on the portion of the site adjacent to or 
within a waterway setback in order to prevent a breach of a natural water 
body. 

(B)	 Portions of haul roads that drain into resource extraction excavations do not 
require water quality controls. 

(C)	 Temporary Stabilization Requirements. Any disturbed area that is observed 
to be the source of dust or sediment in runoff, including topsoil stockpiles, 
shall be re-vegetated to prevent erosion or runoff of sediment-laden storm 
water to natural water bodies, in accordance with Section 82.936(d)(3). 

(9)	 Pit Backfill Requirements. 

(A)	 All pit side slopes must be stabilized at a 3-horizontal to 1-vertical unit 
ratio slope for reclamation to prevent erosion and to maintain overland 
sheet flow. However, the County Executive may approve a steeper 
incline if an applicant can demonstrate through either a field plot that is 
approved as part of a reclamation plan or a site-specific engineering 
analysis performed by a Texas-licensed professional engineer that the 
steeper slope will be sufficiently stable to prevent erosion and maintain 
overland sheet flow. 

(B)	 Fill material must conform to Section 82.943(d) and should be 
compacted from the bottom of the excavation to within five feet of final 
grade. The method of compaction must be in accordance with accepted 
engineering best practices and specified in the reclamation plan. 

(C)	 If an open pit is partially backfilled, then the side slopes must be restored 
to a final slope of a 3-horizontal to 1-vertical unit ratio in order to provide 
a stable angle of repose for re-vegetation, to prevent erosion, and to 
maintain overland sheet flow. 

Page 51 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(D)	 The final grade of backfilled areas may not exceed the pre-existing 
natural grade of the site prior to the initiation of extraction operations. An 
exception may be granted by the County Executive for future use as a 
roadway right-of-way or other fill that is outside of the 1DO-year floodplain 
and a waterway. 

(10) Resource Extraction Plan. A resource extraction plan shall be prepared by a 
Texas-licensed professional engineer and submitted with the permit application. Each 
resource extraction plan must: 

(A) Show the location and approximate depth of the proposed resource 
extraction in plan and profile view. Plan view must include two foot contour (or 
less) interval topography at a scale no greater than one inch equals 400 feet. The 
submittal shall be a 24-inch by 36-inch document. 

(B) Include a general description of material to be extracted on a cross-section 
profile. 

(C) Show the location of all haul roads, equipment, office and facilities, and 
materials handling areas. 

(D) Describe all necessary measures and installations for diversion and 
drainage of runoff from the site to prevent pollutant discharges to water in the state 
and describe all runoff diversions that may drain to a neighboring property. 

(E) Provide notes on operational storm water controls for all areas of land 
disturbance and a list of BMPs proposed for mined out areas that will be used as 
temporary sedimentation basins. 

(F) Show proposed mine or quarry boundaries, property limits, mining limits, 
approximate mining depths, drainage plan, creek crossings, and diversions. 

(G) Describe topsoil and topsoil substitute material management, including 
removal, determination of volumes relative to reclamation needs, storage, and 
containment procedures for accepting fill material and restoration methods. 

(11) Reclamation Plan. Each application for a development application must include a 
reclamation plan prepared by a Texas-licensed professional engineer. The reclamation 
plan must describe how the site will be restored using final measures to protect water 
quality once the mining or quarrying activities are complete. The plan must address all 
areas affected by mining or quarrying, and show the steps that the applicant will take to 
restore the site to a condition that is stable, safe, and suitable for the applicant's proposed 
post-mining land use. Contemporaneous reclamation shall be conducted, whenever 
feasible, to minimize the area disturbed by mining or quarrying and to provide for 

Page 52 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



reclamation of the site while mining or quarrying continues on other portions of the site. 
Each reclamation plan shall describe: 

(A) The overall plan for the mine or quarry reclamation activities including 
methods (such as contemporaneous reclamation), proposed phases of reclamation for 
particular areas of the site, and a time schedule, including interim milestones and final 
completion. 

(B) The location of components of the proposed reclamation plan such as 
protected riparian corridor areas, restoration of disturbed areas, areas of re
vegetation, and areas where future development is planned. 

(C) Specific methods to establish vegetative cover within one-year of 
completion of each phase of excavation to restore areas to conditions that existed prior 
to the excavation, except on quarry walls and flooded areas, including within one-year 
of final completion of all resource extraction at the permitted site. 

(0) Specific methods for reclamation of all structures, haul roads, and storage 
areas within one-year of completion of each phase of excavation and within one-year 
of final completion of all resource extraction at the permitted site. 

(E) A re-vegetation plan for the site that is consistent with the SWP3 
requirements of Section 82.936 or a plan developed in accordance with the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service's Conservation 
Practice Standard entitled "Land Reconstruction, Abandoned Mined Land' and 
referenced as Code 543. 

(F)' The measures that will be used, such as re-seeding or placement of erosion 
blankets, temporary irrigation, and other soil stabilization practices. 

(8) The source of uncontaminated material and the procedures to be used in 
accepting off-site material for backfill, in accordance with TCEQ guidance from 
TCEQ's Rule Interpretation Summary Form 330-4.001. 

(H) The methods for placing backfill material, the methods for compaction of 
backfill material, and the methods for placing topsoil and topsoil substitute materials. 

(I) When applicable, the restoration methods and materials for reclamation as 
a constructed wetland and migratory fowl habitat must follow the criteria of the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers Requlatory Guidance Letter No. 02-2, December 24, 2002, 
"Guidance on Compensatory Mitigation Projects for Aquatic Resource Impacts Under 
the Corps Regulatory Program Pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and 
Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899". 

Page 53 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(J) A detailed cost estimate for the construction that is necessary to completely 
implement the mine or quarry reclamation plan and that is consistent with the 
requirements of subsection (d). 

(d) Fiscal Security. The following requirements are in addition to the requirements and 
procedures specified in Section 82.401. 

(1) Filing. Following approval of the mine or quarry reclamation plan, and as a 
condition of the development permit, the applicant shall file fiscal security payable to 
Travis County. The fiscal security shall provide that the operator shall faithfully perform all 
requirements for construction of temporary erosion and sediment controls, permanent site 
stabilization, including complete implementation of the mine or quarry reclamation plan, in 
accordance with this Chapter. 

(2) Amount and Duration. The amount of fiscal security shall equal as closely as 
possible the cost to the County Executive of hiring a contractor to complete either final 
reclamation or progressive reclamation according to the approved reclamation plan. The 
amount of the fiscal security will be reviewed periodically by the County Executive to 
assure it equals outstanding reclamation costs. The County Executive may accept a 
lesser amount if a permittee initiates a process to continuously increase the amount of 
fiscal security until it is adequate to complete reclamation. The period of fiscal security is 
dictated by the period of time approved of in the reclamation plan to establish the post
mining land use. The time period may extend beyond the development permit if required 
to accomplish successful and complete implementation of the reclamation plan. 

(3) Certification of Completion and Release. The operator shall file a notice of 
completion with the County at the time the operator determines that reclamation of any 
portion of the mining or quarry site or the entire site is complete. The site, or portion 
thereof that was the subject of the notice of completion, shall be inspected by the County 
to determine if reclamation has been carried out in accordance with the reclamation plan. 
A partial release of the fiscal security can occur if the County determines that compliance 
with a portion of the reclamation plan has been achieved and requires no waiting period. 
After the County determines that reclamation is complete, a certificate of completion will 
be issued to allow release of the fiscal security 

(e) Assessment of Reclamation Success. 

(1) The criteria for assessing when reclamation is complete and, therefore, when the 
fiscal security may be released shall be specified in the reclamation plan. Criteria to 
evaluate reclamation success shall be quantifiable. 

(2) Completion of the re-vegetation success standards in the approved reclamation 
plan shall be determined by on-site inspection, reports presenting results, data, photo 
documentation, and other evidence that the criteria approved in the reclamation plan to 
ascertain success have been met, or a combination of inspections and reports. 

Page 54 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(3) In those cases where the post-mining land use specified in the reclamation plan 
requires a return of the mining site to its pre-mining condition, the operator shall obtain 
baseline data on the existing plant community prior to site development and mining. 
These data will be used in the evaluation of reclamation success. 

(4) Re-vegetation success may be determined by comparison to an appropriate 
reference area, comparison to baseline data acquired at the mine or quarry site prior to its 
being affected by mining, or comparison to an approved alternate technical standard. 

(f) Responsibilities of the Owner and Operator. The owner and operator have the continuing 
obligation to operate and maintain a mine or quarry in accordance with all approved plans, 
specifications, and permit conditions. All approved closure, reclamation, and re-vegetation must 
be implemented by the owner and operator once active mining is concluded. Any substantial 
change in an approved plan for closure, reclamation, and re-vegetation requires the approval of 
a revised development permit application. 

82.946. Subdivision Plat Notes. 

(a) The following plat notes related to requirements in this Subchapter shall be included on a 
final subdivision plat. Additional notes may be required to more accurately reflect individual 
subdivision plat conditions. 

(1) No cut or fill on any lot may exceed eight feet, excluding driveways, a building 
structure's footprint, or a parking area footprint, in accordance with the Travis County 
Code. 

(2) As depicted on the plat, each protective easement from a critical environmental 
feature, including a cave, sinkhole, point recharge feature, bluff, canyon rimrock feature, 
wetland, and spring must remain in its existing, undeveloped, natural state. Natural 
vegetative cover must be retained. Construction activities, wastewater disposal, and 
wastewater irrigation are prohibited within a protective easement. A residential lawn or 
hiking trail is allowable if it is a setback from a critical environmental feature in accordance 
with the Travis County Code. 

(3) As depicted on the plat, the setback area identified for each waterway is a 
protective easement that must remain undeveloped and activities must be limited within 
the easement. The protective easement must remain free of construction, development, 
or other alterations except when specifically approved in a Travis County Development 
Permit. 

(4) Before beginning construction activities on a subdivision lot, an owner or operator 
must be authorized under a Travis County Development Permit and a Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3). The SWP3 requires implementation of temporary and 
permanent Best Management Practices (BMPs), including erosion and sediment controls, 
for protection of storm water runoff quality, in accordance with the Travis County Code. 

Page 55 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(5) The owner is responsible for maintaining and operating all permanent water quality 
controls in a proper manner consistent with all standards and requirements of the Travis 
County Code. 

(6) Any activities that may adversely affect an existing tree of eight inches or more in 
trunk diameter in a County right-of-way must comply with all standards and requirements 
in the Travis County Code. 

(b) The subdivision final plat must depict the following information related to the requirements 
of this chapter: 

(1) Clearly marked and labeled, the location and dimensions of each protective 
easement pertaining to a setback from any critical environmental feature; 

(2) Clearly marked and labeled, the location and dimensions of each protective 
easement pertaining to a setback from any waterway; 

(3) Clearly marked and labeled, the location and dimensions of any waterway or karst 
buffer zone easement required by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, 
Edwards Aquifer Protection Program, pursuant to 30 TAC, Chapter 213; 

(4) The location and dimensions of any permanent water quality control required by 
the Travis County Code, or permanent water quality control required by another 
jurisdiction; 

(5) The easement locations listed in paragraphs (1) - (4) shall be integrated into the 
drainage, floodplain, and other easements. 

Page 56 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Subchapter J. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan Inspections. 

82.950. Pre-Construction Conference Required. 

(a) Except as described in Subsection (i), this section applies when a development 
application that requires a C"."',?~ ;r· ~~nroved. 

This section is applicable to a development application that requil t:::> Q SWP3, upon the approval 
of the application. 

(b) The requirements of this section are in addition to the pre-construction conference 
requirements of Section 82.603(d) if those requirements also apply to the development project. 

(c) The owner of a project, or owner representative, shall participate in a pre-construction 
conference with the designated Inspector before starting construction under an approved site 
plan or subdivision construction plan. 

(d) An owner, or owner's representative, shall request to schedule the pre-construction 
conference when the owner determines that site construction will commence. 

(e) The owner or owner's designated representative shall provide notice of the conference to 
the following persons or entities not later than the second business day before the conference: 

(1)	 primary operator with operational control of the plans and specifications; 

(2)	 designated Inspector(s); 

(3)	 design engineer or representative for the approved plans and SWP3; 

(4)	 contractor(s) and primary operator(s) with day to day operational control of the 
construction site; 

(5)	 designated qualified inspector for the operator responsible for preparing the SWP3 
inspection reports 

(6)	 municipal development review representatives, as appropriate; and 

(7)	 affected utility representatives. 

(f) At least two business days before convening a pre-construction conference, the owner or 
owner's representative shall distribute approved plans for the development to each person 
identified in subsection (e) of this section receiving notice of the conference. 

(g) The SWP3 pre-construction conference may be a discrete meeting or a subset of a larger 
project pre-construction conference, but must include an on-site inspection and approval of the 
installation of the first phase of the project's erosion and sediment controls before the 
construction activities can commence. The designated Inspector shall provide participants with a 

Page 57 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



SWP3 Operator Compliance Checklist which summarizes the storm water management tasks 
which must be performed by the operator during construction. The Inspector shall briefly explain 
and discuss the SWP3 requirements with the participants. The conference participants shall 
discuss as a minimum, the following items in the approved permit, plans, and SWP3: 

(1)	 the approved phasing of the project, the non-structural erosion source controls, the 
detailed sequence of construction and BMP implementation, start dates, and 
schedule ('If evcntc: 

(2)	 sediment control installation, phasing of the various perimeter and interior controls 
throughout construction, including structural erosion source controls such as 
diversion and dissipation, and maintenance requirements; 

(3)	 the adequacy of the initial installation and future control phases to address site 
conditions; 

(4)	 temporary and permanent stabilization and re-vegetation requirements and phasing 
schedule throughout construction, including critical site improvements and priority 
re-vegetation areas; 

(5)	 on or off-site temporary and permanent spoil and fill disposal areas, haul roads, 
and staging areas; 

(6)	 permanent water quality structural controls and related grading and drainage 
construction; 

(7)	 special conditions or provisions of plans or specifications, such as future 
homebuilding on lots, protection of waterways, critical environmental features, and 
trees to be saved; 

(8)	 observation and documentation of existing site conditions adjacent to and 
downstream from the limits of construction prior to soil disturbing activities, 
including waterways and potential outfall discharge routes, rights-of-way and 
easements, buffer zones, and critical environmental features; 

(9)	 site supervision of the SWP3 implementation by the Primary Operator's designated 
on-site project manager, including roles, responsibilities, and coordination when 
more than one operator is charged with tasks in implementing a shared SWP3; 

(10)	 monitoring inspections of the SWP3 by the operator's qualified inspector, and 
SWP3 inspections by the Inspector, and a schedule for submittal of the SWP3 
Inspection Reports; 

(11)	 rain gage location or rainfall information source to be used during construction and 
reporting, when applicable; 

Page 58 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(12) the potential necessity for adjustment and revision of ESC and SWP3 controls; 

(13)	 exchange of telephone numbers and other contact information for the primary and 
secondary operators, designated qualified SWP3 inspector for the owner, and 
designated Inspector; 

(14)	 final inspection and acceptance requirements; and 

(15)	 publishing and distribution of minutes of the conference. 

(h) The owner's consulting engineer shall prepare and distribute minutes of the 
preconstruction conference within three working days of completion of the conference. 

(i) The requirement for a pre-construction conference does not apply to construction on a 
single family residential lot, unless so specified in the Travis County Development Permit, based 
upon the size or potential impact on water quality of the activities approved for construction. 

82.951. Owner and Primary Operator SWP3 Inspections. 

(a) General. The requirements of this section are in addition to the applicable technical 
criteria in Section 82.933 and the requirements in Section 82.601. 

(b) Owner and Operator SWP3 Inspection Responsibilities. An owner or operator shall 
comply with the following requirements in the implementation and inspection of construction 
projects and associated recordkeeping subject to a SWP3 and County development permit: 

(1) The owner or operator shall post at the construction site a copy of the TCEQ CSN 
and, if the project disturbs five or more acres a copy of the NOI. No later than seven days 
before the start of construction, the owner or operator must provide to the County 
Executive a copy of the TCEQ CSN and a copy of the NOI, if any. 

(2) The owner or operator shall designate an on-site project manager and personnel 
with the necessary experience, qualifications, and training who will be responsible for 
performing and monitoring the SWP3 ESC, BMPs, and construction activities to ensure 
specified practices and structural controls are continuously implemented and maintained 
in effective operating condition throughout construction. The Owner or Operator must 
perform any ongoing inspections, monitoring, and actions necessary to maintain 
compliance, including preparing a signed SWP3 Inspection Report on the schedule 
described in paragraph (4) of this subsection. Any necessary corrective action identified 
shall be recorded on the SWP3 Inspection Report. The owner or operator shall ensure 
any corrective action is promptly performed in accordance with the SWP3 and 
requirements of this Chapter. 

(3) The owner or operator shall designate a qualified inspector familiar with the SWP3 
and possessing the required certification as specified in Section 82.934(c) to conduct an 
SWP3 inspection of the site and prepare the signed SWP3 Inspection Report. The 

Page 59 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



designated project manager and the qualified SWP3 inspector are to coordinate with the 
Inspector on a regular basis during construction to help ensure the SWP3 controls and 
measures are properly implemented. 

(4) SWP3 Inspection and Report Schedule. From the start of construction site soil 
disturbing activity until the entire site is temporarily or finally stabilized, the SWP3 
inspections shall be conducted at least once every seven calendar days on a specifically 
defined day. In addition, a SWP3 inspection shall also be conducted within 48 hours of 
the end of a storm event of 0.5 inches or greater, unless the seven day inspection falls 
within the 48-hour period. Information from this post-storm event inspection shall be 
included in the signed SWP3 Inspection Report required every seven calendar days. 

(5) When the entire site has been finally or temporarily stabilized, inspections must be 
conducted at least once every month until final inspection release. This also applies to 
discrete areas or phases of a larger active site which are finally or temporarily stabilized. 
Unfinished sites finally or temporarily stabilized but inactive for three months or longer 
must be inspected once every two months as a minimum. 

(6) Long, narrow, linear construction activities where access is limited may be 
inspected on an alternate schedule, with representative inspections in accordance with 
the TCEQ General Permit, when approved by Travis County following submittal of 
documentation in support of the alternative. 

(7) In the event of flooding or other uncontrollable situations which prohibit access to 
the inspection sites, the inspection must be conducted as soon as access is practicable. 

(8) The SWP3 inspection must include inspection of the site for compliance with all 
applicable SWP3 requirements. Areas of the construction site shall be inspected to 
determine whether ESCs and BMPs are in full operating condition and to determine if 
there is evidence of, or the potential for, pollutants entering the drainage system and 
discharging off-site. Areas to be inspected include each: 

(A) disturbed area that has not been finally stabilized and the approved limits of 
construction, including any area undergoing permanent vegetation establishment 
or temporary stabilization measures, and evaluation of the compliance of these 
areas with the approved sequence of construction, stabilization, and cessation of 
construction activities; 

(B) area used for storage of materials and equipment that is exposed to 
precipitation; 

(C) temporary or permanent fill and spoil storage or disposal area; 

(D) outfall discharge location and the area immediately downstream of each 
outfall location; 

Page 60 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(E) structural control, including any sediment pond, sediment trap, and drainage 
diversion; 

(F) perimeter and interior sediment control measure; 

(G) haul road and location where vehicles enter or exit the site, and each 
adjacent roadway for evidence of off-site sediment tracking; 

(H) waterway crossing and each area adjacent to a surface water or critical 
environmental feature; and 

(I) concrete wash out area, non-storm water discharge control, and any other 
control or pollution prevention measure applicable, including control measures for 
dust, solid waste, de-watering, material spills, vehicle maintenance and washing, 
and wash water discharges. 

(9) The SWP3 must be revised as necessary based on any inspection result by the 
primary operator or Inspector for Travis County,in a manner that will eliminate or 
minimize, to the maximum extent practicable, the discharge or potential discharge of 
pollutants in runoff. The owner or operator must revise the SWP3 as necessary in 
accordance with Section 82.935U). 

(10) Final Inspection and Certificate of Compliance. The owner or operator shall 
schedule a final inspection with the Inspector when all SWP3 and related construction 
plan requirements are completed. Completion of the SWP3 includes final site 
stabilization, removal and proper disposal of all sediment controls and accumulated 
sediment, and proper construction of each permanent storm water management control 
and drainage system. When required for the project, the final inspection must be 
preceded by submittal of the design engineer's concurrence letter, as required by Section 
82.953. 

(A) If the findings of the inspection demonstrate to Travis County that the SWP3 
and construction plan requirements have been fully completed, a Certificate of 
Compliance will be issued for the project and any fiscal security for erosion and 
sedimentation controls or permanent storm water management facilities shall be 
released. 

(B) If re-vegetation coverage is not fully completed, a Developers Contract as 
described in Section 82.936(d)(4) may be issued at the discretion of Travis County 
for eligible projects with fiscal security posted for erosion and sedimentation 
controls, as a conditional acceptance until the required vegetation coverage is 
attained. 

Page 61 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(c) SWP3 Inspection Report Contents and Format. 

(1) For each scheduled SWP3 inspection required by subsection (b) of this section, 
the designated, qualified inspector shall prepare and sign a SWP3 Inspection Report, 
certifying whether the site is in compliance with the SWP3, and describing any corrective 
actions necessary based on inspection of areas identified in paragraph (b)(8) of this 
section. The SWP3 Inspection Report shall contain notations on inspection findings as 
specified in this paragraph. The report contents shall include: 

(A) all locations of discharge of sediment or other pollutants from the site and 
each disturbance beyond the approved limits of construction; 

(B) all locations of a BMP that requires maintenance, including any BMP 
location identified in the previous SWP3 Inspection Report needing maintenance or 
revision that was not accomplished; 

(C) all locations of a BMP that failed to operate as designed or proved 
inadequate for a particular location; 

(D) all locations where an additional ESC or BMP is needed; and 

(E) a notation of all other SWP3 inspection findings, including: the site's 
compliance status with: the approved phasing, sequence of construction, 
temporary and permanent stabilization schedule, areas where construction has 
temporarily or permanently ceased, temporary and permanent spoil and fill 
disposal areas, and all applicable other controls and pollution prevention 
measures. 

(2) SWP3 Site Notebook and Records. The SWP3 Site Notebook and contents, as 
described in Section 82.935(h), shall be maintained by the primary operator or the 
qualified inspector at the construction site, and it shall be readily available upon request. 
All SWP3 records must be kept by the owner or primary operator for a minimum of three 
years after site completion. 

82.952. Submittal of SWP3 Operator Inspection Reports. At the request of the Inspector, 
the owner or operator shall periodically submit each SWP3 Inspection Report that is required by 
this subchapter. Each submittal shall be in a format and at a frequency agreed upon by the 
owner or operator and Inspector. 

82.953. Submittal of Engineer's Concurrence Letter. At the time of substantial completion of 
construction in accordance with the approved construction plan, SWP3, and Travis County 
development permit, the design engineer shall submit a concurrence letter to Travis County and 
the owner which states the project has been substantially completed in conformance with the 
approved plans and development permit. The concurrence letter shall request a final inspection 
and approval that the project is complete. The concurrence letter must address completion of 
final stabilization as required by Section 82.936(d)(3)(H). These requirements are in addition to 
any applicable requirements of Section 82.604. 

Page 62 of 67 
Proposal - December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Subchapter K. Roadways and Rights of Way. 

82.970 Erosion and Sedimentation Control for Roadways and Drainage Easements. 
Temporary and permanent erosion control design for roadway right-of-way and drainage 
easement areas shall follow the technical criteria and standards in Sections 82.933,82.936, 
82.937, and 82.940 as a minimum, as well as the additional requirements outlined in this 
section. These standards apply to the construction of new roadways, improvements to existing 
roadways, and construction of utilities or other improvements within existing roadways. 

(a) The temporary ESC plan during construction shall be sufficient to minimize the discharge 
of sediment and pollutants to prevent sedimentation of drainage structures, off-site areas, 
surface waters, adverse impacts to aquatic life, reduced flow capacity, excessive stream bank 
erosion, erosion around structures, or damage of adjoining property. 

(b) The permanent erosion control and stabilization plan design shall be in conformance with 
the Austin Drainage Criteria Manual and Environmental Criteria Manual requirements for 
velocities to be below erosive values for the particular soil conditions. All structures must be 
designed and constructed to withstand the forces of the 25-year, 24-hour storm event. 

(1) The plan must ensure permanent stabilization of all disturbed soil areas with 
permanent vegetation, including any slope and embankment including the following 
special considerations: 

(A) Disturbed roadside slopes in excess of ten percent grade must be covered 
with temporary mulch or soil retention blanket or equivalent methods in addition to 
seeding to achieve permanent vegetative stabilization, whenever the slope's length 
and runoff volume have the potential to result in substantial erosion of the slope 
during or after the vegetation establishment period. 

(B) The methods specified in (A) shall also be used on disturbed slopes around 
cross culvert and bridge crossings. 

(2) The plan must prevent erosion from runoff velocity exiting at an outlet of a culvert, 
bridge, storm sewer, and channel through use of a dissipater, rip-rap, level spreader, 
lining, gabion, or similar BMP, and erosion control protection of the inlets to such 
structures where necessary; 

(3) The plan must prevent gullying and scouring of a roadside or outfall channel from 
high shear stress, through vegetation, lining, soil retention blanket, retard, drop structure, 
or similar BMP, both during and after the vegetation re-establishment period; 

(4) The plan must adequately address the slope of an open channel, as follows: 

(A) An open channel with a flow line grade of two percent or greater must be 
protected from erosion using temporary or permanent soil cover measures in 
addition to seeding to achieve permanent soil stabilization. 

Page 63 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(B) Adequate soil cover measures in addition to seeding must be used to 
achieve permanent soil stabilization in an open channel less than two percent 
grade where the channel geometry, volume, velocity, or shear stress will result in 
erosion during or after the vegetation establishment period. 

(C) Open channels with flow line grades between two to five percent must also 
consider structural hardening for flow line protection in addition to the measures 
described in subparagraph (A), if flow volume, velocity, and shear stress will result 
in channel erosion both during and after the vegetation establishment period. 

(D) The considerations of subparagraph (C) are mandatory when the open 
channel grade exceeds five percent. 

(E) When uneven soil conditions or geometry are present in the open channel, 
such as exposed bedrock or subsoil layers of varying hardness, these additional 
measures or alternatives must be used to achieve effective final stabilization. 

(F) Channel volume, velocity, or shear stress calculations may be performed by 
the engineer to propose alternate channel stabilization measures, and these 
calculations are mandatory for channels required to be designed using the Austin 
Drainage Criteria Manual. 

(5) The plan must protect the integrity of any structural improvement and prevent 
excessive continuing sedimentation from an unstable right-of-way area into any drainage 
structure and roadside channel; and 

(6) The plan must stabilize a driveway approach to prevent erosion and achieve 
proper drainage conveyance on a rural design roadside, using a standard driveway 
approach detail approved by the County Executive. 

(c) A stream crossing design for a roadway shall employ spanning, bridging, structural 
containment, or similar design methods to the maximum extent practicable to minimize the 
amount and the proximity of erodible fill soil for roadside embankments, approaches, and slopes 
adjacent to the stream crossings. Design and alignment for a proposed crossing of a waterway 
through a waterway setback may require approval of an exception in accordance with Section 
82.941. Sediment controls and permanent erosion control design considerations for all stream 
crossing construction shall follow the applicable standards of this section and Sections 82.936 
and 82.937. 

82.971. Sustainable Roadways. 

(a) The County Executive may approve the use of alternative design criteria for selected 
roadside areas and local roadways to support the use of low impact development ("LID") 
techniques for enhanced water quality and runoff mitigation if the design can substantially meet 
the traffic safety and drainage conveyance design standards in Section 82.302 and can be 
maintained on a long-term basis. Design criteria and LID techniques shall use the applicable 

Page 64 of 67 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



technical standards in section 82.933. Alternate design criteria that may be approved include: 
ribbon curb without roadside drainage swales; grassed roadside drainage swale systems instead 
of curb and gutter; vegetative filter strips; storm water infiltration techniques; storm water 
wetlands; natural area preservation; reuse of native topsoil; native grasses and vegetation; and 
soil amendment and conservation landscaping. Alternative and LID designs must also 
demonstrate long-term maintenance feasibility. 

(b) Applicability of Standards. 

(1) Travis County improvements and maintenance to County-owned or leased land, 
easements, and rights-of-way shall follow the standards in this section where applicable. 
This includes capital improvement projects or any construction improvements to County 
roads, bridges, parks, drainage, utilities, buildings, and parking facilities. This also 
includes County road, park, or facilities operation and maintenance activities, including 
maintenance construction. 

(2) Development permit and plat applications of any type that include proposed 
development activities in an existing or a proposed County right-of-way or easement shall 
follow the standards in this section. 

(3) County right-of-way areas being regularly maintained by the property owners 
directly adjacent to such areas shall implement the native vegetation standards specified 
in section 82.972 whenever feasible, but may generally follow the landscape character 
and maintenance standards of the adjacent developed areas, or as agreed upon by local 
residents or neighborhood associations, or in accordance with any maintenance or 
license agreements entered into with Travis County. 

82.972. Native Vegetation. The applicant should consider the use of native plants and grass 
cover for the re-vegetation of construction areas wherever it is feasible 

(a) In determining whether to use native vegetation for re-vegetation and landscaping, an 
applicant shall consider the existing site conditions and planned uses of the area; the degree of 
urbanization versus the undeveloped, natural character of the area; the limitations of the 
available water supply for irrigation, and the owners and parties responsible for ongoing 
maintenance of the area 

(b) An applicant should consider selected native vegetation and grass cover for areas that 
are more rural and natural in character, less urbanized and developed, and areas where regular 
landscape maintenance is less practicable are more suited to native vegetation, as well as any 
areas where it is desired to achieve a more natural, low-maintenance landscape condition. 

(c) Seasonal native wildflowers should be considered for the roadsides and open spaces of 
Travis County, if it is feasible. 

(d) An applicant should consider the use of sustainable designs with native plants to maintain 
or reduce long-term maintenance costs. 

Page 65 of67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



82.973. Tree Preservation. 

(a) Applicability. This section applies to Travis County improvements and maintenance to 
County-owned or leased land, easements, and rights-of-way. This includes capital improvement 
projects or any construction improvements to County roads, bridges, parks, drainage, utilities, 
buildings, and parking facilities. This also includes County road, park, and facility operation and 
maintenance activities, including maintenance construction. This section also applies to 
applications for development permits and plats as described in subsection (c) below. 

(b) County Project Implementation. The County is responsible for ensuring the design and 
implementation of an applicable project is completed in conformance with the requirements of 
this section. The person responsible for the County project must prepare and submit a tree 
assessment to the County Executive for review. 

(c) Development Application Requirements. Development permit and plat applications of any 
type that include proposed development activities affecting trees in an existing or proposed 
County right-of-way shall follow the standards in this section. The applicant must prepare and 
submit a tree assessment in accordance with subsection (d), when applicable, as part of the 
development permit review process. 

(d) Tree Assessment. 

(1) The applicant or the applicable Travis County department proposing a 
development must submit a tree assessment that evaluates areas proposed for 
development on County-owned land, County-leased land, and County road right-of-way. 
The detailed tree survey area extent in the tree assessment must include the proposed 
right-of-way and easement areas on the site as a minimum. The assessment should 
include explanations of any alternate right-of-way corridor options considered to save any 
particularly valuable trees, and the rationale and feasibility of the corridor selected. 

(2) The tree assessment must be consistent with the guidelines of the City of Austin 
Environmental Criteria Manual, Section 3 - Tree and Natural Area Preservation (effective 
[Insert effective date ofrule]). The assessment must include a tree survey, identification of 
significant trees, proposed measures to preserve significant trees, and mitigation 
measures for significant trees that would not be preserved. 

(3) The tree assessment must be prepared by a person qualified in the identification of 
trees and tree condition. 

(4) When a tree assessment is required, a development permit applicant proposing 
activities affecting trees in a right-of-way or easement shall submit tree assessment 
information that includes: trunk location and diameter, tree species, proximity to the 
proposed construction activities to a tree(s), proposed pruning or removal activities, and 
proposed protection measures. Subdivision and commercial site development 

Page 66 of 67 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



construction shall include tree assessment information as part of the engineered, 
surveyed construction plan submittal. 

(e) The tree assessment will be reviewed as a part of the application review process, or in 
response to a County departmental request. A determination will be made as to whether the tree 
assessment 

(1) is sufficiently complete and prepared consistent with the City of Austin 
Environmental Criteria Manual ("ECM") guidelines; 

(2) identifies significant trees and sufficiently avoided them in the development 
design; 

(3) includes an analysis of design constraints and alternatives; and 

(4) proposes sufficient mitigation measures when necessary. 

(f) The approved tree assessment, the design constraints, tree protection measures, and 
mitigation become a part of the approved development plan, and shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved permit and construction plans. 

82.974. Responsibility for Unaccepted Roadways. 

(a) The use of any private property by the general public as a roadway is the responsibility of 
the owner and may be restricted or prohibited by the owner in any lawful manner. 

(b) An owner of an unaccepted roadway is the person responsible for pollution or the 
discharge of pollutants, or excessive storm water drainage impacts that may be caused by the 
operation of the roadway. 

(c) The owner of a roadway whose operation is observed to be causing pollution, the 
discharge of pollutants, or excessive storm water drainage discharge impacts must mitigate such 
effects. Erosion mitigation measures, if required, shall follow sediment control and permanent 
erosion control and stabilization standards contained in Section 82.970 and Sections 82.933 
82.940. 

Page 67 of 67
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



EXHIBIT 2
 

Page 1 of 12
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Title VIII. Environmental 

Chapter 104. Discharge Prohibitions and Enforcement. 

104.001. Application.
 
104.002. Definitions.
 
104.003. Discharge Prohibitions.
 
104.004. Suspension of MS4 Access.
 
104.005. Industrial or Construction Activities Discharges
 
104.006.	 Requirement to Prevent, Control, and Reduce Storm Water Pollutants
 

by the Use of Best Management Practices.
 
104.007. Watercourse Protection.
 
104.008. Spill or Discharge of a Hazardous Substance.
 
104.009. Right of Entry.
 
104.010. Enforcement.
 

Page 2 of 12
 
Proposal- December 6,2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Chapter 104. Discharge Prohibitions and Enforcement. 

104.001. Application. 

(a) This subchapter applies to any illicit discharge and to any discharge of a pollutant into a 
conveyance, water in the state, or into the Travis County Municipal Separate Storm Sewer. This 
chapter describes the prohibitions and standards that will eliminate the discharge of 
unauthorized waste into the Travis County storm sewer system and waters in the State. 

(b) This subchapter is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by Sec. 573.002(a) of the 
Texas Local Government Code, which provides Travis County the authority to take any 
necessary or proper action to comply with the requirements of the storm water permitting 
program established under Section 402, Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. section 
1342) and the authority to develop and implement controls to reduce the discharge of pollutants 
from any conveyance or system of conveyance owned by the county and the authority 

104.002. Definitions. 

(1) "Best management practices" or "BMPs" means schedules of activities, prohibitions of 
practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or 
reduce the pollution of water in the state or the Travis County MS4. BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, 
spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage. In the 
Lake Travis watershed, BMP means those practices, including but not limited to those 
described in LCRA's Technical Manual, that effectively manage storm water runoff quality 
and volume. 

(2) "Conveyance" means curbs, gutters, man-made or natural channels and ditches, drains, 
pipes, and other constructed features designed or used for flood control or to otherwise 
transport storm water runoff. 

(3) "Discharge" or "To discharge" means to either deposit, conduct, drain, emit, throw, run, 
allow to seep, or otherwise release or dispose of, or to allow, permit, or suffer any of 
these acts or omissions. 

(4) "Hazardous substance" means any substance designated as such by the administrator of 
the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 9601 et seq.), regulated 
pursuant to Section 311 of the federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. Sec. 1321 et seq.), or 
designated by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

(5) "Illicit connection" means a man-made drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or 
subsurface, which allows an illicit discharge to enter a municipal separate storm sewer 
includinq but not limited to any conveyance which allows sewage, process wastewater, 
wash water, or cooling water to discharge to a municipal separate storm sewer 

Page 3 of 12 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



regardless of whether the connection had been previously allowed, permitted, or 
approved by an authorized enforcement agency or, any drain or conveyance connected 
from a commercial or industrial site to a municipal separate storm sewer which has not 
been documented in plans, maps, or equivalent records and approved by an authorized 
enforcement agency. 

(6) "Illicit discharge" means any discharge to a conveyance or a municipal separate storm 
sewer that is not composed entirely of storm water except discharges pursuant to a 
TPDES permit (other than the TPDES permit for discharges from the municipal separate 
storm sewer) and discharges resulting from fire fighting activities. 

(7) "Industrial activity" means manufacturing, processing, material storage, and waste 
material disposal areas (and similar areas where storm water can contact industrial 
pollutants related to the industrial activity) at an industrial facility described by the TPDES 
Multi Sector General Permit, TXR050000, or by another TCEQ or TPDES permit. 

(8) "Municipal Separate Storm Sewer" means a conveyance or system of conveyances 
(including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, 
ditches, man-made channels, or storm drains): 

(A) owned or operated by a State, city, town, borough, county, parish, district, 
association, or other public body (created by or pursuant to State law) having 
jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other 
wastes, including special districts under State law such as a sewer district, 
flood control district or drainage district, or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an 
authorized Indian tribal organization, or a designated and approved 
management agency under section 208 of the CWA that discharges to water of 
the United States; 

(8) designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water; 

(C)which is not a combined sewer; and 

(D)which is not part of a Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) as defined at 
40 CFR 122.2. 

(9) "Non-storm water discharge" means any discharge to the Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer that is not composed entirely of storm water. 

(10)	 "Operator" means the person responsible for the overall operation of a site or 
facility. 

(11)	 "Owner" means the owner of real property subject to a proposed or existing 
subdivision, site, parcel of land, or development. 

Page 4 of 12 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(12)	 "Person" means an individual, association, partnership, corporation, municipality, 
state or federal agency, or an agent or employee thereof. 

(13) "Person responsible" or "responsible person" means: 

(A) the owner, operator, or demise charterer of a vessel from which a spill 
emanates; 

(8) the owner or operator of a facility from which a spill emanates; or 

(C) any other person who causes, suffers, allows, or permits a spill or discharge. 

(14)	 "Pollutant" means dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, 
garbage, sewage sludge, filter backwash, munitions, chemical wastes, biological 
materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar 
dirt, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into any water in the 
state. The term includes: 

(A) tail water or runoff water from irrigation associated with an animal feeding 
operation or concentrated animal feeding operation that is located in a major 
sole source impairment zone as defined by Texas Water Code, Section 26.502; 
or 

(8) rainwater runoff from the confinement area of an animal feeding operation or 
concentrated animal feeding operation that is located in a major sole source 
impairment zone, as defined by Texas Water Code, Section 26.502; and 

(C) the term does not include tail water or runoff water from irrigation or rainwater 
runoff from other cultivated or uncultivated rangeland, pastureland, and 
farmland that is not owned or controlled by an operator of an animal feeding 
operation or concentrated animal feeding operation on which agricultural waste 
is applied. 

(15)	 "Pollution" means the alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, or biological 
quality of, or the contamination of, any water in the state that renders the water harmful, 
detrimental, or injurious to humans, animal life, vegetation, or property or to public health, 
safety, or welfare, or impairs the usefulness or the public enjoyment of the water for any 
lawful or reasonable purpose. 

(16)	 "Premises" means any building, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land whether 
improved or unimproved including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips. 

(17)	 "Storm water" and "storm water runoff' means rainfall runoff, snow melt runoff, and 
surface runoff and drainage. 

Page 5 of 12 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(18)	 "Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan" or "SWPPP" or "SWP3" means a 
document which describes the Best Management Practices and activities to be 
implemented by a person to identify sources of pollution or contamination at a site and 
the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to Water in the State, a 
Conveyance or a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer to the Maximum Extent Practicable. 
The contents of the SWP3 shall include all practices and activities required by the 
relevant TCEQ permit as well as including additional requirements derived from the 
Travis County Code. 

(19)	 "TCEQ" means Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or any successor 
agency. 

(20)	 "Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System" or 'TPDES" means the state 
program for issuing, amending, terminating, monitoring, and enforcing permits 
authorizing the discharge of pollutants to water in the State of Texas, and imposing and 
enforcing pretreatment requirements, under Clean Water Act §§ 307, 402,318 and 405, 
the Texas Water Code and Texas Administrative Code regulations. 

(21)	 "Waste" means sewage, industrial waste, municipal waste, recreational waste, 
agricultural waste, or other waste, as the terms are defined in Texas Water Code, 
Section 26.001. 

(22)	 "Water" or "water in the state" means groundwater, percolating or otherwise, lakes, 
bays, ponds, impounding reservoirs, springs, rivers, streams, creeks, estuaries, 
wetlands, marshes, inlets, canals, the Gulf of Mexico, inside the territorial limits of the 
state, and all other bodies of surface water, natural or artificial, inland or coastal, fresh or 
salt, navigable or non-navigable, and including the beds and banks of all watercourses 
and bodies of surface water, that are wholly or partially inside or bordering the state or 
inside the jurisdiction of the state. 

104.003. Discharge Prohibitions. 

(a) No person may cause, suffer, allow, or permit the discharge of any waste or of any pollutant, 
or the performance or failure of any activity other than a discharge, in violation of this 
subchapter. 

(b) No person may discharge or cause to be discharged into the Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer or into a water in the State any pollutant that causes or contributes to a violation of 
applicable water quality standards, other than storm water authorized by permit or similar 
authorization issued by the TCEQ. The commencement, conduct or continuance of any illicit 
discharge is prohibited except as described in subsections (c) and (d). 

(c) The following discharges are allowed so long as they do not substantially contribute 
pollutants in storm water runoff: 

Page 6 of 12 
Proposal- December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1) water line flushing, excluding discharges of hyper-chlorinated water, when the water 
is first de-chlorinated and discharges are not expected to adversely affect aquatic life; 

(2) water line breaks, so long as sediment in the discharge is controlled such that there is 
no impact to aquatic life; 

(3) water line hydrant testing, so long as rust deposits and chlorine levels do not result in 
an impact to aquatic life; 

(4) runoff or return flow from landscape irrigation, lawn irrigation, and other irrigation 
utilizing potable water, groundwater, or surface water sources; 

(5) discharges from a potable water source; diverted stream flow; rising ground water or 
spring; 

(6) discharges from uncontaminated ground water infiltration; 

(7) discharges from uncontaminated, pumped ground water; 

(8) discharges from uncontaminated foundation and footing drains; 

(10) discharges from air conditioning condensation; 

(11) discharges from water pumped from an elevator sump or utility vault, so long as it is 
free of oil and visible sheen; 

(12) discharges from individual residential exterior car washing with mild detergents only 
and when using no degreasers nor other chemicals; 

(13) flows from a wetland, riparian habitat, or diverted stream flow; 

(14) uncontaminated discharges associated with a de-chlorinated, residential swimming 
pool, spa, or ornamental fountain, excluding filter backwash wastewater and excluding 
saline water; 

(15) uncontaminated discharges from the routine washing of pavement conducted 
without the use of detergents or other chemicals and where spills or leaks of oil, toxins, or 
other hazardous materials have not occurred (unless all spilled material has been 
removed), but does not include discharges of street sweeper wash water; 

(16) discharges from fire fighting activities where foam or chemical agents are not used 
(and not including washing of trucks, runoff from training activities, and similar activities); 

(17) discharges of uncontaminated fire test maintenance and fire sprinkler/suppression 
system water; 

Page 7 of 12 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(18) discharges specified in writing by the County Executive as being necessary to 
protect public health and safety; 

(19) discharges of uncontaminated water used for dust suppression; 

(20) dye testing is an allowable discharge, but requires a verbal notification prior to the 
time of the test; 

(21) discharges associated with dewatering of collected storm water in an above-ground 
storage tank secondary containment area, so long as the water is free of contaminants, 
oil, or visible sheen; 

(22) discharges from dewatering of collected storm water in a construction pit, if free of 
silt, oil, or visible sheen; 

(23) discharges of storm water from an authorized permanent water quality control; 

(24) discharges of ballast water from a petroleum storage tank pit during installation; and 

(25) discharges from a dumpster or similar receptacle, so long as it is water free of 
contaminants, oil, and visible sheen. 

(d) The prohibition does not apply to any non-storm water discharge permitted under a TPDES 
permit, waiver, or waste discharge order issued to the discharger and administered under the 
authority of the federal Environmental Protection Agency and TCEQ, provided that the 
authorized person is in full compliance with all requirements of the permit, waiver, or order and 
other applicable laws and regulations, and provided that written approval has been granted for 
any discharge to the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer. 

(e) The construction, use, maintenance, or continued existence of an illicit connection to the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer is prohibited. This prohibition expressly includes, without 
limitation, an illicit connection made in the past, regardless of whether the connection was 
permissible under law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of connection. A person is 
considered to be in violation of this ordinance if the person connects a line conveying a pollutant 
to the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer, or allows such a connection to continue 

104.004. Suspension of MS4 Access. 

(a) Travis County may, without prior notice, require a person to immediately stop an illicit 
discharge into either the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer or water in the state when such 
suspension is necessary to prevent imminent and substantial danger to environmental quality, or 
to the health or welfare of any person. If a person fails to comply with the suspension order, 
Travis County may take such steps as deemed necessary to prevent or minimize damage to the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer or water in the State, or to minimize danger to persons. 

Page 8 of 12
 
Proposal - December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(b) After providing notice, Travis County may suspend a person's access to discharge into the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer or water in the state in violation of this ordinance if such 
termination would abate or reduce pollution caused by an illicit discharge. 

(c) Travis County will notify a responsible person of the proposed termination of access to the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer. The violator may petition the authorized enforcement agency 
for a reconsideration and hearing. 

(d) A person commits an offense if the person reinstates access to the Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer, without the prior approval of the County Executive. 

104.005. Industrial or Construction Activities Discharges. Any person authorized to 
discharge pollutants generated from an industrial or construction activity that is subject to a 
TPDES storm water discharge permit or similar authorization shall comply with all provisions of 
such permit. Proof of compliance may be required in a form acceptable to Travis County prior to 
allowing discharge into the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer. 

104.006. Requirement to Prevent, Control, and Reduce Storm Water Pollutants by the Use 
of Best Management Practices. 

(a) Travis County requires that Best Management Practices (BMPs) be identified and 
incorporated into any activity, operation, or facility which may cause or contribute to pollution or 
contamination of storm water, the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer, or water of the State. 

(b) The owner or operator of a commercial or industrial establishment shall provide, at their own 
expense, reasonable protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or other waste 
into the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer or water in the state through the use of structural and 
non-structural BMPs. 

(c) Any person responsible for a property or premise, which is, or may be, the source of an illicit 
discharge, may be required by the County Executive to implement, at said person's expense, 
additional structural and non-structural BMPs to prevent the further discharge of pollutants to the 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer or water in the state. 

(d) Compliance with all terms and conditions of a valid TPDES permit authorizing the discharge 
of storm water associated with industrial activity, along with any additional, more stringent 
requirements required by a Travis County development permit, shall be deemed in compliance 
with the provisions of this section. These BMPs shall be part of a storm water pollution 
prevention plan (SWP3) as necessary for compliance with requirements of the TPDES permit. 

104.007. Watercourse Protection. Any responsible person, owning or leasing property 
through which water in the State passes, shall keep and maintain that part of the watercourse 

Page 9 of 12 
Proposal - December 6, 2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



within the property free of waste that would cause a condition of pollution to exist. In addition, a 
responsible person shall maintain privately owned structures within or adjacent to a watercourse 
(including but not limited to a dam or weir), so that such structures will not become a hazard to 
the use, function, or physical integrity of the watercourse. 

104.008. Spill or Discharge of a Hazardous Substance. 

(a) The person responsible shall prevent the spill or discharge of any hazardous substance into 
the water in the state and to cause the removal of such spills and discharges without undue 
delay. 

(b) Whenever an accidental discharge or spill occurs at or from any activity or facility which 
causes or may cause pollution, the responsible person for the activity or facility shall notify the 
TCEQ and each state and federal agency, as required by law, as soon as possible and no later 
than 24 hours after the occurrence. 

(c) When the person responsible becomes aware or discovers that an accidental discharge or 
spill described by subsection (b) may adversely affect a public or private source of drinking 
water, or may adversely affect a Travis County road, including a right-of-way, the individual shall 
also immediately notify Travis County as soon as possible and no later than 24 hours after the 
occurrence. 

(d) Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility 
or operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation has information of 
any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in an illicit 
discharge or pollutants discharging into storm water, the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer, or 
water in the State, the responsible person shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, 
containment, and cleanup of such release. 

104.009. Right of Entry. 

(a) In accordance with Texas Water Code, Sec. 26.171, an Inspector shall be permitted to enter 
and inspect the premises of any person to determine whether or not: 

(1) the quality of the water meets the state water quality standards adopted by the TCEQ; 

(2) a person discharging effluent into the public water located in an area of which Travis 
County has jurisdiction has obtained permits for discharge of the effluent; 

(3) a person who has a permit is making discharges in compliance with the requirements 
of the permit; and 

(4) the information provided in an application for permit, plat, or other authorization can 
be verified by an on-site evaluation. 

Page 10 of 12 
Proposal- December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(b) In accordance with Texas Water Code, Sec. 26.173, an Inspector shall be permitted the right 
to enter public and private property within its territorial jurisdiction to make inspections and 
investigations of conditions relating to water quality. The Inspector, in exercising this power, is 
subject to the same provisions and restrictions as the TCEQ in accordance with Texas Water 
Code, Sec. 26.014. 

(c) An Inspector shall be permitted to enter and inspect premises as often as may be necessary 
to determine compliance with this chapter. If a person has security measures in force which 
require proper identification and clearance before entry into its premises, the person shall make 
the necessary arrangements to allow access to an Inspector. 

(e) Facility operators shall allow the Inspector ready access to all parts of the premises for the 
purposes of inspection, sampling, examination and copying of records that must be kept under 
the conditions of a TPDES permit to discharge storm water, and the performance of any 
additional duties as defined by state and federal law. 

(f) An Inspector shall follow all appropriate safety precautions and shall don personal protection 
equipment that may be applicable to an area of the premises being inspected. 

(g) If the premises are occupied, the Inspector shall present credentials and request entry. If the 
premises are unoccupied, the Inspector shall attempt to contact a responsible person and 
request entry before entering. 

(h) Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be 
inspected or sampled shall be promptly removed by the operator at the written or oral request of 
the Inspector and shall not be replaced. 

(i) A delay of 30 minutes or more in allowinq the Inspector access to a permitted facility is a 
violation of a storm water discharge permit and of this chapter. A person who is the owner or 
operator of a facility with a TPDES permit to discharge storm water associated with industrial 
activity commits an offense if the person denies the Inspector reasonable access to the 
permitted facility for the purpose of conducting any activity authorized or required by this 
ordinance. 

U) If the Inspector has been refused access to any part of the premises from which storm water 
is discharged, and is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a violation 
of this SUbchapter, or that there is a need to inspect or sample as part of a routine inspection and 
sampling program designed to verify compliance with this subchapter or any order issued 
hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety, and welfare of the community, then the 
Inspector may seek issuance of a search warrant from any court of competent jurisdiction, in 
accordance with the enforcement policy adopted by the Commissioners Court on June 26, 2001. 

104.010. Enforcement. 

(a) Civil Remedies. 

Page 11 of 12 
Proposal - December 6,2011 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1) In accordance with Texas Local Government Code, Sec. 573.003, whenever 
Travis County finds that a person has violated a prohibition or failed to meet a 
requirement of this chapter or subchapters H - K of chapter 82, that person is liable to the 
county for a civil penalty of not more than $1,000 for each violation. Each day a violation 
continues is considered a separate violation for purposes of assessing the civil penalty. 

(2) Travis County may bring suit in a district court to: 

(A) restrain a violation or threatened violation of a rule or requirement adopted by 
the county in this Code; or 

(8) recover a civil penalty authorized by Subsection (a). 

(3) Travis County may use means other than civil penalties and injunctions when 
necessary to enforce violations or requirements of the Code. Such means may include 
informal actions to deter non-compliance as described in enforcement policy adopted by 
the Commissioners' Court on July 26, 2001. 

(b) Abatement of Violation and Remediation. Any person violating any of the provisions of this 
chapter or subchapters H - K of chapter 82 is liable for any costs of violation abatement or 
remediation of any property, land, water, or wildlife habitat negatively affected, damaged, or 
threatened as a result of any such violation. The cost of abatement or remediation is the 
responsibility of that person and not a cost borne by Travis County and any other affected 
entities. 

(c) Injunctive Relief. It is unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to comply with 
any of the requirements of this chapter or subchapters H - K of chapter 82. If a person has 
violated or continues to violate the provisions, Travis County may petition for a preliminary or 
permanent injunction restraining the person from activities which would create further violations 
or compelling the person to perform abatement or remediation of the violation. 

(d) Criminal Prosecution. Any person who has violated or continues to violate the requirements 
of this chapter or subchapters H - K of chapter 82 shall be liable to criminal prosecution to the 
fullest extent as allowed under applicable law, and shall be subject to any criminal penalty or 
imprisonment authorized under such applicable criminal law. Travis County may recover all 
attorney fees, court costs, and other expenses associated with enforcement of the Code, 
including sampling and monitoring expenses. 

(e) Remedies Not Exclusive. The remedies listed in this chapter are not exclusive of any other 
remedies available under any applicable federal, state or local law and it is within the discretion 
of Travis County to seek cumulative remedies. 

Page 12 of 12
 
Proposal- December 6, 2011
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



EXHIBIT 3
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Crosswalk for Proposed Repeals to Chapter 82 and Chapter 108 

Affected Rule Existing Requirement Disposition of the Requirement 
82.204(c)(25)(B) Under this requirement, final plats can be approved 

only when the applicant submits information on 
environmental permits required by other 
jurisdictions. 

These requirements have been supplemented with other 
environmental authorizations for which an applicant must 
show evidence of compliance. Together, these requirements 
are proposed in Section 82.916. 

82.209(a) This subsection specifies that the scope of the 
2005-adopted water quality protection requirements 
is outside of all municipal ETJs. 

Proposed Section 82.912 describes the scope of water 
quality protection requirements as being all unincorporated 
areas of Travis County, including all ETJs, except that the 
water quality requirements do not apply to subdivision 
proposals in the City of Austin ETJ processed through the 
Single Office of Review. 

82.209(b) This subsection identifies basic requirements to 
control pollutant discharges of construction site 
runoff and requirements for a pre-construction 
conference. 

Proposed Sections 82.935 - 82.939 detail storm water 
quality measures for construction activities. Section 82.950 
details requirements for a pre-construction conference. 

82.209(c) This subsection defines certain environmental 
features and establishes distance buffers between 
development and either an environmentally 
valuable feature or waterway. 

The definitions are modified and proposed for addition to 
Section 82.002. The definition of bluff has been changed to 
characterize more formations as bluffs. The requirements 
for setbacks have been strengthened for eastern watersheds 
and waterways with adjacent bluffs, for rim rock, and these 
changes are proposed in Section 82.941. 

82.209(d) This subsection identifies restrictions on the use of 
cut and fill of land under development. 

The requirements have been modified, clarified, and new 
requirements are proposed relating to the quality of fill 
material. These requirements are proposed for Section 
82.943. 

82.209(e) - (g) These subsections describe the requirements for 
permanent, structural water quality controls. 

The engineering standards for these controls are not 
proposed for change and are specified in Section 82.944. 

2
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Affected Rule Existin2 Requirement Disposition of the Requirement 
82.209(h) This subsection requires that permanent, structural 

water quality controls be maintained by the 
property owner. 

The proposed requirement for a BMP Maintenance Permit 
requiring proper operation and maintenance for these 
structures and annual fees are proposed in 82.917 through 
82.919. 

f--

82.209(i) This subsection requires that a person submitting a 
preliminary plan shall provide information on how 
storm water will be managed to protect water 
quality once the construction phase commences. 

These requirements are proposed for Section 82.939 and 
have been expanded with some additional detail. 

82.209U) and 
82.2llU) 

f---- 

These subsections adopted 2009 City of Austin and 
2007 LCRA technical criteria manuals as standards 
for review of development proposals to Travis 
County. 

Use of the same criteria manuals are proposed in Section 
82.933. The proposed rule references the latest City of 
Austin manual approved on the date the Commissioners' 
Court adopts 82.933. 

82.209(k) and 
82.2ll(k) 

These subsections identify that water quality 
controls are subject to the same requirements as 
drainage structures and specify fiscal security 
requirements in the HLWO area. 

These general statements are proposed to be replaced with 
more specific standards for storm water, including fiscal 
security (new 82.920 and amended 82.401), construction 
plans (82.935), and required inspections (82.951 - 82.952). 

82.2ll(a) This subsection identifies the purpose of rule 
amendments in 2010, which set out requirements 
for water quality protection in the HLWO area. 

This specific purpose is no longer needed. The more broad 
purpose of proposed Chapter 104 is found in 104.001. 

82.2ll(b) This subsection defines best management practices 
(BMPs), commercial development, master plan, 
single family subdivision development, and single 
family residence. 

In proposed amendments to 82.002, the definition ofBMP 
has been modified to be consistent with the TCEQ and the 
LCRA definitions. The definitions of commercial 
development and master plan are also proposed for 
amendment in 82.002. The definitions of single family 
subdivision development and single family residence are 
supplanted with applicable Travis County terminology in 
82.002. 

3
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Affected Rule Existing Requirement Disposition of the Requirement 
82.211(d) This subsection describes submittal requirements to 

Travis County and LCRA for applications subject 
to review by both entities. 

The submittal requirements for applicants for environmental 
review are proposed in 82.914 and the environmental 
requirements for each application type are proposed in 
82.931. 

82.211(e) This subsection adopted a standard for the LCRA 
HWLO area for pre-application meeting for certain 
large developments. 

This requirement is proposed for the same class of large 
applicants, and has been expanded to apply to all parts of 
Travis County jurisdiction in proposed 82.915. 

82.211 (f) This subsection establishes distance buffers 
between development and a waterway in the 
HLWO area. 

In proposed 82.941, setbacks established for the HLWO 
area are proposed to be the same and to apply to all western 
watersheds of Travis County. 

82.211(g) - (h) These subsections principally cross-references 
other sections in Chapter 82. 

Proposed 82.935 - 82.940 and 82.943 detail the 
requirements for storm water quality at construction sites 
and cut and fill, respectively 

82.211(i) This subsection describes the requirements for 
permanent, structural water quality controls in the 
HLWO area. 

The engineering standards for these controls are not 
proposed for change and are specified in Section 82.944. 

82.302(f) This subsection identifies general standards to 
control construction-related impacts on water 
quality in the HLWO area. 

Proposed 82.935 - 82.940 detail storm water quality 
measures for construction activities in all parts of Travis 
County jurisdiction. 

82.302(g) This subsection requires that development comply 
with USEP A general permits relating to 
construction and industrial activity. 

The existing section is out-of-date and references a time 
before TCEQ assumed the NPDES program from USEPA in 
Texas. Proposed 82.935 - 82.940 detail storm water quality 
measures for construction activities. This section includes 
the specific requirements from the TCEQ-issued 
construction general permit. Proposed 82.916, 82.945, and 
new proposed Chapter 104 address discharges associated 
with industrial activity. 

108.001 
108.018 

In 1995, this Chapter was adopted as the tree 
preservation policy that applies on County property 
and rights of way. 

Proposed 82.973 would adopt very similar procedures and 
standards and would reference the use of the COA tree 
preservation guidelines adopted in the city's Environmental 
Criteria Manual. 

4
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



EXHIBIT 4
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Legislative Version of Rule Amendment Proposal 
Chapters 82 and 64, Travis County Code 

Reader's Guide 

Text that is proposed for addition is shown in underline format, for example: 
Underline format is proposed new text 

Text shown in strike-through is proposed for deletion, for example: 
Strike through format is text proposed for deletion 

Sections, subsections, paragraphs, etc. of the existing Code skipped or not 
shown in this document is not proposed fro revision 

2
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Section 82.002. Definitions. For the purposes of this chapterthe Manual, the definition 
of various terms, phrases, words, and their derivations will have the meaning ascribed 
to them herein. When not consistent with the context, words used in the present tense 
include the future; words used in the singular number include the plural number; and 
words used in the plural number include the singular number. Any office referred to 
herein by title will mean the person employed or appointed for that position of his/her 
duly authorized deputy or representative. Definitions not expressly authorized herein 
are to be considered in accordance with customary usage. Additional definitions of 
words and phrases not defined in this section may be found in Section 64.031 of the 
Travis County Code. The definition of specific terms, phrases, wemwords, and their 
derivations applicable to matter contained in this chapter the Manual are as follows: 

The following definitions are proposed to be amended in this section, as follows: 

'Best Management Practices" or )BMPst: mean schedules of activities, prohibitions of 
practices, maintenance procedures, and other management practices to prevent or 
reduce the pollution of water in the state or the Travis County MS4. BMPs also include 
treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, 
spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal. or drainage from raw material storage. In the 
Lake Travis watershed, BMP means those practices, including those described in 
LCRA's Technical Manual. that effectively manage storm water runoff quality and 
volume. Practices specified to prevent and abate nonpoint source pollution resulting 
from stormwater runoff. These can include, but are not limited to, site design 
guidelines, temporary and permanent erosion controls, stormwater treatment ponds, 
and land management practices. 

~Commercial Development" means all development other than open space, a single 
family residence, or a residentialsingle family subdivision development. 

"County Executive" or "Executive Manager: means the county executive manager 
of the Transportation and Natural Resources Department of Travis County, a successor 
department, or a person designated by the county executive manager. 

::Erosion and SedimentSedimentation Controls" mean temporary Temporary and 
permanent Best Management Practices (BMPs) specified for preventing and abating 
accelerated soil erosion and sedimentation control to the maximum extent practicable 
during construction and are removed after completion of re-vegetationrevegetation. 
Permanent practices remain permanently in place to prevent soil erosion. 

~Master Development Plan" or "Master Plan" means a conceptual plan of a multi-phased 
development showing the order of phased development, boundaries, adjacent property, 
environmental features (such as creeks, tributaries, slopes, recharge features, etc.}, 
roads, designated land uses, sites for special use, and proposed location of water 
quality protection measures for the development. A reasonably detailed map or 
schematic drawing containing the folloWing: 

3
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(A)The boundaries of the entire development; 

(B)The names of adjacent platted subdivisions or the names of the record 
ol....ners of adjoining unplatted property; 

(G)The location, width, and names of all existing or platted streets or public 
rights of way and all existing easements within and adjacent to the 
development; 

(D)The layout and width of proposed arterials, thoroughfares and collector streets 
and the general configuration of proposed streets and alleys; 

(E)The general arrangement and designations of land uses, and any sites for 
special use (that is, for parks, open space, detention, or public facilities); 

(F)The approximate location of the 25 year flood plain and the 100 year flood 
plain, the location and width of existing drainage channels, creeks and 
I....ater courses I....ithin the development; 

fGHA) The location of proposed drainage courses and any necessary off site 
extensions. 

~Owner" means the-TAe owner of real property subject to a proposed or existing 
subdivision, site, parcel of land, or development. Also: Subdivider, Applicant, 
Developer. 

Stormwater "Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan" or "SWPPP" or ~SWP3: means ~ 

document the plan required by the construction general permit issued by the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) which describes the best management 
practices and activities to be implemented by a person to identify and address potential 
sources of pollutants or contamination at a site and the actions to eliminate or reduce 
pollutant discharges to water in the state, a conveyance, or a Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer to the maximum that are reasonably expected to affect the quality of discharges 
from a construction activity, and that describes the implementation of practices that will 
be used to minimize to the extent practicable, The contents of the SWP3 shall include 
all practices and activities required by the relevant TCEQ permit as well as including 
additional requirements specified in the Travis County Codethe discharge of pollutants 
in storm water during the construction activities required during land development. 

~Western Watershed" means the-TAe Lake Travis, Lake Austin or +ewA-Lady Bird 
Lake watersheds. 

4
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



The following definitions are proposed additions to this section: 

"Aggregate" means any commonly recognized construction material originating by the 
disturbance of the surface, including dirt soil, rock asphalt clay, granite, gravel, gypsum, 
marble, sand, shale, stone, caliche, limestone, dolomite, rock, rip rap, dimension stone, 
minerals, and other similar substance. 

"Agricultural Development" means activities associated with the production of livestock or use 
of the land for planting, growing, cultivating, and harvesting crops, or participating in a wildlife 
management plan. Agricultural development does not include the processing of plant or 
animal products after harvesting nor the production of timber and forest products.. 

"Applicant" means a person who submits an application to Travis County. 

"Bluff' means a feature that is adjacent to a waterway that has a vertical change in elevation 
of more than 40 feet and an average gradient measured from the base of the bluff to its crest 
greater than a 1 : 1 slope (greater than one (1) foot vertical for each one (1) foot horizontal). 

"BMP Maintenance Permit" means an operating permit issued by the County Executive to 
maintain the permanent water quality controls associated with an established development. 

"Canyon Rimrock" means a rimrock that is adjacent to a waterway that has a rock substrate 
with a gradient that exceeds 60 percent for a vertical distance of at least four feet and that is 
exposed for at least 50 feet horizontally along the rim of the canyon. 

"Certified Erosion, Sediment, and Storm Water Inspector" or "CESSWI" means a person who 
holds a valid certification issued by EnviroCert International, Inc., and who possesses the 
qualifications and experience necessary for the inspection of ESC and SWP3s. 

"Certified Inspector of Erosion and Sediment Control" or "CIESC" means a person who holds 
a valid certification issued by CIESC, Inc., and who possesses the qualifications and 
experience necessary for the inspection of ESC and SWP3s. 

"Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control" or "CPESC" means a person who 
holds a valid certificate issued by EnviroCert International, Inc, who possesses the 
qualifications and experience necessary for SWP3 and ESC plan development approval, 
evaluation, and inspection. 

"Clean Water Act" or "CWA" means the federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 
§§1251 -1387 (1977, as amended). 

"Common Plan of Development" means a construction activity that is completed in separate 
stages, separate phases, or in combination with other construction activities. A common plan 
of development (also known as a "common plan of development or sale") is identified by the 
documentation for the construction project that identifies the scope of the project and may 
include plats, blueprints, marketing plans, contracts, building permits, a public notice or 

5
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



hearing, zoning requests, or other similar documentation and activities. A common plan of 
development does not necessarily include all construction projects within the jurisdiction of a 
public entity (e.g., a city or university). Construction of roads or buildings in different parts of 
the jurisdiction would be considered separate "common plans," with only the interconnected 
parts of a project being considered part of a "common plan" (e.g., a building and its 
associated parking lot and driveways, airport runway and associated taxiways, a building 
complex, etc.). Where discrete construction projects occur within a larger common plan of 
development or sale but are located % mile or more apart, and the area between the projects 
is not being disturbed, each individual project can be treated as a separate plan of 
development or sale, if any interconnecting road, pipeline or utility project that is part of the 
same "common plan" is not included in the area to be disturbed 

"Construction Activity" means clearing, grading, and excavating that results in land 
disturbance of equal to or greater than one acre. Construction activity also includes the 
disturbance of less than one acre of total land area that is part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal or greater than 
one acre. Construction activity does not include routine maintenance that is performed to 
maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or original purpose of a facility. 

"Construction Support or Maintenance Area" means an area placed either on or in the 
proximity of a construction site or activity, used by the owner or operator of the construction 
site, for support activities associated with the development or construction, including areas 
for concrete or asphalt batch operations, material formulation or fabrication, construction or 
sales office, material storage, vehicle storage or maintenance, and similar activities. 

"Contemporaneous Reclamation" means the sequential or progressive reclamation of the 
portions of a mining or quarrying site affected by mining or quarrying operations that is 
performed in advance of final site reclamation, but which mayor may not be final 
reclamation, performed to minimize the area exposed to erosion, at anyone time, by mining 
or quarrying activities. 

"Conveyance" means curbs, gutters, man-made or natural channels and ditches, drains, 
pipes, and other constructed features designed or used for flood control or to otherwise 
transport storm water runoff. 

"Critical Environmental Feature" means a feature that is of critical importance to the 
protection of environmental resources, and includes a bluff, canyon rimrock, cave, point 
recharge feature, sinkhole, spring, and wetland. 

"Discharge" or "To Discharge" means to either deposit, conduct, drain, emit, throw, run, allow 
to seep, or otherwise release or dispose of, or to allow, permit, or suffer any of these acts or 
omissions. 

"DRASTIC" means a classification system for comparing land units on the basis of 
their vulnerability to ground-water pollution, a detailed description of which is found 
in Appendix 1 of Title 30, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 210. 

6
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



"Fill" or "Fill Material" means material including, but not limited to rock, sand, soil, clay, 
concrete rubble with no exposed metal, and overburden or spoils from mining or other 
excavation activities. The term fill material does not include any material classified as a solid 
waste or any contaminated materials. 

"Hazardous substance" means any substance that is designated as such by the 
administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 9601 et seq.), is 
regulated pursuant to Section 311 of the federal Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. Sec. 1321 et 
seq.), or is designated as such by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

"Inspector" means a representative of the County Executive who is responsible for making 
investigations, responding to citizen complaints or concerns, and conducting inspections of 
development projects, property, and facilities, to determine the compliance status of an 
activity with this chapter, other requirements of the Travis County Code, and state 
environmental code. 

"Industrial Activity" means any of ten (10) categories of industrial activities included in the 
definition of "storm water discharges associated with industrial activity" as defined in 40 CFR 
Section 122.26(bH14)(i) - (ix) and (xi). 

"Linear Construction" means a construction activity with longitUdinally oriented land 
disturbance, that is typical of infrastructure projects and which may include an excavation for 
burial of conduit such as the placement of a drinking water, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, 
electrical. or telecommunication utility line, a drainage improvement roadway, and similar 
activities. 

"Mine" means an excavation in the earth from which ores, coal. limestone, or other mineral 
substances are being or have been removed by excavation or other mining methods. A mine 
includes an area of land or surface actively or previously mined for the production of 
dimension stone, crushed or broken stone, construction sand and gravel. clay, or industrial 
sand. 

"Municipal Separate Storm Sewer" means a conveyance or system of conveyances 
(including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, 
ditches, man-made channels, or storm drains): 

(A) owned or operated by a State, city, town, borough, county, parish, district 
association, or other public body (created by or pursuant to State law) having 
jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other 
wastes, including special districts under State law such as a sewer district 
flood control district or drainage district or similar entity, or an Indian tribe or an 
authorized Indian tribal organization, or a designated and approved 
management agency under section 208 of the CWA that discharges to water of 
the United States; 

7 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(8) designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water; 

(C)which is not a combined sewer; and 

(D)which is not part of a Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) as defined at 
40 CFR 122.2. 

"Non-Storm Water Discharge" means any discharge to the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer 
that is not composed entirely of storm water. 

"Notice of Change" or "NOC" means a written notification to the TCEQ from a discharger 
authorized under a general permit, providing changes to information that was previously 
provided to the agency in a notice of intent form. 

"Notice of Termination" or "NOT" means a written submission to the executive director of the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality from a discharger authorized under a general 
permit requesting termination of coverage. 

"Operator" means the person responsible for the overall operation of a site or facility. 

"Outfall" means a point source at the point where pollutants discharge to surface water in the 
state and does not include open conveyances connecting two municipal separate storm 
sewers, or pipes, tunnels, or other conveyances that connect segments of the same stream. 
In the context of this chapter, pollutants may discharge from a place of industrial activity, 
construction activity, other anthropogenic activities, or from a MS4. Sheet flow leaving a 
linear transportation system without channelization is not considered an outfall. A point 
source such as a curb cut. concrete traffic barrier with drainage slots that drain into an open 
culvert, roadside ditch, or not actually discharging into a water in the State is not considered 
an outfall. 

"Permanent Water Quality Control" or "Water Quality Control" means a structure, system, or 
feature that provides water quality benefits by treating storm water run-off, including a water 
quality pond, water quality detention pond, commercial pond, or residential pond. 

"Person" means an individual, association, partnership, corporation, municipality, state or 
federal agency, or an agent or employee thereof. 

"Point Recharge Feature" means a cave, sinkhole, fault, joint, or other natural feature that 
lies over an aquifer recharge zone and that may transmit a significant amount of surface 
water into the subsurface strata. 

"Pollutant" means dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage 
sludge, filter backwash, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive 
materials, heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial, 
municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into any water in the state. The term includes: 

8
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(A) tail water or runoff water from irrigation associated with an animal feeding 
operation or concentrated animal feeding operation that is located in a major 
sole source impairment zone as defined by Texas Water Code, Section 26.502; 
or 

(8) rainwater runoff from the confinement area of an animal feeding operation or 
concentrated animal feeding operation that is located in a major sole source 
impairment zone, as defined by Texas Water Code, Section 26.502; and 

(Clthe term does not include tail water or runoff water from irrigation or rainwater 
runoff from other cultivated or uncultivated rangeland, pastureland, and 
farmland that is not owned or controlled by an operator of an animal feeding 
operation or concentrated animal feeding operation on which agricultural waste 
is applied. 

"Pollution" means the alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, or biological quality of, or 
the contamination of, any water in the state that renders the water harmful. detrimental. or 
injurious to humans, animal life, vegetation, or property or to public health, safety, or welfare, 
or impairs the usefulness or the public enjoyment of the water for any lawful or reasonable 
purpose. 

"Primary Operator" means the person or persons associated with a construction activity that 
meets either of the following two criteria: 

(A) The person or persons have operational control over a site plan, 
construction plan, and specifications, including the ability to make modifications to 
those plans and specifications; or 

(8) The person or persons have day-to-day operational control of those 
activities at a construction site that are necessary to ensure compliance with a 
storm water pollution prevention plan (SWP3) for the site or other permit conditions 
(e.g., they are authorized to direct workers at a site to carry out activities required 
by the SWP3 or comply with other permit conditions). 

"Quarry" means a site where aggregates are being or have been removed or extracted from 
the earth to form the pit or mine, including the entire excavation, stripped areas, haulage 
ramps, and the land under ownership, lease, or mineral rights immediately adjacent thereto 
upon which the plant processing the raw materials is located. 

"Reclamation" means the process of removing structures and equipment and re-grading and 
re-vegetating as necessary to restore land affected by quarrying or mining to protect water 
quality in compliance with the purpose of this chapter. 

9
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



"Registered Accessibility Specialist" means a person licensed by the Texas Department of 
Licensing and Regulation to inspect projects for compliance with the U.S. Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) and Texas Accessibility Standards. 

"Residential" means of or relating to structures and accessory uses of a single family, mobile 
home, or multi-family dwelling. 

"Secondary Operator" means a person whose operational control is limited to the 
employment of other operators or to the ability to approve or disapprove changes to plans 
and specifications. A secondary operator is also defined as a primary operator and must 
comply with the permit requirements for primary operators if there are no other operators at 
the construction site. 

"Sediment Basin" means a temporary pond where sedimentation of pollutants occurs which 
is used during site construction and then removed, or a permanent basin designed to be a 
permanent site structure but used for sedimentation during the construction phase of a site. 

"Site" means the land or water area where any facility or activity is physically located or 
conducted, including adjacent land -used in connection with the facility or activity. 

"Site Construction" means a construction activity and land disturbance at a site, as 
distinguished from linear construction. 

"Small Construction Project" means any proposed construction activity that is not a part of a 
common plan of development and does not: 

(A) exceed 10,000 square feet of land disturbance; 

(8) result in depositing more than two feet of earth fill; 

(C) include construction in a FEMA 100 year floodplain; 

(D) include a significant alteration of existing drainage; 

(E) include construction within: 

(i) 150 feet of a critical environmental feature; 

(ii) a platted waterway setback; or 

(iii) an area near a waterway that requires a setback; and 

(F) exceed 3,000 square feet. if the construction is linear construction for utility 
placement. 

10 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



"Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System" or "Small MS4" means a municipal 
separate storm sewer system which was not previously authorized under a National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") or Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
("TPDES") individual permit as a medium or large municipal separate storm sewer system, 
as defined at 40 CFR Sec. 122.26(b)(4) and (b)(7). 

"Solid waste" means any garbage. refuse, sludge from a waste treatment plant. 
water supply treatment plant or air pollution control facility, and other discarded 
material, including solid, liquid, semisolid, or contained gaseous material resulting 
from industrial, municipal. commercial. mining. and agricultural operations. and from 
community and institutional activities. The term: 

(A)	 does not include: 

(i)	 solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage, or solid or dissolved 
material in irrigation return flows, or industrial discharges subject to 
regulation by permit issued in accordance with Texas Water Code. 
Chapter 26 (an exclusion applicable only to the actual point source 
discharge that does not exclude industrial wastewater while it is 
being collected, stored, or processed before discharge, nor does it 
exclude sludge that is generated by industrial wastewater 
treatment); 

(iD	 uncontaminated soil. dirt. rock, sand, and other natural or man
made inert solid materials used to fill land if the object of the fill is to 
make the land suitable for the construction of surface 
improvements. The material serving as fill may also serve as a 
surface improvement such as a structure foundation, a road, soil 
erosion control, and flood protection. 

(8)	 does include man-made materials exempted under (AHii) but where the
 
land is sold, leased, or otherwise conveyed prior to the completion of
 
construction of the surface improvements at a site where the man-made
 
material is deposited.
 

"Storm Water" and "Storm Water Runoff' means rainfall runoff. snow melt runoff, and surface 
runoff and drainage. 

"SWP3 Inspection Report" or "Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) Inspection 
Report" means a report required under the terms of the TCEQ Construction General Permit 
and by this chapter as a part of a SWP3. that is prepared by a qualified individual for the 
owner or operator of a construction site after routine and periodic inspection of disturbed 
areas of land that have not been finally stabilized, to determine whether all sediment and 
erosion control measures are operating correctly. 

11
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



"SWP3 Site Notebook" or "Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWP3) Site Notebook" 
means the on-site notebook and log associated with implementing the approved SWP3 that 
is maintained up-to-date at the construction site by the owner or construction site operator. 
The SWP3 Site Notebook is an integral part of the SWP3 and must contain all required 
SWP3 information not included in the approved construction plans at the time of 
development permit approval and all SWP3 information that is generated during the 
construction of a development project. 

'TCEQ" means Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or any successor agency. 

"Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System" or "TPDES" means the state program for 
issuing, amending, terminating, monitoring, and enforcing permits authorizing the discharge 
of pollutants to water in the State of Texas and imposing and enforcing pretreatment 
requirements under Clean Water Act §§ 307, 402, 318 and 405, the Texas Water Code and 
the Texas Administrative Code. 

'Topsoil" means the surface layer of soil which is generally more fertile than the underlying 
soil layers, which is the natural medium for plant growth and which can provide the plant 
growth, soil stability, and other attributes necessary to meet the success standards approved 
in the reclamation plan. 

"Topsoil Substitute Material" means soil or other unconsolidated material either used alone or 
mixed with other beneficial materials and which can provide the plant growth, soil stability, 
and other attributes necessary to meet the success standards approved in the reclamation 
plan. 

"Waste" means sewage, industrial waste, municipal waste, recreational waste, agricultural 
waste, or other waste, as the terms are defined in Texas Water Code, Section 26.001. 

"Water" or 'Water in the State" means groundwater, percolating or otherwise, lakes, bays, 
ponds, impounding reservoirs, springs, rivers, streams, creeks, estuaries, wetlands, 
marshes, inlets, canals, the Gulf of Mexico, inside the territorial limits of the state, and all 
other bodies of surface water, natural or artificial. inland or coastal. fresh or salt. navigable or 
non-navigable, and including the beds and banks of all watercourses and bodies of surface 
water, that are wholly or partially inside or bordering the state or inside the jurisdiction of the 
state. 

"Waterway" means water in the state other than groundwater, percolating or otherwise, 
springs, or wetlands. 

"Waterway Setback" means the surface area of a setback or buffer area parallel to both sides 
of a waterway established as a protective easement permanently managed for the purpose 
of surface water quality protection in which development is prohibited or limited. 

"Wetland" means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a 
frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do 

12
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. 
Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas. Wetland boundaries 
are defined using the U.S. Army Corps of Engineer's protocol described in the 1987 Corps of 
Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual. 

82.103. Coordination with Other Jurisdictions. 

(a) through (b) No change. 

(c) Other Development. 

In additions addition to compliance with the subdivision regulations of the County, a 
municipality, andlef any other legislative created entities with subdivision authority, the 
development and use of real property in the County may be subject to regulation by 
other jurisdictions, such as the Lower Colorado River Authority, the Texas Natural 
Resources Conservation Commission on Environmental Quality, and the Barton Springs 
Edwards Aquifer Conservation District, as well as other County regulations, as provided 
in Section 82.101 (c). 

82.106. Regulation of land Excepted from the Platting Requirements. 

(a) No change. 

(b) The applicable portions of the County's current Rules and Private Sewage 
Facilities and Regulations for Flood Plain Management and Guidelines and Procedures 
for Development Permits; aM 

(c) To the extent that engineering and traffic safety concerns are raised, the Travis 
County Driveway Permit Process; and 

Cd) The requirements of this chapter for permanent management of storm water, 
construction management of storm water, and setbacks for development from 
waterways and critical environmental features. 

82.201 General Subdivision Procedures. 

(a) General. 

(1) The Commissioners Court will not approve a Final Plat for subdivision of 
land unless it complies with all applicable requirements of these and standards of 
this chapter. 

(2) For subdivisions wftA-within the ETJ of a municipality with which the 
County has entered into an agreement under 242.001(c) and (d), Local 
Government Code, County review, if any, shall be as provided in the agreement. 

13 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



If any provision of the chapter cannot be reconciled with such and agreement in a 
manner consistent with Chapter 245, Local Government Code, the agreement 
shall control. 

(a)(3) through (a)(4) No Changes. 

(b)	 Applications. 

(1) No Changes. 

(2) The application for approval of a preliminary plan or Final Plat will be 
reviewed by TNR for completeness under the applicable requirements and 
procedures of these Standards this chapter. 

(A) through (C) No Change. 

(3) through (8) No Change. 

(9) A Master Development Plan must be submitted for an applicant to meet 
"fair notice" requirements under Section 82.102(a). Otherwise, an applicant may 
voluntarily submit a master development plan as a non-binding planning tool, but 
it is not required and will not be approved by the County Executive Manager or 
the Commissioners Court. If submitted either voluntarily or to meet "fair notice" 
requirements, it shall consist of a written plan, supporting documentation, and a 
reasonably detailed map or schematic drawing, drawn to scale. The submittal 
must contain containing the following: 

(A)	 No Change. 

(8)	 The namenames of each adjacent platted subdivisionsubdivisions 
efand the name names of eachtRe record owner O'Nners of 
adjoining unplatted property; 

(C) through (D) No Change. 

(E) The location, dimensions, general arrangement and designations of 
land uses, including all waterways, critical environmental features, and 
other land protected from development and proposed setbacks from 
waterways and critical environmental features; 

(F) Any any sites proposed for special use, including~, parks, open 
space, flood detention, permanent water quality controls, and-ef other 
public facilities}; 

14
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(GF-) The approximate location of the 25-year flood plain and the 100
year flood fHaRplain, the location and width of existing drainage channels, 
creeks, and water courses within the development; 

(G)fHtA summary by a Texas-registered professional engineer or 
professional geoscientist: 

(i)	 -describing the proposed source of potable water and the 
wastewater service facilities for the subdivision; and 

Oi)	 certifying the potable water source and wastewater service 
facilities will be of adequate capacity to serve all proposed lots 
of the subdivision; and 

(lG) The proposed location of proposed drainage courses and any off
site extensions. 

(c)	 Expiration and Extension. 

(1)	 Preliminary Plan. 

(A)	 No Change. 

(8) 

(i)	 No Change. 

(ii)	 The expiration date of a preliminary plan may be extended 
administratively for a period of two years if neither the 
preliminary plan nor the regulations. including requirements 
of this chapter and Chapter 64, governing the original 
approval of the preliminary plan have significantly changed. 
No more than two such extensions shall be granted. 

(iii)	 No Change. 

82.204. Final Plat. 

(a) Final Plat Approval. If the property proposed for a Final Plat is within the 
jurisdiction of any other governmental entity with platting authority, the Final Plat must 
be submitted concurrently to both jurisdictions. If the Final Plat application contains 
property currently within an existing recorded subdivision, see Section 82.201 (d) for plat 
cancellation and revision procedures. A Final Plat must incorporate all the provisions of 
any Preliminary Plan for the property that has previously received approval from the 
Commissioners Court. A final plat proposal must comply with the water quality 

15
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



protection requirements of Subchapters H - K. If changes are necessary, the approved 
Preliminary Plan must revised, unless the entire tract is being final platted. 

(b) No Change. 

(c) Final Plat Requirements Outside a Municipality's ETJ. 

(1) through (24) No Change. 

(25) Other Approvals. 

(A) When a revision to 2...flood ~insurance rate map is initiated 
under Section 82.207, the owner must submit the evidence required by 
that section demonstratingef the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency's receipt of the applicant's request for revision before approval of 
the final platthat request. 

(8) Outside the ETJ, or for any single-family residential subdivision of a 
tract exceeding 20 acres and for all commercial subdivisions, the owner 
must provide evidence of compliance with the environmental requirements 
of other jurisdictions. in accordance with Section 82.916. submit copies of 
any of the following permits that are required for the development of the 
tract, or if a permit is not required, documentation of that fact from the 
appropriate agency or, if documentation from the agency is unavailable, 
bona fide documentation of that fact from a qualified professional. In this 
subsection, areas in which Travis County has been granted exclusive 
jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 242 of the Texas Local Government Code 
are considered outside the ETJ. 

0) If the development is subject to the LCRA Highland Lakes 
Watershed Ordinance or the TCEQ Edwards Aquifer rules at 30 Texas 
Administrative Code Chapter 213, or if the Ollmer applies for an individual 
TPDES permit, any additional material that the owner submits to LCRA or 
TCEQ to obtain the permit, as \tJeli as the permit once it is issued. 

(ii) Permits under Section 10 of the federal Rivers and Harbors Act 
and/or Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act. 

(iii) Permits under Section 10 of the federal Endangered Species Act. 

(i'l) The owner's proposed Storm'Nater Pollution Prevention Plan and 
Notice of Intent required to comply with Texas Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (TPDES) requirements under Section 26.040, Water 
Code, and Section 402 of the Clean '/Vater Act. The final Plan and Notice 
must be submitted before approval of subdivision construction plans. 

16 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(C) through (E) No Change. 

(d)	 Certifications and Acknowledgments. 

(1) through (5) No Change. 

(6)	 Plat Notes. 

(A) through (D) No Change. 

(E) The plat notes relating to water quality protection requirements, in 
accordance with Section 82.946 of this chapter. 

(e)	 No Change. 

82.206. Private Street Subdivision. 

(a) General. A private street is privately owned and maintained, is not intended for 
use by the general public, and may have controlled or restricted access. Private streets 
normally serve residential properties on individual lots. 

(1) through (2) No Change. 

(3) Outside the ETJ of any municipality, private streets are subject to county 
regulations in order to ensure: 

(A) through (D) No Change. 

(E) Construction and post-construction operation of the private street 
does not cause or allow adverse impacts on water quality as a result of 
storm water runoff or other pollutant discharges. 

(4) through (6) No Change. 

(b)	 Creation of Private Streets in New Subdivisions. 

(1) A homeowners or property owners association must be created to assume 
ownership and responsibility for the maintenance of the proposed private streets. 
Draft copies of the following documents are required to be submitted for review 
and approval during the preliminary review process, and approved copies must 
be recorded with the final plat: 

(A)	 No Change. 

(8)	 Association bylaws which outline membership, voting rights, and 
other items similar in nature; and 

17 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(C)	 Establishment of a contact person and mailing address for the 
association, along with a written procedure for continually updating 
and promptly communicating changes of contact person and 
mailing address, whenever it occurs. 

(2) Prior to the issuance of a Basic Development Permit for the construction 
of the private street subdivision improvements, the developer must submit a copy 
of the association's Homeo'/mers' Association's Certificate of Incorporation to the 
County Executive+NR. 

(3)	 The following final plat notes are required: 

(A)	 No Change. 

(B) The undersigned owner does hereby subdivide __ acres of land 
out of said acres tract in accordance with this plat, to be known 
as "[subdivision's title]" subdivision, subject to the covenants and 
restrictions shown hereon, and hereby dedicates to the owners of the lots 
in the subdivision, public utilities serving the subdivision, emergency 
services providers with jurisdiction, and public service agencies, the use of 
all the private street and other easements shown hereon, subject to any 
easements and/or restrictions heretofore granted and not released. The 
maintenance and payment of real property taxes on such private streets 
are the responsibility of the owner(s) of the subdivision or any duly 
constituted homeowners association under that certain instrument of 
record at Volume __ , Page __ , of the Travis County Deed of 
Records or Doc# of the Travis County Official Public Records. 
An express easement is hereby granted across said private streets and 
any common areas for the use of the surface for all governmental 
functions, vehicular and non-vehicular, including fire and police protection, 
solid and other waste material pickup, inspection or investigation of storm 
water management, and any other purpose any governmental authority 
deems necessary; and owner further agrees that all governmental entities, 
their agents or employees, shall not be responsible or liable for any 
damage occurring to the surface of the said private street and any 
common area as a result of any such use by governmental vehicles 

(C) The private street shall be operated and maintained to prevent 
adverse impacts on water guality as a result of storm water runoff or other 
pollutant discharges. The xxx Association must manage the 
private street using appropriate structural and non-structural best 
management practices at all times to sufficiently prevent and address 
erosion and sedimentation. It is the continuing duty of the 

xxx Association to operate and maintain any permanent 
water quality control and other best management practices associated 

18 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



with the private street. to reduce or eliminate the discharge of pollutants to 
the maximum extent practicable. 

(4) through ((9) No Changes. 

(10) In accordance with Section 104.009 of the Code, the homeowners or 
property owner's association shall allow entry of a Travis County inspector for 
purposes of inspection or investigation relating to water quality protection. 

(c) Conversion of Existing Public Streets to Private Streets. 

(1) A homeowners or property owner's association must be in existence or 
created and must have the power to assess fees in order to own, pay applicable 
taxes, operate and maintain a permanent water quality control structure, and 
maintain the proposed private streets. Draft copies of the documents referenced 
at Section 82.206(b)(1)(A) and (B) are required to be submitted for review and 
approval during the review process. Approved copies of the documents shall be 
recorded by the county at the time of abandonment and discontinuance. In 
addition, a copy of the homeowners association's Certificate of Incorporation 
must be provided to TNR prior to the time of abandonment and discontinuance. 
Approved copies of the Order of the Commissioners Court shall be recorded by 
the county at the time of abandonment and continuance. 

(2) through (4) No Change. 

(5) If security gates are proposed, a Basic Development Permit application 
must be submitted that include plans must be prepared showing the location of 
the security gates. A minimum storage space of 40 feet must be provided 
between the gates and the nearest intersecting street right-of-way. The design of 
the gates must be approved by the County county, the emergency service 
provider, and, where applicable, any other governmental entity with jurisdiction. 

(d) through (e) No Change. 

82.207 Storm WaterStromwater, Drainage, and Floodplalns, 

(a) A preliminary plan, final plat, or development permit may not be approved unless 
it includes storm_waterdrainage facilities, permanent water quality controls, and 
measures that: 

(1) through (3) No Change. 

(4) ensure surface grades will notno permit water to gather in a pool that may 
become stagnant; 

19 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(5) control, both temporarily during construction and permanently thereafter, 
erosion and sedimentation so as to reduce to the maximum extent practicable or 
eliminate the discharge of pollutants into minimize siltation of water ccorses.in 
accordance with the requirements of Subchapters I and K; 

(6) through (8) No Change. 

(b) through (0) No Change. 

82.209 Storm Water Quality, Riparian Corridors, and Environment. 

(a) Geographic Scope 
In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, this section applies outside the ETJ 
of any municipality to any single family residential development of a tract exceeding 20 
acres on the date of the order adopting this section and all Commercial Developments, 
except any development in the unincorporated areas of Travis County in the HUNG 
area, as go'/erned by Section 82.211 .. In this Section, areas in which Travis County 
has been granted exclusive jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 242 of the Texas Local 
Government Code are considered outside the ETJ. 

(b) \Nater Quality Measures for Construction Activities. 

(1) Temporary and permanent best management practices shall be employed 
to prevent polluted storm .....ater runoff from all construction and development activities 
from entering surface waterways or ground'....ater during the construction process until 
final site stabilization is complete. 

(2) If the o'....ner or Construction Site Operator is issued a TCEQ Edwards 
Aquifer permit, or individual TPDES stormwater permit, and if the O'.vner's or 
Construction Site Operator's SVVP3 and Notice of Intent comply with the applicable 
TCEQ general permit requirements, no additional best management practices shall be 
required to comply with Paragraph (1), except as provided in Paragraph (3). 

(3) Construction best management practices may be required in addition to 
those in the owner's or Construction Site Operator's SVVP3 or TCEQ permit if: 
more than five acres '....iI! be disturbed at anyone time; 

the development will take place on any slope greater than ten percent; 

(C) the development includes a road crossing of a waterway, including an 
intermittent or perennial stream; or 

(D) after construction or development activities commence, the measures in the 
SWP3 or TCEQ permit are determined by the Executive Manager to be inadequate to 

20
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



ensure that pollution of surface and ground water is prevented to Maximum Extent 
Practicable. 

4. Additional best management practices under Paragraph (3) include: 

(/\) a pre construction site meeting; 

(B) construction disturbance phasing or sequencing to limit soil erosion, including final 
stabilization accomplished '....ith each phase; 

(C) stabilization measures including re vegetation, mUlching, soil retention blanket, or 
similar best management practices; 

(0) temporary structural or non structural best management practices at additional 
locations or in additional quantities; 

(E) accelerated maintenance; and 

(F) other best management practices, if appropriate, specified in the LCRJ\ Technical 
Manual. 

(c) Buffer Zones 

(1) Buffer Zones for En"lironmentally Valuable Features. 

(1\) In this subsection, the following terms have the following meanings: 

(i) "Bluff' means a bluff that is adjacent to a waterway that that has a vertical 
change in elevation of more than 40 feet and an average gradient greater than 400 
percent (greater than four (4) feet vertical for each one (1) foot horizontal). 

(ii) "Canyon Rimrock" means a rimrock that is adjacent to a waterway that has a 
rock substrate 'Nith a gradient that exceeds 60 percent for a vertical distance of at least 
four feet, and that is exposed for at least 50 feet horizontally along the rim of the 
canyon. 

(iii) "Point Recharge Feature" means a cave, sinkhole, fault, joint, or other natural 
feature that lies over an aquifer recharge zone and that may transmit a significant 
amount of surface '.vater into the subsurface strata. 

(iv) "Environmentally Valuable Features" means features that are of critical 
importance to the protection of environmental resources, and include bluffs, canyon 
rimrocks, cave, point recharge features, sinkholes, springs, and 'Aletlands. 

(v) "Wetland" means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or 
ground water at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal 

21
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in 
saturated soil conditions. \Netlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and 
similar areas. 

(B) Drainage patterns for development must be designed to protect environmentally 
valuable features from the effects of runoff from developed areas, and to maintain the 
catchment areas of recharge features in a natural state. Special controls must be used 
•....here necessary to avoid the effects of erosion, or sedimentation, or high rate of flow. 

(C) Buffer zones for environmentally valuable features shall be included •....ithin 
protective easements. 

(D) A buffer zone is established around each environmentally valuable feature. 

(i) For a ca'/e, sinkhole, spring, and wetland, the width of the buffer zone is 150 feet 
from the edge of the en'/ironmentally valuable features. 

(ii) For a point recharge feature, the buffer zone coincides .....ith the topographically 
defined catchment basin, except that the width of the buffer zone from the edge of the 
environmentally 'jaluable feature is not less than 150 feet and not more than 300 feet. 

For a bluff or canyon rimrock feature, the buffer zone is 50 feet. 

(E) Except as provided in Subparagraph (F) below, within an environmentally 
valuable feature buffer zone: 

(i) the natural vegetation cover must be retained to the maximum extent practicable; 

(ii) construction is prohibited; and 

(iii) wastO'tvater disposal or irrigation is prohibited. 

(F) If located at least 50 feet from the edge of the environmentally valuable 
feature, the prohibition of Subparagraph (E) does not apply to a yard, hiking trail, or a 
recharge basin designed to discharge to a point recharge feature without polluting 
ground water. 

(3) Buffer Zones for Waterways. 

(/\) Waterways are classified as follows: 

(i) Within a western •....atershed; 

(1) a minor waterway has a drainage area of at least 64 acres and not more than 
320 acres; 

22
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(2) an intermediate waterway has a drainage area of more that 320 acres and not 
more than 640 acres; 

(3) a major waterway has a drainage area of more than 640 acres. 

(ii) '.'Vithin an eastern watershed: 

(1) a minor waterway has a drainage area of at least 320 acres and not more that 
640 acres; 

(2) an intermediate waterway has a drainage area of more that 640 acres and 
not more than 1290 acres; 

(3) a major watelV/ay has a drainage area of more than 1280 acres. 

(B) A buffer zone is established along each classified watelV/ay. The 
boundaries of the buffer coincide with the boundaries of the fully developed 100 year 
flood plain for the waterway, except as follows. Buffer zones for waterways shall be 
included l....ithin protective easements. 

(ii) For a minor waterway, the boundaries of the buffer zone are located not less 
than 50 feet and not more than 100 feet from the centerline of the lNatePllay. 

(iii) For an intermediate waterway, the boundaries of the buffer zone are located 
not less than 100 feet and not more than 200 feet from the centerline of the watelVlay. 

(iv) For a major waterway, the boundaries of the buffer are located not less than 
200 feet and not more than 400 feet from the centerline of the waterway. 

(C) Not\'1ithstanding Subparagraph (B), a watelV.'ay buffer zone does not extend 
beyond a rimrock or the crest of a bluff. A crest is a line along the top of a bluff beyond 
which the al/erage slope has a gradient of not more than 50 percent for a distance of at 
least 40 feet. 

(D) The shoreline boundary of the lNatelV/ay buffer for Lake Travis coincides with 
the 681 foot mean sea le\lel contour line. The width of the buffer, measured horizontally 
inland, is 100 feet, or, for a detached single family residential use, 75 feet. 

(E) Development within a watelVlay zone buffer is prohibited except as follows: 

(i) A fence is permitted only if it does not obstruct flood flows, 

(ii) l\ golf course or part of a golf course is permitted only if no fertilizers, 
pesticides, or herbicides are used within the buffer zone. 

23
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(iii) a park or similar open space use, other than a parking lot, is permitted only if 
a program of fertilizer, pesticide, and herbicide use is approved. Park development is 
limited to hiking, jogging, or walking trails and outdoor facilities, and excludes stable and 
corrals for animals. 

(iv) Along Lake Travis, a boat dock, pier, wharf, or marina and necessary access 
and appurtenances, is permitted. 

(v) A utility line may cross a waterway buffer zone. 

(vi) Detention basins and floodplain alterations are permitted id the. requirements 
of Section 82.207 and the other provisions of this chapter are met. 

(\'ii) A minor waterway buffer zone may be crossed by a residential or 
commercial street or dri'.'eway if necessary to provide aooess to property that cannot 
othePllise be safely aocessed. 

(viii) An arterial street identified in the metropolitan transportation plan may cross 
a major '....aterway buffer zone. 

(ix) An arterial or oollector street may Gross an intermediate waterway buffer zone 
only if it at least one mile from any other oollector or arterial street crossing on the same 
waterway. 

(x) An arterial or oollector street may cross a minor watep....ay buffer zone, 
provided that a collector street orossing must be at least 2,000 feet from a oollector or 
arterial street orossing on same l....aterway. 

(xi) Street and utility orossings shall be aligned to be perpendicular to the 
waterway buffer zone. 

(xii) The Executive Manager may grant exoeptions to the requirements of olauses 
(ix) through (xi) where striot oompliance is impracticable. 

(xiii) All street and utility crossings shall be designed and constructed to minimize 
pollution of the waterway to the greatest extent praoticable. 

(d) Gut and Fill. 

(1) Land Balancing. 

(A) All out and fill land balancing shall be limited to a maximum of 8 feet. 

(B) Retaining INa lis shall not exceed one foot above the material being retained. 

24
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(C) Retaining wall over 5 feet in height shall be detailed in construction plans or 
plans submitted with the application for the site development permit. 

(2) Detention and \/'Iater Quality Ponds. 

There are no cut or fill limitations for the construction of water quality basins, stormwater 
detention ponds, streets, or driveways. 

(3) Spoils Disposal. 

(1\) No fill shall be placed on any lot unless authorized in approved subdivision 
construction plans or a sit development permit. 

(B) Temporapt spoils shall be removed prior to acceptance of streets and drainage in a 
subdivision. 

(C) Prior to removal of spoils from a site, the owner shall notify the Executive Manager 
of the destination of the spoils. 

(e) Post Construction \/'JaterQuality Controls 

Permanent water quality controls meeting the requirements of Subsection (0 for western 
watersheds and Subsection (g) for eastern watersheds shall be employed to prevent 
polluted storm'....ater runoff from developed sites from entering surface waterways or 
ground water after construction is complete. 

(0 Post Construction Water Quality Controls for Western \/'Jatersheds 

(1) For development in areas with slopes up to 10 percent, 70 percent of the 
additional pollutant load in the stormwater runoff for total suspended solids, total 
phosphorus, and oil and grease shall be removed. For such development with 500 feet 
of the 691 foot mean sea level contour line, 75 percent of the additional pollutant load in 
the stormwater runoff for total suspended solids, total phosphorus, and oil and grease 
shall be removed. 

(2) For development on slopes greater than 10 percent but less than 20 percent, 80 
percent of the additional pollutant load in the stormwater runoff for total suspended 
solids and 75 percent of the additional pollutant load in the storm'....ater runoff for total 
phosphorus and oil and grease shall be removed. For such development within 500 
feet of the 691 foot mean sea level contour line, 90 percent of the additional pollutant 
load in the stormwater runoff for total suspended solids and 85 percent of the additional 
pollutant load in the stormwater runoff for total phosphorus and oil and grease shall be 
removed. 

(3) For development on slopes greater than 20 percent, 90 percent of the additional 
pollutant load in the stormwater runoff for total suspended solids and 85 percent of the 

25
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



additional pollutant load in the stormwater runoff for total phosphorus and oil and grease 
shall be removed. 

(4) Streambank erosion shall be controlled by designing the drainage system so that 
the amount of erosion and siltation occurring in the receiving streams is not increased. 
The magnitude and frequency of the pre development one year design storm shall 
remain the same. 

(5) The requirements for Paragraph (1) through (4) may be satisfied for a single 
family residential subdivision if the subdivision has: 

(A) a minimum lot size of one acre; and 

(8) a street and drainage network designed '....ithout curbs or gutters, or otherwise 
adequately designed, so that runoff is treated using overland flow methods to a 
vegetated buffer meeting slope and vegetative area cover requirements. 

(g) Post Construction VVater Quality Controls for Eastern \Natersheds 

(1) '/'later quality controls are required for development with impervious cover 
exceeding 20% of net site area. 

(2) The controls must provide at least the treatment level of a sedimentationlfiltration 
system and must capture, isolate, and treat the '....ater draining to the control from the 
contributing area. 

(3) The required capture volume is the first one half inch of runoff and an additional one 
tenth on an inch of runoff for each 10% increase in impervious cover over 20% of gross 
site area. 

(h) Maintenance 

The owner or construction site operator shall be responsible for maintaining and shall 
maintain all permanent water quality controls in a proper manner and consistent with 
county and other applicable standards, including BMP maintenance permits or 
agreements required by LCRA or previously approved by LCRP•. The o'....ner or 
construction site operator shall remain responsible for maintenance until either the 
maintenance obligation is either assumed in writing by another entity having ownership 
or control of the property, including an owners' association, a district, or a municipality, 
or ownership of the property is transferred to another entity. A copy of the assumption or 
transfer of responsibility shall be filed with the Executive Manager within 30 days of the 
transfer. 

(i) Site Assessment and Stormwater Management Plan 

26
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1) An owner subject to the requirements of this section shall submit with an 
application for a preliminary plan a site assessment that identifies all environmentally 
valuable features, '....aterways and their classifications, buffer zones, contours, and all 
other information necessary to determine compliance with this section. 

(2) An owner subject to the requirements of this section must submit with an 
application for a preliminary plan a stormwater management plan that demonstrates 
permanent water quality structural and non structural BMPs will comply with this section 
and shows their locations. The stormwater management plan may be included as part 
of a drainage plant under 82.207 or as a part of the material submitted under 
Subsection (b). The stormwater management plan must summarize the S'IVP3 and 
temporary structural and non structural BMPs to be used. 

0)	 Technical Criteria 

For purposes of complying with this section, the follo'lling technical criteria 
manual shall apply, provided that any changes to the manuals subsequent to the 
effective date of this subsection shall not take effect until approved by the 
Commissioners Court. 

Technical criteria for best management practises and '....ater quality controls in eastern 
watersheds, environmentally valuable features, 'Naterways, and buffer zones are those 
contained in the City of Austin Environmental Criteria Manual (effecti'/e December 15, 
2009). The Executive Manager reserves the right to require alternate technical criteria, 
on a case by case basis, in consideration of site specific conditions. Impervious cover 
for purposes of Section 82.209(g) shall be calculated as it is calculated in the City of 
Austin's ETJ under Chapter 30, the Joint City of Austin Travis County Code. 

Technical criteria for best management prastices and 'linter quality controls in western 
'....atersheds are those in the LCRA I=ILVVO Water Quality Management Technical 
Manual (effective July 1, 2007), provided that to the extent of any conflict, in watersheds 
contributing to the Edwards Aquifer the owner may use any equivalent or more stringent 
technical criteria in TCEQ's Complying .....ith the Edwards Aquifer Rules: Technical 
Guidance and Best Management Practices (RG 348). 

(k) Construction Plan, Engineering, Fiscal Security, and Inspections 

VVater quality controls are SUbject to same requirements as drainage structures under 
this chapter regarding construction plans, engineering standards, fiscal security, and 
inspections. 

SECTION 82.211. Lake Tra'/is Watershed Water Quality Protection. 

(a)	 Purpose. The Commissioners Court adopts these requirements in recognition of 
the adoption by the LCRA of the HL\NO (effective February 1, 2006). Adoption of 

27
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



these requirements provides an applicant for a de'.'elopment permit '....ith a 
consistent set of development standards. To improve consistency and provide for 
coordination of the processes used by Travis County and the LCRA in the area 
covered by the HLVVO, Tra'/is County and the LCRA will enter into an Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreements that included these requirements. Travis County and 
the LCRA will facilitate adoption of an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 
including these requirements, that will improve the consistency and coordination 
of the processes used by Travis County and the LCRA in the area now within 
LCRA jurisdiction under the HLVVG. 

(b) Definitions. In this section, the following terms have the following meanings. 

Best Management PraGtiGe or BMP means those practices, including but not 
limited to those described in LCRJVs Technical Manual that effecti'/ely manage 
storm\\'ater runoff quality and volume. 

CommerGial Development means all de'Jelopment other than open space, a 
single family residence, or a single family subdi'/ision development. 

Master Plan means a conceptual plan of a multi phased development showing 
the order of phased development, environmental features (such as creeks, tributaries, 
slopes, etc.), roads, and proposed location of water quality protection measures for the 
development. 

Single Family Subdivision Development means a development subdi'/ision 
consisting of two or more Single Family Residences. 

Single Family ResidenGe means one and two family dwelling units designated 
for occupancy by one or more families as a residence. 

(c) Geographic Scope and Applicability. 

(1) In addition	 to other requirements of this chapter, this section applies '....ithin 
unincorporated areas of Travis County within the HUNG area, except as 
specified in paragraph (2). 

(2) The	 requirements of this section are not applicable to a Single Family 
Subdivision Development within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of any municipality 
that has an executed agreement with Travis County that provides for a single 
office review and where a joint city/county code of subdivision regulations exists 
pursuant to Section 242.001(d)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code. 

(3) In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, this section applies to the 
following proposals: 

28 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(A)	 l\ development application for a Single Family Residence that 
proposes 10,000 square feet or greater of impervious cover or 
where one (1) acre or more of land would be disturbed; 

(B)	 A Single Family Subdi'lision Development or Commercial 
Development that proposes 10,000 square feet or greater of 
impervious cover or where one (1) acre or more of land 't\'ould be 
disturbed; and 

(C)	 A Re development application that proposes a cumulative increase 
of impervious cover of 10,000 square feet or greater or where one 
(1) acre or more of land will be disturbed. 

(4) A Travis County development permit issued pursuant to Chapter 64 of the Travis 
County Code is required for a Commercial Development or Single Family 
Residence that will disturb less than one (1) acre of land. In addition to other 
requirements of this chapter, the application must describe how erosion and 
sedimentation 'Nill be controlled throughout the de'lelopment process and how 
the site complies with the downstream buffer guidelines, in accordance with the 
LCRA Technical Manual. 

(d)	 Development Application Procedures. 

(1) In addition to other requirements of this chapter, an applicant for a development 
permit subject to this section is also subject to the requirements of paragraphs 
(2) (4) of this subsection. 

(2) Any development application, amendment application, and required supporting 
information shall be submitted to the Lower Colorado River Authority at the same 
time as it is provided to the Executive Manager. 

(3) Whenever additional information is pro\'ided to the Executive Manager as a part 
of the administrative or technical review process for a development application, it 
also shall also be submitted at the same time to the Lower Colorado River 
Authority at the same time. 

(4) Before making any changes to an approved master plan, an applicant must apply 
for an amendment to the development permit issued pursuant to Chapter 64 of 
the Travis County Code with respect to the approved master plan. An 
application for amendment shall be made and will be processed in accordance 
with the procedures of this subsection and any additional requirements of this 
chapter and Chapter 64. The application for amendment shall clearly identify the 
items being sought to be amended and the reasons therefore. No permit 
amendment is required for minor field adjustments of temporary erosion and 
sedimentation controls. A modification to an approved master plan shall be 

29
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



required if there is a material change in land use or an increase in density or 
impervious cover. Modifications to an approved master plan shall be processed 
in accordance with the performance standards in effect on the date of the 
application for the area or phase covered by such modification. 

(e) Pre Development Planning. 

Before submitting an application for a de'Jelopment permit for a Single Family 
Subdivision Development greater than 20 acres in area or a Commercial 
Development greater than three acres in area, an applicant shall contact the 
Executive Manager to arrange a pre developmentlconcept plan meeting with the 
Executi\'e Manager or his designee. The meeting will focus on the proposed land 
plan, slopes, buffers, environmentally valuable features, and water quality 
management practices for construction activities and post construction storm '/l'ater 
management, and may include a site investigation. The objective of the meeting is to 
assess the desired development configuration and to offer constructive guidance 
regarding appropriate water quality management strategies for the site. Additional 
guidance on the meeting and procedures are found in the LCRA Technical 
Manual. After the meeting, the County will provide a letter to the applicant confirming 
that the meeting has been held. 

(f) Buffer Zones. 

(1) Buffer Zones for	 Environmentally Valuable Features. A development project 
subject to this section must comply '....ith Section 82.209(c)(1). 

(2) The	 buffer zones for bluffs and rimrocks shall not apply adjacent to the 
Pedernales River if: 

(A)	 all lots fronting the Pedernales River have a minimum frontage of 200 
feet and a minimum size of 1 acre and best management practices are 
employed to achieve a level of water quality and environmental 
protection equivalent to the 50 foot buffer zone; or 

(B)	 the Executive Manager grants an exception allowing a buffer zone of no 
less than 25 feet based on a demonstration that a level of '/l'ater quality 
and environmental protection equivalent to the 50 foot buffer zone will be 
achieved through enhancement of natural vegetative cover within the 
buffer, low impact site design, or other measures. 

(3) Buffer	 Zones for Waterways. Buffer zones for waterways protect aquatic 
resources from the short and long term impacts of development activities. Buffer 
zones shall remain free of construction, development, or other alterations except 
for utility and roadway crossings. No stormwater treatment facilities, golf courses, 
on site waste'....ater systems or wastewater irrigation shall be located in the buffer 

30
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



zone. Stormwater discharge from the development shall be dispersed into a 
sheet flow pattern before reaching the buffer zone. Except as described in 
subparagraph (G), a development application shall comply with either option 1 or 
option 2, as described in subparagraphs (/\.) and (B). 

(/\.)	 Option 1: Buffer Zones. 

(i)	 Greeks or swales draining less than 40 acres but more than 
five acres, excluding roadside s'Nales, shall have a minimum 
buffer width of 25 feet from the centerline of the creek or 
swale. 

(ii)	 Creeks or swales draining less than 128 acres but more than 
40 acres shall have a minimum buffer width of 75 feet from 
the centerline of the creek or swale. 

(iii)	 Greeks draining less than 320 acres but more than 128 
acres shall have a minimum buffer width of 100 feet from the 
centerline of the creek or swale. 

(iv)	 Creeks draining less than 640 acres but more than 320 
acres shall have a minimum buffer width of 200 feet from the 
centerline of the creek or swale. 
Greeks draining 640 aores or greater shall have a minimum 
buffer width of 300 feet from the centerline of the creek or 
swale. 

(B)	 Option 2: Floodplain Buffer Zone. 

(i)	 For creeks or rivers draining less than 40 square miles but 
more than five acres, excluding roadside swales, the buffer 
zone shall extend a minimum of 25 feet from the 100 year 
floodplain boundary paralleling each side of the Greek or 
s'.."ale. The 100 year floodplain shall be based on the fully 
developed conditions as approved by LCRA 

(ii)	 For creeks or rivers draining more than 40 square miles, the 
buffer zone shall be considered equal to the 100 year 
floodplain as designated by Federal Emergency 
Management ,1\gency or by an engineered floodplain study 
approved by LGRA. 

(G)	 Exceptions to the Buffer Zone to Waterways. 

(i)	 Limited utility and roadway crossing may be appro\'ed by the 
Executive Manager. The number of crossings through buffer 
zones shall be minimized according to the guidance located 
in the LCR/\ Technical Manual. 

31 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(ii)	 Along Lake Travis, necessary access and appurtenances to 
a boat dock, pier, wharf, or marina, may be appro't'ed by the 
Executive Manager. Ho'....ever, this exception is not allo'Nable 
along the Lake Travis shoreline in the buffer zone of a swale, 
creek, or river. 

(iii)	 A low impact park development may be approved by the 
Executive Manager. A low impact park should be limited to 
trails, picnic facilities, and similar construction that does not 
significantly alter the existing vegetation or drainage 
patterns. 

(g) Cut and Fill. A development project subject to this section must comply with Section 
82.209(d). 

(h) Water Quality Measures for Construction Activities. 

(1) A development project subject to this section must comply with Section 
82.209(b)(1). If the owner's or Construction Site Operator's SVVP3 and Notice of 
Intent comply with the applicable TCEQ general permit requirements and the 
SWP3 is prepared in accordance '....ith the LCRA Technical Manual, no 
additional best management practices shall be required, except as provided in 
Paragraph (2). 

(2) A development project subject to this section must also comply with Section 
82.209(b)(3) and (4), when applicable due to the site conditions at the location 
of the proposed project. 

(3) For each SWP3 and Notice of Intent prepared by the owner or Construction Site 
Operator, a copy shall be provided to the Executive Manager in either paper or 
portable document format (pdf). These shall be provided in draft form no later 
than two (2) business days prior to the pre development/concept plan meeting 
identified in subsection (e) and provided in final form prior to final approval of the 
permit. The owner and Construction Site Operator shall be under the continuing 
obligation to promptly provide a copy of any Notice of Intent, Construction Site 
Notice, SVVP3 revisions, or SWP3 construction inspection reports upon the 
request of Travis County. 

(i) Post Construction '.'Vater Quality Controls. 

(1)	 Water Quality Volume. For the protection of water quality and 
drainage ways from channel erosion and stormwater runoff 
pollution, each development project subject to these performance 
standards shall provide water quality volume in approved BMPs 
found in the LCRA Technical Manual. The minimum required water 

32 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



quality volume is based on the one year, three hour storm runoff 
volume as defined in the LCRA Technical Manual. In addition, 
development projects can use Low Impact Development 
methodologies as identified in the LCR/\ Technical Manual to 
reduce or avoid stormwater storage volume. 

(2)	 Coverage of a development project or site under a Travis County 
development permit does not exempt the owner from the 
requirement to obtain a LCRA BMP Maintenance Permit, in 
accordance with Section 4, Subchapter A, Paragraph (d) of the 
LCR!', HLWO effective March 1, 2007. 

(3)	 Maintenance. A development project subject to this section must 
comply with Section 82.20Q(h). 

(4)	 Alternate Standards. A Single family Subdivision De'/elopment 
project SUbject to this section that meets the criteria in (A) or a 
Commercial Development project subject to this section that meets 
the criteria in (B) need not comply '/lith paragraphs (1) (2), except 
as specified in paragraph (5). 

(A)	 Single family Subdivision Development. 

(i)	 The gross impervious cover is 15 percent or less and the 
Cluster Development sections have 20 percent or less gross 
impervious cover. 

(ii)	 A street and drainage network is designed to include the use 
of open road'Nay sections, ribbon curb and maintenance of 
sheet flow. 

(iii)	 Impervious cover credit by use of porous pavement, 
rainwater harvesting, native landscaping and other methods 
is used to gain compliance as defined in the LCR/\ Technical 
Manual. 

(B)	 Commercial Development. 

(i)	 Projects less than three acres in area can achieve 
compliance with this section through the use of vegetated 
filter strips and flow spreading methodologies as identified in 
the LCRA Technical Manual. 

33 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(ii)	 Impervious cover credit by use of porous pavement, 
raimvater harvesting, native landscaping and other methods 
can be used to gain compliance as defined in the LCRA 
Technical Manual. For a Single Family Subdivision 
Development, the alternate standards of Section 5, 
Subchapter A, Paragraph (b)(2)(i) of the LCR/\ HLWO 
effective March 1, 2007, are adopted by reference. 

(2) The Executive Manager may require that the water quality volume specified in 
paragraph (1) of this subsection be provided for a portion or portions of a 
development utilizing the alternate standards of paragraph (4), in consideration of 
factors including, but not limited to, minimum lot size of the subdivision, location 
and proximity of impervious cover sections of the de'/elopment to the 691 foot 
mean sea level contour line, extent to which the development site is able to 
preserve or achieve sheet flow, and the intensity of slopes to be developed at a 
sHe:

0) Technical Criteria. Technical criteria for best management practices and water 
quality controls are those in the LCRA HLVVO VVater Quality Management 
Technical Manual, effective July 1, 2007, and subsequent amendments. 

(k) Construction Plan, Engineering, Fiscal Security, and Inspections. 

(1)	 \Nater quality controls are subject to the same requirements as 
drainage structures under this chapter regarding construction plans, 
engineering standards, and inspections. 

(2)	 Approval of a permit application for commercial and single family 
subdivision development is contingent upon the execution of an 
irrevocable letter of credit acceptable to Travis County in the 
amount specified in the permit which pro'/ides for the construction 
of temporary erosion and sedimentation controls and site 
stabilization, in accordance with the permit and any other provision 
of this chapter. The amount of the irrevocable letter of credit shall 
not be less than 100 percent of the cost as estimated by the Texas 
registered professional engineer who seals the permit application. 
The irrevocable letter of credit shall be released after the final 
inspection/concurrence letter from the engineer has been received 
and after approval of a BMP Maintenance Permit by LCRA 

82.301. General. 

(a)	 No Change. 

34 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(b) General Engineering Design Process. A final Development Permit application 
may be submitted to TNR during normal office hours. The application must be 
accompanied by: (1) one set of the consulting engineer's construction drawings for 
streets, site development, drainage, storm water pollution prevention, permanent water 
quality control. water supply, wastewater, and roadway signing and striping plan; (2) 
one copy of the geotechnical report establishing pavement design standards based on 
City of Austin or AASHTO pavement thickness design for a full 20-year life; (3) 
temporary and permanent erosion and sedimentation control methods for all areas 
disturbed by the construction; and (4) an engineer's construction cost estimate signed 
and sealed by the same engineer who prepared the plans. In addition, an engineer's 
summary letter shall be submitted outlining the nature of the project and any requests 
for the use of Other Standards from the design standards with justification for such 
applications. A traffic impact analysis will be required for developments that generate 
traffic volumes in excess of 1,000 vehicles per day. A traffic impact analysis may be 
required for developments which generate less than 1,000 vpd depending on the type of 
access proposed, single versus multiple, or if the County believes that existinq 
boundary streets which are affected by the subdivision access will require 
improvements to maintain an acceptable level of service at the intersections of the 
subdivision access roads. 

(c) Engineer's Construction Plan Requirements. In addition to the construction plan 
requirements specified in this subsection, each application must include plan sheets 
prepared by a Texas-registered professional engineer that comply with the 
requirements of Section 82.935. 

(1) through (13) No Change. 

(d) No Change. 

82.302. Street and Drainage Design. 

(a) through (c) No Change. 

(d) Exceptions or Additions to Design Guidelines. Exceptions or Additions to 
Approved Roadway Design Guidelines for inside and outside of the City of Austin ETJ. 

(1) Street Grades. Shoulder section roadways may have minimum certerline 
centerline profile grades of 0.0%, if the bar ditches are provided with minimum 
flowline profile grades of 0.5% and the roadway has adequate cross-slope to 
drain storm_water away from the pavement. Vertical curves less than one 
hundred feet long should be avoided. Alternative street grades are approvable 
using low hydrologic impact roadway projects, in accordance with section 82.971. 

(2) through (10) No Change. 

35 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(e) No Change. 

(f) Design for Erosion Control. Design standards for erosion and sediment control, 
sustainable roadways, native vegetation, and tree preservation for roadways and 
Rights-of-Way shall conform to SUbchapter K of this chapter. 

(1) Inside the ETJ of incorporated municipalities and '1t'ithin districts with 
special stormwater quality control requirements, development shall conform to 
the applicable _standards of such municipalities or districts or the County's 
Standards, whiehever are more stringent. 

(2) In any case, minimum requirements for temporary and permanent erosion 
eontrol design for right of way and drainage easement areas are as follows: 

(,6,) The temporary control plan during eonstruetion shall be suffieient to 
prevent sedimentation of drainageways, drainage struetures, and flood 
plain areas that could result in redueed flow eapacity, exeessive 
streambank erosion, erosion around struetures, or damage of adjoining 
property. 

(8) The permanent erosion control plan design shall be suffieient to: 

(i) Permanently stabilize all disturbed areas with permanent 
vegetation, ineluding slopes and embankments. 

(ii) Prevent erosion from exit velocities at outlets of eulveFts, 
bridges, storm sewers, and ehannels through dissipaters, rip rap, 
level spreaders, linings, gabions, ete. 

(iii) Prevent gullying and scouring of roadside ditches and open 
channels from excessive tracti\'e force (shear stress), through 
vegetation, linings, retention blankets, retards, drop structures, etc., 
both during and after the vegetation re establishment period. 

(iv) Protect the integrity of all structural improvements and 
prevent excessive continuing sedimentation from unstable right of 
way areas into drainage structures, channels, and bar ditches. 

(g) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Compliance: 

Storm'....ater discharges from all development projeets must conform to the NPDES 
requirement of the Clean Water Aet, which is administered through the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Based on eonstruction scope and total 
acreage of disturbed soil area, requirements ean inelude: complianee with NPDES 
General Permits for Industrial Aetivity, preparation and execution of a Storm Water 
Pollution Prevention Plan, eonstruction and completion notifications, etc. 

36 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(g) Driveways. 

(1) through (4) No Change. 

(5) Driveways may be constructed with portland Portland cement concrete or 
hot mix asphalt concrete and they should be constructed for their full length and 
width between the edge of roadway and the right-of-way line. Dip-style 
driveways, as shown in Exhibits 82.302 Band C, as revised on [tnserteffective 
date:ofrilel, should be used when roadway bar ditches are 18" or less deep 
measured vertically from the edge of roadway to the invert of the bar ditch. 
Driveway culverts should be used when bar ditches are greater than 18" deep. 

(6) Pipe culverts must be constructedaccordinq to details shown in Exhibits 
82.302 (D) and (E), as revised on [IAsE!;i1,effectivedateof}'rU'Ie]. Driveway pipe 
culverts should be sized to convey the storm event which the roadway bar ditch 
conveys. 

(7) A proposal for a driveway shall comply with the requirements of Section 
82.931(g) of this chapter and shall provide appropriate construction controls that 
will reduce or eliminate erosion and sedimentation impacts of the project. 

82.401 Construction Fiscal Security 

(a) Requirement of Security 

(1) Except as provided by subsection (g), approval of a construction plan for a 
commercial development or development of a subdivision is contingent upon the 
filing of Requirement of Seourity. In order to assure that a Subdivision's streets 
and drainage struotures are constructed in a timely manner and in accordanoe 
with the County's Standards, the Owner of the Subdivision shall file construction 
security (the "Security"), payable to the County Judge, in the amount equal to, 
but not exceeding 100% of the cost of such construction, as approved by the 
County. Within the ETJ of the City of Austin, fiscal security as required by Travis 
County and the City of Austin by the Single Office of Review, in aggregate, shall 
be posted with the City of Austin. 

(2) The requirement of security is necessary to ensure that: 

(A) Streets and drainage structures for the subdivision are constructed 
in a timely manner and in accordance with the County's Standards; and 

(8) Temporary erosion and sediment controls and permanent site 
stabilization for a commercial development or the development of a 
subdivision in accordance with the approved plan, permit. and standards 
required by Subchapters I and K. 

37 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(3) Construction Secured. The following plat note will be inserted on all plats 
to be approved by the County: 

The Owner(s) of the Subdivision shall construct the Subdivision's street and 
drainage improvements (the "Improvements") to County Standards in order for 
the County to accept the public Improvements for maintenance or to release 
fiscal security posted to secure private Improvements. To secure this obligation, 
the Owner(s) must post fiscal security with the County in the amount of the 
estimated cost of the Improvements. The Owner(s)' obligation to construct the 
Improvements to County Standards and to post the fiscal security to secure such 
construction is a continuing obligation binding on the Owner(s) and their 
successors and assigns until the public Improvements have been accepted for 
maintenance by the County or the private Improvements have been constructed 
and are performing to County Standards. 

(~~) Computing Security Amount. 

(A) An estimate of the costs of the road, drainage, and sidewalk 
construction shall be signed and sealed by a Texas Registered 
Professional Engineer and delivered to TNR for its approval. The estimate 
will be based on construction plans, which are acceptable to TNR, and 
current costs for such work, which have been developed by the County 
from City, County, and State bid results and from information provided by 
local suppliers. Preliminary construction plans may be submitted to TNR, 
if they are sufficiently detailed to establish a reliable basis for the 
preparation of the construction cost estimate. Quantities will be as shown 
on the Subdivision's construction plans or developed from the plans, if 
required. Estimates will be on forms developed by the County. Costs of 
large or unusual structures, such as bridges, will be based on current 
costs for similar structures in the area. However, in no case shall the 
amount of Security be less than the amount it would cost the County to 
complete the work if it becomes necessary. 

(B) The amount of the security shall not be less than 100 percent of the 
cost estimated by the Texas-registered professional engineer who seals 
the approved plan. The estimate provided must determine the cost for 
Travis County to complete all temporary erosion and sediment controls, 
and permanent stabilization work at the site. 

(§4) Form of Security. The forms of acceptable Security, including a Bond, 
Letter of Credit, and Cash Security Agreement are included in the Appendix. The 
Commissioners Court must approve substantive modifications to the form of 
security. Any form of Security selected will include an escalation clause that may 
require an increase in the amount of Security over time. Fiscal security for the 
construction of sidewalks shall be posted as provided in Section 82.202(g)(3). If 

38
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



posed posted separately from fiscal security effor other subdivision infrastructure, 
sidewalk fiscal security shall be in a form wffie.I::lthat tracks the forms of security 
set forth in the Appendix with the exception except that the tefmsterm 
"Sidewalks" will be substituted for the term "Improvements" in the forms and, for 
sidewalks for which the homebuilder or other person undertaking site 
development is responsible, the reference to acceptance by the Commissioners 
Court at the end of the one-year construction performance period iswill be 
deleted from the forms. 

(§e) Substitution of Security. In the case of impending call down of the 
Security, the+t=le County Judge may accept an offer of substitute security in the 
then current amount of Security under an approved form without the necessity of 
Commissioners Court action. In cases where the Security is not about to expire, 
the County Executive may accept an offer of substitute security. The amount of 
Security shall be increased to account for any estimated increase in cost due to a 
change in the construction cost index for the items considered in the original 
computation of Security. 

(en When Security Required. Security must be filed with the County prior to 

(A) Security must be filed with the County prior to 

(i) approval of a subdivision plat for recordlnq; or 

(ii) the commencement of the construction and site disturbance 
of any kindof the Improvements, if no Security is in place at that 
time. 

(B) For construction projects required to provide fiscal security for 
erosion and sediment controls under this chapter, it shall be provided prior 
to the final approval of the development permit. 

(C) If the Security for a recorded Subdivision expires before 
construction of the Improvements has been completed, it shall be 
reposted by the party responsible for the construction of such 
Improvements before construction begins or continues. 

(~+) Period of Security. The Security instruments shall have a principal period 
of three years or more. Bonds with no expiration date are acceptable. Letters of 
Credit may include the following statement: 

It is a condition of this letter of credit that it shall be automatically extended 
without amendment. for additional one-year periods from the present or 
any future expiration date, unless the bank notifies Travis County in writing 
by registered mail or overnight courier. at least 60 days prior to the then 

39 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



current expiration date. that the bank elect not to extend this letter of credit 
for an additional one-year period. 

m8) Construction Performance Period for Public Improvements. The Owner is 
responsible for the construction of the public Improvements during the 
Construction Performance Period. which begins upon the acceptance of the 
construction of the public Improvements by the County and ends a minimum of 
one year later, when, if the Improvements are performing to County Standards, 
the County releases the Construction Performance Period Securityconstruction 
performance period security. If the public Improvements are not then performing 
to County Standards, the County will notify the owner in writing of the repairs 
which must be performed in order to bring the Improvements back to acceptable 
County Standards. 

(10) Construction Performance Period for Temporary Erosion and Sediment 
Controls and Permanent Stabilization. 

(A) The security for temporary erosion and sediment controls and 
permanent stabilization will be released after the final 
inspection/concurrence letter from the applicant's engineer has been 
received. as specified in Section 82.953 and after approval of a BMP 
Maintenance Permit in accordance with Section 82.917, unless the County 
Executive has waived the requirement for the BMP Maintenance Permit. 

(8) The security for temporary erosion and sediment controls and 
permanent stabilization for a commercial development or residential 
subdivision development in the Highland Lakes Watershed Ordinance 
area will. be released after the final inspection/concurrence letter from the 
engineer has been received by the County Executive and after approval of 
a BMP Maintenance Permit by Travis County or LCRA. 

(11) The requirements of this section apply to a commercial development of a 
mine or quarry, to ensure construction of temporary erosion and sediment 
controls, permanent site stabilization. including complete implementation of a 
mine or quarry reclamation plan as specified in Section 82.945. Additional 
security requirements for a mine or quarry are specified in Section 82.945. 

(b) Collection of Security. 

(1) Condition and Period of Construction Security. The Construction Security 
will be conditioned that the Owner of the Subdivision shall promptly begin 
construction of the Improvements, including construction of temporary erosion 
and sediment controls, after approval of the plat and shall diligently prosecute 
and complete such construction in accordance with the County Standards and 
specifications. The Construction Security will remain in full force and in effect 
until all of the Subdivision Improvements and permanent site stabilization have 

40
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



been completed to the satisfaction of the County and public Improvements have 
been accepted and are performing to County Standards at the end of the 
Construction Performance Period. 

(2) Collection on Security. In the event any or all of the improvements, 
including temporary erosion and sediment controls and permanent site 
stabilization fail to meet the County Standards and the Owner fails or refuses to 
correct the defects or damage called to his attention in writing by the County. the 
County may collect the Security to complete the Improvements. The County 
Judge is authorized to execute notices of intent to collect on posted Security 
without the necessity of Commissioners Court action, but the Court must 
authorize the collection of the Security. 

(3) Conditions to Draw on Security. The County may draw upon any Security 
posted under in accordance with this AgreementChapter upon the occurrence of 
one or more of the following events: 

(A) The failure of the Owner or OperatorSubdivider to construct or 
complete the Improvements to the applicable County Standards; 

(8) The Owner or Operator'sSubdivider's failure to renew or replace the 
Security at least forty-five (45) days prior to its expiration; 

(C) The acquisition of the Property or a portion of the Property by the 
issuer of the Security or other creditor through foreclosure or an 
assignment or conveyance in lieu of foreclosure; 

(D) The arrangement by the Commissioners Court for the completion of 
one or more of the Improvements, including completion of temporary 
erosion and sediment controls. or permanent site stabilization; or 

(E) The determination by the Commissioners Court that the completion 
of one or more of the public Improvements, including completion of 
temporary erosion and sediment controls, or permanent site stabilization is 
in the public Interest. 

(4) Collection Is Not Acceptance. The collection on Security and the 
prosecution of construction to complete the Improvements, including to complete 
temporary erosion and sediment controls. or permanent site stabilization. to the 
extent possible with the resulting funds is not acceptance of the Improvements 
for maintenance. The County is not a Subdivision developer and, if it undertakes 
the performance of such construction through a third party contractor, the County 
is acting as a third party trustee on behalf of the public. 

(5) Repeat Recovery. The recovery on Security will not be limited or 
exhausted by one or more recoveries less than the total amount of Security. 

41 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(c) Reductions of Security 

(1) Partial Reduction of Construction Security for Public Improvements. 
Where estimated costs for construction exceed $50,000, partial reductions of 
construction Security may be allowed, but cannot exceed ninety percent (90%) of 
the Security posted for public Improvements or 100% of the Security posted for 
private Improvements. Partial reductions will be signed by the County Executive 
Manager, when provided with: 

(A) through (C) No Change. 

(2) A partial reduction of construction security for temporary erosion and 
sediment controls or permanent site stabilization is not allowable, unless a 
section or phase of a subdivision that has been completed in its entirety, as 
specified in paragraph (4) of this subsection. 

(3) Full Release. The County Executive Manager will notify the 
Commissioners Court of the satisfactory construction of the public and private 
Improvements. The Commissioners Court may then authorize accepting public 
Improvements for maintenance. Upon acceptance of the public Improvements 
and the satisfactory completion of the Construction Performance Period, the 
County Executive Manager will fully release the Security for public 
Improvements. except for sidewalks not yet constructed. Upon approval of the 
private Improvements, the County Executive Manager will fully release the 
Security for the private Improvements. 

(4J) Partial Acceptance. Sections or Phases of subdivisions must be 
completed in their entirety, excludinq sidewalks. No allowances will be made for 
accepting partially completed sections or phases without the approval of a 
variance from the Commissioners' Court. 

(§.4) Sidewalk Fiscal. Fiscal for sidewalks shall be released as the sidewalks 
are constructed and a favorable inspection by a Registered Accessibility 
Specialist is provided to TNR or substitute fiscal is provided on one or more lots 
by the then owner of the lot. 

(§~) Sidewalk Fiscal. Fiscal for sidewalks for which the homebuilder or other 
person undertaking site development is responsible shall be released as the 
sidewalks are determined to be constructed in compliance with all requirements 
of this chapter. 

(d) If the plat is to be approved and filed, the Owner must post Security in the 
amount of ten percent (10%) of the cost of the completed Improvements and 100% of 
the cost of the incomplete Improvements to secure the performance of the construction 

42
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



of the Improvements for a minimum of one year from the date of the approval of the plat 
and acceptance of the dedication by the County. 

~ Alternative Fiscal'----..Notwithstanding Sections (a)-(69.) above, the Owner of the 
land to be subdivided may request the Commissioners Court in writing in the form 
included in the Appendix for its approval to have the County hold a plat in abeyance 
until all of the Improvements have been completed to the satisfaction of the County. 
The Owner shall file Security with the submitted Final Plat to secure restoration of 
disturbed areas should construction not be completed. The amount of Security to be 
posted for restoration for developments located within a municipality's ETJ shall be 
based upon the requirements of the applicable municipality or the County's Standards, 
whichever are more stringent. However, in no case shall the amount posted be less 
than the amount required for the County to perform or to contract for the performance of 
the work, if necessary. The Owner may also be required to post Security for boundary 
street Improvements, if the Improvements are not to be completed during the 
construction of the subdivision streets and drainage system. Upon satisfactory 
completion of the Improvements, the submitted plat shall be forwarded to the 
Commissioners Court for approval. 

(f) If an operator succeeds another at a site, the County Executive may release the 
first operator after the successor operator files an application for the change, obtains a 
permit, posts the required security, and assumes, in writing, all outstanding stabilization 
or reclamation liability and requirements at the site transferred to the successor 
operator. All areas disturbed by the first operator that have not been transferred to the 
successor operator shall remain the liability of the first operator. 

(9) Multiple Jurisdictions. If more than one regulatory authority has jurisdiction over 
a development, an owner is not required to comply with this section if the owner 
provides sufficient evidence and information to the County Executive that the necessary 
fiscal security has been posted with another regulatory authority with jurisdiction. 

82.402. Road Assessments. 

Chapter 253 of the Texas Transportation Code authorizes the County to improve a road 
in a subdivision or an access road to a subdivision, and then assess all or part of the 
costs of the improvement pro rata against the record owners of the subdivision. There 
are the following prerequisites for such road assessments: 

(1) The Commissioners Court must determine that the improvement is 
necessary for the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the County... 
including a determination that an unacceptable condition of adverse impact to 
surface water quality exists. 

(2) through (6) No Change. 

43 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(7) If the proposition fails, the commissioners court may not order the 
improvement and assessment. The commissioners court may not again propose 
the improvement and assessment before the fourth anniversary of the date the 
county clerk declares the results of the vote to the commissioners court. 

82.601. Inspection: General Obligations and Responsibilities. 

(a) through (b) No Change. 

(c) Performance Period. If during the one-year Performance Period, beginning on 
the date the public Improvements are accepted by the County and ending one (1) year 
thereafter, the public Improvements including permanent site stabilization are damaged, 
exhibit failures, re-vegetation is not fully complete, or have required excessive 
maintenance due to damage or defects in materials or workmanship, including utility 
backfills or design inadequacies or, if, with respect to permanent site stabilization, re
vegetation is not fully complete, the Owner shall take corrective actions, which are 
acceptable to the County. Prior to release of the Performance Bond, the public 
Improvements and site stabilization shall be in a condition substantially equal to that at 
the beginning of the Performance Period. 

(d) through (h) No Change. 

(i) Corrective Action forGeneral Environmental Protection. 

(1) Temporary erosion and sediment controlscontrol shall be constructed and 
maintained and permanent site stabilization shall be completed in an acceptable 
manner in accordance with the approved construction plan and SWP3, as 
required by Sections 82.933 82.940 of this chapteras outlined in the City of 
Austin's Environmental Criteria Manual. 

(2) If the erosion and sediment controls or permanent site stabilization isare 
found to be inadequate, the owner or authorized representative of the owner 
contractor shall be notified to take corrective measures. If the contractor or 
primary operator fails to correct the deficiencies, the County may require the 
contractor to stop construction until the deficiencies are corrected in accordance 
with the approved plans. 

82.602. Inspection: Protection of Persons and Property. 

(a) and (b) No Change. 

(c) Protection of Adjoining Property. The Owner shall be responsible for and shall 
require his/her contractors each contractor or primary operator to take proper means to 
protect the adjacent or adjoining property-or any private properties, and residents on 
those properties from any. The scope of this requirement includes the prevention of in 

44
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



any way encountered, which might be injured injury, damage, or serious effects related 
in any reasonable way toseriously affected by any process of construction to be 
undertaken by the owner or authorized representative of the owner. in the 'Nork from 
any damage or injury by reason of said process of construction and the The Owner shall 
be liable for any and all claims for such damage on account of the failure to fully protect 
all adjoining, adjacent, and private property and all residents on those properties. 

(d) No Change. 

(e) Location and Protection of Utilities. 

(1) The Owner and his/her contractors are solely responsible for the location 
and protection of any and all public utility lines and utility customer service lines 
in the work area. The contractor shall exercise due care to locate and to mark, 
uncover, or otherwise protect all utility lines in the work area. Upon request, the 
utility owners will provide such information they have as to the location and grade 
of water, wastewater, gas, storm sewer, and telephone and electric lines and 
other utilities in the work area; but such information shall not relieve the Owner or 
his/her contractor's obligation thereunder, which shall be primary and 
nondelegatable. Any utility lines damaged by the contractor's operations shall be 
immediately repaired by the contractor on approval of the utility or the Owner 
shall cause such damage to be repaired at his/her expense. 

(2) Prior to the release of construction fiscal security as described in Section 
82.401, the owner shall provide the County Executive with accurate record 
drawings, in accordance with the standards described in Section 82.604(h). 

I (f) No Change. 

82.603. Inspection (Responsibility of Owner and County). 

(a) through (c) No Change. 

(d) No Change. 

(1) through (5) No Change. 

(6) County Inspectors (TNR); 

(e) Inspector Notifications. It is anticipated that through the Preconstruction 
Conference and the cooperation of the Owner, Contractor, Superintendent, Primary 
Operator, and Inspector, only a forty-eight (48) hour advance notice of intent to begin 
the work will be required. However, other circumstances may require additional 
advance notification. The Inspector shall be given the opportunity to choice of inspecting 
and testing inspect and test before, during, Gfand after the operation of various stages of 
construction. 

45 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(1) When a major item, such as excavating, placing of storm sewer pipe, 
processing of base, placing of curb and gutter, placing structures, laying 
asphaltic concrete, placing bedding material over storm water underdrains in a 
water quality control structure, or constructing drains, is under way, the Inspector 
will follow up at intervals. If the work is stopped for any reason (e.g., rain, strike, 
lack of materials, equipment breakdown, etc.) for seven (7) calendar days or 
more, the Inspector shall be notified twenty-four (24) hours in advance of work 
startup. Usual construction sequence is shown in Exhibit 82.301 E in the 
Appendix and is generally as follows: 

(A) Placement of storm water erosion and sediment controls. 
(8) Excavation. 
~B) Subgrade preparation. 
(QG) Installation of underground pipe, conduit, and structures. 
<f.Q) Processing first left of base. 
(Ee) Placing curb and gutter. 
(GF:) Processing final left of base. 
(HG) Laying asphaltic concrete. 

(2) through (6) No Change. 

(f) through (m) No Change. 

82.604 Inspection: Approval of Construction: and Performance Period 
Guarantee. 

(a) No Change. 

(b) Within four (4) working days after the Owner or the Owner's conSUlting engineer 
or contractor has given the Inspector written notice that the work has been substantially 
completed, the Inspector will review the work and a report will be prepared for the 
Owner with copies for the Owner's consulting engineer and the contractor. This report 
will include: (1) any remaining items discovered which do not comply with the 
Construction Documents; (2) requirements of the County previously required and not 
completed; and (3) any other items required for the issuance of the Approval of 
Construction Letter. The Inspector's report shall not excuse the Owner from requiring 
his/her contractors to perform all the work required by the Construction Documents 
regardless of the time of discovery. 

(c) A construction approval meeting will be convened on the site of the work and at a 
time agreed to by the Inspectors+N-R and the Owner. The Owner will also invite 
contractors as appropriate and the Owner's consulting engineer. An Approval of 
Construction Letter will be issued by the County. The Letter will be issued at the onsite 
meeting if all items listed below in this section are in order. If there are exceptions, an 

46
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



approval letter will not be issued and a letter of exception will be issued for thewltR 
reasons of exceptions. An Approval Letter will then be issued when the exceptions are 
cleared. The Approval of Construction Letter will not be issued untilcontingent upon the 
following documents being supplied are submitted to the County: 

(1) through (5) No Change. 

After the Approval of Construction Letter has been issued, the public streets and 
drainage will be accepted by the Commissioners Court and the construction will be 
monitored by the County for the one year maintenance period. If damages, failures, or 
defects appear, or if unsatisfactory stabilization or unsatisfactory re-vegetation occurs, 
the Owner will be notified to make corrections. 

(d) through (f) No Changes. 

(g) In addition to the requirements of this section. at the time of substantial 
completion. the owner or the owner's consulting engineer must also comply with the 
requirements of Section 82.951(b)(10) relating to final inspection of the site stabilization 
in accordance with the SWP3. 

(h) Standards for Geo-Referencing of Structures. 

(1) The owner's consulting engineer shall provide the County Executive with 
reproducible plans or "record drawings" of the permanent drainage system constructed for 
a project, as part of the final inspection and completion approval process. These record 
drawings shall be in general conformance with paragraph (c)(3) of this section. along with 
the additional requirements of paragraphs (2) - (5) of this subsection to provide 
information for the Travis County MS4 Map. 

(2) The record drawings shall be of the "as-built" condition observed at the final 
inspection of the project. 

(3) The record drawing sheets shall include the plan cover sheet, the drainage layout 
sheet, the drainage plan and profile sheets. and the detention and permanent water 
quality control plans and detail sheets. as applicable to the individual project. 

(4) The record drawing sheets shall include. as a minimum: 

(A) the location of each drainage structure, including: culverts, bridges, inlets, 
manholes. open channels, ourtalls. storm sewer pipe outlets, headwalls, and 
ponds; and 

(8) the location of the storm sewer piping extending underground between the 
inlet, outlet. and manhole structures. 

47 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(5) The record drawings shall consist of one printed copy and one digitally 
reproducible copy, with digital data in a format approved by the County 
Executive, for ease of incorporation or conversion into a Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS) format. 

82.901. Permits. 

(a) The County requires permits for the construction of all driveways accessing 
public roads, utility installation and servicing within public rights-of-way, and Basic 
Development Permit for all construction outside incorporated areas for residential and 
commercial development and soils disposal sites. The Basic Development Permit shall 
incorporate the construction and water quality protection Standards outlined in required 
J2v..this chapterdoGument as well as the requirements ot Travis County Regu,la#ons for 
Flood Pi-ain Management Chapter 64 of the Travis County Code (Regulations for 
Floodplain Management and Guidelines and Procedures for Development Permits). All 
incomplete permit applications will expire one year after the submittal date. A 180-day 
extension may be granted by the Executive Manager upon request before the one-year 
time limit has passed. Applicants attempting to complete an expired permit application 
must apply for a new permit. A renewal of a permit may be allowed by the County 
Executive Manager, if it is determined that no significant changes have been made to 
the construction plans and specifications. 

(1) Driveway Permit Submittal Requirements. 

(A) No Change. 

(8) To scale drawingDrawing describing the type, layout. and location 
of driveway, including documentation either acknowledging use of 
approved standard details and in accordance with the requirements of 
82.931(9) of this chapter for driveways, or alternative details reviewed 
during the permitting process. 

(C) No Change. 

(2) Utility Installation Permit. 

(A) through (8) No Change. 

(C) All work shall be in compliance with the construction and water 
quality protection Standards outlined in required by this chapterdoGument 
as well as the requirements of Chapter 64 of the Travis County Code 
(Regulations for Floodplain Management and Guidelines and Procedures 
for Development Permits), as applicable to the projectTravis County 
Regulations for Flood Plain Management. 

(D) through (I) No Change. 

48 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



49
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Chapter 64. Regulations for Floodplain Management
 
and Guidelines and Procedures for Development Permits
 

SUBCHAPTER A. 

64.001. Findings and General Authority. 

(a) No Change. 

(b) 

(1) through (2) No Change. 

(3) Pursuant to the authority granted to it by the Texas Legislature in Texas 
Local Government Code, Chapter 573, the Travis County Commissioners Court 
is authorized to take any necessary or proper action to comply with the 
reguirements of the storm water permitting program under the national pollutant 
discharge elimination system (Section 402, Federal Water Pollution Control Act 
(33 U.S.C. Section 1342)). 

64.045. Dedication of Easements and Rights-of-Way. 

(a) through (d) No Change. 

(e) Upon completion of construction of the development in accordance with the 
permit. the owner shall provide reproducible plans or record drawings to the County 
Executive that meet the requirements of Section 82.604(h) of the Code, relating to geo
referencing of structures completed. 

64.062 Development Permit Application. 

(a) 

(1) through (20) No Change. 

(21) The information required by Section 82.931 of the Code for environmental 
review, as specified for the permit application type. 

(b) through (g) No Change. 

64.066. Approval or Denial of Development Permit. 

(a) through U) No Change. 

50 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



(k) The failure of the application to include any of the applicable information required 
by Section 82.931 of the Code. 

64.071. Revocation of Permits. 

(a) and (b) No Change. 

(c) Grounds for suspension or revocation of a permit include, but are not limited to: 

(1) Refusalrefusal to make corrections as may be required by the Floodplain 
Adrninistrator., 

(2) Refusal to make corrections as may be required for compliance with the 
requirements of Chapter 82, Subchapters H - K of the Code (relating to Water 
Quality Protection Standards); 

(3) Allowingallowing work to be covered so an inspection cannot be rnade., or 

(4) Denial denial of access for inspections to the Floodplain Administrator or 
other agents of the County Executivehis agent. 

64.183. Utilities and Individual Septic Tank Systems. 

(a) Except as provided in Subsection fb1.M., a basic development permit or special 
flood hazard area development permit must be obtained prior to the installation, 
repair, or removal of all utilities, including as water and wastewater lines, on-site 
waste disposal systems, gas lines, telephone and electric lines and related 
facilities. 

(b) In addition to the requirements of this Chapter, an application submitted for the 
basic development permit shall include all of the applicable information required by 
Section 82.931 of the Code. 

(c) A permit does not have to be obtained prior to performing emergency repairs to a 
utility, but written notice must be provided to the Floodplain Administrator on the next 
County business day as to the location of the repair, the nature of the repair, the name 
of the person conducting the repairs, the name and address of the property owner, and 
the name and address of the person who requested the repairs. For the purpose of this 
subsection, an emergency repair is a repair that is necessary to mitigate or prevent an 
immediate threat to the health and safety of the public. 

(Q6) No sewage treatment plant, septic tank system, or other on-site sewage disposal 
system shall be operated when there are floodwaters over any portion of the on-site 
sewage disposal system. 

51 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



EXHIBIT 5
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



--

t 
PRIVATE DRIVE 
BEyOND THIS POINT 

--...,....~-----It---_----:.-.----It---
MIN. 12' WIDTH
 

M X. '
 

A
 A
 
l .. _.. _.. .._.. _.. _.. _.. _.. __ ._.. _.. _.t 

PLAN VIEW 

MIN 5" MIN 1 1/2" HOT-~IX
REINFORCED ASPHAL T AND 

CONCRETE RIPRAP <TYP) CONCRETE 6" ROAD BASE
SEE SAfETY END AND 2" SAND 
TREATMENT DEl AIL (SEE NOTE AJ 

..... : ••• : :."" ;; ;.;••"; ~ ••' .'!_' 1".0 .~;.-:' -,
"" MIN 3",,'r, PIPE DIA. OR RISE ~.• --l......- ~J 

12" <TYPl 

--11--6" tTYPl 1SECTION A-A 

"I 

l51~ 
,~ 

ww 
0'>DRAWINGS 81;:NOT TO SCALE SIDEWALK' 

-z» SLOPE (TYP.) SLOPE

I-- 1O/. I 21. I 
MAx4MAX.t-

NOTES' 
ALLOWABLE GRAPES

Al	 MATERIAL DEPTHS SHOWN ABOVE ARE MININUMS. TOTAL 
COVER OVER PIPE IS RECOMMENDED TO BE 12" OR MORE. 

FILE' 0' \Pro jee I \Environmenlol\Drivewoy _Stds\eulver L slyle_2011.dgn 

PIPE MAY BE ROUND OR ARCH SHAPE. DATE' 09-l,lor-l1 
Bl PIPE MAY BE CORRUGATED METAL OR CONCRETE ONLY. 

C) MINIMU~ REINFORCEMENT IN CONCRETE DRivE SHALL BE 
·3 0 18" O.C.E.w. OR 6X6XW1.5XW1.5 WELDED WIRE MESH 

TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS r» INSTALL CULVERT PIPE TO MATCH flOWLINE OF DITCH. 

TRANSPORTATION and NATURALE>	 ENGINEERED DRAWINGS MUST BE SUBMITTED FOR 
COMMERCIAL DRiVEWAYS. RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

Fl SPECIAL CONDITIONS MAY APPLY TO ARCH PIPES LARGER 
THAN DES 3 AND ROUND PIPES lARGER THAN 30". 

c: WHilE THE PROPERTy OWNER REMAINS RESPONSIBLE FOR RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAYGRADE BREAKS WITHIN PRIVATE PROPERTY, THE FIRE
 
DEPARTMENT SHOULD BE CONSUL TED WHERE THE DRIVEWAY
 WITH CUL VERT PIPEIS ESSENTIAL TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS AND "G2" IS
 
GREATER THAN 15/.. -cr PLUS "D" SHOULD NOT EXCEED 15/..
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



IN. 12' WIDTH 
M X.25' 

PRIVATE DRIVEt BEYOND THIS POINT 

It-----,---....:....  It------..........-- It -.....----- 
RIGHT-Of-WAY ~ 

In 
W 

§;: 
> 

DITCH
 
CENTERLINE.
 

18" MIN 

/ - ... ----------

A.-J 
PLAN VIEW 

....>
o~ MIN 5" MIN 1 Yz" HOT-MIX

MIN 2' AT 2;(w~IoE- ~ REINFORCED ASPHAL T ANDOR g~ CONCRETE 6" ROAlD BASE 
w;{ AND 2" SAND 

MIN 6 ~~~~ 

SECTION A-A
 

DRAWINGS 
NOT TO SCALESIDEWALK' 

SLOPE-2/. SLOPE (TyP.> , ~ -
I-- 10;( I 2X I 

MAX.4MAX.j-

ALLOWABLE GRADES 

NOTES: 

A) DIP CENTERLINE TO BE ALIGNED WITH DITCH CENTERLINE. 

Bl TOP OF DIP SECTION TO MATCH DITCH FLOWLINE ELEVATION. 

C> MINIMUM REINFORCEMENT IN CONCRETE DRIVE SHALL BE 
°3 Cl 18" O.C.E.w. OR 6X6xw1.5XW1.5 WELDED WIRE MESH 

D> ENGINEERED DRAwINGS MUST BE SUBMITTED FOR 
COMMERCIAL DRiVEWAYS. 

E> WHILE THE PROPERTY OWNER REMAINS RESPONSIBLE FOR 
GRADE BREAKS WITHIN PRIVATE PROPERTY, THE FIRE 
DEPARTMENT SHOULD BE CONSULTED WHERE THE DRIVEWAY 
IS ESSENTIAL TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS AND "G2" IS 
GREATER THAN 15;(. "G1" PLUS "D" SHOULD NOT EXCEED 15;(. 

FILE: Q:\Pr a jec I \Envir anmenlal\Dr ive way _SIds\dip_sI yle_2011.dgn 
DATE: Og-l,4or-l1 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
TRANSPORTATION and NATURAL 

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAY
 
DIP-STYLE
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



6"-12" (TYPJ 

PIPE DIA. OR SPAN 

6"-12" <TYPJ 

PLAN VlEW SINGLE PIPE 

CTYPl 

6"-12" (TYPJ 

PIPE DIA. OR SPAN 

ONE-HALF OF PIPE SPAN BETWEEN 

PIPE DIA. OR SPAN 

6"-12" <TYP) 

PLAN VIEW -- MULTIPLE PIPES 

CTYPICONCRETE RIPRAP 

12" <TYP) 

DRAWINGS 
NOT TO SCALE SECTION 

NOTES: 

Al PIPE SIZE AND NUMBER TO BE 
DESIGNATED BY PERMITTING DEPARTMENT. 

Bl	 PIPE MAY BE CORRuGATED METAL OR CONCRETE ONLY. 
PIPE MAY BE ROUND OR ARCH SHAPE. 

C) CONCRETE RIPRAP SHALL BE A NOMINAL 4" THICK 
REINFORCED WITH MIN 6x6xw1.5xw1.5 WELDED WIRE MESH 

OJ SPECIAL CONDITIONS MAY APPLY TO ARCH 
PIPES LARGER THAN DES 3 AND ROUND PIPES 
LARGER THAN 3D". 

E)	 ENGINEERED DRAWINGS MUST BE 
SUBMITTED FOR COMMERCIAL DRiVEWAyS 

FILE' Q:\Pro jec t\Environmentol\Drivewoy _Stds\safety _end_2011.dgn 
DATE: 09-l,4ar-l1 

SAFETY END TREATMENT
 
FOR RESIDENTIAL
 

DRIVEWAY CULVERT
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



t PRiVATE DRiVEA--, 
BEYOND THIS POINT 

----- It -------.---~- It ---------r-- It -,....----- 
RIGHT-OF-WAY I IN. 12' WIDTH 

, M X.25' 

PLAN VIEW
 

MIN 5" MIN 1 I/Z" HOT -MIX -
REINFORCED	 ~OR ASPHAL T ANDMIN 2' AT 2:1. CONCRETE	 o6" ROAD BASE 
AND 2" SAND	 a: 

SLOPE VARIES TO 
MATCH EXISTING GROUND 

SECTION A-A 

'I  ~I
~I~ 0: DRAWINGS 
,~ 

w	 w NOT TO SCALE
~'> iii 
81~ 

SIDEWALK' 
-2:1. SLOPE (TYP.) , e, ~E I 

I-- lOX I 2x I 
MAX.----jMAX.r-

ALLowABLE GRADES 
FILE' 0' \Pr 0 jec t \Environmentol\ Drivewoy _ S t ds \ s tr oigh t _ tie _in_20 l1.dgn 
DATE: Og-Mor-ll 

NOTES: TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS 
AJ MINIMUM REINFORCEMENT IN CONCRETE DRIVE SHALL BE TRANSPORTATION and NATURAL°3 0 18" O.C.E.W. OR 6X6XW1.5XW1.5 WELDED WIRE MESH 

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
Bl	 ENGINEERED DRAWINGS MUST BE SUBMITTED FOR 

COMMERCIAL DRiVEWAYS. 

C) WHILE THE PROPERTY OWNER REMAINS RESPONSIBLE FOR 
GRADE BREAKS WITHIN PRiVATE PROPERTY, THE FIRE RESIDENTIAL DRIVEWAYDEPARTMENT SHOULD BE CONSUL TED WHERE THE DRIVEWAy
 
IS ESSENTIAL TO EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS AND "G2" IS
 STRAIGHT TIE -IN
GREATER THAN 15/. "G1" PLUS "D" SHOULD NOT EXCEED 15/. 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATUR<\L RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
 

JOSEPH P. G1ESELl\fAN, EXECl'TJVE MANAGER 

.:111 W 13th 5t 
Eleventh Floor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin. Texas 78767 
(5121854-9383 
F.'\-X (5J2\ 854·462(, 

April 9, 2010 

MEMORANDCM TD: Brunilda Cruz, TNR Financial Services
I 

F~1:lStev..1 Man·tJa., (fNR Public Works Division 
~W!j 

Subject: Explanation otPecan Street Change Order to Repair Curb and Pavement Settlement 

The roadway improvements for our Pecan Street eIP project were completed and accepted by TNR in 
August 2009. The construction contract is in its one year warranty period. In February 2010 TNR was 
informed by the project's design engineer, Halff Associates, that they observed very noticeable 
settlement of the outside lane of a 475' section of new roadway. TNR contacted the construction 
contractor RGM to alert them to a possible warranty issue. RGM examined the settlement at the site 
and concluded that it was significant enough to barricade the area, which they did. However, RGM 
refuted that this was a warranty issue and stated that this was a design issue. 

A similar incident, albeit at a much smaller scale, occurred while the project was under construction. At 
that time TNR believed the problem could be attributed to either a construction workmanship issue or a 
design error or omission. TNR invited Halff to investigate the problem and they concluded that it was 
not a design issue. Rather than delay the project RGM made repairs at no cost to us but did so in the 
spirit of cooperation, not as an admission of fault. 

TNR believes the current problem is attributable to a combination of construction workmanship and 
design but it is more likely a design issue. The severe drought last year followed by recent wet weather 
conditions may also have played a part, We are not sure how much is attributable to each but RGM 
agreed to make the repair at a reduced rate for this type of work. Attached is a breakdown of their costs, 
TNR staff believes that if we had to hire another contractor to do the work we would have to pay at 
least 50% more than what RGM is charging. We recommend approval of the Change Order in the 
amount of $49,705.13. Although INR approved Halffs design for the project we are discussing with 
them our concern that this problem is partially attributable to a design issue These discussions may 
lead to an agreement that will allow us to recover our costs and establish a protocol for responding to 
future problems if they arise. 

Attachment 

CC: Steve Sun, P.E.. ClP Division Manager
 
Roger Schuck, P,E., Project Manager
 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



RGM CONSTRUCTORS, L.P. 
15&03 NORTH IH 35 

PFLUGERVILLE, TEXAS 78&&0 

S:l2·990-83:13••••·•••5:12-990-3785 

PROPOSAL 

9-Mar-10 

To TRAVIS COUNTY 

Attention ROGER SHUCK 

Scope: REPAIR ASPHALT OPTION 1 

Quantity Unit Total 

1 Remove curb 475 LF $ 3.00 $ 1,425.00 
2 Asphalt removal 667 SY $ 5.00 $ 3,335.00 
3 Excavation and Haul off 3ft 633 CY $ 6.00 $ 3,798.00 
4 Subgrade Prep 667 SY $ 2.00 $ 1,334.00 
5 Curb & Gutter wi 3' Extra footing behind curb 475 LF $ 10.00 $ 4,750.00 
6 2' Base 475 x 18 x 2' 633 CY $ 21.00 $ 13,293.00 
7 Asphalt Paving 6" 667 SY $ 30.39 $ 20,270.13 
8 Cement Stabilize Base 12 TNS $125.00 $ 1,500.00 

TRAVIS COUNTY TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $ 49,705.13 

Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, Acting County 
Executive, Planning and Budget 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to authorize 
a Release of Lien for a first-time homebuyer that partially repaid a loan 
executed on June 22, 2006. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: See 
attached backup. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, Planning and BudgeU854-9066 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 1
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Meeting Date: December 6, 2011 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leroy Nellis, Acting County 
Executive, Planning and Budget 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to approve: 

A. Release of Lien; and 
B. Reimbursement payment to Texas Department of Housing and 

Community Affairs for repayment of HOME Project Loan 
#36662000-24 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: See 
attached backup. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9066 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Item 2
Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.



Updated 12/1/11, 3:15 p.m.


	Item 02
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item C3
	Item C4
	TCHFC Item 01
	TCHFC Item 02



